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3M COMPANY
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
PART |

Item 1. Business.

3M Company was incorporated in 1929 under the lafthe State of Delaware to continue operationsibeg 1902.
The Company'’s ticker symbol is MMM. As used heréirg term “3M” or “Company” includes 3M Company aitsl
subsidiaries unless the context indicates othenistinis document, for any references to Notertugh Note 18, refer
to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementem 8.

Available Information

The SEC maintains a website that contains repontsy and information statements, and other infdiomaregarding
issuers, including the Company, that file electrtaity with the SEC. The public can obtain any doeunts that the
Company files with the SEC at http://www.sec.gokeTTompany files annual reports, quarterly repgrisxy
statements and other documents with the Secuatid€Exchange Commission (SEC) under the SecuEtiebange Act
of 1934 (Exchange Act). The public may read andyaopy materials that the Company files with the SE€e SEC's
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Wagshim D.C. 20549. The public may obtain informat@mnthe
operation of the Public Reference Room by calllmg$EC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

3M also makes available free of charge throughvébsite (http://investor.3M.com) the Company’s AahBeport on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, CuriReports on Form 8-K, and, if applicable, amendmemnmthose
reports filed or furnished pursuant to the Exchafigeas soon as reasonably practicable after thrapaoy
electronically files such material with, or furneshit to, the SEC.

General

3M is a diversified technology company with a glop@sence in the following businesses: IndustBalfety and
Graphics; Health Care; Electronics and Energy;@oadsumer. 3M is among the leading manufacturepsaducts for
many of the markets it serves. Most 3M productslive expertise in product development, manufactuand
marketing, and are subject to competition from pigtsl manufactured and sold by other technologicailgnted
companies.

At December 31, 2015, the Company employed 89,&6®lp (full-time equivalents), with 35,973 employedhe
United States and 53,473 employed internationally.

Business Segments

As described in Note 16, effective in the third deaof 2015, within the Health Care business sagnitbe Company
formed the Oral Care Solutions Division, which conad the former 3M ESPE and 3M Unitek divisions.

3M manages its operations in five business segmimisstrial; Safety and Graphics; Health CarecEtmics and
Energy; and Consumer. 3M’s five business segmeing bogether common or related 3M technologieba@eing the
development of innovative products and servicesmodiding for efficient sharing of business resms. Financial
information and other disclosures relating to 3ksiness segments and operations in major geograpgas are
provided in the Notes to Consolidated FinanciateSteents.

Industrial BusinessThe Industrial segment serves a broad range dfetgrsuch as automotive original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) and automotive aftermarket (dtdy shops and retail), electronics, appliancpepand printing,
packaging, food and beverage, and constructiomusinidl products include tapes, a wide varietyazted, non-woven
and bonded abrasives, adhesives, advanced ceraesdants, specialty materials, 3M purificatiottrdtion products),
closure systems for personal hygiene products,ssicosystems products, and components and prothattare used in
the manufacture, repair and maintenance of autematiarine, aircraft and specialty vehicles. 3MIs a leading



global supplier of precision grinding technologyweg customers in the area of hard-to-grind pieaispplications in
industrial, automotive, aircraft and cutting to@#4 develops and produces advanced technical cesaioi demanding
applications in the automotive, oil and gas, sataustrial, electronics and defense industrieg\ugust 2015, 3M
acquired assets and liabilities associated witlygwk International, Inc.’s Separations Media beis#n a leading
provider of microporous membranes and modulesiltoatfon in the life sciences, industrial and sip#ty segments.

Major industrial products include vinyl, polyestésil and specialty industrial tapes and adhesigesitch® Masking
Tape, Scotch® Filament Tape and Scotch® Packagipg Tpackaging equipment; 3M™ VHB™ Bonding Tapes;
conductive, low surface energy, sealants, hot rapiay and structural adhesives; reclosable fasteladel materials
for durable goods; and coated, nonwoven and mitrctsired surface finishing and grinding abrasiadlie industrial
market. 3M purification provides a comprehensine lof filtration products for the separation, diadation and
purification of fluids and gases. Other industpgedducts include fluoroelastomers for seals, tibebgaskets in
engines.

Major transportation products include insulatiompmnents, including Thinsulate™ Acoustic Insulatsom
components for cabin noise reduction and catatgivverters; functional and decorative graphicsasibn-resistant
films; adhesives; sealants; masking tapes; fastearat tapes for attaching nameplates, trim, mofimgerior panels
and carpeting; coated, nonwoven and microstructfingghing and grinding abrasives; structural advess and other
specialty materials. In addition, 3M provides pdinishing and detailing products, including a cdetp system of
cleaners, dressings, polishes, waxes and otheugisd

Safety and Graphics Busine3$ie Safety and Graphics segment serves a broad odmgarkets that increase the safety,
security and productivity of people, facilities asybtems. Major product offerings include persqmatection products;
traffic safety and security products, includingdberand civil security solutions; commercial saus, including
commercial graphics sheeting and systems, archidalesign solutions for surfaces, and cleanirdy@ntection
products for commercial establishments; and roofiramules for asphalt shingles. In August 2015,&88Muired Capital
Safety Group S.A.R.L., a leading global providefalf protection equipment.

This segment’s products include personal protegifmducts, such as certain disposable and reussdpéators,
personal protective equipment, head and face grotedody protection, hearing protection and peowe eyewear,
plus reflective materials that are widely used ppaael, footwear and accessories, enhancing \tgibil low-light
situations. In traffic safety and security, 3M pians reflective sheeting used on highway signsiclelticense plates,
construction work-zone devices, trucks and othéickes, and also provides pavement marking systamasidition to
electronic surveillance products, and films thattect against counterfeiting. Traffic safety andusgy also provides
finger, palm, face and iris biometric systems fovgrnments, law enforcement agencies, and comnhertierprises, in
addition to remote people-monitoring technologissdifor offender-monitoring applications. Major aoarcial
graphics products include films, inks, and relgieaducts used to produce graphics for vehiclesissiad interior
surfaces. Other products include spill-control sotb; nonwoven abrasive materials for floor maiatee and
commercial cleaning; floor matting; natural andocedoated mineral granules for asphalt shinglass fdll protection
equipment.

Health Care Busines§he Health Care segment serves markets that iacheatlical clinics and hospitals,
pharmaceuticals, dental and orthodontic practitignieealth information systems, and food manufaugueind testing.
Products and services provided to these and othgkets include medical and surgical supplies, bkialth and
infection prevention products, inhalation and tdeerenal drug delivery systems, oral care solutialental and
orthodontic products), health information systeams] food safety products. In April 2014, 3M purd@thall of the
outstanding equity interests of Treo Solutions Lh€adquartered in Troy, New York. Treo SolutiongLik a provider
of data analytics and business intelligence totheate payers and providers. In March 2015, 3M meduvera
Medical Corp., a manufacturer of health care présitlat disinfect and protect devices used for sga®o a patient’s
bloodstream.

In the medical and surgical areas, 3M is a supplienedical tapes, dressings, wound closure pradocthopedic
casting materials, electrodes and stethoscopésfelction prevention, 3M markets a variety of saejidrapes, masks
and preps, as well as sterilization assurance gwripand patient warming solutions designed togurekiypothermia in



surgical settings. Other products include drugwieli systems, such as metered-dose inhalers, ganatiskin patches
and related components. Oral care solutions indladiratives, adhesives, finishing and polishiragpcts, crowns,
impression materials, preventive sealants, prajessitooth whiteners, prophylaxis and orthodongiplences, as well
as digital workflow solutions to transform traditiml impression and analog processes. In healthnvation systems,
3M develops and markets computer software for halspdding and data classification, and providésteel consulting
services. 3M provides food safety products thateriafaster and easier for food processors tothesinicrobiological
quality of food.

Electronics and Energy Businesghe Electronics and Energy segment serves cussomelectronics and energy
markets, including solutions that improve the deladmility, cost-effectiveness, and performance e€gbnic devices;
electrical products, including infrastructure pudien; telecommunications networks, and power gatien and
distribution.

This segment’s electronics solutions include tlepldly materials and systems business, which previltes that serve
numerous market segments of the electronic didptystry. 3M provides distinct products for five ket segments,
including products for: 1) LCD computer monitorsLZ)D televisions 3) handheld devices such as eliphones and
tablets 4) notebook PCs and 5) automotive displBlys segment also provides desktop and notebowlpuater screen
filters that address display light control, privaend glare reduction needs. Major electronics petsdalso include
packaging and interconnection devices; high peréoree fluids and abrasives used in the manufactureroputer
chips, and for cooling electronics and lubricatimgnputer hard disk drives; and high-temperaturedasilay tapes.
Flexible circuits use electronic packaging andrtienection technology, providing more connectimniess space, and
are used in ink-jet printer cartridges, cell phoard electronic devices. This segment also incltigesouch systems
products, including touch screens, touch monitamnsl, touch sensor components.

This segment’s energy solutions include electqicatucts, including infrastructure protection, telmmmunications, and
renewable energy. This segment serves the words$rielal and telecommunications markets, includitegtrical
utilities, electrical construction, maintenance agplair, original equipment manufacturers (OEMlgdemmunications
central office, outside plant and enterprise, al$ agaerospace, military, automotive and medicalkats, with products
that enable the efficient transmission of electnimawver and speed the delivery of information. Riad in this segment
include pressure sensitive tapes and resins, ielgldimsulation, a wide array of fiber-optic andoper-based
telecommunications systems for rapid deploymefitketi and wireless networks, as well as the 3M™milum
Conductor Composite Reinforced (ACCR) electricabpocable that increases transmission capacitgXisting power
lines. This segment also includes renewable enawgyponent solutions for the solar and wind powdustries, as well
as infrastructure products solutions that providmicipalities both protection and detection solasidor electrical, olil,
natural gas, water, rebar and other infrastruciseets.

Consumer Busines¥he Consumer segment serves markets that inclutuoter retail, office retail, office business to
business, home improvement, drug and pharmacy, retai other markets. Products in this segmentdebffice

supply products, stationery products, construciiod home improvement products (do-it-yourself), barare products,
protective material products, certain consumeiilrpgasonal safety products, and consumer heatth mapducts.

Major consumer products include Scotch® brand petsjisuch as Scotch® Magic™ Tape, Scotch® Glue Sficl
Scotch® Cushioned Mailer; Post-it® Products, sucPast-it® Flags, Post-it® Note Pads, Post-it® Llialge Cover-
up Tape, and Post-it® Pop-up Notes and Dispensenstruction and home improvement products, inclydiurface-
preparation and wood-finishing materials, Comman@idesive Products and Filtrete™ Filters for furremaad air
conditioners; home care products, including Sc@dte® Scour Pads, Scotch-Brite® Scrub SpongestcBeBrite®
Microfiber Cloth products, O-Cel-O™ Sponges; prtitecmaterial products, such as Scotchgard™ Fatnatectors;
certain maintenance-free respirators; certain amesuetail personal safety products, including tyad¢asses, hearing
protectors, and 3M Thinsulate™ Insulation, whiclised in jackets, pants, gloves, hats and bodisdap people warm;
Nexcare™ Adhesive Bandages; and ACE® branded @atkd brands) elastic bandage, supports and tineeteo
product lines.



Distribution

3M products are sold through numerous distributibannels, including directly to users and througmerous
wholesalers, retailers, jobbers, distributors agalers in a wide variety of trades in many coustasund the world.
Management believes the confidence of wholesaletailers, jobbers, distributors and dealers in&# its products —
a confidence developed through long associatioh skitlled marketing and sales representatives —bagibuted
significantly to 3M’s position in the marketplacedato its growth.

Research and Patents

Research and product development constitutes aorteny part of 3M’s activities and has been a mdjorer of 3M’s
sales and profit growth. Research, developmentelated expenses totaled $1.763 billion in 20157 %4 billion in
2014 and $1.715 billion in 2013. Research and adgweént, covering basic scientific research andai@ication of
scientific advances in the development of new amgtdved products and their uses, totaled $1.228mih 2015,
$1.193 billion in 2014 and $1.150 billion in 20Related expenses primarily include technical suppaernally
developed patent costs, which include costs arslifeeirred to prepare, file, secure and maintatarga; amortization
of externally acquired patents and externally aeglin-process research and development; and lyaisss associated
with certain corporate approved investments in R&Rted ventures, such as equity method effectsrapdirments.

The Company’s products are sold around the wortteumarious trademarks. The Company also ownsploisHicenses
to use, numerous U.S. and foreign patents. The @ayip research and development activities generateady stream
of inventions that are covered by new patents.rasgpplicable to specific products extend for iragyperiods
according to the date of patent application filoxgpatent grant and the legal term of patentsenvirious countries
where patent protection is obtained. The actuakptmn afforded by a patent, which can vary frauamtry to country,
depends upon the type of patent, the scope obutsrage and the availability of legal remedieshim ¢ountry.

The Company believes that its patents provide goitant competitive advantage in many of its busses. In general,
no single patent or group of related patents its@lf essential to the Company as a whole or joadithe Company’s
business segments. The importance of patents iBl&wronics and Energy segment is described inféP@ance by
Business Segment” — “Electronics and Energy BusihiesPart Il, Item 7, of this Annual Report on Fod0-K.

Raw Materials

In 2015, the Company experienced declining costefost raw material categories and transportatieh flue largely
to the significant price decreases in crude oilsTinturn drove year-on-year cost decreases inyrfegdstock
categories, including petroleum based materialegrais, metals and wood pulp based products. Tey ttee Company
is receiving sufficient quantities of all raw masds to meet its reasonably foreseeable produciqgnirements. It is
impossible to predict future shortages of raw malgor the impact any such shortages would havieh&s avoided
disruption to its manufacturing operations throegheful management of existing raw material invéatand
development and qualification of additional supgtyirces. 3M manages commodity price risks throagotiated
supply contracts, price protection agreements ansard contracts.

Environmental Law Compliance

3M’s manufacturing operations are affected by matipstate and local environmental laws aroundimtyd. 3M has
made, and plans to continue making, necessary dikpess for compliance with applicable laws. 3Malso involved in
remediation actions relating to environmental nratieom past operations at certain sites (reféEtovironmental
Matters and Litigation” in Note 14, Commitments abdntingencies).

Environmental expenditures relating to existingditions caused by past operations that do not itané to current or
future revenues are expensed. Reserves for liabifior anticipated remediation costs are recoodedn undiscounted
basis when they are probable and reasonably edéngdmerally no later than the completion of fe#isy studies, the

Company’s commitment to a plan of action, or apptdoy regulatory agencies. Environmental expendgdor capital



projects that contribute to current or future ogiers generally are capitalized and depreciated thedr estimated
useful lives.

In 2015, 3M expended about $26 million for capjtadjects related to protecting the environmentsdrmount excludes
expenditures for remediation actions relating tisténg matters caused by past operations that toardribute to
current or future revenues, which are expensedit&axpenditures for environmental purposes haetided pollution
control devices — such as wastewater treatment ptgsrovements, scrubbers, containment structw@sent recovery
units and thermal oxidizers — at new and existauglities constructed or upgraded in the normarsewf business.
Consistent with the Company’s emphasis on envirartaieesponsibility, capital expenditures (othearttor
remediation projects) for known projects are prédgaxpected to be about $51 million over the rewd years for new
or expanded programs to build facilities or modifgnufacturing processes to minimize waste and eedogssions.

While the Company cannot predict with certainty filieire costs of such cleanup activities, capixglemditures or
operating costs for environmental compliance, thenGany does not believe they will have a mateffecéon its
capital expenditures, earnings or competitive jpmsit

Executive Officers

Following is a list of the executive officers of 3leind their age, present position, the year eldotéaeir present
position and other positions they have held dutiregpast five years. No family relationships eaistong any of the
executive officers named, nor is there any undgmadcarrangement or understanding pursuant to velmgtperson was
selected as an officer. This information is presdrih the table below as of the date of the 10lKdi(February 11,
2016).

Year
Elected to
Present
Name Age Present Position Position Other Positions Held During 2011-2015
Inge G. Thulin 62 Chairman of the Board, President ¢ 2012 President and Chief Executive Officer, 2012
Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer, 2011-2012
Executive Vice President, International Operations,
2004-2011
James L. Bauman 56 Executive Vice President, Electron 2015 Senior Vice President, Business Transformation,
and Energy Business Group Americas, 2015
Senior Vice President, Asia Pacific, 2012-2014
Vice President and General Manager, Optical
Systems Division, 2008-2012
Julie L. Bushman 54 Senior Vice President, Business 2013 Executive Vice President, Safety and Graphics, 2012
Transformation and Informatior 2013
Technology Executive Vice President, Safety, Security and
Protection Services Business, 2011-2012
Vice President and General Manager, Occupational
Health and Environmental Safety Division, 2007-
2011
Joaquin Delgado 56 Executive Vice President, Healtlate 2012 Executive Vice President, Electro and
Business Group Communications Business, 2009-2012
Ivan K. Fong 54 Senior Vice President, Legal Affair 2012 General Counsel, U.S. Department of Homeland
and General Counsel Security, 2009-2012
Nicolas C. Gangest. 51 Senior Vice President and Chief 2014 Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief
Financial Officer Accounting Officer, 2011-2014

Director, Corporate Accounting, 2007-2011



Executive Officers (continued)

Year
Elected to
Present
Name Age Present Position Position Other Positions Held During 2011-2015
Paul A. Keel 46 Senior Vice President, Supply Che 2014 Managing Director, 3M United Kingdom-Ireland
Region, 2013-2014
Vice President and General Manager, Skin and
Wound Care Division, 2010-2013
Ashish K. Khandpur 48 Senior Vice President, Research 2014 Vice President and General Manad&rsonal Safe!
Development, and Chief Division, 2014
Technology Officer Vice President, Research and Development,
Industrial Business Group, 2013
Vice President, Research and Development,
Industrial and Transportation Business, 2012
Technical Director, Industrial and Transportation
Business, Asia Pacific, 2011
Technical Director, 3M India and Sri Lanka, and
Technical Director, Industrial and Transportation
Business, Asia Pacific, 2010-2011
Jon T. Lindekugel 52 Senior Vice President, Business 2015 Senior Vice President, Business Development, 2014-
Development and Marketing-Sal 2015
President, Health Information Systems Inc., 2008-
2014
Frank R. Little 55 Executive Vice President, Safety a 2013 Vice President and General Manager, PersBafgty
Graphics Business Group Division, 2013
Vice President and General Manager, Occupational
Health and Environmental Safety Division, 2011-
2012
Managing Director, 3M Korea, 2008-2011
Marlene M. McGrath 53 Senior Vice President, Human 2012 Vice President, Human Resources, International
Resources Operations, 2010-2012
Kimberly F. Price 56 Senior Vice President, Corporate 2016 Vice President, 3Mgives, 2013-2015
Communications and Enterpris Vice President, Community Affairs, 2012-2013
Services Assistant General Counsel, Office of General
Counsel, 2000-2012
Michael F. Roman 56 Executive Vice President, Industrii 2014 Senior Vice President, Business Development, 2013-
Business Group 2014
Vice President and General Manager, Industrial
Adhesives and Tapes Division, 2011-2013
Vice President and General Manager, Renewable
Energy Division, 2009-2011
Hak Cheol Shin 58 Executive Vice President, 2011 Executive Vice President, Industrial and
International Operations Transportation Business, 2006-2011
Jesse G. Singh 50 Senior Vice President, Supply Che 2016 President, Health Information Systems, 2015-2016
Transformation Senior Vice President, Marketing and Sales, 2014-
2015
Vice President and General Manager, Stationery and
Office Supplies Division, 2012-2013
President, Sumitomo 3M Limited, 2007-2012
Michael G. Vale 49 Executive Vice President, Consumr 2012 Executive Vice President, Consumer and Office

Business Group

Business, 2011-2012
Managing Director, 3M Brazil, 2009-2011



Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May AffectFuture Results

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including “Managentis Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditand
Results of Operations” in Item 7, contains forwérdking statements within the meaning of the Pen&écurities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Company may atsake forward-looking statements in other repalesl fwith the
Securities and Exchange Commission, in materidisated to shareholders and in press releaseslditian, the
Company’s representatives may from time to time enadal forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements relate to future evantstypically address the Company’s expected futusness and
financial performance. Words such as “plan,” “exge@im,” “believe,” “project,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “forecast” and other words and terms of similar meaning, tylbyddentify such
forward-looking statements. In particular, thesgude, among others, statements relating to:

« the Company’s strategy for growth, future reveneesnings, cash flow, uses of cash and other messidir
financial performance, and market position,

« worldwide economic and capital markets conditisugh as interest rates, foreign currency exchaaigs,r
financial conditions of our suppliers and customarsl natural and other disasters or climate chaffgeting
the operations of the Company or our supplierscarstiomers,

e new business opportunities, product developmert fature performance or results of current or apited
products,

« the scope, nature or impact of acquisition, stiatatljance and divestiture activities,

< the outcome of contingencies, such as legal andatgy proceedings,

« future levels of indebtedness, common stock reages and capital spending,

« future availability of and access to credit markets

e pension and postretirement obligation assumptiodsfature contributions,

e asset impairments,

« tax liabilities,

« information technology security, and

» the effects of changes in tax, environmental ahérofaws and regulations in the United States dhero
countries in which we operate.

The Company assumes no obligation to update oseeuiy forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on certaimgssons and expectations of future events anditréimat are
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual futwsults and trends may differ materially from histakresults or those
reflected in any such forward-looking statemenisesteling on a variety of factors. Important inforioatas to these
factors can be found in this document, includimgpag others, “Management’s Discussion and Analyglsinancial
Condition and Results of Operations” under the hegdof “Overview,” “Financial Condition and Liguitg” and
annually in “Critical Accounting Estimates.” Disaisn of these factors is incorporated by referdrma Part I, Item
1A, “Risk Factors,” of this document, and shouldcbesidered an integral part of Part Il, ltem 7 giMgement’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations.” For additional informatmncerning
factors that may cause actual results to vary nadliiefrom those stated in the forward-looking staents, see our
reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with theGfrom time to time.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Provided below is a cautionary discussion of whathelieve to be the most important risk factordiapple to the
Company. Discussion of these factors is incorpdrhtereference into and considered an integralgfdPart 11, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahditions and Results of Operations.”

* Results are impacted by the effects of, and ckamgy worldwide economic, political, and capitednkets conditions.
The Company operates in more than 70 countrieslarides approximately 60 percent of its revenuesifoutside the
United States. The Company’s business is subjegibtmal competition and geopolitical risks and rbayadversely
affected by factors in the United States and otbentries that are beyond its control, such asel@eonomic growth,
disruptions in financial markets, economic downsuimthe form of either contained or widesprea@ssmnary



conditions, inflation, elevated unemployment leyslaggish or uneven recovery, government deféction and
other austerity measures in specific countrieggions, or in the various industries in which tr@rpany operates;
social, political or labor conditions in specifiountries or regions; natural and other disasteddimate change
affecting the operations of the Company or its@ongrs and suppliers; or adverse changes in th&ahiliay and cost of
capital, interest rates, tax rates, tax laws, aharge control, ability to expatriate earnings atekr regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

* Change in the Company’s credit ratings could ease cost of fundinghe Company’s credit ratings are important to
3M’s cost of capital. The major rating agenciegtirmly evaluate the Company’s credit profile angigis debt ratings to
3M. The Company has an AA- credit rating, withab$t outlook, from Standard & Poor’s and an Aa3litnating,

with a negative outlook, from Moody’s Investors Bee. This evaluation is based on a number of factohich include
financial strength, business and financial riskwa#l as transparency with rating agencies andlimass of financial
reporting. The Company’s credit ratings have seteddwer 3M’s borrowing costs and facilitate accts a variety of
lenders. The Company’s ongoing transition to a noqtimized capital structure, financed with addiiblow-cost debt,
could impact 3M’s credit rating in the future. Feai# to maintain strong investment grade ratingslevadversely affect
the Company’s cost of funding and could advers#caliquidity and access to capital markets.

* The Company’s results are affected by competitovaditions and customer preferencBemand for the Company’s
products, which impacts revenue and profit margsiaffected by (i) the development and timingtef introduction of
competitive products; (i) the Company’s resporsddwnward pricing to stay competitive; (iii) chasgn customer
order patterns, such as changes in the levelsrehtory maintained by customers and the timingust@mer purchases
which may be affected by announced price chandes)ges in the Company’s incentive programs, octistomer’s
ability to achieve incentive goals; and (iv) chamgecustomers’ preferences for our products, uficly the success of
products offered by our competitors, and changesigiomer designs for their products that can affecdemand for
some of the Company’s products.

* Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuationthose rates may affect the Company'’s abilityetdize projected
growth rates in its sales and earninggecause the Company’s financial statements arendi@ated in U.S. dollars and
approximately 60 percent of the Company’s reverueslerived from outside the United States, the gamy's results
of operations and its ability to realize projectgdwth rates in sales and earnings could be adyeaffected if the U.S.
dollar strengthens significantly against foreigmrencies.

* The Company'’s growth objectives are largely defsart on the timing and market acceptance of its pi@auct
offerings, including its ability to continually rew its pipeline of new products and to bring thpssducts to market.
This ability may be adversely affected by difficedt or delays in product development, such asriigility to identify
viable new products, obtain adequate intellectuvaperty protection, or gain market acceptance of ppducts. There
are no guarantees that new products will provestodmmercially successful.

* The Company’s future results are subject to flations in the costs and availability of purchasednponents,
compounds, raw materials and energy, includingaatl natural gas and their derivatives, due to shges, increased
demand, supply interruptions, currency exchandesrigatural disasters and other factofie Company depends on
various components, compounds, raw materials, aatgg (including oil and natural gas and their d#ives) supplied
by others for the manufacturing of its productss possible that any of its supplier relationshipsld be interrupted
due to natural and other disasters and other evant® terminated in the future. Any sustainedrintption in the
Company’s receipt of adequate supplies could havatarial adverse effect on the Company. In addlitichile the
Company has a process to minimize volatility in poment and material pricing, no assurance canvenghat the
Company will be able to successfully manage piigetdiations or that future price fluctuations ooghges will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company.

* Acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestiturasd other unusual events resulting from portfolanagement actions
and other evolving business strategies, and passitganizational restructuring could affect futuesults.The
Company monitors its business portfolio and orgatiinal structure and has made and may continoeate
acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestitures emahges to its organizational structure. With eespo acquisitions,
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future results will be affected by the Company’dighto integrate acquired businesses quickly abthin the
anticipated synergies.

* The Company’s future results may be affecteddf@ompany generates fewer productivity improvesntian
estimatedThe Company utilizes various tools, such as LaarSima, and engages in ongoing global business
transformation. Business transformation is defiae@¢hanges in processes and internal/externateateiivery across
3M to move to more efficient business models tormap operational efficiency and productivity, whdowing 3M to
serve customers with greater speed and efficieFluig. is enabled by the ongoing multi-year phaseulémentation of
an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system oorilwide basis. There can be no assurance thaf #ie projected
productivity improvements will be realized.

* The Company employs information technology systensupport its business, including ongoing phased
implementation of an ERP system as part of busitnassformation on a worldwide basis over the resxteral years.
Security breaches and other disruptions to the Goms information technology infrastructure coufderfere with the
Company'’s operations, compromise information beillogdo the Company and its customers, supplierd,eamployees,
exposing the Company to liability which could adely impact the Company’s business and reputaktiotihe ordinary
course of business, the Company relies on infoomagchnology networks and systems, some of whielhm@anaged by
third parties, to process, transmit and store elait information, and to manage or support a ¥aieé business
processes and activities. Additionally, the Compemljects and stores certain data, including pegpri business
information, and may have access to confidentigdessonal information in certain of our businegbas is subject to
privacy and security laws, regulations and custeimmg@iosed controls. Despite our cybersecurity mess(including
employee and third-party training, monitoring ofwerks and systems, and maintenance of backup raregqpive
systems) which are continuously reviewed and upgtathe Company’s information technology netwonkd a
infrastructure may still be vulnerable to damagsrupbtions or shutdowns due to attack by hacketweaches,
employee error or malfeasance, power outages, cempiuuses, telecommunication or utility failureystems failures,
service providers including cloud services, natdisdsters or other catastrophic events. It isiples®r such
vulnerabilities to remain undetected for an extehperiod, up to and including several years. Whitechave
experienced, and expect to continue to experighese types of threats to the Company’s informatahnology
networks and infrastructure, none of them to datehad a material impact to the Company. Therelmayther
challenges and risks as the Company upgrades andsstizes its ERP system on a worldwide basis.s\ich events
could result in legal claims or proceedings, lidpibr penalties under privacy laws, disruptiorojrerations, and damage
to the Company’s reputation, which could adversélgct the Company’s business. Although the Compaaintains
insurance coverage for various cybersecurity riglexre can be no guarantee that all costs or lassesed will be fully
insured.

* The Company's defined benefit pension and pastreént plans are subject to financial market rigtkat could
adversely impact our result$he performance of financial markets and discoatgs impact the Company's funding
obligations under its defined benefit plans. Siigaifit changes in market interest rates, decreagés ifair value of plan
assets and investment losses on plan assets,lavdntdegislative or regulatory changes relatimgiéfined benefit plan
funding may increase the Company's funding obliyetiand adversely impact its results of operatimmscash flows.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedanipus legal and regulatory proceedings and legainpliance risks,
including those involving product liability, antitst, intellectual property, environmental, the Ur8reign Corrupt
Practices Act and other anti-bribery, anti-corrui, or other mattersThe outcome of these legal proceedings may
differ from the Company’s expectations becauseotiieomes of litigation, including regulatory magteare often
difficult to reliably predict. Various factors oedelopments can lead the Company to change cwestimiates of
liabilities and related insurance receivables wiagmglicable, or make such estimates for mattengqusly not
susceptible of reasonable estimates, such as idficagh judicial ruling or judgment, a significagéttlement, significant
regulatory developments or changes in applicable Aafuture adverse ruling, settlement or unfavéeatevelopment
could result in future charges that could have teria adverse effect on the Company’s resultspafrations or cash
flows in any particular period. For a more detaitscussion of the legal proceedings involving@mnpany and the
associated accounting estimates, see the discuadiote 14 “Commitments and Contingencies” witthie Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

11



Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

3M's general offices, corporate research laboragomnd certain division laboratories are locate8ti Paul, Minnesota.
The Company operates 88 manufacturing facilitie?drstates. The Company operates 127 manufactanidg
converting facilities in 37 countries outside theitdd States.

3M owns the majority of its physical properties. 3Ndhysical facilities are highly suitable for tharposes for which
they were designed. Because 3M is a global ensergharacterized by substantial intersegment catiper properties
are often used by multiple business segments.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Discussion of legal matters is incorporated byrexiee from Part Il, Item 8, Note 14, “Commitmentsl a
Contingencies,” of this document, and should besared an integral part of Part I, Item 3, “LeBabceedings.”

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Pursuant to Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wabk&tReform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Adtig Company
is required to disclose, in connection with the @siit operates, information concerning mine safatlations or other
regulatory matters in its periodic reports filediwthe SEC. For the year 2015, the information eomiag mine safety
violations or other regulatory matters required3ggtion 1503(a) of the Act is included in Exhibit® this annual
report.
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PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Ediy
Securities.

Equity compensation plans’ information is incorgerhby reference from Part Ill, Item 12, “Secu@ynership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Reélateckholder Matters,” of this document, and stidag
considered an integral part of Item 5. At Janudry2®16, there were 84,607 shareholders of re@ditk stock is listed
on the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (NYSE), théc@po Stock Exchange, Inc., and the SWX Swiss ExgbaCash
dividends declared and paid totaled $1.025 perstuareach of the second, third, and fourth quar®é2015. Cash
dividends declared in the fourth quarter of 201ehided a dividend paid in November 2014 of $0.8869hare and a
dividend paid in March 2015 of $1.025 per shareshGdividends declared and paid totaled $0.855 hmesfor each of
the second and third quarters of 2014. Cash didsleleclared in the fourth quarter of 2013 includkvadend paid in
March 2014 of $0.855 per share. Stock price corapas follow:

Stock price comparisons (NYSE composite transacti)

(Per share amounts) First Quarter Second Quarte Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total

2015 High $ 17050 $ 167.70 $ 15794 $ 160.09 $ 170.50
2015 Low 157.74 153.92 134.00 138.57 134.00
2014 High $ 13929 $ 14553 $ 14787 $ 168.16 $ 168.16
2014 Low 123.61 132.02 138.43 130.60 123.61

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Repurchases of 3M common stock are made to sui@ompany’s stock-based employee compensatios plad
for other corporate purposes. In February 2014,s3B8ard of Directors authorized the repurchasgdbub12 billion
of 3M’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-elstiled end date. In February 2016, 3M’s Board a&Btors
replaced the Company’s February 2014 repurchasggrowith a new repurchase program. This new progra
authorizes the repurchase of up to $10 billionMfs3outstanding common stock, with no pre-estalglisend date.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchanggct)

Total Number of

Average Price

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Maximum
Approximate
Dollar Value of
Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased
under the Plans

Shares Purchased  Paid per Announced Plans  or Programs
Period 1) Share or Programs (2) (Millions)
January 1-31, 2015 1,628,42C $ 161.61 1,628,42C $ 6,440
February 1-28, 2015 1,451,986 166.64 1,449,538 $ 6,198
March 1-31, 2015 2,001,351 $ 164.58 2,000,84¢€ $ 5,869
Total January 1-March 31, 2015 5,081,758 164.22 5,078,806 $ 5,869
April 1-30, 2015 2,937,145 $ 160.60 2,934,72¢€ $ 5,398
May 1-31, 2015 3,966,294% 160.30 3,966,100 $ 4,762
June 1-30, 2015 4,294,765 $ 157.50 4,294,763 $ 4,085
Total April 1-June 30, 2015 11,198,206 159.30 11,195,589 $ 4,085
July 1-31, 2015 4,943,48: $ 154.28 4,943,48% $ 3,323
August 1-31, 2015 2,428,004% 144.75 2,428,004 $ 2,971
September 1-30, 2015 2,371,046 $ 140.13 2,369,922 $ 2,639
Total July 1-September 30, 2015 9,742,538 148.46 9,741,409 $ 2,639
October 1-31, 2015 1,922,62¢ $ 151.09 1,922,62¢ $ 2,349
Novembe 1-30, 2015 2,052,151% 157.89 2,051,444 $ 2,025
December 1-31, 2015 3,669,02¢ $ 152.01 3,669,02¢ $ 1,467
Total October 1-December 31, 2015 7,643,8(8 153.36 7,643,101 $ 1,467
Total January 1-December 31, 2015 33,666,29¢ $ 155.56 33,658,905 $ 1,467

(1) The total number of shares purchased includeshéjes purchased under the Board’s authorizatiessithed

above, and (ii) shares purchased in connectiontivétexercise of stock options.

(2) The total number of shares purchased as part dichunnounced plans or programs includes shaneshased
under the Board's authorizations described above.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Years ended December 31.:
Net sales $30,274 $31,821 $30,871 $29,904 $29,611
Net income attributable to 3M 4,833 4,956 4,659 4,444 4,283
Per share of 3M common stock:
Net income attributable to 3M — basic 7.72 7.63 6.83 6.40 6.05
Net income attributable to 3M — diluted 7.58 7.49 6.72 6.32 5.96
Cash dividends declared per 3M common share 3.075 3.59 3.395 2.36 2.20
Cash dividends paid per 3M common share 4.10 3.42 2.54 2.36 2.20
At December 31:
Total assets $32,718 $31,209 $33,304 $33,841 $31,584
Long-term debt (excluding portion due within onage
and long-term capital lease obligations 8,799 6,764 4,367 4,970 4,549

In 2015, 3M’s Board of Directors declared a secdhitld, and fourth quarter dividend of $1.025 pearg, which
resulted in total year 2015 declared dividends30%¥5 per share. In December 2014, 3M’s Board oé@ors declared
a first-quarter 2015 dividend of $1.025 per shaed in March 2015), which when added to secoridi tnd fourth
guarter 2014 declared dividends of $0.855 per shasalted in total year 2014 declared dividend$3569 per share. In
December 2013, 3M’s Board of Directors declarenlst-fluarter 2014 dividend of $0.855 per shared i

March 2014). This resulted in total year 2013 dexdalividends of $3.395 per share, with $2.54 parespaid in 2013
and the additional $0.855 per share paid in Mafii2

15



Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is desgdro
provide a reader of 3M’s financial statements witharrative from the perspective of managements3WD&A is
presented in eight sections:

*  Overview

« Results of Operations

» Performance by Business Segment
« Performance by Geographic Area

«  Critical Accounting Estimates

¢ New Accounting Pronouncements
« Financial Condition and Liquidity

*  Financial Instruments

Forward-looking statements in Item 7 may involhaksi and uncertainties that could cause resultéfeor chaterially
from those projected (refer to the section entitiédutionary Note Concerning Factors That May AffEature Results”
in Item 1 and the risk factors provided in Item fbA discussion of these risks and uncertainties).

OVERVIEW

3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technolagyovator and marketer of a wide variety of praduand services.
As described in Note 16, effective in the third gemof 2015, within the Health Care business sedntee Company
formed the Oral Care Solutions Division, which caondadl the former 3M ESPE and 3M Unitek divisions. BMnages
its operations in five operating business segmémdiistrial; Safety and Graphics; Health Care; &tics and Energy;
and Consumer. From a geographic perspective, deserees to EMEA refer to Europe, Middle East affidcA on a
combined basis.

Restructuring actions:

During the fourth quarter of 2015, management apgat@and committed to undertake certain restruajuaictions
primarily focused on structural overhead, largelyhie U.S., and slower-growing markets, with paitic emphasis on
EMEA and Latin America. This impacted approximat&/y00 positions worldwide and resulted in a foqgtiarter
2015 pre-tax charge of $114 million, $88 millionemftax or $0.14 per diluted share.

Earnings per share attributable to 3M common shamdters — diluted:

The following table provides the increase (decreasdiluted earnings per share for 2015 compaoe2DtL4, and 2014
compared to 2013.

Year ended
December 31,
(Earnings per diluted share) 2015 2014
Same period last year $ 749 $ 6.72
Increase/(decrease) in earnings per share - djldtezito:
Operational benefits 0.40 0.66
Restructuring charges (0.14) —
Acquisitions and divestitures (0.02 —
Foreign exchange impacts (0.43) (0.15)
Income tax rate — (0.08
Shares of common stock outstanding 0.28 0.34
Current period $ 758 $ 7.49
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For total year 2015, net income attributable to8&% $4.833 billion, or $7.58 per diluted share, pamad to $4.956
billion, or $7.49 per diluted share, in 2014, acréase of 1.2 percent on a per diluted share @perational benefits
include the combination of selling price increaaad raw material cost decreases, partially offgdtigher
pension/postretirement benefit costs. Restructuacimns (discussed above) resulted in an aftecitaxge of 14 cents
per diluted share. Acquisition and divestiture ietsgrimarily relate to the Capital Safety and Pole Separations
Media acquisitions, and the divestitures of therige plate converting business in France and suladhaall of the
library systems business. Foreign exchange impletiseased earnings per diluted share by approXymecents year-
on-year, driven by average year-on-year changés@ngn exchange rates in the Euro of 17 perceat 6f 12 percent,
and Brazil Real of 30 percent. The income tax vase largely unchanged year-on-year. Weighted-aeedédgted shares
outstanding in 2015 declined 3.7 percent year-ar-{e& 637.2 million, which increased earnings phrteld share by
approximately 28 cents. Refer to the section edtitResults of Operations” for further discussion.

For total year 2014, net income attributable to8&& $4.956 billion, or $7.49 per diluted share, pamad to $4.659
billion, or $6.72 per diluted share, in 2013, acréase of 11.5 percent on a per diluted share.l@perational benefits
include a significant benefit from the combinatwirselling price increases and raw material costeleses, plus profit
leverage on organic volume growth. Foreign exchamgacts decreased earnings per diluted sharerpamately 15
cents per diluted share. The income tax rate wés @& cent in 2014, up 0.8 percentage points v&t8i8, which
decreased earnings per diluted share by approXyrtatents. Weighted-average diluted shares oudsigrin 2014
declined 4.6 percent year-on-year to 662.0 millishich increased earnings per diluted share bycpmately 34
cents.

Fourth-quarter 2015 sales and operating income résu

Fourth-quarter 2015 net income attributable to 3&1.038 billion, or $1.66 per diluted share, carag to $1.179
billion, or $1.81 per diluted share, in the fougtlrarter of 2014. Fourth-quarter 2015 sales totfiled billion, a decrease
of 5.4 percent from the fourth quarter of 2014. &bdhieved organic local-currency sales growth (winctudes organic
volume and selling price impacts) in Health Carel €onsumer, with declines in Industrial, Safetgl &raphics, and
Electronics and Energy. Organic local-currencysalereased 4.5 percent in Health Care, led bytingzbrmation
systems, food safety, oral care, drug deliveryesyist and critical and chronic care. Organic locatency sales
increased 2.7 percent in the Consumer businessesggwith positive growth in the construction arairte
improvement business, stationery and office suppiad home care, while consumer health care @ekclidrganic
local-currency sales declined 1.8 percent in Indeistith sales growth in 3M purification and aototive OEM more
than offset by declines in industrial adhesives t@apes, abrasives, and advanced materials. Orlgaailecurrency sales
declined 2.5 percent in Safety and Graphics, vatessdeclines in personal safety partially offseshles growth in
roofing granules, and commercial solutions, whisdfic safety and security was flat. Electronicsl &nergy organic
local-currency sales growth declined 7.7 perceith decreases in electronic-related sales in bletttrenics materials
solutions, and display materials and systems. Breigted organic local-currency sales declineckimewable energy,
communications markets, and electrical marketstf@iCompany in total, organic-local currency saleslined 1.1
percent, with organic volume declines of 2.3 petrpamtially offset by higher selling prices whictided 1.2 percent.
Acquisitions added 1.9 percent to sales, whichtedlto the March 2015 acquisition of lvera MediCalp. (lvera), the
August 2015 acquisition of Capital Safety Group 8A. (Capital Safety), and the August 2015 acdjoisiof Polypore
International Inc.’s Separations Media businessyfitwe). Divestitures reduced sales by 0.4 percetdted to the
January 2015 sale of the global static businesbkttafourth quarter sale of the license convertinginess in France,
along with substantially all of the library systemssiness. Foreign currency translation reducesbdaf 5.8 percent
year-on-year.

From a geographic area perspective, fourth-quaa&b organic local-currency sales grew 1.1 periceBMEA.
Organic local-currency sales declined 0.4 peraettié United States, 0.6 percent in Latin Amerieay&ia, and 2.7
percent in Asia Pacific. In EMEA, Central/East Fpeshowed solid local-currency sales growth ingiisarter, while
West Europe was up slightly, and Middle East/Afrdeglined. Organic local-currency sales in the &thibtates
declined, as 3M experienced weak end-market denmaitelindustrial-related businesses. The consumiented
businesses (Health Care and Consumer) continueeliteer positive organic growth. Organic local-arcy sales in
Latin America/Canada declined. In Latin America,Xite continued its trend of strong organic growtitreasing 7
percent, while Brazil declined 6 percent. Organital-currency sales in Asia Pacific declined 2.itpet. Three of five
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business groups posted positive growth in the Rsicific region, led by Health Care and Consumeilevilectronics
and Energy declined. Within Asia Pacific, orgamicdl-currency sales declined by 3 percent in bagfad and
China/Hong Kong.

Operating income in the fourth quarter of 2015 ®@$ percent of sales, compared to 21.5 percesdles in the fourth
quarter of 2014, a decrease of 1.0 percentagespdtesstructuring charges reduced operating incoargins by 1.6
percentage points. In addition, higher pensionfptistment benefit costs reduced margins. Thesadispvere partially
offset by a benefit from the combination of selljiice increases and raw material cost decreases.

Year 2015 sales and operating income results:

Sales totaled $30.3 billion, a decrease of 4.9gueritom 2014. From a business segment perspeotiganic local-
currency sales increased 3.7 percent in Health, Batgercent in Consumer, 2.4 percent in Safetly@maphics, and 0.7
percent in Industrial, while sales declined 1.%cpat in Electronics and Energy. From a geograpt@ia perspective,
2015 organic local-currency sales grew 2.1 peritetite United States, 1.5 percent in Latin Amefzaiada, 0.9
percent in Asia Pacific, and 0.8 percent in EMEAr the Company in total, organic local-currencyesajrew 1.3
percent, with higher organic volumes contributing percent and selling price increases contributiigpercent.
Acquisitions added 0.8 percent to sales, while stitieres reduced sales by 0.2 percent. Foreigreoayrtranslation
reduced sales by 6.8 percent year-on-year. Retbeteections entitled “Performance by Businessriged’ and
“Performance by Geographic Area” for additionalailet

Operating income in 2015 was 22.9 percent of satmspared to 22.4 percent of sales in 2014, aeaser of 0.5
percentage points. These results included a bdnafit the combination of selling price increased eaw material cost
decreases, partially offset by higher pension/ptistment benefit costs. Refer to the sectionledtitResults of
Operations” for further discussion.

Year 2014 sales and operating income results:

For total year 2014, net income attributable to®& $4.956 billion, or $7.49 per diluted share, parad to $4.659
billion, or $6.72 per diluted share, in 2013, acr@ase of 11.5 percent on a per diluted share.l#eiiss totaled $31.8
billion, an increase of 3.1 percent from 2013. F@tyusiness segment perspective, organic locadiocyrsales grew
5.8 percent in Health Care, 5.4 percent in Safetiy@raphics, 5.2 percent in Electronics and Enetdypercent in
Industrial, and 3.9 percent in Consumer. From ayoggahic area perspective, 2014 organic local-cayrsales grew 6.3
percent in Asia Pacific, 4.9 percent in the Unidtes, 4.5 percent in Latin America/Canada, aBg8&tcent in EMEA.
For the Company in total, organic local-currencdgsarew 4.9 percent, with higher organic volumastiibuting 3.9
percent and selling price increases contributigpkrcent. Acquisitions added 0.1 percent to sdi@gen by the Treo
acquisition. Foreign currency translation reducaldsby 1.9 percent year-on-year.

Operating income in 2014 was 22.4 percent of sat@mpared to 21.6 percent of sales in 2013, araser of 0.8
percentage points. These results included a bdnafit the combination of selling price increased eaw material cost
decreases, lower pension/postretirement benefis,casd profit leverage on organic volume growthede factors were
partially offset by strategic investments and oflaetors. Refer to the section entitled “Result©pEerations” for further
discussion.
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Sales and operating income by business segment:

The following table contains sales and operatingine results by business segment for the yearslddedeember 31,
2015 and 2014. In addition to the discussion belefer to the section entitled “Performance by Bass Segment” and
“Performance by Geographic Area” later in MD&A famore detailed discussion of the sales and inadeséts of the
Company and its respective business segmentsdingCorporate and Unallocated). Refer to NotedrGflditional
information on business segments, including Eliigmaof Dual Credit.

2015 vs 2014

2015 2014 % change

Net % of Oper. Net % of Oper. Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions) Sales Total Income Sales Total Income Sales Income
Business Segments
Industrial $10,328 34.1% $2,263 $10,990 34.5% $2,389 (6.00% (5.3)%
Safety and Graphics 5,515 18.2% 1,305 5,732 18.0% 1,296 (3.8% 0.7%
Health Care 5420 17.9% 1,724 5572 175% 1,724 (2.7% —%
Electronics and Energy 5,220 17.2% 1,102 5604 17.6% 1,115 (6.8% (1.1%
Consumer 4,422 14.6% 1,046 4,523 14.2% 995 (2.2)% 5%
Corporate and Unallocated 1 — % (355 4 — % (251 — —
Elimination of Dual Credit (632) (2.00% (139) (604) (1.8)% (133) —
Total Company $ 30,274 100.0% $6,946 $31,821 100.0% $7,135 (4.9% (2.6%

Sales in 2015 decreased 4.9 percent, substarntigigcted by foreign currency translation, whichuesetl sales by 6.8
percent. Sales in U.S. dollars declined in Consumge.2 percent, Health Care by 2.7 percent, SafetyGraphics by
3.8 percent, Industrial by 6.0 percent, and Elext®and Energy by 6.8 percent. Total company acganal-currency
sales growth (which includes organic volume antirggprice impacts) was 1.3 percent, acquisitiotdeal 0.8 percent,
divestitures reduced sales by 0.2 percent, andgforirrency translation reduced sales by 6.8 perédl of 3M'’s five
business segments posted operating income marigappooximately 21 percent or more in 2015. Worldisvoperating
income margins for 2015 were 22.9 percent, comper@2.4 percent for 2014.

Sales in 2014 increased 3.1 percent, led by H&altle at 4.5 percent, Electronics and Energy ap&t8ent, Industrial at
3.1 percent, Safety and Graphics at 2.7 percedtCamsumer at 2.0 percent. Total company orgacal{ourrency
sales growth (which includes organic volume antirggprice impacts) was 4.9 percent, acquisitiotdeal 0.1 percent,
and foreign currency translation reduced sales.®yércent. All of 3M’s five business segments pdsiperating
income margins of approximately 20 percent or niwor2014. Worldwide operating income margins for 20dere 22.4
percent, compared to 21.6 percent for 2013.

Financial condition:

3M generated $6.4 billion of operating cash flow2#15, a decrease of $206 million when comparetDfiat. This
followed an increase of $809 million when compar2@j 4 to 2013. Refer to the section entitled “FsiahCondition
and Liquidity” later in MD&A for a discussion ofatns impacting cash flows. In February 2016, 3M’suloof
Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $ll@biof 3M’s outstanding common stock, which reggd the
Company’s February 2014 repurchase program. Thisgnegram has no pre-established end date. In 200154, and
2013, the Company purchased more than $5 billiagtsaiwn stock each year. The Company expectsiichpge $4
billion to $6 billion of its own stock in 2016. Frebruary 2016, 3M’s Board of Directors declaredst-fjuarter 2016
dividend of $1.11 per share, an increase of 8 perddnis marked the 58th consecutive year of divilimcreases for
3M. 3M’s debt to total capital ratio (total capitidfined as debt plus equity) was 48 percent aeBer 31, 2015, 34
percent at December 31, 2014, and 25 percent arbteer 31, 2013. The Company has an AA- creditgatiith a
stable outlook, from Standard & Poor’s and an Aadlit rating, with a negative outlook, from Moodyrs/estors
Service. The Company has significant cash on haddsafficient additional access to capital marketseet its
funding needs.
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Raw materials:

In 2015, the Company experienced declining costaifost raw material categories and transportatieh flue largely
to the significant price decreases in crude oilsTinturn drove year-on-year cost decreases inyrfeadstock
categories, including petroleum based materialserais, metals and wood pulp based products. TetdatCompany is
receiving sufficient quantities of all raw matesiab meet its reasonably foreseeable productiomirements. It is
impossible to predict future shortages of raw malgor the impact any such shortages would havieh&s avoided
disruption to its manufacturing operations throegheful management of existing raw material invéatand
development and qualification of additional supgptyirces. 3M manages commodity price risks throwgjotiated
supply contracts, price protection agreements anslard contracts.

Pension and postretirement defined benefit/contritmn plans:

On a worldwide basis, 3M’s pension and postretiretrpéans were 86 percent funded at year-end 2016 pfimary
U.S. qualified pension plan, which is approximat@®ypercent of the worldwide pension obligations\Wa percent
funded and the international pension plans werped6ent funded. The U.S. non-qualified pension Earot funded
due to tax considerations and other factors. Agdatns in 2015 for the primary U.S. qualified pensplan was 0.7%,
as 3M strategically invests in both growth assatsfaxed income matching assets to manage its fiistitus. For the
primary U.S. qualified pension plan, the expectedjtterm rate of return on an annualized basi2@d6 is 7.50%,
down 0.25% from 2015. The primary U.S. qualifieshgion plan year-end 2015 discount rate was 4.47%0, 3i7
percentage points from the year-end 2014 discaiataf 4.10%. The increase in U.S. discount rasslted in a
decreased valuation of the projected benefit obibgaPBO), however the plan’s funded status desdalightly in
2015 as the growth in the PBO increased at a grestiethan the plan assets returned in 2015. iAxabdit detail and
discussion of international plan asset returnsdiscbunt rates is provided in Note 11 (PensionRwostretirement
Benefit Plans).

3M expects to contribute approximately $100 milltors200 million of cash to its global defined bfingension and
postretirement plans in 2016. The Company doesaed a required minimum cash pension contributigigation for
its U.S. plans in 2016. 3M expects global definedddit pension and postretirement expense in 2Béf®(e
settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other) to decrease by approximately $32lom pre-tax
when compared to 2015. Refer to “Critical Accougtistimates” within MD&A and Note 11 (Pension and
Postretirement Benefit Plans) for additional infation concerning 3M’s pension and post-retiremésms

Beginning on January 1, 2016, with respect to @eficontribution plans, the Company reduced its matcemployee
401(k) contributions for U.S. employees. Previoublysed on the date the employee was hired, upptof@ligible
compensation was matched in cash at rates of 68%,0f 100%. Beginning in 2016, 5% of eligible comgation will
be matched at rates of 45%, 60% or 100%, respéctiVbe reduction in the company’s match is antitgal to reduce
2016 defined contribution pension expense by apprately $35 million.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales:
2015 2014

u.s. Intl. Worldwide u.s. Intl. Worldwide

Net sales (millins) $12,049 $18,225 $30,274 $11,714 $20,107 $31,821
% of worldwide sales 39.8% 60.2% 36.8% 63.2%

Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 1.7% (0.5)% 0.2% 4.4% 3.8% 3.9%
Price 0.4 1.4 1.1 0.5 1.2 1.0
Organic local-currency sales 2.1 0.9 1.3 4.9 5.0 4.9
Acquisitions 1.2 0.5 0.8 0.2 — 0.1
Divestitures (0.4) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) — —
Translation — (20.7 (6.8 — (3.0 (1.9
Total sales change 2.9% (9.4)% (4.9)% 5.0% 2.0% 3.1%

In 2015, organic local-currency sales grew 1.3 @etrovith increases of 2.1 percent in the Uniteatest, 1.5 percent in
Latin America/Canada, 0.9 percent in Asia Pacéiwl 0.8 percent in EMEA. Organic local-currencesajrowth was
1.6 percent across developing markets, and 1.2peirc developed markets. Worldwide organic logakency sales
grew 3.7 percent in Health Care, 3.4 percent instorer, 2.4 percent in Safety and Graphics, ang&dent in
Industrial, while sales declined 1.9 percent incEfenics and Energy. Acquisitions added 0.8 pertemtorldwide
growth, while divestitures reduced worldwide growth0.2 percent. Foreign currency translation redueorldwide
sales growth by 6.8 percent.

Worldwide selling prices rose 1.1 percent in 208&lling prices continue to be supported by techymplanovation,
which is a key fundamental strength of the Compaeiping to drive unique customer solutions anéhareasing flow
of new products.

In 2014, organic local-currency sales grew 4.9 @et;ovith increases of 6.3 percent in Asia Pacii®, percent in the
United States, 4.5 percent in Latin America/Canadd, 3.2 percent in EMEA. Organic local-currendgsagrew 5.6
percent across developing markets, and 4.5 peirteleiveloped markets. Worldwide organic local-cneresales grew
5.8 percent in Health Care, 5.4 percent in Safetiy@raphics, 5.2 percent in Electronics and Enetdy/percent in
Industrial, and 3.9 percent in Consumer. Acquiegiadded 0.1 percent to worldwide growth and foreigrrency
translation reduced worldwide sales growth by k&ent.

Refer to the sections entitled “Performance by Bess Segment” and “Performance by Geographic Aster in
MD&A for additional discussion of sales change.

Operating Expenses:

2015 versut 2014 versu:

(Percent of net sales) 2015 2014 2013 2014 2013
Cost of sales 50.9% 51.7% 52.1% (0.8% (0.4%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 20.4 20.3 20.7 0.1 (0.4
Research, development and related expenses 5.8 5.6 5.6 0.2 —
Operating income 22.9% 22.4% 21.6% 0.5% 0.8%

Pension and postretirement expense increased $il&finim 2015 compared to 2014, compared to a ease of $162
million in 2014 compared to 2013. Year 2015 inclitlee impact of a first-quarter 2015 Japan pensistailment gain
of $17 million. Pension and postretirement expassecorded in cost of sales; selling, generaladhdinistrative
expenses (SG&A); and research, development anttdetxpenses (R&D). Refer to Note 11 (Pension and
Postretirement Plans) for components of net peribdnefit cost and the assumptions used to detemahcost.
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The Company is investing in business transformatusiness transformation is defined as changpsocesses and
internal/external service delivery across 3M to mtw more efficient business models to improve afp@nal efficiency
and productivity, while allowing 3M to serve custers with greater speed and efficiency. This is kthby the
ongoing multi-year phased implementation of anmamise resource planning (ERP) system on a worldvigsis.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, as discussed withenOverview section above, 3M incurred restruotygharges
impacting operating expenses as follows:

(Millions) 2015

Cost of sales 40

Selling, general and administrative expenses 62

Research, development and related expenses 12
Total $ 114

Cost of Sales:
Cost of sales includes manufacturing, engineenmyfeeight costs.

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of net sae$50.9 percent in 2015, a decrease of 0.8 pagemoints from
2014. Cost of sales as a percent of sales decrdaseth the combination of selling price increaamed raw material cost
decreases, as selling prices increased net sated percent and raw material cost deflation wasrible by
approximately 3.5 percent year-on-year. In addjtiagher pension and postretirement costs (of whiplortion impacts
cost of sales) and fourth quarter 2015 restruoguctmarges, increased cost of sales as a percealesf

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of net sae$1.7 percent in 2014, a decrease of 0.4 pagemoints from
2013. Cost of sales as a percent of sales decrdasgei the combination of selling price increamed raw material cost
decreases, as selling prices increased net sate$ Ipercent and raw material cost deflation waergble by
approximately 1.5 percent year-on-year. In addjtiower pension and postretirement costs (of whigtortion impacts
cost of sales), along with organic volume leveralpereased cost of sales as a percent of sales.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SGé&gkyeased $287 million, or 4.4 percent, in 2018wtpompared to
2014. The translation of foreign currencies int&\Hollars reduced SG&A expense, as evidenced bfooeign
currency translation impact which reduced worldwsdées by 6.8 percent. This foreign currency tegticeh benefit was
partially offset by higher pension and postretirairexpense and fourth quarter 2015 restructurirgggs. SG&A,
measured as a percent of sales, increased 0.Inpegegoints to 20.4 percent in 2015, compared18 gercent of sales
in 2014.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SGi&éeased $85 million, or 1.3 percent, in 2014 wvbempared to
2013. Year 2014 included strategic investmentausiress transformation, while lower pension andrptieement
expense benefitted SG&A. SG&A, measured as a peofesales, decreased 0.4 percentage points top2@cgnt in
2014, compared to 20.7 percent of sales in 2013.

Research, Development and Related Expenses:

Research, development and related expenses (R&D¢aeed $7 million, or 0.4 percent, in 2015 compane2014.
R&D increased 3.2 percent in 2014 compared to 2BWBcontinued to support its key growth initiativéscluding
more R&D aimed at disruptive innovation, which rsfeo innovation which has the potential to crese markets and
disrupt existing markets. In 2015, like SG&A, R&Pending in U.S. dollars was reduced due to thestasion of
foreign currencies into U.S. dollars. These 20&ahgkation benefits were partially offset by highension and
postretirement expense in 2015 when compared t4.2022014, increases in R&D, when compared to 20&3e
partially offset by lower pension and postretiretnexpense. R&D, measured as a percent of saless &gqeercent in
2015, compared to 5.6 percent in both 2014 and.2013
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Operating Income:

3M uses operating income as one of its primaryriess segment performance measurement tools. Reafer table
below for a reconciliation of operating income masgfor 2015 versus 2014, and 2014 versus 2013.

Operating income margin:

Year ended
December 31,
(Percent of net sales) 2015 2014
Same period last year 22.4% 21.6%
Increase/(decrease) in operating income margintaue
Selling price and raw material impacts 1.6 1.0
Organic volume growth — 0.3
Pension and postretirement benefit costs (0.5 0.5
Acquisitions and divestitures (0.2) (0.1)
Strategic investments (0.3 (0.6
Foreign exchange impacts — (0.3)
Restructuring charges (0.4 —
Productivity and other 0.3 —
Current period 22.9% 22.4%

Operating income margins were 22.9 percent in 2@hpared to 22.4 percent in 2014, an increasebgbércentage
points. These results included a significant berfiefim the combination of higher selling prices amer raw material
costs, and a benefit from productivity and othemis. These benefits were partially offset by higiesrsion and
postretirement benefit costs, 2015 restructurirey@bs, higher strategic investments, and acquisitial divestiture
impacts. Strategic investments include incremgniagrams around disruptive R&D and business transition.
Acquisition and divestiture impacts primarily redab the Capital Safety and Polypore Separatiordid@cquisitions,
and the divestitures of substantially all of tHediry systems business, along with the license glahverting business in
France.

Operating income margins were 22.4 percent in 2@idpared to 21.6 percent in 2013, an increaseBgb€rcentage
points. These results included a significant berfiefim the combination of higher selling prices dmer raw material
costs. In addition, lower year-on-year pension aostretirement benefit costs and profit leveragemganic volume
growth provided benefits. Items that reduced ofrggahcome margins included strategic investmentsch included
investments in disruptive R&D, business transforamtthe supply chain center of expertise in Eur@pel portfolio
management actions. The Company invested $90 mili®?014 in portfolio management actions to posit8M for
greater success. Foreign currency effects and sitiquiimpacts (Treo) reduced operating income tinarg

Interest Expense and Income:

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013

Interest expense $ 149 $ 142 $ 145

Interest income (26) (33) (42)
Total $ 123 $ 109 $ 104

Interest Expensdnterest expense increased slightly in 2015 coegb#o 2014, despite significantly higher debt lsye
helped by lower average interest rates. Intergstrese decreased in 2014 compared to 2013, agqiitedbigher debt
levels, primarily due to lower U.S. borrowing coatsdebt maturities were replaced with lower ciostrfcing from
commercial paper and lower interest rates on néwidsuances.

Capitalized interest related to property, plant agdipment construction in progress is recordea r@gluction to interest

expense. The amounts shown in the table abovatineist expense are net of capitalized interestiata®f $13
million, $15 million, and $21 million, in 2015, 28Jand 2013, respectively.
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Interest Incomelnterest income in 2015 was lower when compare2Dtia} due to lower average cash/marketable
securities balances. Interest income in 2014 wasriavhen compared to 2013 due to lower cash bagance

Provision for Income Taxes:

(Percent of pre-tax income) 2015 2014 2013
Effective tax rate 29.1% 28.9% 28.1%

The effective tax rate for 2015 was 29.1 percemmared to 28.9 percent in 2014, an increase gié.@entage points.
The effective tax rate for 2014 was 28.9 percemmared to 28.1 percent in 2013, an increase gié.8entage points.
The changes in the rates between years are implgteany factors, as described further in Note 8.

The Company currently expects that its effectivertde for 2016 will be approximately 29.5 to 3@ércent. The rate
can vary from quarter to quarter due to discretm, such as the settlement of income tax auditslaanges in tax
laws, as well as recurring factors, such as thegdic mix of income before taxes.

Refer to Note 8 for further discussion of incomeeta

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest:

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter $ 8 $ 42 % 62

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interesgiresents the elimination of the income or logthatable to non-3M
ownership interests in 3M consolidated entitiese Thanges in noncontrolling interest amounts hargely related to
Sumitomo 3M Limited (Japan), which was 3M’s mogtgficant consolidated entity with non-3M ownershigerests.
As discussed in Note 6, on September 1, 2014, 3idhased the remaining 25 percent ownership in Sumait3M
Limited, bringing 3M’s ownership to 100 percent.uBheffective September 1, 2014, net income atalida to
noncontrolling interest was significantly reduc&tie primary remaining noncontrolling interest retato 3M India
Limited, of which 3M’s effective ownership is 75rpent.

Currency Effects:

3M estimates that year-on-year currency effectduding hedging impacts, decreased pre-tax incoyrepproximately
$390 million and $100 million in 2015 and 2014 pestively. These estimates include the effectarigtating profits
from local currencies into U.S. dollars; the impafturrency fluctuations on the transfer of gobdsveen 3M
operations in the United States and abroad; anddrdion gains and losses, including derivativerumsents designed to
reduce foreign currency exchange rate risks andéhative impact of swapping Venezuelan bolivats ih S. dollars.
3M estimates that year-on-year derivative and ditagrsaction gains and losses increased pre-taxiady
approximately $180 million and $10 million in 2046d 2014, respectively. Refer to Note 12 in thedotidated
Financial Statements for additional information c®ming 3M’s hedging activities.

PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Disclosures relating to 3M’s business segmentpereided in Item 1, Business Segments. Financfatimation and
other disclosures are provided in the Notes tdthiesolidated Financial Statements. As describédbiie 16, effective
in the third quarter of 2015, within the Health E€&usiness segment, the Company formed the Oral &#utions
Division, which combined the former 3M ESPE and BNitek divisions. 3M manages its operations in tesiness
segments. The reportable segments are IndustatdtySand Graphics; Electronics and Energy; He@the; and
Consumer.
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Corporate and Unallocated:

In addition to these five business segments, 3Nyas<ertain costs to “Corporate and Unallocatedhich is presented
separately in the preceding business segmentsadatllen Note 16. Corporate and Unallocated inclideariety of
miscellaneous items, such as corporate investnans gnd losses, certain derivative gains and $pssetain
insurance-related gains and losses, certain litigatnd environmental expenses, corporate restingtaharges and
certain under- or over-absorbed costs (e.g. pensiook-based compensation) that the Company digtesmot to
allocate directly to its business segments. Becthiseategory includes a variety of miscellaneiterss, it is subject to
fluctuation on a quarterly and annual basis.

Corporate and Unallocated operating expenses isedday $104 million in 2015 when compared to 201s increase
was driven by higher pension and postretiremenéfiieexpenses, which increased in total by $16%ionil Of this
increase, $153 million was allocated to Corporaiet Ednallocated. Increases were also driven by foguiarter 2015
restructuring charges of $37 million, as indicatethe below table. Iltems which partially offse¢#le increases within
Corporate and Unallocated included higher admististe and R&D cost absorption by the five busiresgments,
resulting in less under-absorbed expense beingad#d to Corporate.

Corporate and Unallocated operating expenses dextdry $70 million in 2014 when compared to 2018s Hecrease
was driven by lower pension and postretirement fieeepenses, which declined year-on-year by $18kom. Of this
reduction, $116 million was allocated to Corporatel Unallocated. This was partially offset by hig@erporate and
Unallocated expenses related to year-on-year isegei@m annual incentive plan expenses and legalasc

Restructuring Pre-Tax Charge by Business Segment:

(Millions) 2015
Industrial 42
Safety and Graphics 11
Health Care 9
Electronics and Energy 12
Consumer 3
Corporate and Unallocated 37
Total $ 114

Operating Business Segments:

Each of 3M’s business segments incurred restruguriarges in the fourth quarter of 2015, as iriditén the
preceding table. In 2014, each business segmeottsasadditional cost related to incremental investts related to
business transformation, enabled by 3M’s global ERflementation, which impacted each of the fiveibass
segments 2014 annual operating income margins fpa&imately 0.2 percentage points when comparetDics.

Information related to 3M’s business segments és@nted in the tables that follow. Organic locakency sales include
both organic volume impacts plus selling price istpaAcquisition impacts, if any, are measured sapdy for the first
twelve months of the acquisition. The divestituracts, if any, foreign currency translation imgaantd total sales
change are also provided for each business seghmnteferences to EMEA relate to Europe, Middlestzand Africa
on a combined basis.
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The following discusses total year results for 20@Bpared to 2014, and also discusses 2014 compmag&d 3, for
each business segment.

Industrial Business (34.1% of consolidated sales):

2015 2014 2013
Sales (millions) $ 10,328 $ 10,990 $ 10,657
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 0.7% 4.9% 4.6 %
Acquisitions 0.6 — 3.6
Translation (7.3 (1.8 .7
Total sales change (6.000 3.1% 6.5%
Operating income (millions) $ 2,263 $ 2,389 $ 2,307
Percent change (5.3% 3.6% 2.8%
Percent of sales 21.9% 21.7% 21.6%

The Industrial segment serves a broad range ofetgr&uch as automotive original equipment manufac{OEM) and
automotive aftermarket (auto body shops and retéctronics, appliance, paper and printing, paicig food and
beverage, and construction. Industrial productkidetapes, a wide variety of coated, non-wovenkmted abrasives,
adhesives, advanced ceramics, sealants, specialéyieds, 3M purification (filtration products),cdure systems for
personal hygiene products, acoustic systems predaisti components and products that are used mahefacture,
repair and maintenance of automotive, marine, @itremd specialty vehicles. 3M is also a leadirabgl supplier of
precision grinding technology serving customerthaarea of hard-to-grind precision applicationmaustrial,
automotive, aircraft and cutting tools. 3M develaps produces advanced technical ceramics for ddinn
applications in the automotive, oil and gas, satatustrial, electronics and defense industries.

Year 2015 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $10.3 billion, down fd¥cent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currendgséancreased 0.7
percent, acquisitions added 0.6 percent, and formigrency translation reduced sales by 7.3 percent

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
« Sales growth was led by 3M purification, automo®eM, and aerospace and commercial transportation,
while both automotive aftermarket, and industrighesives and tapes sales increased slightly.
e Sales in advanced materials declined, primarilytdugeakness in the oil and gas market. Salesrizsalte
systems also declined.
e Geographically, sales increased 4 percent in Latierica/Canada, 1 percent in Asia Pacific, and vilaten
both EMEA and the United States.

Acquisitions:
e Acquisition sales growth related to the late Aug2®t5 acquisition of Polypore’s Separations Medisitess.
e This business is a provider of microporous memisame modules for filtration in the life scienceslustrial,
and specialty segments. This acquisition enhangks Gre filtration platform and will help generatew
growth opportunities across the company.

Operating income:
* Operating income margins increased by 0.2 percergamts to 21.9 percent, helped by the combinaifon
lower raw material costs and selective sellingeiicreases.
e Operating income margins were negatively impacte@.d percentage points due to the $42 million
restructuring charge, plus an additional 0.3 pesgpoints penalty due to the Polypore Separahtedia
acquisition.
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Year 2014 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $11.0 billion, up 3ergent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency sahereased 4.9
percent, and foreign currency translation reduegeissby 1.8 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales growth was positive across all businessgdiyl@erospace and commercial transportation, antteen
OEM, 3M purification, advanced materials, and alvesystems.
e Geographically, organic local-currency sales insegla6 percent in the United States, 5 percent ia Racific,
and 3 percent in both EMEA and Latin America/Canada

Operating income:
e Operating income was $2.4 billion in 2014, an iasesof 3.6 percent.
*  Operating income margins increased by 0.1 percergamts to 21.7 percent.
*  Operating income margins improved due to salesmelleverage, plus the combination of selling price
increases and raw material cost decreases, padffdet by incremental investments related to thess
transformation, enabled by 3M’s global ERP impletagan.

Safety and Graphics Business (18.2% of consolidagates):

2015 2014 2013
Sales (millions) $ 5515 $ 5732 % 5,584
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 2.4% 5.4% 4.1%
Acquisitions 2.6 — 1.3
Divestitures (0.4 — —
Translation (8.4) (2.7) (2.1)
Total sales change (3.8% 2.7% 3.3%
Operating income (millions) $ 1,305 $ 1,296 $ 1,227
Percent change 0.7% 5.6% 1.4%
Percent of sales 23.7% 22.6% 22.0%

The Safety and Graphics segment serves a broad odimgarkets that increase the safety, securitypsoductivity of
people, facilities and systems. Major product affigs include personal protection products; tragifety and security
products, including border and civil security s@os; commercial solutions, including commerciadgrics sheeting
and systems, architectural design solutions fdiasas, and cleaning and protection products formeruial
establishments; roofing granules for asphalt skisigblus fall protection equipment.

Year 2015 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $5.5 billamwn 3.8 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic localrency sales
increased 2.4 percent, and foreign currency tréoslaeduced sales by 8.4 percent. Acquisitioneddti6 percent,
while divestitures reduced sales by 0.4 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by roofing granules, commesailutions, and personal safety, while sales \ilatén
traffic safety and security.
» Sales increased 6 percent in Asia Pacific, 3 peinghe United States, and 2 percent in EMEA, w/istéles
declined 1 percent in Latin America/Canada.

Acquisitions and divestitures:

e Acquisition sales growth reflects the acquisitidrCapital Safety in early August 2015. Capital $pfe a
leading global provider of fall protection equipmen
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e Inthe fourth quarter of 2015, 3M divested its fise plate converting business in France and sutabaall of
its library systems business as discussed in Note 2

Operating income:
e Operating income in 2015 totaled $1.3 billion, up percent.
*  Operating income margins were 23.7 percent of saf@apared to 22.6 percent in 2014.
« Operating income margin improvements were drivehigher selling prices and lower raw material costs
along with productivity.
e Operating income margins penalty from acquisitimas partially offset by a benefit from divestituregich
resulted in a net margin penalty of 0.2 percentagets.

Year 2014 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $5.7 billign2.7 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-coesesales increased
5.4 percent, and foreign currency translation redwgales by 2.7 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
« Sales growth was led by personal safety. 3M alsoEssitive organic local-currency sales growth in
commercial solutions, and traffic safety and seguri
e Sales in the roofing granules business declined-gegear.
e Organic local-currency sales increased 6 perceBMEA, and increased 5 percent in the United Statem
Pacific, and Latin America/Canada.

Operating income:
e Operating income in 2014 totaled $1.3 billion, up percent.
* Operating income margins were 22.6 percent of safgapared to 22.0 percent in 2013.
« Operating income margins benefited from organiuka leverage plus selling price increases, partidfset
by incremental investments related to businessfoamation, enabled by 3M’s global ERP implemeotati
plus certain portfolio management actions.

Health Care Business (17.9% of consolidated sales):

2015 2014 2013
Sales (millions) $ 5420 $ 5572 $ 5,334
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 3.7% 5.8% 5.0%
Acquisitions 0.8 0.4 0.1
Translation (7.2 1.7 1.3
Total sales change (2.7% 4.5% 3.8%
Operating income (millions) $ 1,724 % 1,724 % 1,672
Percent change — % 3.1% 1.9%
Percent of sales 31.8% 30.9% 31.3%

The Health Care segment serves markets that inchadkcal clinics and hospitals, pharmaceuticalsfaleand
orthodontic practitioners, health information sys$e and food manufacturing and testing. Produalssarvices
provided to these and other markets include mediedlsurgical supplies, skin health and infectimvention products,
inhalation and transdermal drug delivery systerral, @are solutions (dental and orthodontic produttsalth
information systems, and food safety products. dffe in the third quarter of 2015, within the HibaCare business
segment, the Company formed the Oral Care Solufiavision, which combined the former 3M ESPE and BNitek
divisions.
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Year 2015 results:

Health Care sales totaled $5.4 billion, a decred2e7 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-cnog sales increased
3.7 percent, acquisitions added 0.8 percent, amigio currency translation reduced sales by 7.2quer

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was broad-based across much of thehH&are portfolio, including food safety, health
information systems, critical and chronic care] oeae solutions, and infection prevention.
e Sales declined in drug delivery systems.
« On a geographic basis, sales increased 8 percéstarPacific, 6 percent in Latin America/Canadagedcent
in the United States, and 1 percent in EMEA.
« In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales grew 8 percent.

Acquisitions:
* Acquisition sales growth related to the March 2@ufchase of lvera Medical Corp. Ivera is a manuiactof
health care products that disinfect and protecicgswised for access into a patient’s bloodstréaiddition,
Treo Solutions LLC, acquired in April 2014, provitla year-on-year benefit (discussed further in 28dr4
results below).

Operating income:
e Operating income was flat in dollars at $1.7 biilio
*  Operating income margins were 31.8 percent in 26@8pared to 30.9 percent in 2014, helped by partfo
management actions that are contributing to higheductivity and margins.
* Acquisition impacts reduced operating income mardpyn 0.2 percentage points.

In September 2015, 3M announced that it would eepdtrategic alternatives for its Health Informat®ystems
Division (HIS), which included spinning-off, seltinor retaining the business. In February 2016o¥ohg an in-depth
exploration of strategic alternatives, the Compangounced that it made the decision to retain artidr invest in HIS.

Year 2014 results:

Health Care sales totaled $5.6 billion, an incredse5 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-emgy sales increased
5.8 percent, acquisitions added 0.4 percent, amigio currency translation reduced sales by 1.Zquer

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales grew in all businesses, with the strongestitlrin health information systems, drug deliveygtems,
food safety, critical and chronic care, and infectprevention.
e On a geographic basis, organic local-currency sat@sased 9 percent in Latin America/Canada, Beurin
Asia Pacific, 6 percent in the United States, apei®ent in EMEA.
« In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales grew 12 percent.

Acquisitions:
e Acquisition sales growth related to the April 2Qd4rchase of Treo Solutions LLC. Treo is a providiedata
analytics and business intelligence to healthcayes and providers.

Operating income:
» Operating income increased 3.1 percent to $1.i0bill
*  Operating income margins were 30.9 percent in 26dpared to 31.3 percent in 2013, with acquisition
impacts reducing operating income margins by Or8e#age points.
e The gain from sale of a non-strategic equity metinedstment benefited total year 2013 operatingime
margins by 0.3 percentage points.
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Electronics and Energy Business (17.2% of consotigth sales):

2015 2014 2013
Sales (millions) $ 5220 $ 5604 $ 5,393
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency (12.9% 5.2% — %
Divestitures (0.8) — —
Translation (4.0 (1.3 1.2
Total sales change (6.8% 3.9% (1.2)%
Operating income (millions) $ 1,102 $ 1,115 $ 954
Percent change (1.12% 16.8% (7.0%
Percent of sales 21.1% 19.9% 17.7%

The Electronics and Energy segment serves custametsctronics and energy markets, including sohs that
improve the dependability, cost-effectiveness, pedormance of electronic devices; electrical patdincluding
infrastructure protection; telecommunications netgpand power generation and distribution. Thgnsent's
electronics solutions include film solutions foethlectronic display industry; packaging and irdereection devices;
high performance fluids and abrasives; high-tempegaand display tapes; flexible circuits, whicle esectronic
packaging and interconnection technology; and taysiems products, which includes touch screenshtmonitors,
and touch sensor components. This segment’s esetgions include pressure sensitive tapes andseslectrical
insulation; infrastructure products that providetbprotection and detection solutions; a wide aobfjber-optic and
copper-based telecommunications systems; and réewaergy component solutions for the solar amitivaower
industries.

The display materials and systems business profildesthat serve numerous market segments ofldatrenic display
industry. 3M provides distinct products for five rket segments, including products for: 1) LCD cotepumonitors 2)
LCD televisions 3) handheld devices such as celpfi@nes and tablets 4) notebook PCs and 5) auiverdisplays.
The display materials and systems business incladgesnber of different products that are protetigdarious patents
and groups of patents. These patents provide \@tgirels of exclusivity to 3M for a number of symtoducts. As some
of 3M’s multi-layer optical film patents expired thie end of 2013 and will expire over several ydlaeseafter, 3M will
likely see more competition in these products. 3vitmues to innovate in the area of optical filmsl files patents on
its new technology and products. 3M’s proprietagnuofacturing technology and know-how also provid®mpetitive
advantage to 3M independent of its patents.

Year 2015 results:

Electronics and Energy sales totaled $5.2 billdmwyn 6.8 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic localreocy sales declined
1.9 percent, divestitures reduced sales by 0.8pg&rand foreign currency translation reduced dayes.1 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

e Sales decreased approximately 1 percent in 3Migreleics-related businesses, with growth in eleto®
materials solutions more than offset by a declmdisplay materials and systems, as 3M experiesoftdr
conditions in the electronics markets.

e Sales decreased approximately 4 percent in 3M’sggrelated businesses, as telecommunicationgrieksc
markets, and renewable energy all declined.

* On a geographic basis, sales increased 1 perceuntrape, were flat in the United States, and dedli
percent in both Latin America/Canada and Asia Racif

Divestitures:
e 3M completed the sale of its static control busineslanuary 2015 (discussed in Note 2).

Operating income:
e Operating income decreased 1.1 percent to $1lidrbith 2015.
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e Operating income margins were 21.1 percent compar@@.9 percent in 2014, helped by prior yearfpbict
management actions that are contributing to higheductivity.

« Portfolio management actions in 2015 related teweble energy, plus fourth quarter 2015 restruoguri
charges, which combined reduced operating inconmgimsaby 0.8 percentage points.

Year 2014 results:

Electronics and Energy sales totaled $5.6 billign3.9 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-cnecsesales increased
5.2 percent, and foreign currency translation redusales by 1.3 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales increased approximately 8 percent in 3M'stedaics-related businesses, with growth led bpldis
materials and systems.
* In 3M’s energy-related businesses, organic localericy sales increased approximately 1 percerty, gvibwth
in electrical markets and telecommunications, phytbffset by reductions in renewable energy.
* On a geographic basis, organic local-currency satrsased 8 percent in Latin America/Canada, ¢gyerin
Asia Pacific, and 1 percent in EMEA, while saleshia United States were flat.

Operating income:
e Operating income increased 16.8 percent to $1libmih 2014.
e Operating income margins were 19.9 percent comparé@.7 percent in 2013, helped by sales volume
leverage.
< In addition, prior portfolio management actions &mted 3M’s relevance with customers and generated
operational efficiencies, which also contributedhe operating income margin improvement in 2014,

Consumer Business (14.6% of consolidated sales):

2015 2014 2013
Sales (millions) $ 4,422 % 4,523 $ 4,435
Sales change analysis:
Organic local currency 3.4% 3.9% 3.0%
Divestitures — (0.2) (0.2)
Translation (5.6 (1.8 (1.8
Total sales change (2.2%% 2.0% 11%
Operating income (millions) $ 1,046 $ 995 % 945
Percent change 5.2% 5.3% 0.2%
Percent of sales 23.7% 22.0% 21.3%

The Consumer segment serves markets that inclutgRioter retail, office retail, office business tsingss, home
improvement, drug and pharmacy retail, and otheketa. Products in this segment include office syppoducts,
stationery products, construction and home impramrproducts (do-it-yourself), home care prodyatetective
material products, certain consumer retail perseafdty products, and consumer health care praducts

Year 2015 results:

Consumer sales totaled $4.4 billion, down 2.2 peroeU.S. dollars. Organic local-currency sales@ased 3.4 percent,
and foreign currency translation reduced sales.8yB8rcent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales growth was led by construction and home irgrn®nt, stationery and office supplies, and home.ca
3M also posted positive growth in its consumer theedire business.
e On a geographic basis, organic local-currency sat@sased 5 percent in the United States and &pein
Asia Pacific, while sales in both EMEA and Latin Arica/Canada were flat.
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< In developing markets, sales growth was 3 percent.

Operating income:
« Consumer operating income was $1.0 billion, uppeent from 2014.
e Operating income margins were 23.7 percent, up 28rf percent in 2014.
«  The combination of strong organic growth and praigitg continued to drive efficiencies across thissiness.

Year 2014 results:

Consumer sales totaled $4.5 billion, up 2.0 peroebtS. dollars. Organic local-currency sales éased 3.9 percent,
divestitures reduced sales by 0.1 percent, anégfoirrency translation reduced sales by 1.8 pérce

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
« Sales growth was led by construction and home irgr@nt. 3M also posted positive growth in the comsu
health care and home care businesses. Salesstatienery and office supplies business were flat.
* On a geographic basis, organic local-currency satreased 6 percent in Asia Pacific, 4 percetthénUnited
States, 3 percent in Latin America/Canada, andrdepéin EMEA.
* In developing markets, sales growth was 6 percent.

Operating income:
*  Consumer operating income was $1.0 billion, uppge®ent from 2013.
e Operating income margins were 22.0 percent, up 2&r8 percent in 2013.
e The combination of strong organic growth, produttivand portfolio prioritization continued to dav
efficiencies across this business.

PERFORMANCE BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

While 3M manages its businesses globally and bediét¢ business segment results are the most nelseasure of
performance, the Company also utilizes geograpieia data as a secondary performance measure. Bgbestare
generally reported within the geographic area whigedinal sales to 3M customers are made. A poricthe products
or components sold by 3M’s operations to its custenare exported by these customers to differesgrg@hic areas.
As customers move their operations from one gedigragrea to another, 3M’s results will follow. Thuret sales in a
particular geographic area are not indicative af-aser consumption in that geographic area. Fimimdiormation
related to 3M operations in various geographicaie@rovided in Note 17.

32



A summary of key information and discussion relate8M’s geographic areas follow:

2015
Europe, Latin
United Asia Middle East America/ Other
States Pacific & Africa Canada Unallocated Worldwide
Net sales (millions) $12,049 $9,041 $ 6,228 $2982 $ (26) $ 30,274
% of worldwide sales 39.8% 29.9% 20.5% 9.8% — 100.0%
Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 1.7% 0.9% (1.0p6 (3.1)% — 0.2%
Price 0.4 — 1.8 4.6 — 1.1
Organic local-currency sales 2.1 0.9 0.8 15 — 1.3
Acquisitions 1.2 0.4 0.7 0.7 — 0.8
Divestitures (0.4) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) — (0.2)
Translation — (5.2 (14.9 (16.9 — (6.8
Total sales change 2.9% (4.0)% (135 (14.9% — (4.9%
Operating income (millions) $ 2647 $2580 $ 1017 $ 706 $ (4) $ 6,946
Percent change 4.2% 3.8% (175% (18.5% — (2.6%

For total year 2015, as shown in the precedingtaalles declined 4.9 percent, with organic volimeeases of 0.2
percent and selling price increases of 1.1 peréagjuisitions added 0.8 percent, while divestitiexuced sales by 0.2
percent. Foreign currency translation reduced $ateés8 percent. Organic local-currency sales ased, 2.1 percent in
the United States, 1.5 percent in Latin Americaézim) 0.9 percent in Asia Pacific, and 0.8 peraeBMEA. For 2015,
international operations represented 60.2 perde3iits sales.

2014
Europe, Latin
United Asia Middle East ~ America/ Other
States Pacific & Africa Canada Unallocated Worldwide
Nel sales (millions) $11,714 $9418 $ 7,198 $3504 $ (13) $31,821
% of worldwide sales 36.8% 29.6% 22.6% 11.0% — 100.0%
Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 4.4% 6.2% 2.1% 0.2% — 3.9%
Price 0.5 0.1 1.1 4.3 — 1.0
Organic local-currency sales 4.9 6.3 3.2 4.5 — 4.9
Acquisitions 0.2 — — — — 0.1
Divestitures (0.2) — — — — —
Translation — (2.2 (1.6 (7.5 — (1.9
Total sales change 5.0% 4.1% 1.6% (3.0)% — 3.1%
Operating income (millions) $2,540 $2487 $ 1234 $ 867 $ 7 $ 7,135
Percent change 14.9% 4.2% 5.7% (4.5% — 7.0%

For total year 2014, as shown in the precedingtaales rose 3.1 percent, with organic volumesaszs of 3.9 percent
and selling price increases of 1.0 percent. Actioiss added 0.1 percent, while foreign currencystation reduced
sales by 1.9 percent. Organic local-currency salgeased 6.3 percent in Asia Pacific, 4.9 peraetite United States,
4.5 percent in Latin America/Canada, and 3.2 periceBMEA. For 2014, international operations reganeted 63.2
percent of 3M’s sales.
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Geographic Area Supplemental Information

Property, Plant and
Equipment - net

Employees as of December 31, Capital Spending as of December 31,
(Millions, except Employees) 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014
United States 35,973 35581 34,719 $ 936 $ 909 $ 941 $4,838 $4,619
Asia Pacific 17,642 17,854 18,417 172 184 284 1,647 1,798
Europe, Middle East and Africa 20,563 20,506 20,504 249 288 290 1,531 1,502
Latin America and Canada 15,268 15,859 15,027 104 112 150 499 570
Total Company 89,446 89,800 88,667 $1,461 $1,493 $1,665 $8,515 $ 8,489

Employment:

Employment decreased by 354 positions in 2015 aarééased by 1,133 positions in 2014. The primartofathat
decreased employment in 2015 related to fourthtqu&015 restructuring actions that impacted appmately 1,700
positions worldwide. The 2015 acquisitions of Iv&tadical Corp., Polypore International Inc.’s Segimms Media
business and Capital Safety Group S.A.R.L. inc@¢@€45 headcount by approximately 2,000 positidhg. primary
factors that increased employment in 2014 was imthdiin developing economies to support growths gldditions
related to the Treo Solutions LLC acquisition irl20

Capital Spending/Net Property, Plant and Equipment:

Investments in property, plant and equipment engideith across many diverse markets, helping tat mesluct
demand and increasing manufacturing efficiency. Sbtéipital spending by geography has been led bytiited States
(64% of spending in 2015), followed by Europe, M&#&ast and Africa, Asia Pacific, and Latin Amefcanada. 3M is
continuing to increase its manufacturing and sogrciapability, particularly in developing economiigsorder to more
closely align its product capability with its salasnajor geographic areas. 3M will continue to makvestments in
critical developing markets, such as Brazil, ChiMaxico, Panama, Poland, Southeast Asia, and Tufkeapital
spending is discussed in more detail later in MDifiAhe section entitled “Cash Flows from Investifivities.”

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Information regarding significant accounting padgiis included in Note 1. As stated in Note 1,pgteparation of
financial statements requires management to makeates and assumptions that affect the reportemliata of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses, and relatedadisce of contingent assets and liabilities. Mamaget bases its
estimates on historical experience and on varisgaraptions that are believed to be reasonable uheler
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about the carrying valuesssiss and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from atheurces. Actual results may differ from thesénestes.

The Company believes its most critical accountistingates relate to legal proceedings, the Compamsssion and
postretirement obligations, asset impairments andme taxes. Senior management has discussedvélegiment,
selection and disclosure of its critical account@sgimates with the Audit Committee of 3M’s Boafddirectors.

Legal Proceedings:

The categories of claims for which the Companyapsobable and estimable liability, the amount®fiability
accruals, and the estimates of its related inserasceivables are critical accounting estimatetedito legal
proceedings. Please refer to the section entitkedcess for Disclosure and Recording of Liabilit@sl Insurance
Receivables Related to Legal Proceedings” (condaiiméLegal Proceedings” in Note 14) for additiomaflormation
about such estimates.
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Pension and Postretirement Obligations:

3M has various company-sponsored retirement plawsring substantially all U.S. employees and manpleyees
outside the United States. The primary U.S. definedefit pension plan was closed to new participaffective
January 1, 2009. The Company accounts for its défirenefit pension and postretirement health caoldife insurance
benefit plans in accordance with Accounting Staddaodification (ASC) 715Compensation — Retirement Benefits
measuring plan assets and benefit obligations mdétermining the amount of net periodic benefitcASC 715
requires employers to recognize the underfundexverfunded status of a defined benefit pensiornostrptirement plan
as an asset or liability in its statement of finahposition and recognize changes in the fundetlistin the year in
which the changes occur through accumulated ottrapeehensive income, which is a component of stoickdns’
equity. While the company believes the valuatiothods used to determine the fair value of plantass® appropriate
and consistent with other market participants,ube of different methodologies or assumptions terdane the fair
value of certain financial instruments could resuld different estimate of fair value at the rejy date. See Note 11
for additional discussion of actuarial assumptiossd in determining pension and postretirementtneate liabilities
and expenses.

Pension benefits associated with these plans aeraey based primarily on each participant’s yesrservice,
compensation, and age at retirement or terminaliba.benefit obligation represents the presentevafithe benefits
that employees are entitled to in the future fovises already rendered as of the measurement HlaéeCompany
measures the present value of these future bebgfitsojecting benefit payment cash flows for eadhre period and
discounting these cash flows back to the Decemben@surement date, using the yields of a portffliigh quality,
fixed-income debt instruments that would producghdiows sufficient in timing and amount to sefit®jected future
benefits. Historically, the single aggregated distaate used for each plan’s benefit obligatios atso used for the
calculation of all net periodic benefit costs, imtihg the measurement of the service and intecests cBeginning in
2016, 3M changed the method used to estimate thizse@nd interest cost components of the net garipension and
other postretirement benefit costs. The new methedsures service cost and interest cost sepatately the spot yield
curve approach applied to each corresponding diigaService costs are determined based on duarapecific spot
rates applied to the service cost cash flows. Mmtexést cost calculation is determined by applylntation-specific spot
rates to the year-by-year projected benefit paymdrite spot yield curve approach does not affecthitbasurement of
the total benefit obligations as the change iniserand interest costs offset in the actuarial gaimd losses recorded in
other comprehensive income. The Company changte:toew method to provide a more precise measuseruvice
and interest costs by improving the correlatiomieein the projected benefit cash flows and the elisgpot yield curve
rates. The Company accounted for this change hargge in estimate prospectively beginning in the fjuarter of
2016. As a result of the change to the spot yiatlde approach, 2016 defined benefit pension anttgtoement net
periodic benefit cost is expected to decrease B $dillion. Including this $180 million, 3M expeattobal defined
benefit pension and postretirement expense in 20df@re settlements, curtailments, special termongtenefits and
other) to decrease by approximately $320 milliog+{arx when compared to 2015.

Using this methodology, the Company determinedadistrates for its plans as follow:

International
Pension u.s.
U.S. Qualified (weighted Postretirement
Pension average) Medical

December 31, 2014 Liability and 2015 Net Periodicébefit Cost:

Single discount rate 4.10% 3.11% 4.07%
December 31, 2015 Liability:

Benefit obligation 4.47% 3.12% 4.32%
2016 Net Periodic Benefit Cost Components:

Service cost 4.72% 2.84% 4.60%

Interest cost 3.77% 2.72% 3.44%

Another significant element in determining the Camgs pension expense in accordance with ASC 71fteigxpected
return on plan assets, which is based on histargsallts for similar allocations among asset ckdser the primary
U.S. qualified pension plan, the expected long-teata of return on an annualized basis for 201656%, 0.25% lower
than 2015. Refer to Note 11 for information on hbe 2015 rate was determined. Return on assetmptisas for
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international pension and other post-retirementbeplans are calculated on a plan-by-plan basiisgiplan asset
allocations and expected long-term rate of retgsumptions. The weighted average expected retuthdo
international pension plan is 5.77% for 2016, coragdo 5.90% for 2015.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Compamgnized total consolidated defined benefit prepnsion and
postretirement expense (after settlements, curggtey special termination benefits and other) &6b&illion, up from
$391 million in 2014. Defined benefit pension amdipetirement expense (before settlements, curatis) special
termination benefits and other) is anticipatedaordase to approximately $236 million in 2016, eréase of $320
million compared to 2015.

The table below summarizes the impact on 2016 peresipense for the U.S. and international pensianspof a 0.25
percentage point increase/decrease in the explectgderm rate of return on plan assets and digo@ie assumptions
used to measure plan liabilities and 2016 net paribenefit cost. The table assumes all other fa@oe held constant,
including the slope of the discount rate yield @av

Increase (Decrease) in Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Discount Rate Expected Return on Assets
(Millions) -0.25% +0.25% -0.25% +0.25%
U.S. pension plans $ 30 $ (29 $ 35 $ (35)
International pension plans 22 (20) 14 (14)

Asset Impairments:

As of December 31, 2015, net property, plant andpement totaled $8.5 billion and net identifiabf¢aingible assets
totaled $2.6 billion. Management makes estimatesaasumptions in preparing the consolidated firsstatements for
which actual results will emerge over long periofiime. This includes the recoverability of loriged assets
employed in the business, including assets of aequiusinesses. These estimates and assumptiocissely
monitored by management and periodically adjustediraumstances warrant. For instance, expected igss may be
shortened or an impairment recorded based on agyeharthe expected use of the asset or performairtte related
asset group.

3M goodwill totaled approximately $9.2 billion as@ecember 31, 2015. 3M’s annual goodwill impairmesting is
performed in the fourth quarter of each year. Impant testing for goodwill is done at a reportingtlevel, with all
goodwill assigned to a reporting unit. Reportingisiare one level below the business segment lbuélgcan be
combined when reporting units within the same setdrhave similar economic characteristics. At 3Myaring units
generally correspond to a division. 3M did not camebany of its reporting units for impairment testi

An impairment loss generally would be recognize@mthe carrying amount of the reporting unit's astets exceeds
the estimated fair value of the reporting unit. Bisémated fair value of a reporting unit is detieyen using earnings for
the reporting unit multiplied by a price/earningsio for comparable industry groups, or by usirdissounted cash flow
analysis. 3M typically uses the price/earningsorapproach for stable and growing businesses thag & long history
and track record of generating positive operatitapime and cash flows. 3M uses the discounted tasrapproach for
start-up, loss position and declining businesseagddition to businesses where the price/earnigtis valuation method
indicates additional review is warranted. 3M alsesudiscounted cash flow as an additional todbfminesses that may
be growing at a slower rate than planned due to@woa or other conditions.

As described in Note 16, effective in the third gemof 2015, within the Health Care business sedntee Company
formed the Oral Care Solutions Division, which condadl the former 3M ESPE and 3M Unitek divisionst &oy
product moves that resulted in reporting unit cleenghe Company applied the relative fair valuehmeto determine
the impact on goodwill of the associated reportings. During the third quarter of 2015, the Compaompleted its
assessment of any potential goodwill impairmentégorting units impacted by this new structure datérmined that
no impairment existed. The discussion that folloglates to the separate fourth quarter 2015 anmyairment test and
is in the context of the reporting unit structunattexisted at that time.

As of October 1, 2015, 3M had 26 primary reportimits, with ten reporting units accounting for appmately 87
percent of the goodwill. These ten reporting uniése comprised of the following divisions: 3M pigétion (which

36



includes the Polypore Separations Media acquigitidadvanced Materials, Communication Markets, Dagp\Vaterials
and Systems, Health Information Systems, Industiilesives and Tapes, Infection Prevention, Oraé Galutions,
Personal Safety (which includes the Capital Sadetyuisition), and Traffic Safety and Security. Bstimated fair
values for these reporting units were in excessafying value by approximately 50 percent or meseept for one
reporting unit with approximately $300 million obgdwill, where the fair value exceeded the carryialye by
approximately 30 percent. 3M’s market value at 8diptember 30, 2015, and December 31, 2015, walicgmtly in
excess of its equity of approximately $12 billidrbath December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2015.

In 2015, 3M primarily used an industry price-eagsmatio approach, but also used a discountedftass approach for
certain reporting units, to determine fair valuéhere applicable, 3M used a weighted-average digedwcash flow
analysis for certain divisions, using projectedhcéisws that were weighted based on different sgtesvth and terminal
value assumptions, among other factors. The weightias based on management’s estimates of thénbloel of each
scenario occurring.

3M is an integrated materials enterprise, thus nwdr8M’s businesses could not easily be sold otaadsalone basis.
3M’s focus on research and development has resultaghortion of 3M’s value being comprised of m&lly developed
businesses that have no goodwill associated winttBased on the annual test in the fourth quaft2015, no
goodwill impairment was indicated for any of theoeting units.

Factors which could result in future impairmentrges include, among others, changes in worldwide@aic
conditions, changes in competitive conditions amst@mer preferences, and fluctuations in foreigmericy exchange
rates. These risk factors are discussed in ItenfR&k Factors,” of this document. In addition, olgas in the weighted
average cost of capital could also impact impairtnesting results. As indicated above, during thedtquarter of 2015,
the Company completed its assessment of any patgatdwill impairment for reporting units impactleyg changes
between reporting units and determined that no impant existed. Long-lived assets with a definite are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in cistances indicate that the carrying amount of aatgasset group)
may not be recoverable. If future non-cash asspairment charges are taken, 3M would expect thigtaportion of
the long-lived assets or goodwill would be impair@il will continue to monitor its reporting uniteéasset groups in
2016 for any triggering events or other indicamirgnpairment.

Income Taxes:

The extent of 3M’s operations involves dealing witicertainties and judgments in the applicationarhplex tax
regulations in a multitude of jurisdictions. Thadl taxes paid are dependent upon many factoisidimg) negotiations
with taxing authorities in various jurisdictionsdaresolution of disputes arising from federal,estaind international tax
audits. The Company recognizes potential liabdlis@d records tax liabilities for anticipated taxliaissues in the
United States and other tax jurisdictions basedsoestimate of whether, and the extent to whiclditeonal taxes will
be due. The Company follows guidance provided b A80,Income Taxegegarding uncertainty in income taxes, to
record these liabilities (refer to Note 8 for aduitl information). The Company adjusts these ressein light of
changing facts and circumstances; however, duseteamplexity of some of these uncertainties, thimate resolution
may result in a payment that is materially difféarisom the Company’s current estimate of the takilities. If the
Company’s estimate of tax liabilities proves tolées than the ultimate assessment, an additiosajelio expense
would result. If payment of these amounts ultimafebves to be less than the recorded amountsetiegsal of the
liabilities would result in tax benefits being remized in the period when the Company determinediabilities are no
longer necessary.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Information regarding new accounting pronounceminitscluded in Note 1 to the Consolidated FinanStatements.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

3M continues its transition to a better-optimizegbital structure and is adding leverage at a medspace. The strength
and stability of 3M's business model and strong fr@sh flow capability, together with proven capitarkets access,
enable the Company to implement this strategy.dting in 3M’s businesses to drive organic growtinaes the first
priority, thus 3M will continue to deploy capitawards research and development, capital expeedijtand
commercialization capability. Investment in orgagiowth will be supplemented by complementary asitjons. 3M
will also continue to return cash to shareholdersugh dividends and share repurchases. Sourceadbravailability in
the United States, such as ongoing cash flow frparations and access to capital markets, havericeily been
sufficient to fund dividend payments to sharehaddmrd share repurchases, as well as funding UgBisgtions and
other items as needed. For those internationalreggconsidered to be reinvested indefinitely, @oenpany currently
has no plans or intentions to repatriate thesesfliodU.S. operations. However, if these internaldunds are needed
for operations in the U.S., 3M would be requireé¢orue and pay U.S. taxes to repatriate themN8e&x8 for further
information on earnings considered to be reinvestedfinitely.

3M's primary short-term liquidity needs are metihgh cash on hand and U.S. commercial paper issaafibe
Company believes it will have continuous accesh@ocommercial paper market. 3M’s commercial pgpegram
permits the Company to have a maximum of $3 bilbatstanding with a maximum maturity of 397 daystirdate of
issuance.

Net Debt:

The Company defines net debt as total debt leswtakof cash, cash equivalents and marketablgrisies. 3M
considers net debt and its components to be anrteniandicator of liquidity and a guiding measuwoifecapital structure
strategy. Net debt is not defined under U.S. gdiyemacepted accounting principles and may notdmapmuted the same
as similarly titted measures used by other comaiiike following table provides net debt as of Defger 31, 2015 and
2014.

At December 31

(Millions) 2015 2014

Total Debt $ 10,797 $ 6,811

Less: Cash and cash equivalents and marketablati&scu 1,925 3,351
Net Debt $ 8,872 $ 3,460

In 2015, net debt rose by $5.4 billion to a nettdelance of $8.9 billion (as of December 31, 2045)3M progressed
on its capital structure strategy. Debt levels wegher in both the U.S. and internationally, whileernational cash and
marketable securities balances were reduced. $pactfons related to cash, cash equivalents, sarttetable
securities, in addition to debt, are discussedérrbelow.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities:

At December 31, 2015, 3M had $1.9 billion of casdsh equivalents and marketable securities, oftwdyiproximately
$1.7 billion was held by the Company'’s foreign sdiasies and $200 million was held by the Unitedt8s. Of the $1.7
billion held internationally, U.S. dollar-based basash equivalents and marketable securitiest®355 million, or 21
percent, which was invested in money market fuadset-backed securities, agency securities, cagoradium-term
note securities and other high quality fixed incaseeurities. At December 31, 2014, cash, cash abprits and
marketable securities held by the Company’s forsigmsidiaries and in the United States totaledafpmately $3.3
billion and less than $100 million, respectively.

The Company’s total balance of cash, cash equitekamd marketable securities was $1.4 billion loatedDecember 31,

2015 when compared to December 31, 2014. 3M wastabbhanage the business with lower cash leveldalue
significant ongoing cash flow generation and proaecess to capital markets funding throughout lssitycles.
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Total Debt:

The Company’s total debt was $4.0 billion higheDatember 31, 2015 when compared to December 34, IZhe
strength of 3M’s capital structure and significangoing cash flows provide 3M proven access totahpiarkets.
Additionally, the Company’s maturity profile is gigered to help ensure refinancing needs in anyngrear are
reasonable in proportion to the total portfolioeT®@ompany has an AA- credit rating, with a stahidomk, from
Standard & Poor’s and an Aa3 credit rating, withegative outlook, from Moody’s Investors ServiceeTCompany'’s
ongoing transition to a better-optimized capitalsture, financed with additional low-cost debtulkcbimpact 3M’s
credit rating in the future.

Effective May 16, 2014, the Company updated itslkrown seasoned issuer” shelf registration statetywhich
registers an indeterminate amount of debt or eaaityrities for future sales. This replaced 3M&vius shelf
registration dated August 5, 2011. In June 2014pimection with the May 16, 2014 shelf registnatidM re-
commenced its medium-term notes program (Seriem@@r which 3M may issue, from time to time, ubillion
aggregate principal amount of notes. Included im $9 billion are $8.17 billion (utilizing the foign exchange rate
applicable at the time of issuance for the Eurcod@nated debt) of notes previously issued in 2@D12, 2014, and
2015 as part of Series F. Information with respedbng-term debt issuances and maturities fopréods presented is
included in Note 10.

In August 2014, 3M amended and extended its eg&tin5 billion five-year multi-currency revolvingedit agreement
to a $2.25 billion five-year multi-currency revahg credit agreement, with an expiration date of #gi®019. This
credit agreement includes a provision under whidhn3ay request an increase of up to $2.25 billiamding the total
facility up to $4.5 billion (at the lenders’ disti@n). This facility was undrawn at December 31120Under the $2.25
billion credit agreement, the Company is requikedhiintain its EBITDA to Interest Ratio as of thelef each fiscal
quarter at not less than 3.0 to 1. This is caledldas defined in the agreement) as the ratio msaalated total
EBITDA for the four consecutive quarters then entietbtal interest expense on all funded debttierdame period. At
December 31, 2015, this ratio was approximatelyos6. Debt covenants do not restrict the paymeutivaflends. Apart
from the committed facilities, an additional $241lion in stand-alone letters of credit and $18lioi in bank
guarantees were also issued and outstanding atribece31, 2015. These lines of credit are utilizedannection with
normal business activities.

Balance Sheet:

3M’s strong balance sheet and liquidity provide @@mmpany with significant flexibility to take adviage of numerous
opportunities going forward. The Company will coni@ to invest in its operations to drive growtltluding continual
review of acquisition opportunities.

Various assets and liabilities, including cash sindrt-term debt, can fluctuate significantly froromth to month
depending on short-term liquidity needs. Workingita (defined as current assets minus currentliligfs) totaled
$3.868 billion at December 31, 2015, compared #8839 billion at December 31, 2014, a decrea$2ef71 billion.
Current asset balance changes decreased workiitgldap$1.317 billion, driven by decreases in nedble securities.
Current liability balance changes decreased workamgtal by $1.154 billion, driven by increaseshort-term debt.

The Company uses various working capital meastwasptace emphasis and focus on certain workingalassets and
liabilities. These measures are not defined und8r generally accepted accounting principles ang moabe computed
the same as similarly titled measures used by athmpanies. One of the primary working capital mees 3M uses is
a combined index, which includes accounts receeabl/entories and accounts payable. This comhimadek (defined
as quarterly net sales — fourth quarter at year-enahultiplied by four, divided by ending net acctaireceivable plus
inventories less accounts payable) was 4.9 at Dieee81, 2015 compared to 5.0 at December 31, Rddeivables
decreased $84 million, or 2.0 percent, compared Bécember 31, 2014, as currency translation inspdetreased
accounts receivable by $239 million, partially etfby 2015 acquisitions that added $103 milliorelmtories decreased
$188 million, or 5.1 percent, compared with Decen8ie 2014. The inventory decrease was attribut@bteirrency
translation, which decreased inventories by $27Romj partially offset by 2015 acquisitions thatded $102 million.
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Accounts payable decreased by $113 million compasgtdDecember 31, 2014, as currency translatigoeicts
reduced accounts payable by $76 million.

Return on Invested Capital (non-GAAP measure):

The Company uses non-GAAP measures to focus orlsbider value creation. 3M uses return on invesigital
(ROIC), defined as annualized after-tax operatimmpime (including interest income) divided by averagerating
capital. Operating capital is defined as net aqsetsl assets less total liabilities) excludinddd his measure is not
recognized under U.S. GAAP and may not be compaialsgimilarly titted measures used by other coriggarROIC
was 22.5 percent for 2015, and 22.0 percent fo4201

Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating, investing and financigjvities are provided in the tables that folldadividual amounts
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows exdndeffects of acquisitions, divestitures and excfe rate impacts
on cash and cash equivalents, which are preseepadagely in the cash flows. Thus, the amountsepited in the
following operating, investing and financing acties tables reflect changes in balances from pedqekriod adjusted
for these effects.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Years Ended December 31

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 4,841 $ 4,998 $ 4,721
Depreciation and amortization 1,435 1,408 1,371
Company pension contributions (264 (210 (476,
Company postretirement contributions 3) (5) (6)
Company pension expense 442 310 446
Company postretirement expense 114 81 107
Stock-based compensation expense 276 280 240
Income taxes (deferred and accrued income taxes) (349) 60 39
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation (154 (167 (92)
Accounts receivable (58) (268) (337)
Inventories 3 (113 (86)
Accounts payable 9 75 16
Other — net 128 177 (126
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 6,420 $ 6,626 $ 5,817

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctusignificantly from period to period, as pensionding decisions, tax
timing differences and other items can significaintipact cash flows.

In 2015, cash flows provided by operating actigititecreased $206 million compared to 2014. Opeyatsh flows
decreased due to $363 million in higher cash inctames when comparing 2015 to 2014, plus lowein@ame, which
was partially offset by lower year-on-year workicapital requirements. The combination of accouetgivable,
inventories and accounts payable increased wodapgal by $46 million in 2015, compared to incresasf $306
million in 2014, with the year-on-year improvemeesiiated to lower organic volume growth. Additiod#cussion on
working capital changes is provided earlier in‘tAmancial Condition and Liquidity” section.

In 2014, cash flows provided by operating actigiiecreased $809 million compared to 2013. Opegatash flows
benefited year-on-year from increases in net incmdl@ding noncontrolling interest, lower pensiordgostretirement
plans contributions, and lower year-on-year worléagital requirements. The combination of accowgtgivable,
inventories and accounts payable increased wodapgal by $306 million in 2014, compared to ingesof $407
million in 2013, with the year-on-year improvemeaitially due to higher receivable and inventomntu Additional
discussion on working capital changes is providatier in the “Financial Condition and Liquidity&stion.
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Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure):

In addition, to net cash provided by operatingwti¢is, 3M believes free cash flow and free caslwftonversion are
useful measures of performance and uses these reeasuan indication of the strength of the Compamdits ability
to generate cash. Free cash flow and free cashcibowersion are not defined under U.S. generaltgpied accounting
principles (GAAP). Therefore, they should not besidered a substitute for income or cash flow gadpared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP and may not be compatahbdémilarly titted measures used by other comgsinisM
defines free cash flow as net cash provided byaijr activities less purchases of property, pdantt equipment
(which is classified as an investing activity)shtould not be inferred that the entire free casw timount is available
for discretionary expenditures. 3M defines freehddésw conversion as free cash flow divided by imebme attributable
to 3M. Below find a recap of free cash flow andefaash flow conversion for 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 6,420 $ 6,626 $ 5,817
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (1,461) (1,493) (1,665)
Free Cash Flow $ 4959 $ 5133 $ 4,152
Free Cash Flow Conversion 103% 104 % 89%

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) $ (1,461 $ (1,493 $ (1,665
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 33 135 128
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (2,914 (94) —
Purchases and proceeds from maturities and safaxddetable

securities and investments, net 1,300 754 627
Proceeds from sale of businesses 123 — 8
Other investing activities 102 102 46
Net cah used in investing activities $ (2,817 $ (596 $ (856

Investments in property, plant and equipment engldaith across many diverse markets, helping ta mesluct
demand and increasing manufacturing efficiency.it@hgpending was $1.461 billion in 2015, compaie§1.493
billion in 2014 and $1.665 billion in 2013. The Cpamy expects 2016 capital spending to be approzign&tl.3 billion
to $1.5 billion as 3M continues to invest in itssnesses.

3M invests in renewable and maintenance prograrmghwpertains to cost reduction, cycle time, mairitey and
renewing current capacity, eliminating pollutiondacompliance. Costs related to maintenance, argliegoairs, and
certain other items are expensed. 3M also invaggsdawth, which adds to capacity, driven by newdoias, both
through expansion of current facilities and newliées, plus research facilities. Finally, 3M alsorests in other
initiatives, such as information technology (ITdasorporate laboratory facilities.

In 2015, investments included new sites and bugislimvestments in IT, continued expansion of aurfacilities and
new facilities, plus the sustainment of existingifdes, in addition to other initiatives. Specifinvestments in 2015
included a new state-of-the-art, four story, 400,8Quare foot research facility at 3M Center inF&iul, Minnesota. In
addition, 3M continued its investments it IT sysseamd infrastructure, particularly the ongoing rirytar phased
implementation of an ERP system.

In 2014, investments in growth across geograpiielsiidled production equipment, new sites and bugklicapacity

investments, converting, and distribution, and ogrewth initiatives. Other investments includedyistems and
infrastructure, including an ongoing multi-year pbd implementation of an ERP system on a worldWwatgs. In
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addition, 3M began a multi-year program in the BdiStates to renew and upgrade laboratory fasilétiel
administrative buildings.

In 2013, 3M continued its expansion of manufacwigapacity in key growth markets, including invesits in the
U.S., China, Germany, and Brazil. This included#igant investments across 3M’s many businesses) as
abrasives, industrial adhesives and tapes, advanatstials, electronics-related, infection prevamtiand other
businesses. 3M continued its investments in ITesgstand infrastructure. In addition, 3M sustainddtimg facilities
through general maintenance, cost reduction, antpance efforts.

Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets tag&@danillion in 2015, $135 million in 2014, and l&illion in
2013. Apart from the normal periodic sales of PP&&14 included proceeds of $114 million relatethi sales of real
estate and non-production equipment, and 2013deduyroceeds of $79 million related to non-producgquipment.

Refer to Note 2 for information on acquisitions afigestitures. The Company is actively consideadditional
acquisitions, investments and strategic allianard,from time to time may also divest certain besges.

Purchases of marketable securities and investra@atproceeds from maturities and sale of marketsdsarities and
investments are primarily attributable to assetkbdcsecurities, agency securities, corporate dehiriies and other
securities, which are classified as available-fle-sRefer to Note 9 for more details about 3Migedsified marketable
securities portfolio. Purchases of investmentsuideladditional survivor benefit insurance, plust costhod and equity
investments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013
Change in short-term debt — net $ 860 $ 27 $ (2)
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) (800) (1,625) (859)
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days 3,422 2,608 824
Total cash change in debt $ 3,482 $ 1,010 $ (37)
Purchases of treasury stock (5,238 (5,652 (5,212,
Proceeds from issuances of treasury stock pursoabbck

option and benefit plans 635 968 1,609
Dividends paid to stockholders (2,561 (2,216 (2,730
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 154 167 92
Purchase of noncontrolling interest — (861 —
Other — net (120) (19) 32
Net cah used in financing activities $ (3,648 $ (6,603 $ (5,246

Total debt was $10.8 billion at December 31, 2@ billion at December 31, 2014, and $6.0 billmecember 31,
2013. Total debt was 48 percent of total capitatb{tcapital is defined as debt plus equity) arryezad 2015, 34 percent
of total capital at year-end 2014, and 25 percétutal capital at year-end 2013.

In both 2015 and 2014, the change in short-tern pliéimarily related to bank borrowings by interoail subsidiaries,
primarily Japan and Korea in 2015. In 2015, repayoé¢ debt primarily related to debt assumed (aaid pff) as part
of the Capital Safety acquisition (refer to NotelR)2014, repayment of debt primarily includesagment of a
Eurobond in July 2014 totaling 1.025 billion Eufapproximately $1.4 billion carrying value), repagmt of the three-
year 66 million British Pound committed credit fégiagreement entered into in December 2012, apdyment of
other international debt. In 2013, repayment oftdelated to the August 2013 repayment of $850ianil(principal
amount) of medium-term notes.

In 2015, proceeds from debt primarily related t® khay 2015 issuance of 650 million Euros aggregatecipal amount

of five-year floating rate medium-term notes du@@0600 million Euros aggregate principal amourgight-year fixed
rate medium-term notes due 2023, and 500 millioroEaggregate principal amount of fifteen-yeardixate medium-
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term notes due 2030, which in the aggregate tp@lcximately $1.9 billion at issue date exchandgesan addition,
August 2015 issuances included $450 million aggeepgeincipal amount of three-year fixed rate medi@mm notes
due 2018, $500 million aggregate principal amodriive-year fixed rate medium-term notes due 2026] $550
million aggregate principal amount of 10-year fixate medium-term notes due 2025, which in aggeetgabl $1.5
billion. In 2014, proceeds from debt primarily rield to the June 2014 issuances of $625 millionegge principal
amount of five-year fixed rate medium-term notes 8019 and $325 million aggregate principal amadithirty-year
fixed rate medium-term notes due 2044, as welhas\ovember 2014 issuances of 500 million Eurascipal amount
of four-year floating rate medium-term notes dué&@and 750 million Euros principal amount of 12+yéeed rate
medium-term notes due 2026. In addition, proceeatn flebt for 2014 also include bank borrowingsriginational
subsidiaries. Proceeds from debt in 2013 relatebdecdNovember 2013 issuance of an eight-year Eunalor an
amount of 600 million Euros. Refer to Note 10 fdd#ional discussion of debt.

Repurchases of common stock are made to suppo@idhmany’s stock-based employee compensation plash$or
other corporate purposes. In February 2016, 3Mar8of Directors authorized the repurchase of upl billion of
3M's outstanding common stock, which replaced tben@Gany’s February 2014 repurchase program. Thisosaization
has no pre-established end date. In 2015, 20142@18|, the Company purchased more than $5 billfats @wn stock
each year. The Company expects full-year 2016 giase repurchases will be in the range of $4obilto $6 billion.
For more information, refer to the table titledsi®r Purchases of Equity Securities” in Part dirit5. The Company
does not utilize derivative instruments linkedhie Company’s stock.

Cash dividends paid to shareholders totaled $2b88dn ($4.10 per share) in 2015, $2.216 billi®8(42 per share) in
2014, and $1.730 billion ($2.54 per share) in 2@BM\.has paid dividends since 1916. In February 28Ms Board of
Directors declared a first-quarter 2016 dividen&bfl1 per share, an increase of 8 percent. Tligug/alent to an
annual dividend of $4.44 per share and marked 8tle @nsecutive year of dividend increases.

On September 1, 2014, 3M purchased (via Sumitomd.-iBited) Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd.’s 2Brgent
interest in 3M’s consolidated Sumitomo 3M Limitadbsidiary for 90 billion Japanese Yen. Upon comepfedf this
transaction, 3M owned 100 percent of Sumitomo 3miteéd. This was reflected as a “Purchase of nomotinty
interest” in the financing section of the consai@hstatement of cash flows. In addition, in Ag6lL4, 3M purchased
the remaining noncontrolling interest in a consatiédl 3M subsidiary for an immaterial amount, whigts also
classified as a “Purchase of noncontrolling intériesthe financing section of the consolidatedataent of cash flows.

In March 2013, 3M sold shares in 3M India Limitedsubsidiary of the Company, in return for $8 miili The
noncontrolling interest shares of this subsidiaagé on a public exchange in India. This sale afeshcomplied with an
amendment to Indian securities regulations thatired 3M India Limited, as a listed company, toiagk a minimum
public shareholding of at least 25 percent. Assaltef this transaction, 3M’s ownership in 3M ladiimited was
reduced from 76 percent to 75 percent. The $8anilteceived in the first quarter of 2013 was clestias other
financing activity in the consolidated statementash flows.

In addition to the March 2013 sale of noncontrgjlinterest described above, other cash flows frioanting activities
may include various other items, such as changeash overdraft balances, and principal paymemtsdpital leases.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Qjdtions:

As of December 31, 2015, the Company has not etilepecial purpose entities to facilitate off-basheet financing
arrangements. Refer to the section entitled “WdieafGuarantees” in Note 14 for discussion of aedrmproduct
warranty liabilities and guarantees.

In addition to guarantees, 3M, in the normal cowfseusiness, periodically enters into agreemérdsrequire the
Company to indemnify either major customers or $isppfor specific risks, such as claims for injunyproperty
damage arising out of the use of 3M products ontiigence of 3M personnel, or claims alleging 8 products
infringe third-party patents or other intellectpabperty. While 3M’s maximum exposure under theskemnification
provisions cannot be estimated, these indemnifioatare not expected to have a material impadi@Cbmpany’s
consolidated results of operations or financialditon.
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A summary of the Company’s significant contractigligations as of December 31, 2015, follows:

Contractual Obligations

Payments due by year

After
(Millions) Total 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020
Long-term debt, including current portior
(Note 10) $ 9878 $ 1,125 $ 744 $ 993 $ 622 $ 1,203 $5,191
Interest on long-term debt 2,244 174 157 153 149 146 1,465
Operating leases (Note 14) 943 234 191 134 86 72 226
Capital leases (Note 14) 59 11 6 4 3 3 32
Unconditional purchase obligations and
other 1,631 1,228 160 102 54 56 31
Total contractual cash obligations 3,755 $ 2,772 $ 1,258 $ 1,386 $ 914 $ 1,480 $6,945

Long-term debt payments due in 2016 and 2017 iecflediting rate notes totaling $126 million (cldiesl as current
portion of long-term debt), and $96 million (inckdlas a separate floating rate note in the long-tibt table),
respectively, as a result of put provisions assediith these debt instruments. Interest projestion both floating and
fixed rate long-term debt, including the effectsniérest rate swaps, are based on effective siteates as of
December 31, 2015.

Unconditional purchase obligations are definedraagieement to purchase goods or services thafasceable and
legally binding on the Company. Included in the amditional purchase obligations category abovecartain
obligations related to take or pay contracts, ehpgibmmitments, service agreements and utilitib®s€ estimates
include both unconditional purchase obligationgwérms in excess of one year and normal ongoinghase
obligations with terms of less than one year. Mahthese commitments relate to take or pay corgractwhich 3M
guarantees payment to ensure availability of prtdacservices that are sold to customers. The @agnpxpects to
receive consideration (products or services) fes¢hunconditional purchase obligations. Contractapital
commitments are included in the preceding tabletirse commitments represent a small part of tragany’s
expected capital spending in 2016 and beyond. Tihehpse obligation amounts do not represent theeeanticipated
purchases in the future, but represent only thieses for which the Company is contractually obkgatThe majority of
3M’s products and services are purchased as neettadio unconditional commitment. For this reasiiese amounts
will not provide a reliable indicator of the Compgé&expected future cash outflows on a stand-alass.

Other obligations, included in the preceding takihin the caption entitled “Unconditional purchasaigations and
other,” include the current portion of the liahjlfior uncertain tax positions under ASC 740, whkxpected to be paid
out in cash in the next 12 months. The Companypishle to reasonably estimate the timing of tmgierm payments
or the amount by which the liability will increase decrease over time; therefore, the long-ternigroof the net tax
liability of $208 million is excluded from the preding table. Refer to Note 8 for further details.

As discussed in Note 11, the Company does not dagquired minimum cash pension contribution olidgafor its
U.S. plans in 2016 and Company contributions tdJiS. and international pension plans are expeotbée largely
discretionary in future years; therefore, amouatated to these plans are not included in the gdiegeable.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company enters into foreign exchange forwardracts, options and swaps to hedge against theteff exchange
rate fluctuations on cash flows denominated inifgreurrencies and certain intercompany financiaggactions. The
Company manages interest rate risks using a mixed and floating rate debt. To help manage boimgweosts, the
Company may enter into interest rate swaps. Uriteset arrangements, the Company agrees to exclargpecified
intervals, the difference between fixed and flogidimerest amounts calculated by reference to e@eglgupon notional
principal amount. The Company manages commoditepisks through negotiated supply contracts, ppicgéection
agreements and forward contracts.
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Refer to Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Elssures About Market Risk”, for further discussimfiforeign
exchange rates risk, interest rates risk, commautites risk and value at risk analysis.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.

In the context of Item 7A, 3M is exposed to marksk due to the risk of loss arising from adverkarges in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and contyriies. Changes in those factors could causguitions in
earnings and cash flows. Senior management proeiasight for risk management and derivative iy,
determines certain of the Company’s financial gekcies and objectives, and provides guidelinesiferivative
instrument utilization. Senior management alsoldistaes certain associated procedures relativerttral and
valuation, risk analysis, counterparty credit appipand ongoing monitoring and reporting.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interes sataps, currency
swaps, commodity price swaps, and forward and pmiamtracts. However, the Company’s risk is limitedhe fair
value of the instruments. The Company actively nowsiits exposure to credit risk through the useretlit approvals
and credit limits, and by selecting major interoatl banks and financial institutions as countenpgrThe Company
does not anticipate nonperformance by any of thesaterparties.

Foreign Exchange Rates Risk:

Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuationisase rates may affect the Company’s net invedtingoreign
subsidiaries and may cause fluctuations in castsfielated to foreign denominated transactionsisS8so exposed to
the translation of foreign currency earnings toth8. dollar. The Company enters into foreign exgeaforward and
option contracts to hedge against the effect oharge rate fluctuations on cash flows denominatddreign
currencies. These transactions are designatedshdloas hedges. 3M may dedesignate these cashhitmlge
relationships in advance of the occurrence of tihedasted transaction. Beginning in the secondejuaf 2014, 3M
began extending the maximum length of time overchliti hedges its exposure to the variability irufetcash flows of
the forecasted transactions from a previous teriahonths to a longer term of 24 months, withaiarturrencies
being extended further to 36 months starting irfitise quarter of 2015. In addition, 3M enters ifidkoeign currency
forward contracts that are not designated in hefggtationships to offset, in part, the impacts@iftain intercompany
activities (primarily associated with intercompditgnsing arrangements and intercompany finanaagsactions). As
circumstances warrant, the Company also uses forigency forward contracts and foreign currenegaiminated
debt as hedging instruments to hedge portionseo€tbmpany’s net investments in foreign operatidihg dollar
equivalent gross notional amount of the Compamgyreifin exchange forward and option contracts deséghas cash
flow hedges and those not designated as hedgitrgiinasnts were $2.8 billion and $5.4 billion, respeaty, at
December 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2015, thepaognhad 974 million Euros and 248 billion Southréan Won
in notional amount of foreign currency forward aacts designated as net investment hedges alohg@waitbillion
Euros in principal amount of foreign currency demmated debt designated as non-derivative hedgistguiments in
certain net investment hedges as discussed in MNoite the “Net Investment Hedges” section.

Interest Rates Risk:

The Company may be impacted by interest rate Vityatvith respect to existing debt and future dedsuances. 3M
manages interest expense using a mix of fixed laadirfig rate debt. To help manage borrowing castsCompany
may enter into interest rate swaps that are desdrand qualify as fair value hedges. Under thesmgements, the
Company agrees to exchange, at specified intebhadgjifference between fixed and floating intesrsbunts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notjomatipal amount. The dollar equivalent (basedrmeption date
foreign currency exchange rates) gross notionaluatof the Company’s interest rate swaps at Deceibe?015 was
$1.8 billion. Additional details about 3M’s longrte debt can be found in Note 10, including refeesnio information
regarding derivatives and/or hedging instrumengseiated with the Company’s long-term debt.
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Commodity Prices Risk:

The Company manages commaodity price risks throwgotiated supply contracts, price protection agesgmand
forward contracts. 3M used commodity price swapsazsh flow hedges of forecasted commodity transastio
manage price volatility, but discontinued this pi@ein the first quarter of 2015. The related mtrdmarket gain or
loss on qualifying hedges was included in other ma@hensive income to the extent effective, andassified into cost
of sales in the period during which the hedgedsiaation affected earnings.

Value At Risk:

The value at risk analysis is performed annuallggsess the Company’s sensitivity to changes oy rates, interest
rates, and commodity prices. A Monte Carlo simolatechnique was used to test the impact on afteearnings
related to financial instruments (primarily delatgrivatives and underlying exposures outstandiridegember 31,
2015. The model (third-party bank dataset) usefl pedcent confidence level over a 12-month timeézoor The
exposure to changes in currency rates model usedri@ncies, interest rates related to three comeepand commodity
prices related to five commaodities. This model deespurport to represent what actually will be estpnced by the
Company. This model does not include certain hédgesactions, because the Company believes thadirsion would
not materially impact the results. The risk of losbenefit associated with exchange rates washigh2015 due to a
greater mix of floating rate debt and a rising liegt rate environment in the U.S. Interest ratatidl increased in
2015, based on a higher mix of floating rate deldt the use of forward rates. The following tablmmarizes the
possible adverse and positive impacts to afteetarings related to these exposures.

Adverse impact on after-tax Positive impact on after-tax

earnings earnings
(Millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Foreign exchange rates $ (254 $ (164 $ 273 $ 173
Interest rates (13) 4 9 3
Commodity prices (1) Q) 1 1

In addition to the possible adverse and positiveaots discussed in the preceding table relatedréign exchange
rates, recent historical information is as follo®®1 estimates that year-on-year currency effentduding hedging
impacts, had the following effects on pre-tax ineo015 ($390 million decrease) and 2014 ($100aniklecrease).
This estimate includes the effect of translatingfigs from local currencies into U.S. dollars; fhgact of currency
fluctuations on the transfer of goods between 3Mrations in the United States and abroad; anddcdios gains and
losses, including derivative instruments desigmektuce foreign currency exchange rate risks la@aehégative impact
of swapping Venezuelan bolivars into U.S. doll&id. estimates that year-on-year derivative and difagrisaction gains
and losses had the following effects on pre-tawine: 2015 ($180 million increase) and 2014 ($10ionilincrease).

An analysis of the global exposures related to lpagsed components and materials is performed atyearkend. A one
percent price change would result in a pre-tax eostvings of approximately $70 million per yeBine global energy
exposure is such that a ten percent price changé&wesult in a pre-tax cost or savings of appratity $40 million
per year. Global energy exposure includes energisaced in 3M production and other facilitiesmanily electricity
and natural gas.
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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for the integrity anctdibjity of the financial information included ihis report. The
financial statements have been prepared in accoedaith accounting principles generally acceptetheUnited States
of America. Where necessary, the financial statésnesflect estimates based on management’s judgment

Management has established and maintains a sys$tetemmal control over financial reporting for t@mpany and its
subsidiaries. This system and its established adtt@uprocedures and related controls are desigmpdovide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguénatatictbooks and records properly reflect allsaations, that policies
and procedures are implemented by qualified peedpand that published financial statements arpgnty prepared
and fairly presented. The Company’s system of imatlecontrol over financial reporting is supportgdviidely
communicated written policies, including businessduct policies, which are designed to requirealployees to
maintain high ethical standards in the conduct@i@any affairs. Internal auditors continually revithe accounting
and control system.

3M Company
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg an adequate system of internal control dwancial
reporting. Management conducted an assessment @fdmpany’s internal control over financial repagtbased on the
framework established by the Committee of Spongo@inganizations of the Treadway Commissioimiternal Control
— Integrated Framework (2013Ylanagement’s assessment of the effectivenesedfdmpany’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 exalu@apital Safety Group S.A.R.L. and Polypore Inggional, Inc.’s
Separation Media Business, which were both acquiyettie Company in August 2015 in purchase business
combinations. These acquired businesses’ totatsaard total net sales, in the aggregate, repredéess than 2 percent
and less than 1 percent, respectively, of the Coyipaonsolidated financial statement amounts andffor the year
ended December 31, 2015. Companies are allowexttode acquisitions from their assessment of irgtkecontrol over
financial reporting during the first year of acqtiom while integrating the acquired company ungeidelines
established by the Securities and Exchange ConwonisBased on the assessment, management conchadedd of
December 31, 2015, the Company'’s internal contvel dinancial reporting is effective.

The Company’s internal control over financial repuar as of December 31, 2015 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registriblic accounting firm, as stated in their répdrich is
included herein, which expresses an unqualifiediopion the effectiveness of the Company’s intecaaltrol over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2015.

3M Company
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of 3Mrpany

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present fairlyall material respects, the
financial position of 3M Company and its subsidtatthe “Company”) at December 31, 2015 and 2014 thadesults of their
operations and their cash flows for each of theglyears in the period ended December 31, 201&nioenity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica. Also in our opinion, the Company mained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting of December 31, 2015, based on criteria estagliininternal Control -
Integrated Framework2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizataihe Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company's management is responsible for thesedialastatements, for maintaining effective interoatrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanying Management's
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportir@ur responsibility is to express opinions orsthénancial statements and on the
Company's internal control over financial reportbsed on our integrated audits. We conducte@uadits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigiard (United States). Those standards regoéevie plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whihénancial statements are free of material tatssnent and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audits offthancial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingteunts and disclosures in the financial statesp@ssessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made &yagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant presentation. Our audit
of internal control over financial reporting incledi obtaining an understanding of internal conti@rdinancial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, andhigstind evaluating the design and operating effeatigs of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audits also included peitfigrsuch other procedures as we considered negesgshe circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable Basisur opinions.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company changed the manner ichvithédccounts for marketable
securities and deferred tax assets and liabilti€015.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableamssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over firtéal reporting includes those policies and proceslthat (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable datlrately and fairly reflect the transactions dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thasaetions are recorded as necessary to permitratepeof financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of tingpemy are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management ardtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoeasisurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijon, use, or disposition of the company’s ass$leat could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal coh@iver financial reporting may not prevent or @éteisstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiade subject to the risk that controls may becimméequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As described in Management's Report on Internati@baver Financial Reporting, management has eeduCapital Safety Group
S.A.R.L. (“Capital Safety”) and Polypore Internat#, Inc.’s Separations Media Business (“PolypapeBations Media”) from its
assessment of internal control over financial réporas of December 31, 2015 because these busiesse acquired by the
Company in purchase business combinations duria§.20Ve have also excluded Capital Safety and PoéySeparations Media
from our audit of internal control over financiajporting. Capital Safety is a wholly-owned sulaigiof the Company and the
Company acquired the assets and liabilities of Ry Separations Media whose total assets andigttalales, in the aggregate,
represent less than 2 percent and less than 1rperespectively, of the related consolidated fgianstatement amounts as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2015.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 11, 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Income
3M Company and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31

Net sale
Operating expenses
Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research, development and related expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income

Interest expense and income

Interest expense

Interest income

Total interest expense — net

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income including noncontrolling intere
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingnetst
Net income attributable to 3|

Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding € bas

Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwdehs — basic  $

Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding utedil

Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddehs —dilutec $

Cash dividends paid per 3M common share

2015 2014 2013
$ 30274 $ 31,821 $ 30,871
15,383 16,447 16,106
6,182 6,469 6,384
1,763 1,770 1,715
23,328 24,686 24,205
6,946 7,135 6,666
149 142 145
(26, (33 (41
123 109 104
6,823 7,026 6,562
1,982 2,028 1,841
$ 4841 $ 4,998 $ 4,721
8 42 62
$ 4,833 $ 4,956 $ 4,659
625.6 649.2 681.9
772 $ 763 $ 6.83
637.2 662.0 693.6
758 $ 7.49 $ 6.72
$ 410 $ 342 $ 2.54

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
3M Company and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 4,841 $ 4,998 $ 4,721
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (586 (942 (505,
Defined benefit pension and postretirement planssatient 489 (1,562) 1,245
Debt and equity securities, unrealized gain (loss) — 2 —
Cash flow hedging instruments, unrealized gainsflos 25 107 15
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (72 (2,395 755
Comprehensive income (loss) including noncontrglimerest 4,769 2,603 5,476
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to norredlintg interest (6) (48) 20
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to 3M $ 4,763 $ 2555 $ 5,496

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
3M Company and Subsidiaries
At December 31

(Dollars in millions, except per share amount) 2015 2014
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,798 $ 1,897
Marketable securities — current 118 1,439
Accounts receivable — net of allowances of $91 $oui 4,154 4,238
Inventories
Finished goods 1,655 1,723
Work in process 1,008 1,081
Raw materials and supplies 855 902
Total inventories 3,518 3,706
Other current assets 1,398 1,023
Total current assets 10,986 12,303
Marketable securities — non-current 9 15
Investments 117 102
Property, plant and equipment 23,098 22,841
Less: Accumulated depreciation (14,583) (14,352)
Property, plant and equipment — net 8,515 8,489
Goodwill 9,249 7,050
Intangible assets — net 2,601 1,435
Prepaid pension benefits 188 46
Other assets 1,053 1,769
Total assets 32,718 $ 31,209
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current portion of lorgat debt 2,044 $ 106
Accounts payable 1,694 1,807
Accrued payroll 644 732
Accrued income taxes 332 435
Other current liabilities 2,404 2,884
Total current liabilities 7,118 5,964
Long-term debt 8,753 6,705
Pension and postretirement benefits 3,520 3,843
Other liabilities 1,580 1,555
Total liabilities 20,971 $ 18,067
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
Equity
3M Company shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $.01 per share 9 $ 9
Shares outstanding - 2015: 609,330,124
Shares outstanding - 2014: 635,134,594
Additional paid-in capital 4,791 4,379
Retained earnings 36,575 34,317
Treasury stock (23,308) (19,307)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (6,359 (6,289
Total 3M Company shareholders’ equity 11,708 13,109
Noncontrolling intere: 39 33
Total equity 11,747 $ 13,142
Total liabilities and equity 32,718 $ 31,209

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
3M Company and Subsidiaries
Years Ended December 31

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated
Stock and Other
Additional Comprehensive Non-
Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2012 $18,040 $ 4,053 $30,679 $(12,407 $ (4,750 $ 465
Net income 4,721 4,659 62
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (505 (418 (87)
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement plaijigsament 1,245 1,240 5
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo 15 15 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 755
Dividends declared ($3.395 per share, Note 6) (2,297) (2,297)
Sale of subsidiary shares 8 7 1
Stock-based compensation, net of tax impacts 324 324
Reacquired stock (5,216 (5,216
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 1,613 (625) 2,238
Balance at December 31, 2013 $17,948 $ 4,384 $32416 $(15385 $ (3913 $ 446
Net income 4,998 4,956 42
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (942, (948 6
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement plaijigsament (1,562) (1,562 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) 2 2 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo 107 107 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (2,395
Dividends declared ($3.59 per share, Note 6) (2,297) (2,297)
Purchase of subsidiary shares (870 (434 25 (461,
Stock-based compensation, net of tax impacts 438 438
Reacquired stock (5,643 (5,643
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 963 (758) 1,721
Balance at December 31, 2014 $13,142 $ 4,388 $34,317 $(19,307 $ (6,289 $ 33
Net income 4,841 4,833 8
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (586 (584, 2
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platissament 489 489 —
Debt and equity securities - unrealized gain (loss) — — —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaisgjo 25 25 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (72
Dividends declared ($3.075 per share, Note 6) (1,913) (1,913)
Stock-based compensation, net of tax impacts 412 412
Reacquired stock (5,304) (5,304
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 641 (662 1,303
Balance at December 31, 2015 ¥,747 $ 4,800 $36,575 $(23,308 $ (6,359 $ 39
Supplemental share information 2015 2014 2013
Treasury stock

Beginning balance 308,898,462 280,736,817 256,941,406

Reacquired stock 34,072,58¢ 40,664,061 45,445,61(

Issuances pursuant to stock options and benefispla (8,268,114) (12,502,416) (21,650,199)
Ending balance 334,702,93: 308,898,46: 280,736,817

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
3M Company and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income including noncontrolling intere $ 4,841 $ 4,998 $ 4,721
Adjustments to reconcile net income including naroalling
interest to net cash provided by operating acésiti
Depreciation and amortization 1,435 1,408 1,371
Company pension and postretirement contributions (267) (215) (482)
Company pension and postretirement expense 556 391 553
Stock-based compensation expense 276 280 240
Deferred income taxes 395 (146 (167
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation (154) (167) (92)
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (58) (268) (337)
Inventories 3 (113 (86)
Accounts payable 9 75 16
Accrued income taxes (current and long-term) (744 206 206
Other — net 128 177 (126)
Net cash provided by operating activit 6,420 6,626 5,817
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (1,461) (1,493) (1,665)
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 33 135 128
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (2,914) (94) —
Purchases of marketable securities and investments (652 (1,280 (4,040
Proceeds from maturities and sale of marketablergess and
investments 1,952 2,034 4,667
Proceeds from sale of businesses 123 — 8
Other investing 102 102 46
Net cash used in investing activiti (2,817 (596 (856
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Change in short-term debt — net 860 27 (2)
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) (800 (1,625 (859
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days 3,422 2,608 824
Purchases of treasury stock (5,238 (5,652 (5,212
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock pursoastbtk option
and benefit plans 635 968 1,609
Dividends paid to shareholders (2,561 (2,216 (2,730
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 154 167 92
Purchase of noncontrolling interest — (861 —
Other — net (120) (19) 32
Net cash used in financing activiti (3,648 (6,603 (5,246
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbatents (54 (111 a7
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (99 (684 (302
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,897 2,581 2,883
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,798 $ 1,897 $ 2,581

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkBtents are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTE 1. Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation:3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technglamnovator and marketer of a wide variety of
products. All subsidiaries are consolidated. Alenaompany transactions are eliminated. As useeiehe term “3M”
or “Company” refers to 3M Company and subsidiatiekess the context indicates otherwise.

Basis of presentatiorCertain balances relative to prior periods hawnheclassified to conform to December 31, 2015
presentation in connection with the following, eachvhich is further discussed in the indicatedisecof Note 1:
« Change in method of classification of certain m&akée securities previously classified as non-amirte
current as further discussed in the Marketabler#tégesisection; and
e Adoption of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) N@12-03,Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance
Costs and ASU No. 2015-1Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxeshe fourth quarter of 2015 on a
retrospective basis as further discussed in the Nexounting Pronouncements section.

Foreign currency translationkocal currencies generally are considered thetional currencies outside the United
States. Assets and liabilities for operations alecurrency environments are translated at monthexchange rates of
the period reported. Income and expense itemgamelated at month-end exchange rates of eactcapfdimonth.
Cumulative translation adjustments are recordesl @smponent of accumulated other comprehensiveriadtoss) in
shareholders’ equity.

Although local currencies are typically consideascthe functional currencies outside the UnitedeStainder
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 8B@reign Currency Mattersthe reporting currency of a foreign entity’s
parent is assumed to be that entity’s functionalency when the economic environment of a foreigtiteis highly
inflationary—generally when its cumulative inflaties approximately 100 percent or more for theehyears that
precede the beginning of a reporting period. 3Mdasbsidiary in Venezuela with operating incongresenting less
than 1.0 percent of 3M’s consolidated operatingime for 2015. Since January 1, 2010, the finast&kments of the
Venezuelan subsidiary have been remeasured aduinittional currency were that of its parent.

The Venezuelan government sets official rates ohawge and conditions precedent to purchase fooeigency at
these rates with local currency. Such rates andittons have been and continue to be subject tagdan

January 2014, the Venezuelan government annouhagthe National Center for Foreign Commerce (CEREY had
assumed the role with respect to the continuatfdheoexisting official exchange rate, significangixpanded the use of
a second currency auction exchange mechanism ¢hbedomplementary System for Foreign Currency Aegquent
(or SICAD1), and issued exchange regulations ingigaghe SICAD1 rate of exchange would be usegfyments
related to international investments. In late Ma26ti4, the Venezuelan government launched a tbielgn exchange
mechanism, SICAD2, which it later replaced with theo foreign currency exchange platform in Febr20¢5 called
the Marginal System of Foreign Currency (SIMADIhel'SIMADI rate was described as being derived fdaity
private bidders and buyers exchanging offers thincughorized agents. This rate is approved andghda by the
Venezuelan Central Bank.

The financial statements of 3M’s Venezuelan subsydivere remeasured utilizing the official CENCOX its
predecessor) rate into March 2014, the SICAD1 atgnning in late March 2014, the SICAD2 rate bagig in

June 2014, and the SIMADI rate beginning in Febr2axl5. 3M’s uses of these rates were based upalnation of a
number of factors including, but not limited toetexchange rate the Company’s Venezuelan subsidiayylegally use
to convert currency, settle transactions or pajdédivds; the probability of accessing and obtaimingency by use of a
particular rate or mechanism; and the Company&ninand ability to use a particular exchange mdsharOther
factors notwithstanding, remeasurement impacte@thanges in use of these exchange rates dicamwetrhaterial
impacts on 3M’s consolidated results of operatimnnancial condition.

The Company continues to monitor circumstancedsivel#o its Venezuelan subsidiary. Changes in apple exchange

rates or exchange mechanisms may continue in theefurhese changes could impact the rate of exgghapplicable to
remeasure the Company’s net monetary assets ifiedildenominated in Venezuelan Bolivars (VEF).oks
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December 31, 2015, the Company had a balance ofaoettary liabilities denominated in VEF of lesanttb00 million
VEF and the CENCOEX, SICAD (formerly SICAD1), antM&\DI exchange rates were approximately 6 VEF, 13
VEF, and 200 VEF per U.S. dollar, respectively.

A need to deconsolidate the Company’s Venezuelbsidiary’'s operations may result from a lack ofteageability of
VEF-denominated cash coupled with an acute degoadit the ability to make key operational decisia@lue to
government regulations in Venezuela. 3M monitocsdiess such as its ability to access various exchangchanisms;
the impact of government regulations on the Comjsaatlyility to manage its Venezuelan subsidiary’gita structure,
purchasing, product pricing, and labor relatioms] the current political and economic situationhivitVenezuela.
Based upon such factors as of December 31, 208 %;dmpany continues to consolidate its Venezualbgidiary. As
of December 31, 2015, the balance of intercompangivables due from this subsidiary and its edugthance are not
significant.

ReclassificationsCertain amounts in the prior years’ consolidatedricial statements have been reclassified to confor
to the current year presentation.

Use of estimatesthe preparation of financial statements in conformith U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estima@assumptions that affect the reported amountsssta and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent asseid liabilities at the date of the financial staéats, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reggeiriod. Actual results could differ from thestimates.

Cash and cash equivalen8ash and cash equivalents consist of cash andbtampnvestments with maturities of
three months or less when acquired.

Marketable securitiesEffective December 31, 2015, the Company chanigedntethod of classification of certain
securities previously classified as non-currerduent. This new method classifies these secsrétiecurrent or non-
current based on the nature of the securities aaitbaility for use in current operations while thior classification
was based on management’s intended holding pehiedsecurity’s maturity date and liquidity consiatésns based on
market conditions. The Company believes this methquieferable because it is consistent with haav@ompany
manages its capital structure and liquidity. Thermperiod balance has been reclassified to contorthe current year
presentation:

December 31, 2014

(Millions) Previously Reported Impact As Adjusted

Marketable securities - current $ 626 $ 813 $ 1,439

Marketable securities - non-current 828 (813) 15
Total marketable securities $ 1,454 $ — $ 1,454

3M reviews impairments associated with its marketalcurities in accordance with the measuremedague
provided by ASC 320investments-Debt and Equity Securiti@hen determining the classification of the imp@nt as
“temporary” or “other-than-temporary”. A temporargpairment charge results in an unrealized lossgoscorded in
the other comprehensive income component of shitefsd equity. Such an unrealized loss does naigedhet income
for the applicable accounting period because the i not viewed as other-than-temporary. The facwaluated to
differentiate between temporary and other-than-taany include the projected future cash flows, tretings actions,
and assessment of the credit quality of the unierlgollateral, as well as other factors.

Investmentstnvestments primarily include equity method, aosthod, and available-for-sale equity investments.
Available-for-sale investments are recorded atvialue. Unrealized gains and losses relating testments classified as
available-for-sale are recorded as a componert@fraulated other comprehensive income (loss) iresiedders’

equity.

Other assetsOther assets include deferred income taxes, pradutbther insurance receivables, the cash sumrende
value of life insurance policies, and other longrt@ssets. Investments in life insurance are redat the amount that
could be realized under contract at the balancetstate, with any changes in cash surrender valaerdract value
during the period accounted for as an adjustmeptaerhiums paid. Cash outflows and inflows assodiatith life
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insurance activity are included in “Purchases ofketble securities and investments” and “Procémais maturities
and sale of marketable securities and investmergsgectively.

Inventories:Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orketamith cost generally determined on a firstfirst-out
basis.

Property, plant and equipmerferoperty, plant and equipment, including capitadimnterest and internal engineering
costs, are recorded at cost. Depreciation of ptgpelant and equipment generally is computed utiiegstraight-line
method based on the estimated useful lives ofdbeta. The estimated useful lives of buildingsiamtovements
primarily range from ten to forty years, with thajarity in the range of twenty to forty years. Tésimated useful lives
of machinery and equipment primarily range fronethto fifteen years, with the majority in the ramddive to ten
years. Fully depreciated assets are retained jmeptypand accumulated depreciation accounts uisplogal. Upon
disposal, assets and related accumulated depoecat removed from the accounts and the net amiesstproceeds
from disposal, is charged or credited to operati®neperty, plant and equipment amounts are reddaeimpairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset (asset yjroap not be
recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognizkdn the carrying amount of an asset exceedsstimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to resnthfthe use of the asset and its eventual dispasitihe amount of
the impairment loss recorded is calculated by #oess of the asset’s carrying value over its falug. Fair value is
generally determined using a discounted cash floalyasis.

Conditional asset retirement obligation&:liability is initially recorded at fair value foan asset retirement obligation
associated with the retirement of tangible longdivassets in the period in which it is incurred rfeasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. Conditional asset retirg¢rabligations exist for certain long-term assetshef Company. The
obligation is initially measured at fair value ugiexpected present value techniques. Over timbathitities are

accreted for the change in their present valuetlaméhitial capitalized costs are depreciated dheremaining useful
lives of the related assets. The asset retiremaigadion liability was $102 million and $96 miliioat December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

Gooduwill: Goodwill is the excess of cost of an acquired gmtiter the amounts assigned to assets acquirelibdildies
assumed in a business combination. Goodwill isanwdrtized. Goodwill is tested for impairment anthyal the fourth
quarter of each year, and is tested for impairrbetween annual tests if an event occurs or circumsts change that
would indicate the carrying amount may be impaitatpairment testing for goodwill is done at a rejay unit level,
with all goodwill assigned to a reporting unit. Rejing units are one level below the business segiegel, but can be
combined when reporting units within the same sedrhave similar economic characteristics. 3M ditigmmbine any
of its reporting units for impairment testing. Anpairment loss generally would be recognized whercarrying
amount of the reporting unit's net assets excedeelestimated fair value of the reporting unit. Esémated fair value
of a reporting unit is determined using earningsiie reporting unit multiplied by a price/earnirrgsio for comparable
industry groups, or by using a discounted cash #oalysis. Companies have the option to first asgaalitative factors
to determine whether the fair value of a reporting is not “more likely than not” less than itsigang amount, which
is commonly referred to as “Step 0”. 3M has chasetrto apply Step 0 for 2015 or prior period anrg@bdwill
assessments.

Intangible assetdntangible asset types include customer relatenps other technology-based, tradenames and other
intangible assets acquired from an independeny.patangible assets with a definite life are anzed over a period
ranging from one to twenty years on a systematitrational basis (generally straight line) thateipresentative of the
asset’s use. The estimated useful lives vary bsgoay, with customer related largely between s¢geseventeen years,
patents largely between five to thirteen yearseotbchnology-based largely between two to fiftgears, definite lived
tradenames largely between three and twenty yeadspther intangibles largely between two to tesryeCosts related

to internally developed intangible assets, sugbadisnts, are expensed as incurred, primarily irséaech, development
and related expenses.”

Intangible assets with a definite life are testadifpairment whenever events or circumstancesatdithat the

carrying amount of an asset (asset group) may eoetoverable. An impairment loss is recognizednithe carrying
amount of an asset exceeds the estimated undiszboash flows used in determining the fair valuthefasset. The
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amount of the impairment loss recorded is calcdlatethe excess of the asset’s carrying value s dair value. Fair
value is generally determined using a discountst iaw analysis.

Intangible assets with an indefinite life, namedytain tradenames, are not amortized. Indefinitediintangible assets
are tested for impairment annually, and are tefsteinpairment between annual tests if an eventiccor
circumstances change that would indicate that &éing/img amount may be impaired. An impairment Igeserally
would be recognized when the fair value is lesa tha carrying value of the indefinite-lived intailg asset.

Restructuring actionsRestructuring actions generally include significactions involving employee-related severance
charges, contract termination costs, and impairroeatcelerated depreciation/amortization of asseteciated with
such actions. Employee-related severance chargdargely based upon distributed employment pdieied
substantive severance plans. These charges areteeflin the quarter when the actions are prokmidehe amounts are
estimable, which typically is when management apgsdhe associated actions. Severance amountsifohn affected
employees were required to render service in dalegceive benefits at their termination dates weeasured at the
date such benefits were communicated to the afdicamployees and recognized as expense over thieysas’
remaining service periods. Contract termination eiteér charges primarily reflect costs to termiramt®ontract before
the end of its term (measured at fair value atithe the Company provided notice to the counteypant costs that will
continue to be incurred under the contract fordtaaining term without economic benefit to the Camyp Asset
impairment charges related to intangible assetgamypkerty, plant and equipment reflect the excéskepassets’
carrying values over their fair values.

Revenue (sales) recognitionhe Company sells a wide range of products tosersified base of customers around the
world and has no material concentration of cradik.rRevenue is recognized when the risks and @svafr ownership
have substantively transferred to customers. Tdvsglition normally is met when the product has baelivered or upon
performance of services. The Company records etthraductions to revenue or records expense &iomer and
distributor incentives, primarily comprised of rédmand free goods, at the time of the initial.sBleese sales incentives
are accounted for in accordance with ASC 6®&yenue Recognitiofhe estimated reductions of revenue for rebates
are based on the sales terms, historical experiémeel analysis and projected market conditiorthénvarious markets
served. Since the Company serves numerous mattetssbate programs offered vary across busingsset)e most
common incentive relates to amounts paid or crddidecustomers for achieving defined volume lewelgrowth
objectives. Free goods are accounted for as amegpnd recorded in cost of sales. Sales, uses-aalded and other
excise taxes are not recognized in revenue.

The vast majority of 3M’s sales agreements arastandard products and services with customer aageptoccurring
upon delivery of the product or performance of¢bevice. However, to a limited extent 3M also entato agreements
that involve multiple elements (such as equipmiastallation and service), software, or non-staddarms and
conditions.

For non-software multiple-element arrangementsQbmpany recognizes revenue for delivered elemehnén they
have stand-alone value to the customer, they hagr hcecepted by the customer, and for which thereray
customary refund or return rights. Arrangement @ersition is allocated to the deliverables by usihe relative selling
price method. The selling price used for each @edilile is based on vendor-specific objective exiddWSOE) if
available, third-party evidence (TPE) if VSOE ig awailable, or estimated selling price if neitMSOE nor TPE is
available. Estimated selling price is determined imanner consistent with that used to establisiptite to sell the
deliverable on a standalone basis. In additioméoptreceding conditions, equipment revenue isemdrded until the
installation has been completed if equipment acoeqet is dependent upon installation or if instaltats essential to the
functionality of the equipment. Installation revesware not recorded until installation has beenpbetead.

For arrangements (or portions of arrangementdphéplithin software revenue recognition standanat$ that do not
involve significant production, modification, orstomization, revenue for each software or softwatated element is
recognized when the Company has VSOE of the féirevaf all of the undelivered elements and appleabiteria have
been met for the delivered elements. When the geraents involve significant production, modificatior
customization, long-term construction-type accauminvolving proportional performance is generatyployed.
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For prepaid service contracts, sales revenue @grézed on a straight-line basis over the ternihefdontract, unless
historical evidence indicates the costs are incuoreother than a straight-line basis. Licensedgenue is recognized
as earned, and no revenue is recognized untihtteption of the license term.

On occasion, agreements will contain milestone8Momwill recognize revenue based on proportionafgrenance. For
these agreements, and depending on the specificm& recognize revenue upon completion of a sultise
milestone, or in proportion to costs incurred ttedaompared with the estimate of total costs tmberred.

Accounts receivable and allowanc@sade accounts receivable are recorded at thedadamount and do not bear
interest. The Company maintains allowances fordeluts, cash discounts, product returns and vaathes items. The
allowance for doubtful accounts and product retisrisased on the best estimate of the amount @igfrle credit losses
in existing accounts receivable and anticipatedssadturns. The Company determines the allowarasesdbon historical
write-off experience by industry and regional eamimdata and historical sales returns. The Compewigws the
allowance for doubtful accounts monthly. The Compdoes not have any significant off-balance-shesdit exposure
related to its customers.

Advertising and merchandisin@hese costs are charged to operations in thecbemoirred, and totaled $368 million in
2015, $407 million in 2014 and $423 million in 2013

Research, development and related experidesse costs are charged to operations in thegerorred and are shown
on a separate line of the Consolidated Statemelntcofme. Research, development and related exptotsésd $1.763
billion in 2015, $1.770 billion in 2014 and $1.7k#lion in 2013. Research and development expersr®&ring basic
scientific research and the application of sciéntifivances in the development of new and imprg@reducts and their
uses, totaled $1.223 billion in 2015, $1.193 hillio 2014 and $1.150 billion in 2013. Related exgesrprimarily
include technical support; internally developedepatosts, which include costs and fees incurrgddpare, file, secure
and maintain patents; amortization of externaliguiied patents and externally acquired in-processarch and
development; and gains/losses associated withicedaporate approved investments in R&D-relatedtwees, such as
equity method effects and impairments.

Internal-use softwareThe Company capitalizes direct costs of servigeslin the development of internal-use
software. Amounts capitalized are amortized oveerod of three to seven years, generally on égéidine basis,
unless another systematic and rational basis ie mguresentative of the software’s use. Amountseperted as a
component of either machinery and equipment ontablgiases within property, plant and equipment.

Environmental:Environmental expenditures relating to existingditions caused by past operations that do not
contribute to current or future revenues are expanReserves for liabilities related to anticipatexhediation costs are
recorded on an undiscounted basis when they abapl® and reasonably estimable, generally no tatar the
completion of feasibility studies, the Company’sreonitment to a plan of action, or approval by retpaagencies.
Environmental expenditures for capital projectg twntribute to current or future operations geliyere capitalized
and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Income taxesThe provision for income taxes is determined usiregasset and liability approach. Under this appino
deferred income taxes represent the expected ftanreonsequences of temporary differences bettveeoarrying
amounts and tax basis of assets and liabilities. Gdmpany records a valuation allowance to redsadeiferred tax
assets when uncertainty regarding their realizgtsikists. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the@my had
valuation allowances of $31 million and $22 million its deferred tax assets, respectively. Thesas® in valuation
allowance at December 31, 2015 relates to cur@qisitions in certain international jurisdictioiie Company
recognizes and measures its uncertain tax positiassd on the rules under ASC 7¥@ome Taxes

Earnings per shareThe difference in the weighted average 3M shamstanding for calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share attributable to 3M common sleédlers is the result of the dilution associatedhwlite Company’s
stock-based compensation plans. Certain optiorstanding under these stock-based compensation ghlaimg the
years 2015, 2014 and 2013 were not included ircdingputation of diluted earnings per share attribietéo 3M
common shareholders because they would not hava Hadtive effect (5.0 million average options 2015, 1.4
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million average options for 2014, and 2.0 millioreeage options for 2013). The computations fordasd diluted
earnings per share for the years ended Decembdet|@d:

Earnings Per Share Computations

(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 2015 2014 2013
Numeratot
Net income attributable to 3M $ 4833 $ 4,956 $ 4,659
Denominator:
Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanéstanding — basic 625.6 649.2 681.9
Dilution associated with the Company’s stock-basetipensation plans 11.6 12.8 11.7
Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanéstanding —dilutec 637.2 662.0 693.6
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwdens — basic $ 772 % 763 $ 6.83
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common siwddehs — diluted $ 758 $ 749 $ 6.72

Stock-based compensatiorhe Company recognizes compensation expense fatoitk-based compensation programs,
which include stock options, restricted stock,niettd stock units, performance shares, and theeaéEmployees’

Stock Purchase Plan (GESPP). Under applicable atngustandards, the fair value of share-based eosgtion is
determined at the grant date and the recogniticdheofelated expense is recorded over the periadhioh the share-
based compensation vests. Refer to Note 15 fotiaddi information.

Comprehensive incomé&otal comprehensive income and the componentsafraulated other comprehensive income
(loss) are presented in the Consolidated Stateafegbdmprehensive Income and the Consolidated Stateof

Changes in Equity. Accumulated other compreherisis@me (loss) is composed of foreign currency fiatitn effects
(including hedges of net investments in internalaompanies), defined benefit pension and postreént plan
adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on alexfaisale debt and equity securities, and urzedligains and losses
on cash flow hedging instruments.

Derivatives and hedging activitieAll derivative instruments within the scope of A8C5,Derivatives and Hedging
are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value Ciimpany uses interest rate swaps, currency anchodity price
swaps, and foreign currency forward and option reat$ to manage risks generally associated wittigarexchange
rate, interest rate and commaodity market volatilitlf hedging instruments that qualify for hedgeagnting are
designated and effective as hedges, in accordaiticévE. generally accepted accounting principlethe underlying
hedged transaction ceases to exist, all chandeg ivalue of the related derivatives that have lmextn settled are
recognized in current earnings. Instruments thatataqualify for hedge accounting are marked tokmawith changes
recognized in current earnings. Cash flows fronivdgive instruments are classified in the statenaémmiash flows in
the same category as the cash flows from the iserct to designated hedge or undesignated (edonbetge
relationships. The Company does not hold or issuvative financial instruments for trading purpssad is not a
party to leveraged derivatives.

Credit risk: The Company is exposed to credit loss in the ewEnbnperformance by counterparties in interett ra
swaps, currency swaps, commodity price swaps, @aweafd and option contracts. However, the Compariglsis
limited to the fair value of the instruments. Then@pany actively monitors its exposure to credk tlwough the use of
credit approvals and credit limits, and by selegtimjor international banks and financial instiias as counterparties.
3M enters into master netting arrangements witint@parties when possible to mitigate credit riskiérivative
transactions. A master netting arrangement mawadiach counterparty to net settle amounts oweddsetva 3M entity
and the counterparty as a result of multiple, sepaderivative transactions. The Company doesmiatipate
nonperformance by any of these counterparties. 88/ehected to present the fair value of derivadisgets and
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liabilities within the Company’s consolidated batarsheet on a gross basis even when derivativeaitiians are
subject to master netting arrangements and maywigequalify for net presentation.

Fair value measurement8M follows ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosureth respect to assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on@urgng basis and nonrecurring basis. Under thedstal, fair value is
defined as the exit price, or the amount that wdnaldeceived to sell an asset or paid to transfiebdity in an orderly
transaction between market participants as of thasurement date. The standard also establishesaadhiy for inputs
used in measuring fair value that maximizes theofisdservable inputs and minimizes the use of sankable inputs
by requiring that the most observable inputs bel wggen available. Observable inputs are inputs atgrérticipants
would use in valuing the asset or liability deveddpased on market data obtained from sourceséndept of the
Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflfecCompany’s assumptions about the factors madaicipants
would use in valuing the asset or liability deveddgased upon the best information available irctfeeimstances. The
hierarchy is broken down into three levels. Levalfduts are quoted prices (unadjusted) in activekata for identical
assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs include qubpeices for similar assets or liabilities in aetimarkets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities imarkets that are not active, and inputs (other thated prices) that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dilyor indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservablputs for the asset or
liability. Categorization within the valuation hachy is based upon the lowest level of input thaignificant to the
fair value measurement.

Acquisitions:The Company accounts for business acquisitionsdnrdance with ASC 80Business Combinations
This standard requires the acquiring entity in sitiess combination to recognize all (and only)assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in the transaction and esthbfithe acquisition-date fair value as the measemeobjective for all
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a bssio@mbination. Certain provisions of this stangassbcribe, among
other things, the determination of acquisition-datevalue of consideration paid in a business loioation (including
contingent consideration) and the exclusion ofga@tion and acquisition-related restructuring ctrst® acquisition
accounting.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsaBd (FASB) issued ASU No. 2014-08eporting Discontinued
Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Comptmehan Entitywhich changed the criteria for determining which
disposals can be presented as discontinued opesatial modified related disclosure requirementss Jtandard has
the impact of reducing the frequency of disposaforted as discontinued operations, by requirirgy sudisposal to
represent a strategic shift that has or will haveagor effect on an entity’s operations and finahoésults. However,
existing provisions that prohibited an entity froeporting a discontinued operation if it had cert@dntinuing cash
flows or involvement with the component after displowere eliminated by this standard. The ASU algmands the
disclosures for discontinued operations and reguisv disclosures related to individually signifitdisposals that do
not qualify as discontinued operations. For 3Ms thEU was effective prospectively beginning Jandar015. This
ASU was applied to the 2015 divestiture informatitiscussed in Note 2 and had no material impacionsolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-B@yvenue from Contracts with Customensd in August 2015 issued
ASU No. 2015-14, which amended ASU No. 2014-0%affective date. The ASU, as amended, providésges
comprehensive model to be used in the accountingef@nue arising from contracts with customers supgersedes
most current revenue recognition guidance, inclgdnaustry-specific guidance. The standard’s stated principle is
that an entity should recognize revenue to depetiansfer of promised goods or services to custsiin an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the erditpects to be entitled in exchange for those goodsgrvices. To
achieve this core principle the ASU includes primris within a five step model that includes ideyitiy the contract
with a customer, identifying the performance oMigias in the contract, determining the transacfidoe, allocating the
transaction price to the performance obligationsl, l@cognizing revenue when (or as) an entity fiadis performance
obligation. The standard also specifies the acéogiibr some costs to obtain or fulfill a contragth a customer and
requires expanded disclosures about revenue rdaamgnihe standard provides for either full retresiive adoption or a
modified retrospective adoption by which it is dpglonly to the most current period presented.3®drthe ASU, as
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amended, is effective January 1, 2018. The Commacyrrently assessing this standard’s impact ofsMnsolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015A012endments to the Consolidation Analygisich changes
guidance related to both the variable interestye(MIE) and voting interest entity (VOE) consoltaa models. With
respect to the VIE model, the standard changeshgmther things, the identification of variableergsts associated
with fees paid to a decision maker or service ptenithe VIE characteristics for a limited partonesimilar entity, and
the primary beneficiary determination. With respiecthe VOE model, the ASU eliminates the presuampthat a
general partner controls a limited partnershipimilar entity unless the presumption can otherdlieevercome. Under
the new guidance, a general partner would largefycansolidate a partnership or similar entity urttie VOE model.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2016, vetrly adoption permitted. 3M does not have sigaiit involvement
with entities subject to consolidation considenasiompacted by the VIE model changes or with lichipartnerships
potentially impacted by the VOE model changes. Assalt, 3M does not expect this ASU to have a natenpact on
the Company’s consolidated results of operatiomkfanancial condition.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-@mplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Castd in August
2015 issued ASU No. 2015-1Bresentation and Subsequent Measurement of Del#rise Costs Associated with Line-
of-Credit ArrangementdJnder ASU 2015-03, debt issuance costs repometieconsolidated balance sheet would be
reflected as a direct deduction from the relatdat dability rather than as an asset. While ASU 2@B addresses costs
related to term debt, ASU No. 2015-15 providesifitation regarding costs to secure revolving liogésredit, which

are, at the outset, not associated with an outstgrmbrrowing. ASU No. 2015-15 provides commentéuat the SEC
staff would not object to an entity deferring amdgenting costs associated with line-of-creditragesnents as an asset
and subsequently amortizing them ratably over ¢hm of the revolving debt arrangement. For 3M, A$&l 2015-03 is
effective January 1, 2016, with early adoption gad. The Company adopted this ASU in the foudhrter of 2015
with retrospective application to prior periods. #sesult, debt issue costs aggregating $26 mifirewviously included
within Other Assets have been reflected as redugiio the balances of Long-Term Debt as of Decer@heR014.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-@ystomer’s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Agament
which requires a customer to determine whetheoadctomputing arrangement contains a software sieelfi the
arrangement contains a software license, the cestamuld account for fees related to the softwienike element in a
manner consistent with accounting for the acqoisitif other acquired software licenses. If therageanent does not
contain a software license, the customer would @atcfor the arrangement as a service contract.rfangement would
contain a software license element if both (1)dhstomer has the contractual right to take possessithe software at
any time during the hosting period without sigrafit penalty and (2) it is feasible for the custotoegither run the
software on its own hardware or contract with asotarty unrelated to the vendor to host the safiwidor 3M, this
ASU is effective January 1, 2016, with early adoptpermitted. The standard provides for adoptitimeeifully
retrospectively or prospectively to arrangementsred into, or materially modified, after the etfee date. The
Company does not expect this ASU to have a matienjgdct on 3M’s consolidated results of operatiand financial
condition.

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities ff@Galculate Net
Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivaleiif)is standard modifies existing disclosure regpuients such that investments
for which the practical expedient is used to measheir fair value at net asset value (NAV) wouddrbmoved from the
fair value hierarchy disclosures. Instead, an gmiuld be required to include those investmenta esconciling item
such that the total fair value amount of investraémtthe fair value hierarchy disclosure is comsistvith the amount on
the balance sheet. Changes were also made tochieerments in a sponsor’s employee benefit plaatatisclosures.
For 3M, this standard is effective January 1, 2@ early adoption permitted. The Company adophési ASU in the
fourth quarter of 2015 with retrospective applioatto prior periods. As a result, Note 11, Pensiot Postretirement
Benefit Plans, reflects the modified disclosureghwespect to applicable plan assets. As this ABlY i@lates to certain
disclosures, it did not impact the Company’s coidsbéd results of operations and financial conditio

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-&implifying the Measurement of Inventomhich modifies existing

requirements regarding measuring inventory atalet of cost or market. Under existing standatus nharket amount
requires consideration of replacement cost, ndizedde value (NRV), and NRV less an approximatabymal profit
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margin. The new ASU replaces market with NRV, defims estimated selling prices in the ordinary s®arf business,
less reasonably predictable costs of completi@patial and transportation. This eliminates the neeldtermine and
consider replacement cost or NRV less an approgiypabrmal profit margin when measuring inventdfgr 3M, this
standard is effective prospectively beginning Janda2017, with early adoption permitted. The Camypis currently
assessing this ASU’s impacts on 3M’s consolidagsdilts of operations and financial condition.

In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 201%i6plifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period
Adjustmentsthat eliminates the requirement for an acquinea business combination to account for measurement
period adjustments retrospectively. Under exissitegndards, an acquirer in a business combinatjworteprovisional
amounts with respect to acquired assets and ligsikvhen their measurements are incomplete dsedand of the
reporting period. Prior to the impact of this ASuh, acquirer is required to adjust provisional antegand the related
impact on earnings) by restating prior period friahstatements during the measurement period wdaomot exceed
one year from the date of acquisition. The new guiég requires that the cumulative impact of a nreasent-period
adjustment (including the impact on prior periobe)recognized in the reporting period in whichdkg@istment is
identified—eliminating the requirement to restatmpperiod financial statements. The new standegires disclosure
of the nature and amount of measurement-periodstadgnts as well as information with respect topbeion of the
adjustments recorded in current-period earningswbald have been recorded in previous reportirripps if the
adjustments to provisional amounts had been rezedras of the acquisition date. The ASU is appiedpectively to
measurement-period adjustments that occur aftezfteetive date. For 3M, this standard is requipeaspectively
beginning January 1, 2016, with early adoption piech The Company adopted this standard with retdpe
measurement-period adjustments beginning in theHauarter of 2015. Additional disclosure, as a&alile, is
included in Note 2, Acquisitions and Divestitures.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxesich requires
entities to present deferred tax assets (DTAs)d&ferred tax liabilities (DTLs), along with any a&td valuation
allowance, as noncurrent in a balance sheet. T8I3 Aliminates current guidance requiring deferee@$ for each
jurisdiction to be presented as a net current asdétbility and a net noncurrent asset or lidpilAs a result, each
jurisdiction would have one net noncurrent DTA dFlDbalance. The ASU does not change the existiggirement
that only permits offsetting DTAs and DTLs withirparticular jurisdiction. For 3M, this standarceifective January 1,
2017, with early adoption permitted. In light o&étprocess simplification provided by this ASU, @empany adopted
this standard in the fourth quarter of 2015 wittnagpective application to prior periods. As a teshe December 31,
2014 balances of DTAs and DTLs previously repovtede impacted as follows:

December 31, 2014

(Millions) Previously Reported Impact As Adopted

Prepaid expenses and other (within other curresgtas $ 595 $ 169 $ 764
Other current tax assets (within other currentta}se 444 (444) —
Deferred tax assets (within other assets) 889 241 1,130
Deferred tax liabilities (within other current liéibes) 34 (34) —

In conjunction with the adoption of this ASU, 3Mctassified $169 million of remaining other currést assets to
prepaid expenses and other to conform to the 26dgeptation.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016R¥cognition and Measurement of Financial AssetsFandncial
Liabilities, which revises the accounting related to (1) thesification and measurement of investments iritgqu
securities and (2) the presentation of certainvaine changes for financial liabilities measuretha value. The ASU
also amends certain disclosure requirements assdaiath the fair value of financial instrument$i€Tnew guidance
requires the fair value measurement of investmienggjuity securities and other ownership intergstmn entity,
including investments in partnerships, unincorpadigbint ventures and limited liability companiesl{ectively, equity
securities) that do not result in consolidation arelnot accounted for under the equity methodti&nwill need to
measure these investments and recognize chanégsvalue in net income. Entities will no longes hble to recognize
unrealized holding gains and losses on equity #@uthey classify under current guidance as abl for sale in other
comprehensive income (OCI). They also will no lanige able to use the cost method of accountingdoity securities
that do not have readily determinable fair valliestead, for these types of equity investmentsdbatot otherwise
qualify for the net asset value practical expedientities will be permitted to elect a practicébpiexception and

63



measure the investment at cost less impairmentgslosnus observable price changes (in orderlysaations). The
ASU also establishes an incremental recognitiondasclosure requirement related to the presentatidair value
changes of financial liabilities for which the fa@mlue option (FVO) has been elected. Under thidance, an entity
would be required to separately present in OCpitr¢ion of the total fair value change attributatdénstrument-
specific credit risk as opposed to reflecting thére amount in earnings. For derivative liabiti#r which the FVO has
been elected, however, any changes in fair valuiatable to instrument-specific credit risk wowdntinue to be
presented in net income, which is consistent wittient guidance. For 3M, this standard is effeckigginning January
1, 2018 via a cumulative-effect adjustment to beigig retained earnings, except for guidance redativequity
securities without readily determinable fair valudsich is applied prospectively. The Company isently assessing
this ASU’s impacts on 3M'’s consolidated result®pérations and financial condition.

NOTE 2. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions:

3M makes acquisitions of certain businesses frome to time that are aligned with its strategic mbt@ith respect to,
among other factors, growth markets and adjacerdymt lines or technologies.

The impact on the consolidated balance sheet giuhehase price allocations related to 2015 adipisi and assigned
weighted-average intangible asset lives, includidgistments relative to other acquisitions witthie measurement
period, follows. The allocation of purchase consatien related to the August 2015 Capital Safety Bolypore
Separations Media acquisitions is considered pieding, primarily with respect to certain tax-relhte@ssets and
liabilities. 3M expects to finalize the allocatiohpurchase price within the one year measuremenbg following
these acquisitions. Adjustments to preliminaryedkions primarily related to the identification araluation of certain
indefinite-lived intangible assets (further diseg®elow). The change to provisional amounts redutt an immaterial
impact to results of operations in the fourth geladf 2015, a portion of which relates to earlisaders in the
measurement period.

2015 Acquisition Activity

Finite-Lived
Intangible-
Asset
Weighted-
(Millions) Capital Polypore Average
Asset (Liability) Safety Separations Media Other Total Lives (Years)
Accounts receivable $ 66 $ 30 $ 7 $ 103
Inventory 63 35 4 102
Other current assets 10 1 1 12
Property, plant, and equipment 36 128 7 171
Purchased finite-lived intangible assets:
Customer related intangible assets 445 270 40 755 16
Patents 44 11 7 62 7
Other technology-based intangible assets 85 42 1 128 7
Definite-lived tradenames 26 6 1 33 16
Other amortizable intangible assets — — 2 2 4
Purchased indefinite-lived intangible assets 520 — — 520
Purchased goodwill 1,764 636 95 2,495
Accounts payable and other liabilities, net of othe
assets (105 (222 (5) (232,
Interest bearing debt (766) — — (766)
Deferred tax asset/(liability) (464 — (7) (471
Net assets acquire $ 1,724 $ 1,037 $ 153 $ 2,914
Supplemental information:
Cash paid $ 1,758 $ 1,037 $ 154 $ 2,949
Less: Cash acquired 34 — 1 35
Cash paid, net of cash acquired $ 1,724 $ 1,037 $ 153 $ 2,914
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3M completed one acquisition (Treo Solutions, LIdDying 2014, the impact of which on the consoliddialance sheet
was not considered material. Separately, as disduesNote 6, during 2014, 3M (via Sumitomo 3M Lied) purchased
Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd.’s 25 percenenesst in 3M’s consolidated Sumitomo 3M Limited Sdizsy for 90
billion Japanese Yen. Because 3M already had aalbng interest in this consolidated subsidiahjsttransaction was
separately recorded as a financing activity indfa¢ement of cash flows.

There were no acquisitions that closed during 2013.

Goodwill resulting from business combinations ig&ly attributable to the existing workforce of thequired
businesses and synergies expected to arise afteradiguisition of these businesses. Pro forma métion related to
acquisitions was not included because the impatheCompany’s consolidated results of operatioas mot
considered to be material.

In addition to business combinations, 3M periodycatquires certain tangible and/or intangible tsaed purchases
interests in certain enterprises that do not otlserqualify for accounting as business combinatidihgse transactions
are largely reflected as additional asset purchaddnvestment activity.

2015 acquisitions:

In March 2015, 3M (Health Care Business) purchadleaf the outstanding shares of Ivera Medical Corp
headquartered in San Diego, California. Ivera Mald@orp. is a manufacturer of health care prodiasdisinfect and
protect devices used for access into a patiendsddtream. In addition, in the first quarter of 203M (Industrial
Business) purchased the remaining interest inradoequity method investment for an immaterial antou

In August 2015, 3M (Safety and Graphics Businesguied all of the outstanding shares of Capitd¢&aGroup
S.A.R.L., with operating headquarters in Bloomimgt®Minnesota, from KKR & Co. L.P. for $1.7 billiongt of cash
acquired. The net assets acquired included thergtgn of $0.8 billion of debt. Capital Safety isemding global
provider of fall protection equipment.

In August 2015, 3M (Industrial Business) acquirleel assets and liabilities associated with Polypate¥national, Inc.’s
Separations Media business, headquartered in Wighp@8ermany, for $1.0 billion. Polypore’s Sepavat Media
business is a leading provider of microporous meamés and modules for filtration in the life sciendadustrial and
specialty segments.

Purchased identifiable finite-lived intangible asselated to acquisition activity in 2015 totafH 0 billion. The
associated finite-lived intangible assets acquineZD15 will be amortized on a systematic and ratidasis (generally
straight line) over a weighted-average life of Bans (lives ranging from two to 20 years). Indédidived intangible
assets of $520 million relate to certain tradenaasssciated with the Capital Safety acquisitioncltiiave been in
existence for over 55 years, have a history ofifeatharket-share positions, have been and aredatkto be
continuously renewed, and the associated proddiethich are expected to generate cash flows forf@\an indefinite
period of time. Acquired in-process research anegld@ment and identifiable intangible assets forchIsignificant
assumed renewals or extensions of underlying agrargts impacted the determination of their uséfaklwere not
material.

2014 acquisitions:

During 2014, 3M completed one business combinalitwe. purchase price paid for this business comioimgbet of
cash acquired) and the impact of other matter$ ¢hetng 2014 aggregated to $94 million.

In April 2014, 3M (Health Care Business) purchaakaf the outstanding equity interests of Treoufiohs LLC,

headquartered in Troy, New York. Treo Solutions Lik@ provider of data analytics and businesslig&ice to
healthcare payers and providers.
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Purchased identifiable finite-lived intangible asselated to acquisition activity in 2014 tota&®# million. The
associated finite-lived intangible assets acquineZD14 will be amortized on a systematic and ratidasis (generally
straight line) over a weighted-average life of wars (lives ranging from three to 10 years). Aceglin-process
research and development and identifiable intaegikets for which significant assumed renewadxi@nsions of
underlying arrangements impacted the determinatigheir useful lives were not material.

Divestitures:

3M may divest certain businesses from time to tiraged upon review of the Company’s portfolio coasity, among
other items, factors relative to the extent oftsggec and technological alignment and optimizatibcapital

deployment, in addition to considering if sellifgtbusinesses results in the greatest value ondatithe Company and
for shareholders.

In January 2015, 3M (Electronics and Energy Businesmpleted the sale of its global Static Corlbidiness to Desco
Industries Inc., based in Chino, California. 20as of this business were $46 million. This tratisa was not
considered material.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, 3M (Safety and GieplBusiness) entered into agreements with Onet¥{gairtners
Capital Advisors L.P. (OEP) to sell the assetsMfs3library systems business. The sales of the INArherican
business and the majority of the business outditkoth America closed in October and November 20&5pectively.
The sale of the remainder of the library systenmnmss is expected to close in the first quart&0df6. In December
2015, 3M (Safety and Graphics Business) also caexpline sale of Faab Fabricauto, a wholly-ownedisiigry of 3M,
to Hills Numberplates Limited. The library systemssiness, part of the Traffic Safety and Securityidibn, delivers
circulation management solutions to library custowith on-premise hardware and software, maintemand service,
and an emerging cloud-based digital lending platfdfaab Fabricauto, also part of the Traffic Safetgt Security
Division, is a leading French manufacturer of lisemplates and signage solutions. The aggregatgcaséeds relative
to the 2015 global library systems and Faab Fabidcdivestiture transactions was $104 million. Twmpany
recorded a net pre-tax gain of $40 million (appntedely $10 million after tax) in 2015 as a resilthe sale and any
adjustment of carrying value.

In January 2016, 3M (Industrial Business Groupgrst into an agreement to sell to Innovative Chehfcoducts
Group, a portfolio company of Audax Private Equttye assets of 3M’s pressurized polyurethane fodtmesives
business (formerly known as Polyfoam). This busines provider of pressurized polyurethane foaheaile
formulations and systems into the residential mgficommercial roofing and insulation and indusfeam segments in
the United States with annual sales of approxirgai20 million. The transaction is expected to clisthe first quarter
of 2016, subject to customary close conditions.

In June 2013, 3M (Consumer Business) completeddleeof its Scientific Anglers and Ross Reels lrsses to The
Orvis Company, Inc. based in Manchester, Vermohis Transaction was not considered material

The aggregate operating income of these busingsdaded in the Company’s operating results forghgods

presented and the amounts of major assets anltitiéesbdf any associated disposal groups classttield-for-sale as
of December 31, 2015 were not material.

66



NOTE 3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Purchased goodwill from acquisitions totaled $alkon in 2015, $636 million of which is deductibfer tax purposes.
Purchased goodwill from acquisitions totaled $68iom in 2014, none of which is deductible for tgerposes. The
amounts in the “Translation and other” column ia thllowing table primarily relate to changes imefign currency
exchange rates. The goodwill balance by businegaeet follows:

Goodwill

Dec. 31, 2014 2014 Dec. 31, 2015 2015 Dec. 31,

2013 acquisition translation 2014 acquisition translation 2015

(Millions) Balance activity and other  Balance activity and other  Balance
Industrial $2,166 $ — $ (129 $2,037 $ 637 $ (106 $ 2,568
Safety and Graphics 1,740 — (90) 1,650 1,764 (72) 3,342
Health Care 1,596 65 (72) 1,589 94 (59, 1,624
Electronics and Energy 1,612 — (53) 1,559 — (44) 1,515
Consumer 231 — (16) 215 — (15 200
Total Company 345 $ 65 $ (360) $7,050 $ 2,495 $ (296) $9,249

As described in Note 16, effective in the third gemof 2015, within the Health Care business sedntee Company
formed the Oral Care Solutions Division, which caondadl the former 3M ESPE and 3M Unitek divisionst &oy
product moves that resulted in reporting unit clesnghe Company applied the relative fair valuehmeto determine
the impact on goodwill of the associated reportings. During the third quarter of 2015, the Compaompleted its
assessment of any potential goodwill impairmentrégorting units impacted by this new structure dettrmined that
no impairment existed. The Company also compldtedrinual goodwill impairment test in the fourttager of 2015
for all reporting units and determined that no imp&nt existed. In addition, the Company had noaimpents of
goodwill in prior years.

Acquired Intangible Assets
For 2015, the intangible assets (excluding googladhuired through business combinations incretise=dross

carrying amount. Balances are also impacted byggsim foreign currency exchange rates. The gasging amount
and accumulated amortization of acquired intangiistgets as of December 31, follow:

(Millions) 2015 2014
Customer related intangible assets $ 1973 $ 1,348
Patents 616 581
Other technology-based intangible assets 525 407
Definite-lived tradenames 421 401
Other amortizable intangible assets 216 221
Total gross carrying amount $ 3,751 $ 2,958
Accumulated amortization — customer related (668) (597)
Accumulated amortization — patents (481 472
Accumulated amortization — other technology based (252) (215)
Accumulated amortization — definite-lived tradename (215 (195
Accumulated amortization — other (169) (167)
Total accumulated amortization $ (1,785 $ (1,646
Total finite-lived intangible assets — net $ 1,966 $ 1,312
Non-amortizable intangible assets (primarily tradensime 635 123
Total intangible assets — net $ 2,601 $ 1,435
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Certain tradenames acquired by 3M are not amortieeduse they have been in existence for over &S ykave a
history of leading-market share positions, haventse® are intended to be continuously renewedftendssociated
products of which are expected to generate casisffor 3M for an indefinite period of time.

Amortization expense for the years ended DecembéolBws:

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013
Amortization expense $ 229 $ 228 $ 236

Expected amortization expense for acquired amdntgzatangible assets recorded as of December®H5 llows:

After
(Millions) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020
Amortization expense $ 252 $ 226 $ 205 $ 192 $ 183 $ 908

The preceding expected amortization expense istamage. Actual amounts of amortization expense ditigr from
estimated amounts due to additional intangibletassguisitions, changes in foreign currency excleanages,
impairment of intangible assets, accelerated amaiitin of intangible assets and other events. 3pérses the costs
incurred to renew or extend the term of intangédseets.

NOTE 4. Restructuring Actions

2015 Restructuring Actions:

During the fourth quarter of 2015, management aggmtaand committed to undertake certain restruauaictions
primarily focused on structural overhead, largelyie U.S. and slower-growing markets, with paficemphasis on
Europe, Middle East, and Africa (EMEA) and Latin Arica. This impacted approximately 1,700 positivesldwide
and resulted in a fourth-quarter 2015 pre-tax ohafgb114 million.

Components of these restructuring charges are sumaday business segment as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2015

(Millions) Employee-Related Asset-Related Total
Industrial $ 30 % 12 $ 42
Safety and Graphics 11 — 11
Health Care 9 — 9
Electronics and Energy 8 4 12
Consumer 3 — 3
Corporate and Unallocated 37 — 37
Total Expense $ 98 % 16 $ 114

The preceding restructuring charges were recomtéukiincome statement as follows:

(Millions) 2015

Cost of sales 40

Selling, general and administrative expenses 62

Research, development and related expenses 12
Total $ 114
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Components of these restructuring actions, inclydessh and non-cash impacts, follow:

Year ended December 31, 2015

(Millions) Employee-Related Asset-Related Total
Expense incurred $ 98 $ 16 $ 114
Non-cash changes (8) (16) (24)
Cash payments 27 — 27
Accrued 2015 restructuring action balances as of
December 31, 2015 $ 63 $ — 3 63

Non-cash changes include certain pension settlenaamt special termination benefits recorded inusgtpension and
postretirement benefits and accelerated deprecaggriting from the cessation of use of certaigiived assets.
Remaining activities related to the restructuring expected to be completed in 2016.
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NOTE 5. Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Accounts payable (included as a separate lineiiteifmre Consolidated Balance Sheet) includes dpafysble on
demand of $79 million at December 31, 2015, andhiilon at December 31, 2014. Accumulated deprémiefor

capital leases totaled $98 million and $87 millaanof December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectivelgitiddal
supplemental balance sheet information is providdte table that follows.

(Millions) 2015 2014
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses and other 1,081 764
Derivative assets-current 211 182
Insurance related receivables, prepaid expensesthad 106 77
Total other current assets 1,398 1,023
Investments
Equity method 56 58
Cost method 59 41
Other investments 2 3
Total investments 117 102
Property, plant and equipment - at cost
Land 354 368
Buildings and leasehold improvements 7,120 6,943
Machinery and equipment 14,743 14,684
Construction in progress 723 679
Capital leases 158 167
Gross property, plant and equipment 23,098 22,841
Accumulated depreciation (14,583) (14,352)
Property, plant and equipment - net 8,515 8,489
Other assets
Deferred income taxes 510 1,130
Insurance related receivables and other 49 89
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies 241 245
Other 253 305
Total other assets 1,053 1,769
Other current liabilities
Accrued trade payables 566 588
Deferred income 518 541
Derivative liabilities 65 39
Dividends payable — 648
Employee benefits and withholdings 148 172
Contingent liability claims and other 147 157
Property and other taxes 89 90
Pension and postretirement benefits 60 60
Other 811 644
Total other current liabilities 2,404 2,884
Other liabilities
Long term income taxes payable 154 519
Employee benefits 254 262
Contingent liability claims and other 295 300
Capital lease obligations 46 59
Deferred income 19 21
Deferred income taxes 551 141
Other 261 253
Total other liabilities 1,580 1,555
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NOTE 6. Supplemental Equity and Comprehensive Iname Information

Common stock ($.01 par value per share) of 3.®hikhares is authorized, with 944,033,056 shamsed. Treasury
stock is reported at cost, with 334,702,932 shar&ecember 31, 2015, 308,898,462 shares at Decedhp2014, and
280,736,817 shares at December 31, 2013. Prefstwek, without par value, of 10 million sharesushmrized but
unissued.

In 2015, 3M’s Board of Directors declared a secdhitlgd, and fourth quarter dividend of $1.025 pearg, which
resulted in total year 2015 declared dividends30%¥5 per share. In December 2014, 3M’s Board oé@ors declared
a first-quarter 2015 dividend of $1.025 per shaed in March 2015), which when added to secoridi #nd fourth
guarter 2014 declared dividends of $0.855 per shasalted in total year 2014 declared dividend$3569 per share. In
December 2013, 3M’s Board of Directors declarenlst-fluarter 2014 dividend of $0.855 per shared i

March 2014). This resulted in total year 2013 delaividends of $3.395 per share.

Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incomé @ss) Attributable to 3M by Component

Defined Benefit Debtand Cash Flow Accumulated

Pension and Equity Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement Securities, Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment  Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2012, net of tax: $ 230% (4,955 $ 2% (23) $ (4,750
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (462 1,361 — (98) 801
Amounts reclassified out — 569 — 122 691
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax (462 1,930 — 24 1,492
Tax effect 44 (690) — (9) (655)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (418 1,240 — 15 837
Balance at December 31, 2013, net of tax: $ (188 (3, 715)% 2% 8% (3913
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (856 (2,638) 2 171 (3,321)
Amounts reclassified out — 360 1 (4) 357
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax (856 (2,278) 3 167 (2,964)
Tax effect (92) 716 Q) (60) 563
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (948 (1,562) 2 107 (2,401)
Impact from purchase of subsidiary shares 41 (16) — — 25
Balance at December 31, 2014, net of tax $ (1,095% (5,293)% — $ 9 $ (6,289)
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (447 367 — 212 132
Amounts reclassified out — 537 — (174 363
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax (447 904 — 38 495
Tax effect (137 (415 — (13 (565
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (584 489 — 25 (70)
Balance at December 31, 2015, net of tax: $ (16798 (4,804 $ — $ 124 $ (6,359

Income taxes are not provided for foreign tranghatielating to permanent investments in internaticubsidiaries, but
tax effects within cumulative translation does irt# impacts from items such as net investment hedgeactions.
Reclassification adjustments are made to avoid l@ozduinting in comprehensive income items thaiadse recorded as
part of net income.
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Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehesive Income Attributable to 3M

Amounts Reclassified from
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

(Millions) Yearended Yearended Yearended
Details about Accumulated Other DecembeBl, December3l, December31, Location on Income
Comprehensive Income Components 2015 2014 2013 Statement

Gains (losses) associated with, defined benefisiparand
postretirement plans amortization

Transition asset $ 1 $ 1 3 1 See Note 11
Prior service benefit 79 59 77 See Note 11
Net actuarial loss (626) (420) (647) See Note 11
Curtailments/Settlements 9 — — See Note 11
Total before tax (537) (360) (569)
Tax effect 176 122 197 Provision for income taxes
Net of ta $ (361) $ (238) $ (372)

Debt and equity security gains (losses)
Selling, general and

Sales or impairments of securities $ — % @ $ — administrative expenses
Total before tax — 1) —
Tax effect — — — Provision for income taxes
Net of ta $ — % @ $ —
Cash flow hedging instruments gains (losses)
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 178 $ 3 % (11 Cost of sales
Foreign currency forward contracts — — (108) Interest expense
Commodity price swap contracts ) 2 (2) Cost of sales
Interest rate swap contracts (2) (1) (1) Interest expense
Total before tax 174 4 (122
Tax effect (63) (1) 45  Provision for income taxes
Net of tay $ 111 $ 3 3 7,
Total reclassifications for the period, net of tax $ (250) $ (236) $ (449)

Purchase and Sale of Subsidiary Shares

On September 1, 2014, 3M (via Sumitomo 3M Limitpdjchased Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd.'s 2&cpnt
interest in 3M’s consolidated Sumitomo 3M Limitagbsidiary for 90 billion Japanese Yen. Upon conipietbf the
transaction, 3M owned 100 percent of Sumitomo 3Witeéd. This transaction was recorded as a finanaatiyity
(Purchase of noncontrolling interest) in the statehof cash flows.

In April 2014, 3M purchased the remaining noncollitrg interest in a consolidated 3M subsidiary &orimmaterial
amount, which was classified as a financing agtifturchase of noncontrolling interest) in the aigsited statement
of cash flows.

The following table summarizes the effects of th2@84 transactions on equity attributable to 3M @any
shareholders:

Year ended
(Millions) December 31, 2014
Net income attributable to 3| $ 4,956
Impact of purchase of subsidiary shares (409)
Change in 3M Company shareholders’ equity frommsime
attributable to 3M and impact of purchase of subsydshares $ 4,547

In March 2013, 3M sold shares in 3M India Limitedsubsidiary of the Company, in return for $8 roiili The
noncontrolling interest shares of this subsidiaaglé on a public exchange in India. This sale afehcomplied with an
amendment to Indian securities regulations thatired 3M India Limited, as a listed company, toiagk a minimum
public shareholding of at least 25 percent. Assaltef this transaction, 3M’s ownership in 3M ladiimited was
reduced from 76 percent to 75 percent. The $8anilteceived in the first quarter of 2013 was clesias other
financing activity in the consolidated statementash flows. Because the Company retained its @inty interest, the
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sale resulted in an increase in 3M Company shadehislequity of $7 million and an increase in namteolling interest
of $1 million.

NOTE 7. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013

Cash income tax payments, net of refunds $ 233 $ 1968 $ 1,803
Cash interest payments 134 178 169
Capitalized interest 13 15 21

Cash interest payments include interest paid ohal&dh capital lease balances, including net intgr@gments/receipts
related to accreted debt discounts/premiums, patyofetebt issue costs, as well as net interest paysireceipts
associated with interest rate swap contracts.

Individual amounts in the Consolidated Statemer@adh Flows exclude the impacts of acquisitionggstitures and
exchange rate impacts, which are presented selyarate

Transactions related to investing and financingvaigts with significant non-cash components ardéadlsws:

< During the fourth quarter of 2014, 3M sold and &iback, under a capital lease, certain recentigtcocted
machinery and equipment in return for a municipaid with the City of Nevada, Missouri valued at
approximately $15 million as of the transactionedat

< During the third quarter of 2013, 3M sold its eguiiterest in a non-strategic investment in excleafiog a note
receivable of approximately $24 million, which isnsidered non-cash investing activity. As a restithis
transaction, in the third quarter of 2013, 3M relawt a pre-tax gain of $18 million in its Health E&usiness
segment. In October 2013, cash was received fandbereceivable and is reflected in other investiativity
in the consolidated statement of cash flows foryder ended December 31, 2013.

«  During the second quarter of 2013, the Companyisifiumo 3M Limited subsidiary moved its administvati
headquarters to a new leased location and solther site under an installment sale arrangenfena
result, at the time of the closing of the sale $eantion, the Company received certain cash prodg@eedaded in
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equiprretite consolidated statement of cash flows) acdnded a
note receivable (due in quarterly installments tigitothe first quarter of 2016) of $78 million arefetred
profit of $49 million (both based on the foreigrrm@ncy exchange rate at the time of closing). Ramgi
quarterly installments are due through the firsrtpr of 2016 and will be included in other invegtactivities
in the consolidated statement of cash flows. Deteprofit is reduced and recognized into income in
connection with such quarterly installments.

In addition, as discussed in Note 6, in the fogdhrter of 2014, 3M’s Board of Directors declarditst-quarter 2015
dividend of $1.025 per share (paid in March 20%8)ich reduced 3M’s stockholders equity and incrdast@er current
liabilities as of December 2014 by $648 million the fourth quarter of 2013, 3M’s Board of Directaleclared a first-
guarter 2014 dividend of $0.855 per share (paldanch 2014). This reduced 3M’s stockholders eqaity increased
other current liabilities as of December 31, 20¢3567 million.

NOTE 8. Income Taxes

Income Before Income Taxes

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013

United States $ 4399 $ 3815 $ 3,194

International 2,424 3,211 3,368
Total $ 6,823 $ 7,026 $ 6,562
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Provision for Income Taxes

(Millions)

2014 2013
Currently payable
Federal $ 1338 $ 1,103 $ 948
State 101 108 91
International 566 1,008 901
Deferred
Federal (55) (171) (123)
State 6 9 (2)
International 26 (11) 26
Total $ 1982 $ 2028 $ 1,841
Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
(Millions) 2015 2014
Deferred tax assets:
Accruals not currently deductible
Employee benefit costs $ 175 $ 148
Product and other claims 146 152
Miscellaneous accruals 114 137
Pension costs 1,120 1,312
Stock-based compensation 305 290
Net operating/capital loss carryforwards 109 175
Foreign tax credits 25 360
Inventory 46 52
Other — 30
Gross deferred tax assets 2,040 2,656
Valuation allowance (31) (22
Total deferred tax assets $ 2,009 $ 2,634
Deferred tax liabilities:
Product and other insurance receivables $ (28, $ (31
Accelerated depreciation (736) (804)
Intangible amortization (1,017 (719
Currency translation (199) (91)
Other (70) —
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (2,050) $ (1,645)
Net deferred tax assets (liabiliti $ 41) $ 989

The net deferred tax assets are included as comfwagOther Assets and Other Liabilities withie tBonsolidated
Balance Sheet. See Note 5 “Supplemental Balancet ffermation” for further details.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had tax effecperating losses, capital losses, and tax aradiyovers for
federal (approximately $31 million), state (approately $2 million), and international (approximgt&i76 million),
with all amounts before valuation allowances. Tédefal tax attribute carryovers will expire aftértd 20 years, the
state after five to 10 years, and the majorityndéiinational after four years with the remainingginational expiring in
one year or with an indefinite carryover periodeTax attributes being carried over arise as cejtaisdictions may

have tax losses or may have inabilities to utitieeain losses without the same type of taxablernme As of

December 31, 2015, the Company has provided $3ibmdf valuation allowance against certain of theleferred tax
assets based on management's determination fkahdre-likely-than-not that the tax benefits rethto these assets

will not be realized.
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Reconciliation of Effective Income Tax Rate

2015 2014 2013
Statutory U.S. tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes - net of federal benefit 1.1 0.9 0.9
International income taxes - net (3.8 (5.8 (6.3
U.S. research and development credit (0.5) (0.4) (0.7)
Reserves for tax contingencies (1.0 0.6 1.2
Domestic Manufacturer’s deduction (1.8) (1.3) (1.6)
All other - net 0.1 (0.1 (0.4

Effective worldwide tax rate 29.1% 28.9% 28.1%

The effective tax rate for 2015 was 29.1 percemmared to 28.9 percent in 2014, an increase gié.@entage points,
impacted by several factors. Factors which incrédise Company’s effective tax rate included intéomal taxes,
which were impacted by changes in foreign currelatgs and changes to the geographic mix of incosfer® taxes,
and other items. Combined, these factors increme@ompany’s effective tax rate by 2.4 percentagpts. This
increase was partially offset by a 2.2 percentagetglecrease, which related to the remeasurenoéBtdl’s uncertain
tax positions, including the restoration of taxibam certain assets for which depreciation deduastivere previously
limited, and increases in the domestic manufactideduction and U.S. research and developmenit dredefits.

The effective tax rate for 2014 was 28.9 percemmared to 28.1 percent in 2013, an increase giér@entage points,
impacted by many factors. Factors which increakedCiompany’s effective tax rate included a one-fimernational
tax impact related to the establishment of the Bugmain center of expertise in Europe, decreas&l tésearch and
development credit in 2014 compared to 2013 duedoyears inclusion as a result of the reinstaterire2013,
decreased domestic manufacturer’s deduction, dret dems. Combined, these factors increased tinep@oy’s
effective tax rate by 1.6 percentage points. Tiisdase was partially offset by a 0.8 percentage pdecrease, which
related to both lower 3M income tax reserves fat2@hen compared to 2013 and international taxesrasult of
changes to the geographic mix of income beforestaxe

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction, and various states and forgigisdictions. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.a federal, state and local, or non-U.S. incéemesxaminations
by tax authorities for years before 2005.

The IRS has completed its field examination of@wmpany’s U.S. federal income tax returns for tearg 2005
through 2013. The Company protested certain IR&ipos within these tax years and entered intcatthainistrative
appeals process with the IRS. In December 2012Ztmpany received a statutory notice of deficieforythe 2006
year. The Company filed a petition in Tax Courthia first quarter of 2013 relating to the 2006 yaar. Currently, the
Company is under examination by the IRS for its.@efleral income tax returns for the years 2014201b. It is
anticipated that the IRS will complete its examimaif the Company for 2014 by the end of the finsarter of 2016
and for 2015 by the end of the first quarter of 20As of December 31, 2015, the IRS has not prapasg significant
adjustments to the Company’s tax positions for Witike Company is not adequately reserved.

Payments relating to other proposed assessmesitsgafiom the 2005 through 2015 examinations mayeanade
until a final agreement is reached between the @Gmypand the IRS on such assessments or upon adswution
resulting from the administrative appeals procegadicial action. In addition to the U.S. fedeesdamination, there is
also audit activity in several U.S. state and fgmgurisdictions.

3M anticipates changes to the Company’s uncergipositions due to the closing and resolutionuafitissues for
various audit years mentioned above and closustatidites. The Company is not currently able toamalsly estimate
the amount by which the liability for unrecognizeg benefits will increase or decrease during #w 42 months as a
result of the ongoing income tax authority examora.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafngross unrecognized tax benefits (UTB) is akofas:

Federal, State and Foreign Tax

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013

Gross UTB Balance at January 1 $ 583 $ 659 $ 528
Additions based on tax positions related to theesuryear 77 201 97
Additions for tax positions of prior years 140 30 158
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (399 (74 (29
Settlements (4) (154) a7
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statutenotditions (16) (79 (78
Gross UTB Balance at December 31 $ 381 $ 583 $ 659
Net UTB impacting the effective tax rate at Decer 31 $ 369 $ 265 $ 262

The total amount of UTB, if recognized, would afféwe effective tax rate by $369 million as of Dexxer 31, 2015,
$265 million as of December 31, 2014, and $262Zionilas of December 31, 2013. The ending net UTBltefrom
adjusting the gross balance for items such as Bed&tate, and non-U.S. deferred items, interedtpemalties, and
deductible taxes. The net UTB is included as coreptmsof Other Assets, Accrued Income Taxes, andrQilabilities
within the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits in tax rgpeThe
Company recognized in the consolidated statemeinicome on a gross basis approximately $2 millibexpense, $14
million of benefit, and $22 million of expense iA15, 2014, and 2013, respectively. The amounttef@st and
penalties recognized may be an expense or bengfitalnew or remeasured unrecognized tax benefitals. At
December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014, accnteest and penalties in the consolidated balameet ®n a gross
basis were $45 million and $44 million, respectyvéhcluded in these interest and penalty amoumsrgerest and
penalties related to tax positions for which thitmate deductibility is highly certain but for wii¢here is uncertainty
about the timing of such deductibility. Becausehaf impact of deferred tax accounting, other tierest and
penalties, the disallowance of the shorter dedilityilperiod would not affect the annual effectitax rate but would
accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing aityroran earlier period.

As a result of certain employment commitments aaqital investments made by 3M, income from certain
manufacturing activities in the following countrisssubject to reduced tax rates or, in some césegempt from tax
for years through the following: Taiwan (2015), @4i(2016), Korea (2018), Brazil (2023), Switzerl§@a@24), and
Singapore (2025). The income tax benefits attribletéo the tax status of these subsidiaries ammatstd to be $114
million (18 cents per diluted share) in 2015, $98iom (15 cents per diluted share) in 2014, and #8llion (13 cents
per diluted share) in 2013.

The Company has not provided deferred taxes omitteal earnings attributable to international comipa that have
been considered to be reinvested indefinitely, Withexception of an acquired entity. These eamibfate to ongoing
operations and were approximately $12 billion aBe€¢ember 31, 2015. Because of the availability &. foreign tax
credits, the multiple avenues in which to repagritie earnings to minimize tax cost, and becaulsrga portion of these
earnings are not liquid, it is not practical toetetine the income tax liability that would be palgaib such earnings
were not reinvested indefinitely.
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NOTE 9. Marketable Securities

The Company invests in agency securities, corpaetarities, asset-backed securities and otherisesuThe
following is a summary of amounts recorded on tbasdlidated Balance Sheet for marketable secufitigsent and
non-current).

December 31, December 31,

(Millions) 2015 2014
U.S. government agency securities $ — 3 108
Foreign government agency securities 10 95
Corporate debt securities 10 619
Commercial paper 12 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 26 41
U.S. treasury securities — 38
U.S. municipal securities 3 —
Asset-backed securities:

Automobile loan related 26 282

Credit card related 10 162

Equipment lease related 2 48

Other 19 46
Asset-backed securities total 57 538
Current marketable securities $ 118 $ 1,439
U.S. municipal securities $ 9 $ 15
Non-current marketable securities $ 9 $ 15
Total marketable securities $ 127  $ 1,454

Classification of marketable securities as curogmton-current is based on the nature of the sesiand availability
for use in current operations. At December 31, 24X 2014, gross unrealized gains and/or lossestég) were not
material. Refer to Note 6 for a table that provittesnet realized gains (losses) related to salespairments of debt
and equity securities, which includes marketabteigges. The gross amounts of the realized gairesses were not
material. Cost of securities sold use the firsfinst out (FIFO) method. Since these marketabteigtes are classified
as available-for-sale securities, changes in faline will flow through other comprehensive incométh amounts
reclassified out of other comprehensive income @#mings upon sale or “other-than-temporary” impant.

3M reviews impairments associated with its marketalcurities in accordance with the measuremedague
provided by ASC 320investments-Debt and Equity Securitiwhen determining the classification of the impant as
“temporary” or “other-than-temporary”. A temporargpairment charge results in an unrealized lossgoscorded in
the other comprehensive income component of shitefsd equity. Such an unrealized loss does naigedhet income
attributable to 3M for the applicable accountingipe because the loss is not viewed as other-temporary. The
factors evaluated to differentiate between tempoaad other-than-temporary include the projectedréucash flows,
credit ratings actions, and assessment of thetajadlity of the underlying collateral, as well@tber factors.

77



The balance at December 31, 2015, for marketabigrises by contractual maturity are shown belowtual maturities
may differ from contractual maturities becauseisiseiers of the securities may have the right tpgyebligations
without prepayment penalties.

(Millions) December 31, 2015

Due in one year or less $ 52
Due after one year through five years 74
Due after five years through ten years 1
Due after ten years —
Total marketable securities $ 127

3M has a diversified marketable securities porfolf $127 million as of December 31, 2015. Withirstportfolio,
current asset-backed securities (estimated fairevaf $57 million) primarily include interests intamobile loans,
credit cards and equipment leases. 3M’s investpelity allows investments in asset-backed secsritigh minimum
credit ratings of Aa2 by Moody’s Investors ServigeAA by Standard & Poor’s or Fitch Ratings or DBRSset-
backed securities must be rated by at least twwbeohforementioned rating agencies, one of whicktrine Moody’s
Investors Service or Standard & Poor’s. At Decen®ier2015, all asset-backed security investments we
compliance with this policy. Approximately 75.8 pent of all asset-backed security investments watezl AAA or A-
1+ by Standard & Poor’s and/or Aaa or P-1 by MosdpVvestors Service and/or AAA or F1+ by Fitch Rg$. Interest
rate risk and credit risk related to the underlyéogateral may impact the value of investmentasset-backed
securities, while factors such as general condstiarthe overall credit market and the nature efuhderlying collateral
may affect the liquidity of investments in assethed securities. 3M does not currently expect mgéted to its holding
in asset-backed securities to materially impadirisncial condition or liquidity.
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NOTE 10. Long-Term Debt and Short-Term Borrowings

The following debt tables reflect effective intdrestes, which include the impact of interest eaps, as of
December 31, 2015. If the debt was issued on a twmlbasis, the debt has been separated to shamplaet of the
fixed versus floating effective interest rates. rgizg value includes the impact of debt issuancsand fair value
hedging activity. Long-term debt and short-termrbwaings as of December 31 consisted of the follgwin

Long-Term Debt

Currency/ Effective Final

(Millions) Fixed vs. Interest Maturity Carrying Value
Description / 2015 Principal Amount Floating Rate Date 2015 2014
Medium-term note ($1 billion) USD Fixed 1.62% 2016 $ 999 $ 996
Medium-term note ($650 million) USD Fixed 1.10% 2017 648 647
Medium-term note (500 million Euros) Euro Floating  0.16% 2018 545 606
Medium-term note ($450 million) USD Floating 0.44% 2018 448 —
Medium-term note ($600 million) USD Floating  0.55% 2019 597 592
Medium-term note ($25 million) USD Fixed 1.74% 2019 25 25
Medium-term note (650 million Euros) Euro Floating  0.15% 2020 708 —
Medium-term note ($300 million) USD Floating 0.61% 2020 297 —
Medium-term note ($200 million) USD Fixed 2.12% 2020 198 —
Eurobond (300 million Euros) Euro Floating 0.21% 2021 348 389
Eurobond (300 million Euros) Euro Fixed 1.97% 2021 326 361
Medium-term note ($600 million) USD Fixed 2.17% 2022 592 591
Medium-term note (600 million Euros) Euro Fixed 1.14% 2023 644 —
Medium-term note ($550 million) USD Fixed 3.04% 2025 545 —
Medium-term note (750 million Euros) Euro Fixed 1.71% 2026 801 892
30-year debenture ($330 million) USD Fixed 6.01% 2028 343 344
Medium-term note (500 million Euros) Euro Fixed 1.90% 2030 533 —
30-year bond ($750 million) USD Fixed 5.73% 2037 743 742
Floating rate note ($96 million) USD Floating  0.22% 2041 96 96
Medium-term note ($325 million) USD Fixed 4.05% 2044 313 312
Floating rate note ($55 million) USD Floating  0.16% 2044 55 55
Other borrowings Various 0.22% 2016-2040 74 112
Total long-term debt $ 9,878 $ 6,760
Less: current portion of long-term debt 1,125 55
Long-term debt (excluding current portion) $ 8,753 $ 6,705

Post-Swap Borrowing (Long-Term Debt, Including Current Portion)

2015 2014
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
(Millions) Value Interest Rate Value Interest Rate
Fixed-rate debt $ 6,712 254% $ 4,911 2.74%
Floating-rate debt 3,166 0.32% 1,849 0.53%
Total long-term debt, including current portion $ 9,878 $ 6,760
Short-Term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Effective Carrying Value
(Millions) Interest Rate 2015 2014
Current portion of long-term debt 1.45% $ 1,125 $ 55
U.S. dollar commercial paper ez — —
Other borrowings 1.01% 919 51
Total short-term borrowings and current portioroofg-term debt $ 2,044 % 106
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In 2015, other short-term borrowings primarily cisted of bank borrowings by international subsigsyprimarily
Japan and Korea.

Maturities of Long-term Debt

Maturities of long-term debt for the five years sequent of December 31, 2015 are as follows (itiand):

After
201¢ 2017 201¢ 201¢ 202( 202( Total
$ 1,128 $ 744 $ 99 $ 62: $ 1,200 % 5191 $ 9,87¢

Long-term debt payments due in 2016 and 2017 iecfladiting rate notes totaling $126 million (cldiesl as current
portion of long-term debt), and $96 million (inckdlas a separate floating rate note in the long-tibt table),
respectively, as a result of put provisions assediwith these debt instruments.

Credit Facilities

In August 2014, 3M amended and extended its eg§tin5 billion five-year revolving credit facility a $2.25 billion
five-year agreement expiring in August 2019. Thiexdit agreement includes a provision under whichr8s¥ request
an increase of up to $2.25 billion, bringing thtatdacility up to $4.5 billion (at the lender’'ssdiretion). This facility
was undrawn at December 31, 2015. Under the $2lRixredit agreement, the Company is requirednntain its
EBITDA to Interest Ratio as of the end of eachdlsguarter at not less than 3.0 to 1. This is dated (as defined in the
agreement) as the ratio of consolidated total EBAT@r the four consecutive quarters then endedtal interest
expense on all funded debt for the same perio@esember 31, 2015, this ratio was approximatelyos6. Debt
covenants do not restrict the payment of dividends.

Other Credit Facilities

Apart from the committed revolving facility, an atidnal $241 million in stand-alone letters of citemhd $18 million in
bank guarantees were also issued and outstandidecaimber 31, 2015. These lines of credit arezatilin connection
with normal business activities.

Long-Term Debt Issuances

The principal amounts, interest rates and matdiates of individual long-term debt issuances cafobed in the long-
term debt table found at the beginning of this note

In May 2015, 3M issued 1.750 billion Euros aggregaincipal amount of medium term notes. In Audi@t5, 3M
issued $1.500 billion aggregate principal amourmetflium-term notes. Upon debt issuance, the Comeatgyed into
two interest rate swaps as fair value hedges oftiop of the fixed interest rate medium-term nolbdigation. The first
converted a $450 million three-year fixed rate patel the second converted $300 million of a fieewyfixed rate note
included in this issuance to an interest rate baseal floating three-month LIBOR index.

In June 2014, 3M issued $950 million aggregateggal amount of medium-term notes. Upon debt isseathe
Company entered into an interest rate swap to co8€0 million of a $625 million note included tinis issuance to an
interest rate based on a floating three-month LIB@ex as a fair value hedge of a portion of tlediinterest rate
medium-term note obligation. In November 2014,Gmanpany issued 1.250 billion Euros aggregate gral@mount

of medium-term notes.

In November 2013, 3M issued a Eurobond for an armoi600 million Euros. Upon debt issuance, 3M cteted a
fixed-to-floating interest rate swap on a notioaalount of 300 million Euros.
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Long-Term Debt Maturities

In July 2014, 3M retired at maturity 1.025 billi&@uros of seven-year 5.0% fixed rate Eurobonds.dodnber 2012,
3M entered into a three-year 66 million British Rdyapproximately $106 million based on agreemaite éxchange
rates) committed credit facility agreement withMBrgan Chase Bank, which was fully drawn as of Dawoer 31,
2012. 3M repaid the balance in 2014.

In August 2013, 3M repaid $850 million (principahaunt) of medium-term notes.
Floating Rate Notes

At various times, 3M has issued floating rate netm®aining put provisions. 3M would be requireddpurchase these
securities at various prices ranging from 99 perted00 percent of par value according to the cédn schedules for
each security. In December 2004, 3M issued a fpep- $60 million floating rate note, with a ratesed on a floating
LIBOR index. Under the terms of this floating raigte due in 2044, holders have an annual put feaut 00 percent of
par value from 2014 and every anniversary thereaft#l final maturity. Under the terms of the ftoy rate notes due
in 2027, 2040 and 2041, holders have put optioatsdhmmence ten years from the date of issuanceactdthird
anniversary thereafter until final maturity at g$cranging from 99 percent to 100 percent of parevdn 2008 through
2015, 3M was required to repurchase an immatemnialent of principal on the aforementioned floatiaternotes.

NOTE 11. Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

3M has company-sponsored retirement plans covstibgtantially all U.S. employees and many emplopegside the
United States. In total, 3M has over 80 definedefieplans in 28 countries. Pension benefits asgediwith these plans
generally are based on each participant’s yeassmice, compensation, and age at retirement mination. The
primary U.S. defined-benefit pension plan was dadsenew participants effective January 1, 200 Tompany also
provides certain postretirement health care aedri$urance benefits for substantially all of itSUemployees who
reach retirement age while employed by the Complsiogt international employees and retirees are reavby
government health care programs. The cost of coypeovided postretirement health care plans fagrimational
employees is not material and is combined with ldrBounts in the tables that follow.

The Company also sponsors employee savings plates @ection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Codesélplans are
offered to substantially all regular U.S. employdes eligible employees hired prior to Januar2dQ9, employee
401(k) contributions of up to 6% of eligible comgation were matched in cash at rates of 60% or @&¥ending on
the plan in which the employee participates. Empésyhired on or after January 1, 2009, receiveabh match of
100% for employee 401(k) contributions of up to 6f&ligible compensation and also received an eygpleetirement
income account cash contribution of 3% of the pgréint’s total eligible compensation. BeginningJamuary 1, 2016,
for U.S. employees, the Company reduced its matobnaployee 401(k) contributions. For eligible enygles hired
prior to January 1, 2009, employee 401(k) contring of up to 5% of eligible compensation will batehed in cash at
rates of 45% or 60%, depending on the plan in witiehemployee participates. Employees hired orfter danuary 1,
2009, will receive a cash match of 100% for empéog81(k) contributions of up to 5% of eligible coemsation and
will also continue to receive an employer retiretieanome account cash contribution of 3% of thdipigant’s total
eligible compensation. All contributions are invabsin a number of investment funds pursuant tethployees’
elections. Employer contributions to the U.S. dedirontribution plans were $165 million, $153 roifliand $136
million for 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 3ibsidiaries in various international countries adacticipate in
defined contribution plans. Employer contributidaghe international defined contribution plans ev877 million, $75
million and $71 million for 2015, 2014 and 2013spectively.

The Company has made deposits for its defined bhgrehs with independent trustees. Trust fundsdeqbsits with
insurance companies are maintained to provide permnefits to plan participants and their benafies. There are no
plan assets in the non-qualified plan due to itanea For its U.S. postretirement health care #rdrisurance benefit
plans, the Company has set aside amounts at kpastt to annual benefit payments with an indepentianstee.
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3M’s primary U.S. qualified defined benefit planedonot have a mandatory cash contribution beches€ampany has
a significant credit balance from previous disanetiry contributions that can be applied to any ParBrotection Act
funding requirements.

As a result of changes made to its U.S. postredrgrnealth care benefit plans in 2010, the Compsytransitioned all
current and future retirees to a savings accoumtfiite-based plan. These changes became effeciaring

January 1, 2013, for all Medicare eligible retiraasl their Medicare eligible dependents and beczffeetive beginning
January 1, 2016, for all non-Medicare eligiblerests and their eligible dependents. In August 28 modified the
3M Retiree Welfare Benefit Plan postretirement roadbenefit reducing the future benefit for pagants not retired as
of January 1, 2016. For participants retiring aft@nuary 1, 2016, the Retiree Medical Savings AGCRMSA) is no
longer credited with interest and the indexatiorboth the RMSA and the Medicare Health Reimbursémen
Arrangement is reduced from 3 percent to 1.5 pengenyear (for those employees who are eligibtelese accounts).
Also effective January 1, 2016, 3M no longer offéké Retiree Health Care Accounts to new hires. foutese
changes the plan was re-measured in the thirdequafr2015, resulting in a decrease to the projebemefit obligation
liability of approximately $233 million, and a rédal increase to shareholders’ equity, specificatipumulated other
comprehensive income.

In the third quarter of 2014, former U.S. employed&® have a pension benefit for which they havebsgiun receiving
payment (term vested) were offered a lump sum pagybtheir pension benefit. As a result of thisiact the projected
benefit obligation (PBO) liability was reduced hetfourth quarter of 2014 by approximately $27Qioml with the
actual cash payout of approximately the same amuaidtfrom the plan’s assets in the fourth quasfe2014. The PBO
liability reduction was 34% of the term vested iig PBO and a 2% reduction in the overall U.S.qi@m PBO liability
based on the December 31, 2013, valuation. Thesenwgpension expense impact as a result of thisragh 3M’s
consolidated statement of income in 2014.

In the fourth quarter of 2014, 3M’s Board of Direxs approved an amendment of the U.S. defined tgreefsion plan
to include a lump sum payment option for employteas have vested retirement benefits who commeraie pension
January 1, 2015, or later. This option is alsolabée to vested employees who leave 3M before baapaiigible to
retire at the time of termination. This change lI3M’s year-end 2014 U.S. pension PBO liabilyyapproximately
$266 million.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company convertedddRP 2014 Mortality Tables” and updated the niityta
improvement scale it used for calculating the yexad-2014 U.S. defined benefit pension annuitantpmstiretirement
obligations and 2015 expense. The impact of thisigk increased the year-end 2014 U.S. pension RBO b
approximately $820 million and the U.S. accumulgiedtretirement benefit obligation by approximatelyp0 million.

In March 2015, 3M Japan modified the Japan LimiDefined Benefit Corporate Pension Plan (DBCPP).ifdeng

July 1, 2015, eligible employees receive a comganyided contribution match of 6.12% of their diilgi salary to their
defined contribution plan. Employees no longer eatditional service towards their defined benedtigion plans after
July 1, 2015, except for eligible salaries abowedtatutory defined contribution limits. As a resflthis plan
modification, the Company re-measured the DBCPRgiwtesulted in a $17 million pre-tax curtailmemirgfor the
year ending December 31, 2015. In March 2015, 34 edceived a favorable Internal Revenue Service ta
determination letter to terminate a frozen defibedefit pension plan of one of 3M’s acquired suiasids. By the end
of 2015, this plan made final distributions of $iélion to participants. The Company also had otettlements,
curtailments, special termination benefits and oitteens in 2015 aggregating to the amounts inditatehese
components in the applicable tables that follow.

3M was informed during the first quarter of 2008attthe general partners of WG Trading Companwtiith 3M’s
benefit plans hold limited partnership interests, the subject of a criminal investigation as vaslicivil proceedings by
the SEC and CFTC (Commaodity Futures Trading Conion$sin March 2011, over the objections of 3M aixother
limited partners of WG Trading Company, the distciourt judge ruled in favor of the court appointedeiver’s
proposed distribution plan (and in April 2013, theited States Court of Appeals for the Second @irfirmed the
district court’s ruling). The benefit plan trusteeldings of WG Trading Company interests were gdpliso reflect the
decreased estimated fair market value, inclusivestifmated insurance proceeds, as of the annuaureraent dates.
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The Company has insurance that it believes, basethat is currently known, will result in the prdia recovery of a
portion of the decrease in original asset valughénfirst quarter of 2014, 3M and certain 3M béna@hns filed a
lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Distriof Minnesota against five insurers seeking insceacoverage for the
WG Trading Company claim. In September 2015, thetawled in favor of the defendant insurance conigpgon a
motion for summary judgment and dismissed the ld#wsuOctober 2015, 3M and the 3M benefit plansdia notice of
appeal to the United States Court of Appeals ferBlghth Circuit. As of the 2015 measurement datese holdings
represented less than one half of one percent ¢f 8 value of total plan assets. 3M currentljidees that the
resolution of these events will not have a materihlerse effect on the consolidated financial posibf the Company.

The following tables include a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances of the benefigabtin and the fair
value of plan assets as well as a summary of tatetkamounts recognized in the Company’s conseliiaalance
sheet as of December 31 of the respective yearsal8d/has certain non-qualified unfunded pensiahpostretirement
benefit plans, inclusive of plans related to supmat/excess benefits for employees impacted bycpéat relocations
and other matters, that individually and in theraggte are not significant and which are not inetuah the tables that
follow. The obligations for these plans are incldiddgthin other liabilities in the Company’s congtaied balance sheet
and aggregated less than $35 million as of Dece®ibe2015 and 2014.

Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $16,452 $13,967 $6,979 $ 6,346 $2,462 $ 2,017
Acquisitions/Transfers in — — 94 — — —
Service cost 293 241 154 141 75 65
Interest cost 655 676 206 252 98 97
Participant contributions — — 9 10 14 18
Foreign exchange rate changes — — (589 (663 (22 (12
Plan amendments — (266) (6) 3 (211) —
Actuarial (gain) loss (657 2,874 (274 1,128 (80) 415
Medicare Part D Reimbursement — — — — 1 1
Benefit payments (874 (1,039 (232 (235, (122 (140
Settlements, curtailments, special termination
benefits and other (13) 1) (19) 3 1 —
Benefit obligation at end of year $15,856 $16,452 $6,322 $ 6,979 $2,216 $ 2,462

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 14,643 $ 13,889 $5,957 $ 5,758 $ 1,436 $ 1,405

Acquisitions/Transfers in — — 8 — — —
Actual return on plan assets 100 1,749 287 813 36 148
Company contributions 113 45 151 165 3 5
Participant contributions — — 9 10 14 18
Foreign exchange rate changes — — (498) (554) — —
Benefit payments (874 (1,039 (232 (235, (122 (140
Settlements, curtailments, special termination
benefits and other (16) 1) (13) — — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 13,966 $14,643 $5669 $ 5957 $1,367 $ 1,436
Funded status at end of year $ (1,890) $ (1,809) $ (653) $(1,022) $ (849) $(1,026)
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Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits

(Millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as of Dec. 31,

Non-current assets $ 3 ¢ 3 $185 $ 43 $ — $ —

Accrued benefit cost

Current liabilities 47) (46) (10) (10) (3) (4)
Non-current liabilities (1,846 (1,766 (828 (1,055 (846, (1,022,
Ending balance $(1,890) $(1,809) $ (653) $(1,022) $ (849 $ (1,026)
Qualified and Non-qualified
Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits

(Millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income as of Dec. 31,

Net transition obligation (asset) $ — % — $ 9% B — 3 —

Net actuarial loss (gain) 5,366 5,462 1,610 2,200 815 914

Prior service cost (credit) (227 (251) (68) (93) (270) (102)

Ending balance $ 5139 $5211 $1540 $ 2,104 $ 545 $ 812

The balance of amounts recognized for internatipteals in accumulated other comprehensive inconaé as
December 31 in the preceding table are presentsetiban the foreign currency exchange rate on titat d

The pension accumulated benefit obligation reprtsstie actuarial present value of benefits baseehgpioyee service
and compensation as of the measurement date aschdoenclude an assumption about future compesséivels. The
accumulated benefit obligation of the U.S. pengitams was $14.834 billion and $15.335 billion atBaber 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively. The accumulated benefigatibn of the international pension plans was %3.Gillion and
$6.401 billion at December 31, 2015 and 2014, retbysy.

The following amounts relate to pension plans withumulated benefit obligations in excess of pksets as of
December 31:

Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Plans

United States International
(Millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Projected benefit obligation $ 15856 $ 16,435 $ 2,382 $ 2,588
Accumulated benefit obligation 14,834 15,319 2,149 2,335
Fair value of plan assets 13,966 14,623 1,566 1,636
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Components of net periodic cost and other amountecognized in other comprehensive income

Net periodic benefit cost is recorded in cost désaselling, general and administrative expersed,research,
development and related expenses. Components périetic benefit cost and other changes in plaetasand benefit
obligations recognized in other comprehensive iredon the years ended December 31 follow:

Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 293 $ 241 $ 258 $ 154 $ 141 $ 147 $ 75 $ 65 $ 80
Interest cost 655 676 598 206 252 238 98 97 88
Expected return on plan assets (1,069) (1,043) (1,046) (308) (312) (291 (91) (90) (90)
Amortization of transition (asset)
obligation — — — Q) (1) (1) — — —
Amortization of prior service cost
(benefit) (24) 4 5 (13) (16) (16) 42) (47) (66)
Amortization of net actuarial (gain)
loss 409 243 399 144 121 153 73 56 95
Net periodic benefit cost (benef $ 264 $ 121 $ 214 $ 182 $ 185 $ 230 $ 113 $ 81 $ 107
Settlements, curtailments, special
termination benefits and other 2 — — (6) 4 2 1 — —

Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) afi
settlements, curtailments, special
termination benefits and other $ 266 $ 121 $ 214 $ 176 $ 189 $ 232 $ 114 $ 81 $ 107
Other changes in plan assets and
benefit obligations recognized in
other comprehensive (income) loss
Amortization of transition (asset)

obligation — — — 1 1 1 — — —
Prior service cost (benefit) — (266, — 10 3 3 (212 — (20)
Amortization of prior service cost

(benefit) 24 4 (5) 13 16 16 42 47 66
Net actuarial (gain) loss 312 2,167 (743 (270 592 (294, (23, 358 (313
Amortization of net actuarial (gain)

loss (409) (243) (399) (144) (121) (153 (73)  (56) (95)

Foreign currency
Total recognized in other comprehensive
(income) loss $ (73) $ 1,654 $(1,147) $(564) $ 276 $ (474 $(267) $348 $(364)
Total recognized in net periodic benefi
cost (benefit) and other comprehens
(income) loss $ 193 $ 1775 $ (933 $(388 $ 465 $ (242 $ (153 $429 $ (257,

— (174, (215 (47) (1) (1) @)

Amounts expected to be amortized from accumulatedtioer comprehensive income into net periodic benefitosts
over the next fiscal year

Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
(Millions) United States International Benefits
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation $ — $ @ $ —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (24) (13) (55)
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 354 90 62
Total amortization expected over the next fiscalrye $ 330 $ 76 $ 7

The Company primarily amortizes amounts recognasegrior service cost (benefit) over the averagigréuservice
period of active employees at the date of the amemd.
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine bdn@bligations as of December 31

Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Benefits Posttirement
United States International Benefits
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

Discount rate 447% 4.10% 4.98% 3.12% 3.11% 4.02% 4.48% 4.07% 4.83%
Compensation rate increase 4.10% 4.10% 4.00% 2.90% 3.33% 3.35% N/A N/A N/A

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine nedst for years ended December 31

Qualified and Non-qualified Pension Benefits Poegtirement
United States International Benefits
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

Discount rate 4.10% 4.98% 4.14% 3.11% 4.02% 3.78% 4.07% 4.83% 4.00%
Expected return on assets 7.75% 7.75% 8.00% 5.90% 5.83% 5.87% 6.91% 7.11% 7.19%
Compensation rate increase 4.10% 4.00% 4.00% 3.33% 3.35% 3.31% N/A N/A N/A

The Company is in the process of transitioningattent and future retirees in the U.S. postretaeiealth care
benefit plans to a savings account benefits-baked phe contributions provided by the Companyhi hiealth savings
accounts increase 3 percent per year for emplaybesetired prior to January 1, 2016 and increaSepércent for
employees who retire on or after January 1, 20hérdfore, the Company no longer has material expdsuhealth care
cost inflation.

The Company determines the discount rate used &sume plan liabilities as of the December 31 measant date for
the pension and postretirement benefit plans, wisietiso the date used for the related annual meamnt
assumptions. The discount rate reflects the curegatat which the associated liabilities couldeHectively settled at
the end of the year. The Company sets its rateftect the yield of a portfolio of high qualityxgéd-income debt
instruments that would produce cash flows sufficiartiming and amount to settle projected futueadfits. Using this
methodology, the Company determined a discountafaded 7% for pension and 4.48% for postretirentantefits to be
appropriate for its U.S. plans as of December 8152which is an increase of 0.37 percentage paimis0.41
percentage points, respectively, from the rated aseof December 31, 2014. For the internationasio® and
postretirement plans the discount rates also itettheccurrent rate at which the associated liabditould be effectively
settled at the end of the year. If the countryddsep market in corporate bonds the Company nmtbkesxpected
cash flows from the plan either to a portfolio ohbls that generate sufficient cash flow or a naiigreld curve
generated from available bond information. In coestthat do not have a deep market in corporatdfiggovernment
bonds are considered with a risk premium to appneseé corporate bond yields. Beginning in 2016, 3Mnged the
method used to estimate the service and interestomponents of the net periodic pension and gtbstretirement
benefit costs. The new method measures servicenterést costs separately using the spot yieldecapproach applied
to each corresponding obligation. Service costslatermined based on duration-specific spot rgiphe to the
service cost cash flows. The interest cost calimudas determined by applying duration-specific tsfates to the year-
by-year projected benefit payments. The spot yelde approach does not affect the measuremehedbtal benefit
obligations as the change in service and intests®ffset in the actuarial gains and losses detbin other
comprehensive income. The Company changed to themethod to provide a more precise measure of seamd
interest costs by improving the correlation betwienprojected benefit cash flows and the discpta yield curve
rates. The Company accounted for this change harge in estimate prospectively beginning in th& fjuarter of
2016.

For the primary U.S. qualified pension plan, therfpany’s assumption for the expected return on psets was
7.75% in 2015. Projected returns are based priynanilbroad, publicly traded equity and fixed-incomeices and
forward-looking estimates of active portfolio amyéstment management. As of December 31, 2015 ahgpany’s
2016 expected long-term rate of return on U.S. pksets is 7.50%, a decrease of 0.25 percentages frmm 2015. The
expected return assumption is based on the stcadsget allocation of the plan, long term capitatkat return
expectations and expected performance from aativestment management. The 2015 expected long-tamof return
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is based on an asset allocation assumption of 26B&lgequities, 18% private equities, 41% fixedeme securities,
and 16% absolute return investments independanaditional performance benchmarks, along with {pasireturns
from active investment management. The actualatetof return on plan assets in 2015 was 0.7%014 2he plan
earned a rate of return of 13.0% and in 2013 eaamedurn of 6.0%. The average annual actual retorthe plan assets
over the past 10 and 25 years has been 7.8% a@%b 1 fespectively. Return on assets assumptioristiEnnational
pension and other post-retirement benefit plansal@ilated on a plan-by-plan basis using plantadkeations and
expected long-term rate of return assumptions.

During 2015, the Company contributed $264 millionts U.S. and international pension plans and $Bomto its
postretirement plans. During 2014, the Companyrdmurted $210 million to its U.S. and internatiopainsion plans and
$5 million to its postretirement plans. In 2016 tBompany expects to contribute an amount in theeaf $100

million to $200 million of cash to its U.S. andénhational retirement plans. The Company does &t la required
minimum cash pension contribution obligation farlit.S. plans in 2016. Future contributions will eieg on market
conditions, interest rates and other factors.

Future Pension and Postretirement Benefit Payments

The following table provides the estimated pensind postretirement benefit payments that are payatn the plans
to participants.

Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement

(Millions) United States International Benefits

2016 Benefit Payments $ 987 $ 205 $ 141
2017 Benefit Payments 997 215 156
2018 Benefit Payments 1,008 228 172
2019 Benefit Payments 1,017 241 153
2020 Benefit Payments 1,029 250 155
Next five year 5,187 1,480 797

Plan Asset Management

3M's investment strategy for its pension and paisgment plans is to manage the funds on a goimgem basis. The
primary goal of the trust funds is to meet the gdions as required. The secondary goal is to tharhighest rate of
return possible, without jeopardizing its primagag and without subjecting the Company to an urataeunt of
contribution risk. Fund returns are used to haiaiiice present and future obligations to the extessible within
actuarially determined funding limits and tax-detared asset limits, thus reducing the potentiatirfee additional
contributions from 3M. The investment strategy tieed long duration cash bonds and derivative imsnis to offset a
significant portion of the interest rate sensitivif U.S. pension liabilities.

Normally, 3M does not buy or sell any of its owrtweties as a direct investment for its pension attngr
postretirement benefit funds. However, due to extkinvestment management of the funds, the plansindirectly
buy, sell or hold 3M securities. The aggregate amofi3M securities are not considered to be maltegiative to the
aggregate fund percentages.

The discussion that follows references the faingaheasurements of certain assets in terms okldyé and 3. See
Note 13 for descriptions of these levels. While ¢bhenpany believes the valuation methods are apatepand
consistent with other market participants, the afsgifferent methodologies or assumptions to deileerthe fair value
of certain financial instruments could result idiierent estimate of fair value at the reportirejal
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U.S. Pension Plans and Postretirement Benefit Plagsets

In order to achieve the investment objectives @hS. pension plans and U.S. postretirement bguiafis, the
investment policies include a target strategic taatbgcation. The investment policies allow somietance around the
target in recognition that market fluctuations dhiquidity of some investments may cause the alltan to a specific
asset class to vary from the target allocationepiidlly for long periods of time. Acceptable rasdmve been designed
to allow for deviation from strategic targets andatiow for the opportunity for tactical over- andder-weights. The
portfolios will normally be rebalanced when the deaend asset allocation deviates from acceptaiges. The
allocation is reviewed regularly by the named fidug of the plans. Approximately 39% of the posteanent benefit
plan assets are in a 401(h) account. The 401 (lojuat@assets are in the same trust as the prim&ygdénsion plan and
invested with the same investment objectives aptimeary U.S. pension plan.

The fair values of the assets held by the U.S.ipandans by asset class are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs Considered as Fair Value at

(Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Dec. 31,
Asset Class 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Equities
U.S. equities $1897 $1766 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 1897 $ 1,766
Non-U.S. equities 1,149 1,214 — — — — 1,149 1,214
Index and long/short equity funds* 578 607
Total Equities $3046 $2980 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 3624 $ 3,587
Fixed Income
U.S. government securities $1,095 $1,032 $ 456 $ 590 $ — $ — $ 1551 $ 1,622
Non-U.S. government securities — 7 126 381 — — 126 388
Preferred and convertible securities 4 6 8 9 — — 12 15
U.S. corporate bonds 9 8 2,820 2,889 — — 2,829 2,897
Non-U.S. corporate bonds — — 616 566 — — 616 566
Derivative instruments Q) 6 40 126 — — 39 132
Other* 11 32
Total Fixed Income $1,107 $1,059 $4066 $4561 $ — $ — $ 5184 $ 5,652
Private Equity
Derivative instruments $ — $ — $ — $ — $(106 $(74 $ (06 $ (714
Growth equity 24 15 — — — — 24 15
Partnership investments* 2,450 2,561
Total Private Equity $ 24 $ 15 $§ — $ — $(106) $(74) $ 2,368 $ 2,502
Absolute Return
Derivative instruments $ — $ — $ (B — $ — $— % (5) $ —
Fixed income and other 253 26 46 52 — — 299 78
Hedge fund/fund of funds* 1,409 1,807
Partnership investments* 355 288
Total Absolute Return $ 253 $ 26 $ 41 $ 52 $ — $— $ 2058 $ 2,173
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents $ 102 $ 287 $ 6 $ 86 $ — $— $ 108 $ 373
Cash and cash equivalents, valued at net asset*valu 783 531
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 102 $ 287 $ 6 $ 86 $ — $— $ 891 $ 904
Total $4532 $4,367 $4,113 $4,699 $(106 $ (74 $14,125 $14,818
Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan ésse $ (159) $ (175)
Fair value of plan assets $ 13,966 $ 14,643

* In accordance with ASC 820-10, certain investraghat are measured at fair value using the net aatue (NAV)

per share (or its equivalent) as a practical exgrediave not been classified in the fair valuedrigry. The NAV is
based on the fair value of the underlying assetseovby the fund, minus its liabilities then dividegithe number of
units outstanding and is determined by the investmenager or custodian of the fund. The fair valm®unts
presented in this table are intended to permitneitiation of the fair value hierarchy to the amtsipresented in the fair
value of plan assets.
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The fair values of the assets held by the postreint benefit plans by asset class are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs Considered as Fair Value at

(Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Dec. 31,
Asset Class 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Equities
U.S. equities $ 508 $565 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 508 $ 565
Non-U.S. equities 59 56 — — — — 59 56
Index and long/short equity funds* 49 55
Total Equities $ 567 $620 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 616 $ 676
Fixed Income
U.S. government securities $ 71 $ 68 $ 192 $ 186 $ — $ — $ 263 $ 254
Non-U.S. government securities — — 8 17 — — 8 17
U.S. corporate bonds — — 153 146 — — 153 146
Non-U.S. corporate bonds — — 35 34 — — 35 34
Derivative instruments — — 2 5 — — 2 5
Other* — 1
Total Fixed Income $ 71 $ 68 $ 390 $ 388 $ — $ — $ 461 $ 457
Private Equity
Derivative instruments $ — % — $ — % — $ DS B @S O
Growth equity 1 1 — — — — 1 1
Partnership investments* 136 162
Total Private Equity $ 1 % 1 $ — $ — $ (4 $ (3 $ 133 $ 160

Absolute Return

Fixed income and other $ 10 $ 1 $ 2 $ 2 % — $ — $ 12 % 3

Hedge fund/fund of funds* 54 66

Partnership investments* 14 10
Total Absolute Return $ 10 $ 1 $ 2 %$ 2 % — $ — $ 80 $ 79
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents $ 388 $ 33 $ — $ 3 $ — $ — $ 38 $ 36

Cash and cash equivalents, valued at net asset*valu 30 20
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 38 $ 33 $§ — $ 3 $ — $ — $ 68 $ 56
Total $ 687 $ 724 $ 392 $ 393 $ (4 $ (3) $1,38 $1,428
Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan ésse $ 9 $ 8
Fair value of plan assets $1,367 $1,436

*In accordance with ASC 820-10, certain investméi are measured at fair value using the net aafee per share
(or its equivalent) as a practical expedient haatebeen classified in the fair value hierarchy. NV is based on the
fair value of the underlying assets owned by thfuminus its liabilities then divided by the numioé units
outstanding and is determined by the investmeniag@mnor custodian of the fund. The fair value am®pnesented in
this table are intended to permit reconciliatiorthef fair value hierarchy to the amounts preseimtelde fair value of
plan assets.

Publicly traded equities are valued at the clogirige reported in the active market in which théividual securities are
traded.

Fixed income includes derivative instruments suchradit default swaps, interest rate swaps angldstcontracts.
Corporate debt includes bonds and notes, asse¢taelcurities, collateralized mortgage obligatiand private
placements. Swaps and derivative instruments doeddy the custodian using closing market swapasiand market
derived inputs. U.S. government and government@gbands and notes are valued at the closing pejgerted in the
active market in which the individual securityliaded. Corporate bonds and notes, asset backedtisscand
collateralized mortgage obligations are valuedtatethe yields currently available on comparadgeurities of issuers
with similar credit ratings or valued under a diseted cash flow approach that utilizes observaipets, such as
current yields of similar instruments, but includeustments for certain risks that may not be oladde such as credit
and liquidity risks. Private placements are valbgdhe custodian using recognized pricing servaretssources.

The private equity portfolio is a diversified mikaerivative instruments, growth equity and parshgu interests.
Derivative investments are written options that\akied by independent parties using market inpatsvaluation
models. Growth equity investments are valued atlbsing price reported in the active market inehhthe individual
securities are traded.
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Absolute return consists primarily of partnershiferests in hedge funds, hedge fund of funds @rqihvate fund
vehicles. Corporate debt instruments are valueitlar the yields currently available on comparadgleurities of
issuers with similar credit ratings or valued undetiscounted cash flow approach that utilizes Madde inputs, such
as current yields of similar instruments, but inigla adjustments for certain risks that may notlisevable such as
credit and liquidity risk ratings.

Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan &s$eclude the net of insurance receivables for Wé&ding Company,
interest receivables, amounts due for securitis amounts payable for securities purchased atedest payable.

The balances of and changes in the fair valuelseobit S. pension plans’ and postretirement planvglld assets for the
periods ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were atefial.

International Pension Plans Assets

Outside the U.S., pension plan assets are typioadiyaged by decentralized fiduciary committees. dikelosure below
of asset categories is presented in aggregatevéori® defined benefit plans in 27 countries; hosvethere is
significant variation in asset allocation policgiin country to country. Local regulations, localding rules, and local
financial and tax considerations are part of thdfng and investment allocation process in eacimttguThe Company
provides standard funding and investment guidam@dl international plans with more focused guidatwthe larger
plans.

Each plan has its own strategic asset allocatibr.dSset allocations are reviewed periodicallyrebdlanced when
necessary.

The fair values of the assets held by the inteonatipension plans by asset class are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using Inputs Considered as  Fair Value at

(Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Dec. 31,
Asset Class 2015 2014 2015 2014 20152014 2015 2014
Equities
Growth equities $ 718 $ 672 $ 195 $ 176 $ — $ — $ 913 $ 848
Value equities 494 595 27 23 — — 521 618
Core equities 31 19 671 624 4 4 706 647
Equities, valued at net asset value* 17 18
Total Equities $1243 $1286 $ 893 $ 823 $ 4 $ 4 $2157 $2131
Fixed Income
Domestic government $ 283 $ 87 $ 346 $ 533 $ 4 $ 3 $ 633 $ 623
Foreign government — 45 206 670 — — 206 715
Corporate debt securities 30 1 661 701 10 12 701 714
Fixed income securities, valued at net asset value* 770 863
Total Fixed Income $ 313 $ 133 $1,213 $1904 $ 14 $ 15 $2310 $2915
Private Equity
Real estate $ 1 % 3 $ 5 % 5 $ 4 $ 4 $ 10 $ 12
Real estate, valued at net asset value* 126 119
Partnership investments* 24 23
Total Private Equity $ 1 3 3 8 5 % 5 $ 4 $ 4 $ 160 $ 154
Absolute Return
Derivatives $ @ — $ 15 $ 4 $— $— $ 13 3% @
Insurance — — — — 456 476 456 476
Other — — 4 10 3 3 7 13
Other, valued at net asset value* 1 &
Hedge funds* 119 117
Total Absolute Return $ (20 — $ 19 8 6 $459 $479 $ 596 $ 605
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents $ 126 $ 161 $ 347 $ 29 $ — $ — $ 473 $ 190
Cash and cash equivalents, valued at net asset*valu 1 3
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 126 $ 161 $ 347 $ 29 $ — $ — $ 474 $ 193
Total $1681 $1583 $2,477 $2,767 $481 $502 $5,697 $5998
Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan ésse $ (28 $ (41
Fair value of plan assets $5,669 $5,957
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*In accordance with ASC 820-10, certain investméii are measured at fair value using the net aafee per share
(or its equivalent) as a practical expedient haatebeen classified in the fair value hierarchy. NV is based on the
fair value of the underlying assets owned by thelfuninus its liabilities then divided by the numbé units
outstanding and is determined by the investmeniag@mnor custodian of the fund. The fair value am®pnesented in
this table are intended to permit reconciliatiorthef fair value hierarchy to the amounts preseintéde fair value of
plan assets.

Equities consist primarily of mandates in publiuigg securities managed to various public equiticas. Publicly
traded equities are valued at the closing pricented in the active market in which the individsaturities are traded.

Fixed Income investments include domestic and frgiovernment, and corporate, (including mortgaayked and
other debt) securities. Governments, corporate $and notes and mortgage backed securities aredratithe closing
price reported if traded on an active market gjigltls currently available on comparable securibifissuers with
similar credit ratings or valued under a discourtash flow approach that utilizes observable inpaush as current
yields of similar instruments, but includes adjushts for certain risks that may not be observaldd sis credit and
liquidity risks.

Private equity funds consist of partnership intey@sa variety of funds. Real estate consistsroperty funds and
REITS (Real Estate Investment Trusts). REITS aheedhat the closing price reported in the activekagin which it is
traded.

Absolute return consists of private partnershipriests in hedge funds, insurance contracts, demvisistruments,
hedge fund of funds, and other alternative investmidnsurance consists of insurance contractg;hwiie valued using
cash surrender values which is the amount theyptand receive if the contract was cashed out at ged. Derivative
instruments consist of interest rate swaps thatised to help manage risks.

Other items to reconcile to fair value of plan ésseclude the net of interest receivables, amoduésfor securities
sold, amounts payable for securities purchasedrderkest payable.

The balances of and changes in the fair valuelseointernational pension plans’ level 3 assetsisbpgamarily of
insurance contracts under the absolute return elssst. The aggregate of net purchases and redlired gains
increased this balance by $16 million and $46 orilin 2015 and 2014, respectively. Foreign currenahange
impacts decreased this balance by $36 million &®rfiillion in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

NOTE 12. Derivatives

The Company uses interest rate swaps, currencysswammodity price swaps, and forward and optiamreats to
manage risks generally associated with foreign @mxgh rate, interest rate and commaodity price fiatibns. The
information that follows explains the various typéslerivatives and financial instruments used by Bow and why
3M uses such instruments, how such instrumentaameunted for, and how such instruments impact 3iviancial
position and performance.

Additional information with respect to the impaots other comprehensive income of nonderivative mepgnd
derivative instruments is included in Note 6. Adxhitl information with respect to the fair valuedwrivative
instruments is included in Note 13. Referencesfiormation regarding derivatives and/or hedgingrimeents
associated with the Company’s long-term debt ee alade in Note 10.

Types of Derivatives/Hedging Instruments and Inolugn Income/Other Comprehensive Income:

Cash Flow Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedoaadify as cash flow hedges, the effective portbthe gain or loss on
the derivative is reported as a component of atberprehensive income and reclassified into earrnimgjse same
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period during which the hedged transaction affeatsiings. Gains and losses on the derivative reptieg either hedge
ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded frenassessment of effectiveness are recognizednent@arnings.

Cash Flow Hedging - Foreign Currency Forward andtiop Contracts:The Company enters into foreign exchange
forward and option contracts to hedge against tieeteof exchange rate fluctuations on cash floesaminated in
foreign currencies. These transactions are desidrest cash flow hedges. The settlement or exten$ithrese
derivatives will result in reclassifications (fraaecumulated other comprehensive income) to earmnte period
during which the hedged transactions affect eamiBll may dedesignate these cash flow hedge nedttips in
advance of the occurrence of the forecasted tréinsad he portion of gains or losses on the denieainstrument
previously accumulated in other comprehensive irefon dedesignated hedges remains in accumulated ot
comprehensive income until the forecasted tranmactccurs. Changes in the value of derivative imsemts after
dedesignation are recorded in earnings and anedadlin the Derivatives Not Designated as Hedgmsgriments
section below. Beginning in the second quarterddf42 3M began extending the maximum length of tawer which it
hedges its exposure to the variability in futurehciows of the forecasted transactions from aiprevterm of 12
months to a longer term of 24 months, with certairrencies being extended further to 36 monthsistain the first
quarter of 2015.

Cash Flow Hedging - Commodity Price Managemdiiie Company manages commodity price risks thrawggotiated
supply contracts, price protection agreements andlard contracts. 3M discontinued the use of conityqutice swaps
as cash flow hedges of forecasted commodity trdiasescin the first quarter of 2015. The Companydusemmodity
price swaps as cash flow hedges of forecasted calityrtoansactions to manage price volatility. Tketated mark-to-
market gain or loss on qualifying hedges was inetlisth other comprehensive income to the extenttfie and
reclassified into cost of sales in the period dyisivhich the hedged transaction affected earnings.

Cash Flow Hedging — Interest Rate Contradtsthe third and fourth quarters of 2014, the Campentered into
forward starting interest rate swaps with noticaralounts totaling 500 million Euros as a hedge agaiterest rate
volatility associated with the forecasted issuamicixed rate debt. 3M terminated these interet savaps upon
issuance of 750 million Euros aggregate principabant of twelve-year fixed rate notes in connectigth 3M’s 1.250
billion Eurobond offering in November 2014. Thenémation resulted in a $8 million pre-tax ($5 nuhi after-tax) loss
within accumulated other comprehensive incomeitlihbe amortized over the twelve-year life of thetes.

The amortization of gains and losses on forwardistainterest rate swaps is included in the tablkdsw as part of the
gain/(loss) recognized in income on the effectivgtipn of derivatives as a result of reclassifioatfrom accumulated
other comprehensive income.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had a baleih®&24 million associated with the after tax netaalized gain
associated with cash flow hedging instruments @etiin accumulated other comprehensive income.imbligdes a
remaining balance of $5 million (after tax losdpted to forward starting interest rate swaps, Wwhidl be amortized
over the respective lives of the notes. Based change rates as of December 31, 2015, 3M expectsimssify
approximately $98 million of the after-tax net ualieed foreign exchange cash flow hedging gairestmings in 2016,
approximately $23 million of the after-tax net ualieed foreign exchange cash flow hedging gairestmings in 2017,
and approximately $3 million of the after-tax netealized foreign exchange cash flow hedging gairearnings after
2017 (with the impact offset by earnings/lossesiftnderlying hedged items).

The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathlbases
related to derivative instruments designated als ftas/ hedges are provided in the following taliteclassifications of
amounts from accumulated other comprehensive indotaéncome include accumulated gains (lossegjextesignated
hedges at the time earnings are impacted by tieedsted transaction.
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Year Ended December 31, 2015

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other
Comprehensive
Income on Effective

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in
Income on Effective Portion of

Derivative as a Result of

Reclassification from
Accumulated Other

Ineffective Portim of Gain

(Loss) on Derivative ah
Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing

(Millions) Portion of Derivative Comprehensive Income Recogred in Income
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 212 Cost of sales $ 178 Cost of sales $ =
Commodity price swap contracts — Cost of sales (2) Cost of sales —
Interest rate swap contracts o — Interestexpens (2) Interestexpens —
Total $ 212 $ 174 $ —

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other
Comprehensive
Income on Effective

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in
Income on Effective Portion of

Derivative as a Result of

Reclassification from
Accumulated Other

Ineffective Portim of Gain

(Loss) on Derivative ah
Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing

(Millions) Portion of Derivative Comprehensive Income Recogred in Income
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 183 Cost of sales $ 3 Cost of sales $ =
Commodity price swap contracts (4) Cost of sales 2 Cost of sales —
Interest rate swap contracts - (8) Interest expens (1) Interestexpens —
Total $ 171 4 $ —

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in
Income on Effective Portion of
Derivative as a Result of
Reclassification from
Accumulated Other

Ineffective Portim of Gain

(Loss) on Derivative ah
Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other
Comprehensive
Income on Effective

(Millions) Portion of Derivative Comprehensive Income Recogred in Income
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 9 Cost of sales $ (11) Cost of sales $ —
Foreign currency forward contracts (108) Interest expense (108) Interest expense —
Commodity price swap contracts 1 Cost of sales (2) Cost of sales —
Interest rate swap contracts — Interest expense (1) Interest expense —
Total $ (98 $ (122, $ =

Fair Value Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedoaradify as fair value hedges, the gain or losshenderivatives as well
as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged ittribatable to the hedged risk are recognized mesu earnings.

Fair Value Hedging - Interest Rate Swapsie Company manages interest expense using afrfixed and floating

rate debt. To help manage borrowing costs, the @osmnmay enter into interest rate swaps. Under thas@gements,
the Company agrees to exchange, at specified alterthe difference between fixed and floatingriese amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notjpmatipal amount. The mark-to-market of these Yailue hedges is
recorded as gains or losses in interest expenses arfitdet by the gain or loss of the underlyingptdastrument, which
also is recorded in interest expense. These faievaedges are highly effective and, thus, thermisnpact on earnings
due to hedge ineffectiveness.

In July 2007, in connection with the issuance eéwen-year Eurobond for an amount of 750 millionoSuthe
Company completed a fixed-to-floating interest @4@p on a notional amount of 400 million Euros dair value
hedge of a portion of the fixed interest rate Eorabobligation. In August 2010, the Company terr@dal 50 million
Euros of the notional amount of this swap. As altea gain of 18 million Euros, recorded as pdithe balance of the
underlying debt, was amortized as an offset ta@steexpense over this debt’s remaining life. Pigaiermination of the
applicable portion of the interest rate swap, tleekito-market of the hedge instrument was recoedegains or losses
in interest expense and was offset by the gaings dn carrying value of the underlying debt inseat. Consequently,
the subsequent amortization of the 18 million Eusmprded as part of the underlying debt balance et part of gains
on hedged items recognized in income in the tadidésw. The remaining interest rate swap of 250iomlIEuros
(notional amount) matured in July 2014.

93



In November 2013, 3M issued a Eurobond due in 2624 face amount of 600 million Euros. Upon delsuance, 3M
completed a fixed-to-floating interest rate swapaamtional amount of 300 million Euros as a failue hedge of a
portion of the fixed interest rate Eurobond obligat

In June 2014, 3M issued $950 million aggregateggal amount of medium-term notes. Upon debt isseathe
Company entered into an interest rate swap to cof6€0 million of a $625 million note includedtinis issuance to an
interest rate based on a floating three-month LIBRRX as a fair value hedge of a portion of thkediinterest rate
medium-term note obligation.

In August 2015, 3M issued $1.500 billion aggregatacipal amount of medium-term notes. Upon dettasice, the
Company entered into two interest rate swaps asdi#tie hedges of a portion of the fixed interes¢ medium-term
note obligation. The first converted a $450 millithnee-year fixed rate note, and the second coed&800 million of a
five-year fixed rate note included in this issuatwan interest rate based on a floating three-mbMBOR index.

The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toafiggvinstruments
designated as fair value hedges and similar infdomaelative to the hedged items are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2015 Gain (Loss) on Dertixee Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
(Millions) Recognized in Income Recognized in Income
Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ (2) Interestexpens $ 2
Total $ 2 $ 2
Year ended December 31, 2014 Gain (Loss) on Deriiee Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
(Millions) Recognized in Income Recognized in Income
Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 11 Interest expens $ (1)
Total $ 11 $ (11)
Year ended December 31, 2013 Gain (Loss) on Derfiee Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
(Millions) Recognized in Income Recognized in Income
Derivatives in Fair Value Hedging Relationships Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ (21, Interest expens $ 21
Total $ (21) $ 21

Net Investment Hedges:

The Company may use non-derivative (foreign culyatenominated debt) and derivative (foreign exclediogward
contracts) instruments to hedge portions of the @omg’s investment in foreign subsidiaries and marfageign
exchange risk. For instruments that are desigremtddjualify as hedges of net investments in forejgerations and that
meet the effectiveness requirements, the net gailtsses attributable to changes in spot excheatgs are recorded in
cumulative translation within other comprehensiveoime. The remainder of the change in value of susthuments is
recorded in earnings. Recognition in earnings odamts previously recorded in cumulative translat®limited to
circumstances such as complete or substantiallyptimliquidation of the net investment in the hediforeign
operation. To the extent foreign currency denoneidatebt is not designated in or is dedesignated &met investment
hedge relationship, changes in value of that pomioforeign currency denominated debt due to exghaate changes
are recorded in earnings through their maturitg dat

3M's use of foreign exchange forward contracts glesied in hedges of the Company’s net investmeiatr&ign
subsidiaries can vary by time period depending bamwforeign currency denominated debt balancegulasd in such
relationships are dedesignated, matured, or aré/nesued and designated. Additionally, variati@m©ccur in
connection with the extent of the Company’s desfoedign exchange risk coverage.

At December 31, 2015, the total notional amourfbodign exchange forward contracts designated irnnvestment
hedges was approximately 974 million Euros and @pprately 248 billion South Korean Won, along wathprincipal
amount of long-term debt instruments designatateirinvestment hedges totaling 3.6 billion Eurdse Taturity dates
of these derivative and nonderivative instrumeesghated in net investment hedges range from £02630.
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The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathlbbases
related to derivative and nonderivative instrumel@signated as net investment hedges are as folldvese were no
reclassifications of the effective portion of netéstment hedges out of accumulated other compsaleeimcome into

income for the periods presented in the table below

Year ended December 31, 2015

Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Investment Hedging

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation
within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) on
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing

Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ 63 N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts 143 Cost of sales 11
Total $ 206 $ 11

Year ended December 31, 2014

Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Investment Hedging

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation
within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) on
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing

Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ 152 N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts 94 ost of sales 1
Total $ 246 $ 1

Year ended December 31, 2013

Derivative and Nonderivative Instruments in Net Investment Hedging

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation
within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) on
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing

Relationships Instrument Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (82) N/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts 1Zost of sales —
Total $ (70) $ —

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:

Derivatives not designated as hedging instrumeniside dedesignated foreign currency forward arndbogontracts
that formerly were designated in cash flow hedgglgtionships (as referenced in the Cash Flow Hedgetion above).
In addition, 3M enters into foreign currency for@iaontracts to offset, in part, the impacts of@iartntercompany
activities (primarily associated with intercompditgnsing arrangements) and enters into commaodite swaps to
offset, in part, fluctuations in costs associatétth the use of certain commaodities and preciousateeT hese derivative
instruments are not designated in hedging reldtipss therefore, fair value gains and losses osetwentracts are
recorded in earnings. The Company does not hoissae derivative financial instruments for tradmgposes.
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The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toati@gvinstruments
not designated as hedging instruments are as fellow

Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in Income

Year ended Year ended Year ended

December31, December31, December31,
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments 2015 2014 2013
(Millions) Location Amount Amount Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Costofsales $ 5 % 10 $ 20
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest expen (30) (40) (43)
Commaodity price swap contracts Cost of sales 3) — Q)

Total $ (28) $ (30) $ (24)

Location and Fair Value Amount of Derivative Instrents:

The following tables summarize the fair value of'8Merivative instruments, excluding nonderivatinstruments used
as hedging instruments, and their location in thesolidated balance sheet. Notional amounts befewpr@sented at
period end foreign exchange rates, except for iceiriterest rate swaps, which are presented ukmgnteption date’s
foreign exchange rate. Additional information wigspect to the fair value of derivative instrumastscluded in Note
13.

Gross Assets Liabilities
December 31, 2015 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts ~ $ 2,815 Other current ass¢ $ 148 Other current liabilitie $ 14
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,240 Other assets 61 Other liabilities 3
Interest rate swap contracts 1,753 Other assets o 24  Other liabilities o 1
Total derivatives designated as hedging
instruments $ 233 $ 18
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5,359 Other current assets  $ 63 Other current liabilities $ 51
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 63 $ 51
Total derivative instruments $ 296 $ 69
Gross Assets Liabilities
December 31, 2014 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts ~ $ 1,865 Other current ass¢ $ 116 Other current liabilitie $ 2
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 65®ther assets 47 Other liabilities 1
Commodity price swap contracts 20 Other current ass¢ —  Other current liabilitie 4
Interest rate swap contracts 1,003 Other assets 27 Other liabilities 3
Total derivatives designated as hedging
instruments $ 190 $ 10
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts ~ $ 6,582 Other current asst $ 66 Other current liabilitie $ 83
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 66 $ 33
Total derivative instruments $ 256 $ 43
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Credit Risk and Offsetting of Assets and Liab#itié Derivative Instruments:

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interest sataps, currency
swaps, commodity price swaps, and forward and pmiamtracts. However, the Company’s risk is limitedhe fair
value of the instruments. The Company actively nowsiits exposure to credit risk through the useretiit approvals
and credit limits, and by selecting major interoatl banks and financial institutions as countdigsr3M enters into
master netting arrangements with counterpartieswplossible to mitigate credit risk in derivativartsactions. A master
netting arrangement may allow each counterpartetcsettle amounts owed between a 3M entity anddhaterparty
as a result of multiple, separate derivative tratisas. As of December 31, 2015, 3M has Internati@waps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreements with pplacable banks and financial institutions whichntzin netting
provisions. In addition to a master agreement @ihsupported by a primary counterparty’s parentrgotee, 3M also
has associated credit support agreements in plakel @ of its primary derivative counterparties athi among other
things, provide the circumstances under which eplagty is required to post eligible collateral @uhthe market value
of transactions covered by these agreements exspedgied thresholds or if a counterparty’s crediing has been
downgraded to a predetermined rating). The Compaeg not anticipate nonperformance by any of these
counterparties.

3M has elected to present the fair value of derreadissets and liabilities within the Company’s saidated balance
sheet on a gross basis even when derivative tréosa@re subject to master netting arrangementsray otherwise
qualify for net presentation. However, the follogitables provide information as if the Company bbsttted to offset
the asset and liability balances of derivativerimsients, netted in accordance with various critieriie event of default
or termination as stipulated by the terms of ngtirrangements with each of the counterpartiese&on counterparty,
if netted, the Company would offset the asset @tillity balances of all derivatives at the endhad reporting period
based on the 3M entity that is a party to the tatiens. Derivatives not subject to master nettiggeements are not
eligible for net presentation. As of the applicathéges presented below, no cash collateral hadeeeived or pledged
related to these derivative instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Assets under Master NettingAgreements with Derivative Counterparties

December 31, 2015 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Aot of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 296 $ 37 % — 3 259
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 296 $ 259
December 31, 2014 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Aot of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 256 $ 20 $ — 3 236
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 256 $ 236
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Offsetting of Financial Liabilities under Master Netting Agreements with Derivative Counterparties

December 31, 2015 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Amat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 64 $ 37 % — % 27
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 5 5
Total $ 69 $ 32
December 31, 2014 Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject
Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
Consolidated Recognized Cash Collateral Net Amat of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 36 $ 20 $ — % 16
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 7 7
Total $ 43 $ 23

Foreign Currency Effects

3M estimates that year-on-year foreign currencysaation effects, including hedging impacts, insegbpre-tax income
by approximately $180 million and $10 million inZ®and 2014, respectively. These estimates indhadsaction

gains and losses, including derivative instrumeetsigned to reduce foreign currency exchange islits and the
negative impact of swapping Venezuelan bolivars ihiS. dollars.

NOTE 13. Fair Value Measurements

3M follows ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosyregth respect to assets and liabilities that aeasnred
at fair value on a recurring basis and nonrecurbiasgjs. Under the standard, fair value is defireetha exit price, or the
amount that would be received to sell an assetit o transfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market
participants as of the measurement date. The sthadizo establishes a hierarchy for inputs useddasuring fair value
that maximizes the use of observable inputs andmies the use of unobservable inputs by requittirag) the most
observable inputs be used when available. Obseraplits are inputs market participants would asealuing the
asset or liability developed based on market dhtaiwed from sources independent of the CompangbBervable
inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s asgiomp about the factors market participants wowd i valuing the
asset or liability developed based upon the béstrimation available in the circumstances. The madrgis broken down
into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted pricesdjusted) in active markets for identical essetliabilities. Level 2
inputs include quoted prices for similar assetkadnilities in active markets, quoted prices foemtical or similar assets
or liabilities in markets that are not active, ampluts (other than quoted prices) that are obsésvfab the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3puts are unobservable inputs for the asset diitialCategorization
within the valuation hierarchy is based upon thedst level of input that is significant to the faalue measurement.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faifuéaon a Recurring Basis:

For 3M, assets and liabilities that are measurddimavalue on a recurring basis primarily relaieat/ailable-for-sale
marketable securities, available-for-sale investsiéncluded as part of investments in the Conatdid Balance Sheet)
and certain derivative instruments. Derivativedude cash flow hedges, interest rate swaps and medsvestment
hedges. The information in the following paragraphd tables primarily addresses matters relativkdse financial
assets and liabilities. Separately, there were aternal fair value measurements with respect tdinancial assets or
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liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at Yailue in the Company’s financial statements oecarring basis for
2015 and 2014.

3M uses various valuation techniques, which amagrily based upon the market and income approaghgsrespect
to financial assets and liabilities. Following igl@scription of the valuation methodologies usedtie respective
financial assets and liabilities measured at faiug.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — excegtain U.S. municipal securities:

Marketable securities, except certain U.S. muniapaurities, are valued utilizing multiple sourcAswveighted average
price is used for these securities. Market pricesoitained for these securities from a varietindistry standard data
providers, security master files from large finahénstitutions, and other third-party sources. Sehenultiple prices are
used as inputs into a distribution-curve-basedralyn to determine the daily fair value to be usgi. classifies U.S.
treasury securities as level 1, while all otherkatable securities (excluding certain U.S. municgegurities) are
classified as level 2. Marketable securities asewlised further in Note 9.

Available-for-sale marketable securities —certais.Ununicipal securities only:

In the fourth quarter 2014, 3M obtained a municlpahd with the City of Nevada, Missouri, which repent 3M’s only
U.S. municipal securities holding as of December281L5. Due to the nature of this security, theiaibn method
utilized will include the financial health of thatZ of Nevada, any recent municipal bond issuangeSevada, and
macroeconomic considerations related to the doedif interest rates and the health of the ovenalhicipal bond
market, and as such will be classified as a levsd@urity.

Available-for-sale investments:

Investments include equity securities that areeiisid an active market. Closing stock prices aaglifg available from
active markets and are used as being representditia@ value. 3M classifies these securitiesea®l 1.

Derivative instruments:

The Company’s derivative assets and liabilitieimithe scope of ASC 81Berivatives and Hedgingre required to
be recorded at fair value. The Company’s derivatibhat are recorded at fair value include foreigmency forward and
option contracts, commodity price swaps, interatt swaps, and net investment hedges where théngadgtrument is
recorded at fair value. Net investment hedgesubatforeign currency denominated debt to hedge 3tsnvestment
are not impacted by the fair value measurementlatanunder ASC 820, as the debt used as the henhgitngment is
marked to a value with respect to changes in spetdn currency exchange rates and not with redpeather factors
that may impact fair value.

3M has determined that foreign currency forwargsnmodity price swaps, currency swaps, foreign ewyeptions,
interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps &itidmsidered level 2 measurements. 3M uses inghes than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset. Thesgsipclude foreign currency exchange rates, Jilas, and interest
rates. Derivative positions are primarily valuethgsstandard calculations/models that use as Kasis readily
observable market parameters. Industry standaedptaviders are 3M’s primary source for forward apdt rate
information for both interest rates and currendgsawith resulting valuations periodically validdtthrough third-party
or counterparty quotes and a net present valuarstod cash flows model.
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The following tables provide information by levekfassets and liabilities that are measured atv#dire on a recurring

basis.
Fair Value Measurements

(Millions) Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
Description December 31, 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Legel
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Foreign government agency securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ —
Corporate debt securities 10 — 10 —
Commercial paper 12 — 12 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 26 — 26 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 26 — 26 —
Credit card related 10 — 10 —
Equipment lease related 2 — 2 —
Other 19 — 19 —
U.S. municipal securities 12 — — 12
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 272 — 272 —
Interest rate swap contracts 24 — 24 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 68 — 68 —
Interest rate swap contracts 1 — 1 —

Fair Value Measurements

(Millions) Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
Description December 31, 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Legel
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

U.S. government agency securities $ 108 $ — $ 108 $ —
Foreign government agency securities 95 — 95 —
Corporate debt securities 619 — 619 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 41 — 41 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 282 — 282 —
Credit card related 162 — 162 —
Equipment lease related 48 — 48 —
Other 46 — 46 —
U.S. treasury securities 38 38 — —
U.S. municipal securities 15 — — 15
Investments 1 1 — —
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 229 — 229 —
Interest rate swap contracts 27 — 27 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 36 — 36 —
Commaodity price swap contracts 4 — 4 —
Interest rate swap contracts 3 — 3 —
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The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances of items measutifedt aalue on a
recurring basis in the table above that used scgmif unobservable inputs (level 3).

(Millions)
Marketable securities — certain U.S. municipal seaities and auction rate
securities only 2015 2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 15 $ 11 $ 7
Total gains or losses:
Included in earnings — (D) —
Included in other comprehensive income — 2 4
Purchases and issuances — 15 —
Sales and settlements 3) (12) —
Transfers in and/or out of level 3 — — —
Ending balance 12 15 11

Change in unrealized gains or losses for the péniddded in
earnings for securities held at the end of the nt@mpperiod — — —

In addition, the plan assets of 3M’s pension anstnetirement benefit plans are measured at fairevah a recurring
basis (at least annually). Refer to Note 11.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faifléaon a Nonrecurring Basis:

Disclosures are required for certain assets abditias that are measured at fair value, but amgnized and disclosed
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in periodsssguent to initial recognition. For 3M, such meaments of fair
value relate primarily to long-lived asset impaintg There were no material long-lived asset immpaits for 2015,
2014 and 2013.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Company’s financial instruments include cash @ash equivalents, marketable securities, accoaotivable,
certain investments, accounts payable, borrowiaigd,derivative contracts. The fair values of cagh@ash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and shantkiierrowings and current portion of long-term d@btcept the
medium-term fixed rate notes totaling $1 billiorhish will mature in September 2016 and are showasgely in the
table below) approximated carrying values becatiseeoshort-term nature of these instruments. Audéd-for-sale
marketable securities and investments, in additiarertain derivative instruments, are recordefdiatvalues as
indicated in the preceding disclosures. For itgtarm debt, the Company utilized third-party qgdte estimate fair
values (classified as level 2). Information witspect to the carrying amounts and estimated féilegeof these
financial instruments follow:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(Millions) Value Value Value Value
Medium-term fixed rate note due September 2016g¢on
term in 2014 and short-term in 2015) $ 999 % 1,003 $ 996 $ 1,014
Long-term debt, excluding current portion and medierm
fixed rate note due September 2016 8,753 9,101 5,709 6,189

The fair values reflected above consider the terhtke related debt absent the impacts of derie&tizdging activity.
The carrying amount of long-term debt referencemvalis impacted by certain fixed-to-floating intereate swaps that
are designated as fair value hedges and by thgrdeiin of fixed rate Eurobond securities issuetheyCompany as
hedging instruments of the Company’s net investrireits European subsidiaries. Many of 3M'’s fixeder bonds were
trading at a premium at December 31, 2015 and 20&4o the low interest rates and tightening of 8kfedit spreads.
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NOTE 14. Commitments and Contingencies
Capital and Operating Leases:

Rental expense under operating leases was $31i6mmill 2015, $332 million in 2014 and $330 million2013. It is
3M'’s practice to secure renewal rights for leasigsx,eby giving 3M the right, but not the obligatido maintain a
presence in a leased facility. 3M has three princapjtal leases. First, 3M has a capital leasechvhecame effective in
April 2003, that involves a building in the Unit&éhgdom (with a lease term of 22 years). During $keond quarter of
2003, 3M recorded a capital lease asset and oioligaf approximately 33.5 million British Pound (®R or
approximately $50 million at December 31, 2015 hexge rates. Second, during the fourth quarte00923M
recorded a capital lease asset and obligationmroapmnately $50 million related to an IT investmevith an
amortization period of seven years. Third, in tharth quarter of 2014, 3M recorded a capital leesset and obligation
of approximately $15 million, which is discussediore detail in Note 7.

Minimum lease payments under capital and operdgiages with non-cancelable terms in excess of eaegs of
December 31, 2015, were as follows:

Operating
(Millions) Capital Leases Leases
2016 $ 11 $ 234
2017 6 191
2018 4 134
2019 3 86
2020 3 72
After 2020 32 226
Total $ 59 $ 943
Less: Amounts representing interest 5
Present value of future minimum lease payments 54
Less: Current obligations under capital leases 8
Long-term obligations under capital leases $ 46

Unconditional Purchase Obligations:

Unconditional purchase obligations are definedreagreement to purchase goods or services thafasceable and
legally binding (non-cancelable, or cancelable anlgertain circumstances). The Company estimatdstal
unconditional purchase obligation commitment (fayste contracts with terms in excess of one yeasf Becember 31,
2015, at $596 million. Payments by year are esgéthas follows: 2016 ($193 million), 2017 ($160 oifl), 2018 ($102
million), 2019 ($54 million), 2020 ($56 million) drafter 2020 ($31 million). Many of these commitrieerelate to take
or pay contracts, in which 3M guarantees paymeangure availability of products or services thatsold to
customers. The Company expects to receive considie@roducts or services) for these unconditignathase
obligations. The purchase obligation amounts da@otesent the entire anticipated purchases ifuthee, but represent
only those items for which the Company is contraltyuobligated. The majority of 3M’s products arehsces are
purchased as needed, with no unconditional commitni@r this reason, these amounts will not proadeéndication
of the Company’s expected future cash outflowstedl#o purchase obligations.

Warranties/Guarantees:
3M’s accrued product warranty liabilities, recordedthe Consolidated Balance Sheet as part of muared long-term
liabilities, are estimated at approximately $28lioil at December 31, 2015, and $30 million at Delsen81, 2014. 3M

does not consider this amount to be material. &ivevalue of 3M guarantees of loans with third gasrand other
guarantee arrangements are not material.
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Related Party Activity:

3M does not have any material related party agtivit

Legal Proceedings:

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are imebln numerous claims and lawsuits, principallyhia United
States, and regulatory proceedings worldwide. Thredede various products liability (involving prodts that the
Company now or formerly manufactured and soldgliettual property, and commercial claims and latssincluding
those brought under the antitrust laws, and enwemtal proceedings. Unless otherwise stated, tmep@ay is
vigorously defending all such litigation.

Process for Disclosure and Recording of Liabili@sl Insurance Receivables Related to Legal Prowgsed

Many lawsuits and claims involve highly complexuss relating to causation, scientific evidence, whdther there are
actual damages and are otherwise subject to stildtamcertainties. Assessments of lawsuits andnslaan involve a
series of complex judgments about future eventscandely heavily on estimates and assumptions.Cidrapany
complies with the requirements of ASC 48ntingenciesand related guidance, and records liabilitieddgal
proceedings in those instances where it can rebBoastimate the amount of the loss and whereliigli$ probable.
Where the reasonable estimate of the probabldéda@ssange, the Company records the most likelynase of the loss,
or the low end of the range if there is no one betitnate. The Company either discloses the anafunpossible loss
or range of loss in excess of established acciuadimable, or states that such an estimate ¢dmmade. The
Company discloses significant legal proceedings evieere liability is not probable or the amounttaf liability is not
estimable, or both, if the Company believes thera ieast a reasonable possibility that a lossheapncurred.

The Company estimates insurance receivables bawsad analysis of its numerous policies, includingjit exclusions,
pertinent case law interpreting comparable polidisexperience with similar claims, and assessmethe nature of
the claim and remaining coverage, and records auanit has concluded is likely to be recovered. those insured
matters where the Company has taken an accruaGdh®any also records receivables for the amouimsofance that
it expects to recover under the Company’s insurgnegram. For those insured matters where the Coynpas not
taken an accrual because the liability is not pbtdar the amount of the liability is not estimalde both, but where the
Company has incurred an expense in defending,itbelfCompany records receivables for the amouintsoffance that
it expects to recover for the expense incurred.

Because litigation is subject to inherent uncetimsn and unfavorable rulings or developments cougllr, there can be
no certainty that the Company may not ultimatetyuincharges in excess of presently recorded ltasliA future
adverse ruling, settlement, or unfavorable develmroould result in future charges that could hewveaterial adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations shdws in the period in which they are recordgithough the
Company cannot estimate its exposure to all legaiqedings, it currently believes that such futthrarges, if any,
would not have a material adverse effect on thesaligetted financial position of the Company. Basadexperience
and developments, the Company reexamines its @smé probable liabilities and associated expeasdseceivables
each period, and whether it is able to estimataldlity previously determined to be not estimahfel/or not probable.
Where appropriate, the Company makes additions &mljoistments of its estimated liabilities. As aulg the current
estimates of the potential impact on the Compaaogissolidated financial position, results of opemasi and cash flows
for the legal proceedings and claims pending ag#tiesCompany could change in the future.

The following sections first describe the significéegal proceedings in which the Company is inedlvand then

describe the liabilities and associated insuraaceivables the Company has accrued relating sigtsficant legal
proceedings.
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Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation

As of December 31, 2015, the Company is a nameshdaht, with multiple co-defendants, in numerousslats in
various courts that purport to represent approxetge,130 individual claimants, compared to appmadely 2,220
individual claimants with actions pending at DecemB1, 2014.

The vast majority of the lawsuits and claims resdlby and currently pending against the Compamgallse of some
of the Company’s mask and respirator products apf damages from the Company and other defendamatiéged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsestitica, coal mine dust or other occupationaksiémund in
products manufactured by other defendants or giypé@rahe workplace. A minority of the lawsuits édglaims resolved
by and currently pending against the Company gdgeriéege personal injury from occupational expasto asbestos
from products previously manufactured by the Compparhich are often unspecified, as well as produtsufactured
by other defendants, or occasionally at Compangnses.

The Company'’s current volume of new and pendingemais substantially lower than it experiencethatpeak of
filings in 2003. The Company expects that filingctdims by unimpaired claimants in the future waintinue to be at
much lower levels than in the past. Accordingly thumber of claims alleging more serious injuriesluding
mesothelioma and other malignancies, will repreaagieater percentage of total claims than in . @he Company
has prevailed in all ten cases taken to trialudiclg eight of the nine cases tried to verdict fisuials occurred in 1999,
2000, 2001, 2003, 2004, 2007, and 2015), and aellappreversal in 2005 of the 2001 jury verdicterde to the
Company. The remaining case, tried in 2009, wawigised by the court at the close of plaintiff'sdmnce, based on the
court’s legal finding that the plaintiff had notgsented sufficient evidence to support a jury atrdi

The Company has demonstrated in these past toakpdings that its respiratory protection prodactseffective as
claimed when used in the intended manner and imtbaded circumstances. Consequently the Compaelisyes that
claimants are unable to establish that their médimaditions, even if significant, are attributalhbethe Company’s
respiratory protection products. Nonetheless theamy’s litigation experience indicates that clamhpersons with
malignant conditions are costlier to resolve tHandlaims of unimpaired persons, and it therefeteebes the average
cost of resolving pending and future claims on agb@m basis will continue to be higher than ipexienced in prior
periods when the vast majority of claims were dsslny the unimpaired.

As previously reported, the State of West Virgitlapugh its Attorney General, filed a complaini@03 against the
Company and two other manufacturers of respirgbooyection products in the Circuit Court of Lincddounty, West
Virginia, and amended its complaint in 2005. Theeaded complaint seeks substantial, but unspecifitipensatory
damages primarily for reimbursement of the codegetly incurred by the State for worker’s compéinsaand
healthcare benefits provided to all workers witbugmational pneumoconiosis and unspecified pundanmages. The
case has been inactive since the fourth quart20@7, other than a case management conferencerchial11. In
November 2013, the State filed a motion to bifuedhie lawsuit into separate liability and damagesgedings. At the
hearing on the motion, the court declined to biitreahe lawsuit. No liability has been recordedtfis matter because
the Company believes that liability is not probadohel estimable at this time. In addition, the Comypia not able to
estimate a possible loss or range of loss givetattieof any meaningful discovery responses byState of West
Virginia, the otherwise minimal activity in thiss@and the fact that the complaint asserts clagamat two other
manufacturers where a defendant’s share of lighiliay turn on the law of joint and several lialyilnd by the amount
of fault, if any, a jury might allocate to each eleflant if the case is ultimately tried.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Liabilities and InsuraReeeivables: The Company estimates its respiratskfasbestos
liabilities, including the cost to resolve the aiai and defense costs, by examining: (i) the Conipaxperience in
resolving claims, (ii) apparent trends, (iii) theparent quality of claims (e.g., whether the claims been asserted on
behalf of asymptomatic claimants), (iv) changethannature and mix of claims (e.g., the proportibnlaims asserting
usage of the Company’s mask or respirator procamtsalleging exposure to each of asbestos, silazl,or other
occupational dusts, and claims pleading use ofshasbeontaining products allegedly manufacturetheyCompany),
(v) the number of current claims and a projectibthe number of future asbestos and other claimsrttay be filed
against the Company, (vi) the cost to resolve rigeettled claims, and (vii) an estimate of thetdo resolve and
defend against current and future claims.
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Developments may occur that could affect the Comisagstimate of its liabilities. These developmeantdude, but are
not limited to, significant changes in (i) the nuenlof future claims, (ii) the average cost of resga claims, (iii) the
legal costs of defending these claims and in maimg trial readiness, (iv) changes in the mix aature of claims
received, (v) trial and appellate outcomes, (vArades in the law and procedure applicable to tblesms, and (vii) the
financial viability of other co-defendants and irems.

As a result of the Company’s cost of resolvingrasiof persons who claim more serious injuries udiclg
mesothelioma and other malignancies, the Compagaised its accruals in 2015 for respirator mabk&tes liabilities
by $50 million. In 2015, the Company made paymémtéegal fees and settlements of $46 million rexdito the
respirator mask/asbestos litigation. As of Decen®iger2015, the Company had accruals for respiratmk/asbestos
liabilities of $144 million (excluding Aearo accilgp This accrual represents the low end in a raridess. The
Company cannot estimate the amount or upper ettteafinge of amounts by which the liability may ead the accrual
the Company has established because of the (i)enhdifficulty in projecting the number of clairttzgat have not yet
been asserted or the time period in which futuaéwd may be asserted, (ii) the complaints neariyagé assert claims
against multiple defendants where the damageseallate typically not attributed to individual dedamts so that a
defendant’s share of liability may turn on the lafjoint and several liability, which can vary biate, (iii) the multiple
factors described above that the Company conside&stimating its liabilities, and (iv) the sevepalssible
developments described above that may occur théd edfect the Company’s estimate of liabilities.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company’s receivalliéisurance recoveries related to the respiratmkiasbestos
litigation was $39 million. The Company estimatesurance receivables based on an analysis oflitsg® including
their exclusions, pertinent case law interpretiaparable policies, its experience with similairos and an
assessment of the nature of each claim and rengatoiverage. The Company then records an amouasitdincluded
is likely to be recovered. Various factors coultkef the timing and amount of recovery of this reable, including

(i) delays in or avoidance of payment by insuréisthe extent to which insurers may become insohin the future,
and (iii) the outcome of negotiations with insurargl legal proceedings with respect to respira@skiasbestos liability
insurance coverage.

The Company has unresolved coverage with claimseroadiers for respirator mask claims. The Compamyso
seeking coverage under the policies of certainles insurers. Once those claims for coverageeselved, the
Company will have collected substantially all &f iemaining insurance coverage for respirator nagble'stos claims.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation — Aearo Tecba@s

On April 1, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company pasgd the stock of Aearo Holding Corp., the paréitearo
Technologies (“Aearo”). Aearo manufactured and s@ldous products, including personal protectionigapent, such
as eye, ear, head, face, fall and certain respyratotection products.

As of December 31, 2015, Aearo and/or other congsathiat previously owned and operated Aearo’s ragpibusiness
(American Optical Corporation, Warner-Lambert LLAD Corp. and Cabot Corporation (“Cabot”)) are named
defendants, with multiple co-defendants, includimg Company, in numerous lawsuits in various cadartghich
plaintiffs allege use of mask and respirator préasiand seek damages from Aearo and other defenfibarastbeged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsestitica-related, or other occupational dusts tbimproducts
manufactured by other defendants or generallyenatbrkplace.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company, through &aré subsidiary, had accruals of $21 million fardarct liabilities
and defense costs related to current and futurecAedated asbestos and silica-related claims. &tesbility for legal
costs, as well as for settlements and judgmentsiriently shared in an informal arrangement ambearo, Cabot,
American Optical Corporation and a subsidiary ofriiéa Lambert and their respective insurers (theytiP&roup”).
Liability is allocated among the parties basedtenrtumber of years each company sold respirataguats under the
“AO Safety” brand and/or owned the AO Safety Digisiof American Optical Corporation and the allegedrs of
exposure of the individual plaintiff. Aearo’s sharfethe contingent liability is further limited kgn agreement entered
into between Aearo and Cabot on July 11, 1995. agisement provides that, so long as Aearo pagsibot a
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quarterly fee of $100,000, Cabot will retain resgibitity and liability for, and indemnify Aearo aigat, any product
liability claims involving exposure to asbestogicsi, or silica products for respirators sold ptio July 11, 1995.
Because of the difficulty in determining how longarticular respirator remains in the stream of cmrce after being
sold, Aearo and Cabot have applied the agreememitns arising out of the alleged use of respmatovolving
exposure to asbestos, silica or silica producty poi January 1, 1997. With these arrangementtatepAearo’s
potential liability is limited to exposures allegedhave arisen from the use of respirators invg\@xposure to
asbestos, silica, or silica products on or aftauday 1, 1997. To date, Aearo has elected to paygtharterly fee. Aearo
could potentially be exposed to additional claimsdome part of the pre-July 11, 1995 period calénseits agreement
with Cabot if Aearo elects to discontinue its paption in this arrangement, or if Cabot is nogenable to meet its
obligations in these matters.

In March 2012, Cabot CSC Corporation and Cabot @atpon filed a lawsuit against Aearo in the Supe@ourt of
Suffolk County, Massachusetts seeking declaraigfras to the scope of Cabot’s indemnity obligasi under the
July 11, 1995 agreement, including whether Cabstratained liability for coal workers’ pneumocongslaims, and
seeking damages for breach of contract. In Jund,28& court granted Aearo’s motion for summarygjuent on all
claims. Cabot has filed a motion for reconsideratand Aearo filed a motion for clarification oktleourt’s order
granting Aearo summary judgment. In October 204 dourt denied Aearo’s motion for clarificatiorhélcourt also
denied, in part, Cabot’'s motion for reconsideratonl reaffirmed its ruling that Cabot retained iligbfor claims
involving exposure to silica in coal mine dust. Tdoairt granted Cabot’s motion, in part, ruling tAaaro was not
entitled to summary judgment on Cabot’s claim fguitable allocation, and on whether the 258 undeglglaims were
Cabot’s responsibility. These two issues remaithéncase for further proceedings. New motions fionmary judgment
were filed and the court heard oral arguments itoler 2015.

Developments may occur that could affect the esérmofAearo’s liabilities. These developments ing@ubut are not
limited to: (i) significant changes in the numbéifuture claims, (ii) significant changes in theeaage cost of resolving
claims, (iii) significant changes in the legal ®st defending these claims, (iv) significant chesgn the mix and
nature of claims received, (v) trial and appellatécomes, (vi) significant changes in the law aretpdure applicable
to these claims, (vii) significant changes in tiadility allocation among the co-defendants, (Miiig financial viability
of members of the Payor Group including exhaustioavailable insurance coverage limits, and/or éxjetermination
that the interpretation of the contractual obligas on which Aearo has estimated its share oflifiplis inaccurate. The
Company cannot determine the impact of these datelgvelopments on its current estimate of Aeasbare of
liability for these existing and future claimsalfy of the developments described above were torpttee actual
amount of these liabilities for existing and futataims could be significantly larger than the amioaccrued.

Because of the inherent difficulty in projecting thumber of claims that have not yet been assedtted;omplexity of
allocating responsibility for future claims amomg tPayor Group, and the several possible develojsntigat may occur
that could affect the estimate of Aearo’s liab#l#tj the Company cannot estimate the amount or @re@ounts by
which Aearo’s liability may exceed the accrual @@mpany has established.

Environmental Matters and Litigation

The Company’s operations are subject to environahdgntvs and regulations including those pertainngir emissions,
wastewater discharges, toxic substances, and titing and disposal of solid and hazardous wastémeeable by
national, state, and local authorities around thddy and private parties in the United States a@mead. These laws and
regulations provide, under certain circumstancdmsas for the remediation of contamination, fatoeation of or
compensation for damages to natural resourcesoamersonal injury and property damage claims. Thenpany has
incurred, and will continue to incur, costs andidgxpenditures in complying with these laws aaglulations,
defending personal injury and property damage daand modifying its business operations in lighto

environmental responsibilities. In its effort tdisty its environmental responsibilities and compliyh environmental
laws and regulations, the Company has establigimetperiodically updates, policies relating to eowimental

standards of performance for its operations wordigwi

Under certain environmental laws, including thetgdiStates Comprehensive Environmental Responsep&usation
and Liability Act of 1980 and similar state lawsetCompany may be jointly and severally liablejdgjly with other
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companies, for the costs of remediation of envirental contamination at current or former faciliteex at off-site
locations. The Company has identified numeroustions, most of which are in the United States, kictvit may have
some liability. Please refer to the section erditiEnvironmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivablédsat follows for
information on the amount of the accrual.

Environmental Matters

As previously reported, the Company has been vatilptcooperating with ongoing reviews by locahtst, federal
(primarily the U.S. Environmental Protection Agef&PA)), and international agencies of possibleremmental and
health effects of various perfluorinated compoufiesCs”), including perfluorooctanyl compounds swash
perfluorooctanoate (“PFOA”") and perfluorooctandmudite (“PFOS”). As a result of its phase-out decisn

May 2000, the Company no longer manufactures padlactanyl compounds. The company ceased manuifagtand
using the vast majority of these compounds witlgipraximately two years of the phase-out announcénaen ceased
all manufacturing and the last significant usehi$ themistry by the end of 2008. Through its ongdife cycle
management and its raw material composition idieatibn processes associated with the Companyisigsicovering
the use of all persistent and bio-accumulative rniats the Company has on occasion identified tiesgnce of
precursor chemicals in materials received from Beppthat may ultimately degrade to PFOA, PFOSsimilar
compounds. Upon such identification, the Companyke/to find alternatives for such materials.

Regulatory activities concerning PFOA and/or PFOftiaue in the United States, Europe and elsewlaet pefore
certain international bodies. These activitiesudel gathering of exposure and use information,agsgdessment, and
consideration of regulatory approaches. As theldesa of studies of both chemicals has expandedtRitehas
developed draft human health effects documents suimimg the available data from these studies.dbri&ary 2014,
the EPA initiated external peer review of its ditafiman health effects documents for PFOA and PR®S peer review
panel met in August 2014. The EPA has stated dtlatiing the peer review process it will revisetisalth effects
documents and use them to establish lifetime healisories for PFOS and PFOA in drinking watefetiine health
advisories, while not enforceable, serve as guidamd are benchmarks for determining if concemtnatof chemicals
in tap water from public utilities are safe for finlronsumption. Once finalized, the EPA stated tha lifetime health
advisories are expected to supersede the providieadth advisories for PFOA and PFOS in drinkirgtev issued by
the EPA in 2009 — currently at 0.4 micrograms fter for PFOA and 0.2 micrograms per liter for PE@San effort to
collect exposure information under the Safe Drigkilater Act, the EPA published on May 2, 2012 &dfsunregulated
substances, including six PFCs, required to be tm@d during the period 2013-2015 by public watestesm supplies to
determine the extent of their occurrence. The B porting results from this exercise on a rolliagis that will
continue in 2016. Through year-end 2015, the EP#rbported results for 4,764 public water suppigsonwide. None
of these have reported PFOA above the provisiogaltih advisory level issued by the EPA in 2009, sexknteen have
reported PFOS levels above the 2009 provisiondtihadvisory.

The Company is continuing to make progress in agskwunder the supervision of state regulatorgddress its historic
disposal of PFC-containing waste associated withufeeturing operations at the Decatur, Alabamataget Grove,
Minnesota, and Cordova, lllinois plants.

As previously reported, the Company entered intolantary remedial action agreement with the Alabdbepartment
of Environmental Management (ADEM) to address ttesence of PFCs in the soil at the Company’s maturfag
facility in Decatur, Alabama. Pursuant to a perissued by ADEM, for approximately twenty years, @@mpany
incorporated its wastewater treatment plant slugggaining PFCs in fields at its Decatur facilif§fter a review of the
available options to address the presence of Pir@®isoil, ADEM agreed that the preferred reméatiabption is to
use a multilayer cap over the former sludge incafion areas on the manufacturing site with subseggroundwater
migration controls and treatment. Implementatiothat option will continue and is expected to bmpteted in 2018.

The Company continues to work with the Minnesotlution Control Agency (MPCA) pursuant to the ternfghe
previously disclosed May 2007 Settlement Agreena@t Consent Order to address the presence ofrc@f&ls in the
soil and groundwater at former disposal sites irshifegton County, Minnesota (Oakdale and Woodbung) a& the
Company’s manufacturing facility at Cottage GroMénnesota. Under this agreement, the Company’'ipah
obligations include (i) evaluating releases of @@rPFCs from these sites and proposing respotieasic(ii) providing
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treatment or alternative drinking water upon idgintg any level exceeding a Health Based Value (\WBor Health
Risk Limit (“HRL") (i.e., the amount of a chemical drinking water determined by the Minnesota Dépant of Health
(MDH) to be safe for human consumption over ailifief) for certain PFCs for which a HBV and/or HRtists as a
result of contamination from these sites; (iii) ediating identified sources of other PFCs at tisitss that are not
controlled by actions to remediate PFOA and PF@8;(&) sharing information with the MPCA about tzén
perfluorinated compounds. During 2008, the MPCAiggssformal decisions adopting remedial optionglierformer
disposal sites in Washington County, Minnesota (@aékand Woodbury). In August 2009, the MPCA issaédrmal
decision adopting remedial options for the Compai@ottage Grove manufacturing facility. During Hpging and
summer of 2010, 3M began implementing the agreet upmedial options at the Cottage Grove and Wogdsites.
3M commenced the remedial option at the Oakdadeisitate 2010. At each location the remedial opgivere
recommended by the Company and approved by the MRE&/ediation work has been completed at the Oalatad
Woodbury sites, and they are in an operational taaance mode. Remediation will continue at thedgmtGrove site
during 2016.

In August 2014, the lllinois EPA approved a requmsthe Company to establish a groundwater manageroae at its
manufacturing facility in Cordova, lllinois, whidhcludes ongoing pumping of impacted site grounéwagroundwater
monitoring and routine reporting of results.

The Company cannot predict what additional regmeaations arising from the foregoing proceedingd activities, if
any, may be taken regarding such compounds orathgeguences of any such actions.

Environmental Litigation

As previously reported, a former employee fileduggorted class action lawsuit in 2002 in the Cir€ourt of Morgan
County, Alabama (the “St. John” case), seekingatedtdamages and alleging that the plaintiffs sefféear, increased
risk, subclinical injuries, and property damagenfrexposure to certain perfluorochemicals at or timaCompany’s
Decatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility. The cdaor2005 granted the Company’s motion to dismigsrtamed
plaintiff's personal injury-related claims on thadis that such claims are barred by the excluspribyisions of the
state’'s Workers Compensation Act. The plaintifistinsel filed an amended complaint in November 200fjng the
case to property damage claims on behalf of a ptegalass of residents and property owners irvitiaity of the
Decatur plant. In June 2015, the plaintiffs filedaamended complaint adding additional defendantsuding BFI
Waste Management Systems of Alabama, LLC; BFI Wislsteagement of North America, LLC; the City of Daga
Alabama; Morgan County, Alabama; Municipal Utilgi@oard of Decatur; and Morgan County, Alabamaladiecatur
Utilities. In September 2015, the court issuedtedaling order staying discovery pending mediatidnich occurred in
January 2016, but did not resolve the case. Disgaedating to the class certification will begamd the class
certification hearing is scheduled for November&01

In 2005, the judge in a second purported classmtiwsuit filed by three residents of Morgan Cou#tlabama,
seeking unstated compensatory and punitive damagelsing alleged damage to their property from gsions of
certain perfluorochemical compounds from the CorgfsaDecatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility thatrherly
manufactured those compounds (the “Chandler” aggrsajted the Company’s motion to abate the casegtefély
putting the case on hold pending the resolutiodads certification issues in the St. John casepethe stay,
plaintiffs filed an amended complaint seeking daesafpr alleged personal injuries and property damagbehalf of
the named plaintiffs and the members of a purpartask. No further action in the case is expectdelss and until the
stay is lifted.

In February 2009, a resident of Franklin Countyal®éima, filed a purported class action lawsuit enGlircuit Court of
Franklin County (the “Stover” case) seeking compémy damages and injunctive relief based on tipdicgiion by the
Decatur utility’s wastewater treatment plant of teagter treatment sludge to farmland and grasslanitie state that
allegedly contain PFOA, PFOS and other perfluoratgbals. The named plaintiff seeks to represenaascof all
persons within the State of Alabama who have had&RFPPFOS, and other perfluorochemicals releasetkposited on
their property. In March 2010, the Alabama Supré&oert ordered the case transferred from Franklior®pto
Morgan County. In May 2010, consistent with its diémg of the other matters, the Morgan County Qir€@ourt abated
this case, putting it on hold pending the resohutibthe class certification issues in the St. Jodse.
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In October 2015, West Morgan-East Lawrence Wat&esver Authority (“Water Authority”) filed an indidual
complaint against 3M Company, Dyneon, L.L.C, andikiDaAmerica, Inc., in the U.S. District Court fre Northern
District of Alabama. The complaint also includepnesentative plaintiffs who brought the complaimbehalf of
themselves, and a class of all owners and posseskproperty who use water provided by the WatethArity and five
local water works to which the Water Authority slipp water (collectively, the “Water Utilities”)The complaint seeks
compensatory and punitive damages and injunctivef lsased on allegations that the defendants’ ét&ls) including
PFOA and PFOS from their manufacturing process&eiratur, have contaminated the water in the Tesg@eRiver at
the water intake, and that the chemicals cannotim®ved by the water treatment processes utiligetido Water
Authority.

In December 2010, the State of Minnesota, by iterAey General Lori Swanson, acting in its capaagtyrustee of the
natural resources of the State of Minnesota, fildalwsuit in Hennepin County District Court agaiBkt to recover
damages (including unspecified assessment costeeandnable attorney’s fees) for alleged injurydestruction of, and
loss of use of certain of the State’s natural resssiunder the Minnesota Environmental Responsé. iabdity Act
(MERLA) and the Minnesota Water Pollution ContratAMWPCA), as well as statutory nuisance and comfaw/
claims of trespass, nuisance, and negligence e#ipact to the presence of PFCs in the groundvatdgce water, fish
or other aquatic life, and sediments (the “NRD LaiV}. The State also seeks declarations under MERIat 3M is
responsible for all damages the State may suffdrdarfuture for injuries to natural resources fraileases of PFCs into
the environment, and under MWPCA that 3M is resfmd@gor compensation for future loss or destruetid fish,
aquatic life, and other damages.

In November 2011, the Metropolitan Council filedhation to intervene and a complaint in the NRD Laitvseeking
compensatory damages and other legal, declaratorgguitable relief, including reasonable attorhéges, for costs
and fees that the Metropolitan Council allegesilitlve required to assess at some time in the éuifuhe MPCA
imposes restrictions on Metropolitan Council’s PF@i&harges to the Mississippi River, including it&tallation and
maintenance of a water treatment system. The Melitap Council’s intervention motion was based ewesal theories,
including common law negligence, and statutorymtaunder MERLA for response costs, and under thenbtiota
Environmental Rights Act (MERA) for declaratory aaguitable relief against 3M for PFOS and other PB{lution of
the waters and sediments of the Mississippi Ri¥®t.did not object to the motion to intervene. Imdary 2012, 3M
answered the Metropolitan Council’s complaint aitetifa counterclaim alleging that the Metropoli2ouncil
discharges PFCs to the Mississippi River and diggsaPFC-containing sludge and bio solids fromammore of its
wastewater treatment plants onto agricultural laamtslocal area landfills. Accordingly, 3M requekteat if the court
finds that the State is entitled to any of the dg@sathe State seeks, 3M seeks contribution and@mpoent from the
Metropolitan Council, including attorneys’ feesden MERLA, and contribution from and liability féihe Metropolitan
Council’s proportional share of damages awarddtigédState under the MWPCA, as well as under stigtutoisance
and common law theories of trespass, nuisancenagiijence. 3M also seeks declaratory relief udiERA.

In April 2012, 3M filed a motion to disqualify tH&tate of Minnesota’s counsel, Covington & BurlihgiP (Covington).
In October 2012, the court granted 3M’s motioniggdalify Covington as counsel to the State andSta¢e and
Covington appealed the court’s disqualificatiortite Minnesota Court of Appeals. In July 2013, themésota Court of
Appeals affirmed the district court’s disqualifiat order. In October 2013, the Minnesota Supremmeryranted both
the State’s and Covington’s petition for reviewtlod decision of the Minnesota Court of AppealsApmil 2014, the
Minnesota Supreme Court affirmed in part, reveisguhrt, and remanded the case to the districttdoufurther
proceedings. The district court took evidence andisqualification issues at a hearing in Octolfi&r=2 In February
2016, the district court ruled that Covington vielhthe professional ethics rule against reprasgiaticlient (here the
State of Minnesota) in the same or substantialbted matter where that person’s interests arerraliyeadverse to the
interests of a former client (3M). The district ¢pinowever, denied 3M’s motion to disqualify Cogion because it
further found that 3M impliedly waived by delayitmassert the conflict. 3M is reviewing the didtdourt’s opinion to
determine next steps. Other activity in the cagklieen stayed pending the outcome of the disqeediifin issue. In a
separate but related action, the Company filedagiatnst Covington for breach of its fiduciary @stio the Company
and for breach of contract arising out of Covingsaepresentation of the State of Minnesota inNIRD Lawsuit.
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For environmental litigation matters describedhis section for which a liability, if any, has beeorded, the
Company believes the amount recorded, as welleapdhsible loss or range of loss in excess of stebished accrual
is not material to the Company’s consolidated tesefl operations or financial condition. For thasatters for which a
liability has not been recorded, the Company bekeany such liability is not probable and estimalnld the Company
is not able to estimate a possible loss or randessfat this time.

Environmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivables

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had recoiidbdifies of $43 million for estimated “environmigh
remediation” costs based upon an evaluation ofatly available facts with respect to each indiaidsite and also
recorded related insurance receivables of $11amilllThe Company records liabilities for remediatimsts on an
undiscounted basis when they are probable andnmabloestimable, generally no later than the cotigieof feasibility
studies or the Company’s commitment to a plan GbacLiabilities for estimated costs of environrnteremediation,
depending on the site, are based primarily upaariiad or third-party environmental studies, anéhestes as to the
number, participation level and financial viabilf any other potentially responsible parties,aktent of the
contamination and the nature of required remediabas. The Company adjusts recorded liabilitiefuather
information develops or circumstances change. Toragany expects that it will pay the amounts recdroleer the
periods of remediation for the applicable sitesrently ranging up to 20 years.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had recoidbdities of $35 million for “other environmenthabilities”
based upon an evaluation of currently availablésfaimplement the Settlement Agreement and Cdr@eder with
the MPCA, the remedial action agreement with ADE to address trace amounts of perfluorinated ocomngts in
drinking water sources in the City of Oakdale, Misata, as well as presence in the soil and grouedwatthe
Company’s manufacturing facilities in Decatur, Adafa, and Cottage Grove, Minnesota, and at two fodisposal
sites in Washington County, Minnesota (Oakdale\Muoedbury). The Company expects that most of thedipg will
occur over the next four years. As of December2B15, the Company’s receivable for insurance regeseelated to
“other environmental liabilities” was $15 million.

It is difficult to estimate the cost of environmahtompliance and remediation given the uncertsntegarding the
interpretation and enforcement of applicable emvinental laws and regulations, the extent of envirental
contamination and the existence of alternativertipanethods. Developments may occur that could e
Company’s current assessment, including, but nutéd to: (i) changes in the information availatdgarding the
environmental impact of the Company’s operatiorss oducts; (i) changes in environmental regulaiocchanges in
permissible levels of specific compounds in drigkimater sources, or changes in enforcement theanig@policies,
including efforts to recover natural resource dagsagiii) new and evolving analytical and remediattechniques;

(iv) success in allocating liability to other potiatly responsible parties; and (v) the financialbility of other
potentially responsible parties and third-partyeimshitors. For sites included in both “environmemngahediation
liabilities” and “other environmental liabilitiesdt which remediation activity is largely complated remaining activity
relates primarily to operation and maintenancéefremedy, including required post-remediation rawirig, the
Company believes the exposure to loss in excegeaimount accrued would not be material to the g2om's
consolidated results of operations or financialditon. However, for locations at which remediatactivity is largely
ongoing, the Company cannot estimate a possibéedosange of loss in excess of the associatetlisstad accruals for
the reasons described above.

Other Matters
Commercial Litigation

3M sued TransWeb Corporation in Minnesota in 2@kdrffringement of several 3M patents covering flnation and
hydrocharging of filter media used in 3M’s respiratand furnace filters. TransWeb filed a declasafjodgment action
in and successfully moved the litigation to the \D&trict Court for the District of New Jerseye&eng a declaration of
invalidity and non-infringement of 3M’s patentsddfiurther alleging that 3M waited too long to em®its rights.
TransWeb also alleged 3M obtained the patents giranequitable conduct and that 3M’s attempt twerd the patents
constituted a violation of the antitrust laws. lolémber 2012, a jury returned a verdict in favol cfnsWeb on all but
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one count, including findings that 3M’s patents evvalid and not infringed, and that 3M had conteditan antitrust
violation by seeking to enforce a patent it hadaotetd fraudulently. The jury also recommended thatcourt find 3M
had committed inequitable conduct in obtainingghtents, and that the patents were therefore ureamable. Since the
vast majority of TransWeb’s claim for treble ant#t damages was in the form of its attorneys’ tgesexpenses in
connection with the defense of the patent casepdiges agreed that the measure of damages wotilgbrto the jury,
but rather would be submitted to a special madter the trial. In April, 2014, the court issued @amler denying 3M’'s
motions to set aside the jury’s verdict. In addifithe court found two 3M patents unenforceabletdurequitable
conduct. The court accepted the special masteztammendation as to the amount of attorneys’ fed®etawarded as
damages, and entered judgment against 3M in theiatinod approximately $26 million. In July 2014, 3Med a notice
of appeal of the judgment to the U.S. Court of Agdpdor the Federal Circuit. On February 10, 2Gh6,U.S. Court of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit issued its decigffirming the lower court’s judgment. 3M is reviig the appellate
court’s decision to determine next steps. The ihphthe appellate court’s decision is not mateigathe Company’s
consolidated results of operations or financialditon.

Product Liability Litigation

Electricité de France (EDF) filed a lawsuit agai®st France in the French courts in 2006 claiminmowrcial loss and
property damage after experiencing electrical netvailures which EDF claims were caused by allégeeéfective 3M
transition splices. The French Court of AppealNeatsailles affirmed the commercial trial court’scggon that the
transition splices conformed to contract speciftra and that EDF thoroughly analyzed and testediices before
purchase and installation. The Court of Appealsyéher, ordered a court-appointed expert to studyptioblem and
issue a technical opinion on the cause of the métfailures. The court-appointed expert submittedraport to the
commercial court in May 2014. The expert found ptigé defects in 3M’s product and found that EDELirred
damages in excess of 100 million Euros. The expeqinion is not dispositive of liability or damagend is subject to
numerous factual and legal challenges that willdiged with the court. The parties are briefingdbert on their
respective positions. Once the briefing is compléte commercial court may take from six montherte year to render
its decision.

One customer obtained an order in the French cagesst 3M Purification SAS (a French subsidianypctober 2011
appointing an expert to determine the amount ofroercial loss and property damage allegedly caugedieégedly
defective 3M filters used in the customer’s mantifdng process. An Austrian subsidiary of this samastomer also
filed a claim against 3M Austria GmbH (an Austreubsidiary) and 3M Purification SAS in the Austri@urts

in September 2012 seeking damages for the sanme iBkase two cases are still pending. Another costdiled a
lawsuit against 3M Deutschland GmbH (a German slignyi) in the German courts in March 2012 seekimgmercial
loss and property damage allegedly caused by the 8M filters used in that customer’s manufactupnocess; the
Company has resolved the claims in the Germaratitg. The Company has also settled without litagathe claims of
two other customers arising out of the same isBbie.amounts paid are not material to the Comparonsolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company is a namezhdaht in 122 lawsuits, most of which are pendinfgderal or
state court in Minnesota, in which the plaintiffaim they underwent various joint arthroplasty,diavascular, and
other surgeries and later developed surgical sfeeiions due to the use of the Bair Hugger™ patierming system.
The U.S. Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigatignanted the plaintiffs’ motion to transfer and solidate all cases
pending in federal courts to the U.S. District Qdar the District of Minnesota to be managed imalti-district
proceeding during the pre-trial phase of the liima

The Bair Hugger™ product line was acquired by 3Mpag of the 2010 acquisition of Arizant, Inc.eadling
manufacturer of patient warming solutions desigtoeprevent hypothermia and maintain normal bodypeerature in
surgical settings. No liability has been recordedtliis matter because the Company believes thyasaeh liability is
not probable and estimable at this time.

For product liability litigation matters describadthis section for which a liability has been reged, the Company
believes the amount recorded is not material tcCtipany’s consolidated results of operationsmarftial condition.
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In addition, the Company is not able to estimap@ssible loss or range of loss in excess of thebéshed accruals at
this time.

NOTE 15. Stock-Based Compensation

The 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan provides far issuance or delivery of up to 100 million share3M

common stock (including additional shareholder appls subsequent to 2008) pursuant to awards gramiger the
plan. Awards under this plan may be issued in ¢henfof incentive stock options, nonqualified stagktions,
progressive stock options, stock appreciation sigtastricted stock, restricted stock units, ottteck awards, and
performance units and performance shares. Awantisndi@ated in shares of common stock other thamogtand stock
appreciation rights, per the 2008 Plan, count agdhe 100 million share limit as 3.38 shares f@rg one share
covered by such award (for full value awards withng dates prior to May 11, 2010), as 2.87 shanesvery one share
covered by such award (for full value awards withng dates on or after May 11, 2010, and prior &y, 2012), or as
3.50 shares for every one share covered by suctdgiea full value awards with grant dates of May2®12 or later).
The remaining total shares available for grant utitke 2008 Long Term Incentive Plan Program ar828681 as of
December 31, 2015. There were approximately 9,20figipants with outstanding options, restricteatkt or restricted
stock units at December 31, 2015.

The Company’s annual stock option and restrictedkstinit grant is made in February to provide arggrand
immediate link between the performance of individuduring the preceding year and the size of theftual stock
compensation grants. The grant to eligible emplsyeses the closing stock price on the grant dateoénting

rules require recognition of expense under a ndostamtive vesting period approach, requiring corespéan expense
recognition when an employee is eligible to retitmployees are considered eligible to retire at&gand after having
completed five years of service. This retiree-blgipopulation represents 35 percent of the 20bbarstock-based
compensation award expense dollars; thereforeghigflock-based compensation expense is recogmizée first
quarter. 3M also has granted progressive (reloptiprs. These options are nonqualified stock ogtibiat were granted
to certain participants under the 1997 or 2002 Man@ent Stock Ownership Program, but for which #iead feature
was eliminated in 2005 (on a prospective basis)only

In addition to the annual grants, the Company makiesr minor grants of stock options, restrictextktunits and other
stock-based grants. The Company issues cash sessiieitted stock units and stock appreciationtsigh certain
countries. These grants do not result in the issei@ahcommon stock and are considered immaterigh&yCompany.

Amounts recognized in the financial statements wadpect to stock-based compensation programshvimitude stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock umitsformance shares, and the General Employeesk Btachase Plan
(GESPP), are provided in the following table. Calpied stock-based compensation amounts were netiadeor the
years ended 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Years ended December 31

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013

Cost of sales $ 46 $ 47 $ 27
Selling, general and administrative expenses 185 192 183
Research, development and related expenses 45 41 30
Stock-based compensation expenses $ 276 $ 280 $ 240
Income tax benefits $ 87, $ (79) $ (71)
Stock-based compensation expenses, net of tax $ 189 $ 201 $ 169
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Stock Option Program

The following table summarizes stock option acyi¥dr the years ended December 31:

2015 2014 2013
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Under option —
January 1 39,235,557 $ 90.38 43,938,778 $ 83.84 56,565,030 $ 80.33
Granted:
Annual 5,529,544 165.91 5,736,183 126.77 6,220,810 101.55
Progressive (Reload) — — — — 140,447 109.83
Other — — — — 191 119.62
Exercised (5,978,382 83.74 (10,219,261 82.37 (18,825,21¢ 79.25
Canceled (234,274 128.99 (220,143)  105.11 (162,482) 89.92
December 31 38,652,448 $ 102.01 39,235,557 $ 90.38 43,938,77¢ $ 83.84
Options exercisable
December 31 27,262,062 $ 8597 27,502,20¢ $ 81.42 32,038,22¢ $ 79.58

Stock options vest over a period from one to tlyese's with the expiration date at 10 years frone ddiigrant.
Outstanding options under grant include grants fppevious plans. As of December 31, 2015, there$6&smillion of
compensation expense that has yet to be recogreiagedd to non-vested stock option based awards.edpense is
expected to be recognized over the remaining wethtrerage vesting period of 21 months. For optiartstanding at
December 31, 2015, the weighted-average remaimingactual life was 66 months and the aggregatmsit value
was $1.958 billion. For options exercisable at Delger 31, 2015, the weighted-average remaining aontal life was
52 months and the aggregate intrinsic value wagti1billion.

The total intrinsic values of stock options exegdisluring 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $465 million 5&édllion and
$562 million, respectively. Cash received from ops exercised during 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $50am$842
million and $1.492 billion, respectively. The Compé& actual tax benefits realized for the tax deidus related to the
exercise of employee stock options for 2015, 20112013 was $172 million, $226 million and $208liwi,
respectively.

The Company does not have a specific policy tongmse common shares to mitigate the dilutive irnpaoptions;
however, the Company has historically made adedliateetionary purchases, based on cash availgbitérket trends,
and other factors, to satisfy stock option exeraisévity.

For annual and progressive (reload) options, thghted average fair value at the date of grantesdsulated using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the assummgtithat follow. As discussed earlier, the progvesgeload)
feature was eliminated in 2005, resulting in novitgtin the below table for 2014 and thereafter.

Stock Option Assumptions

Annual Progressive (Reload)
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Exercise price $165.94 $126.72 $10149 $— $— $109.84
Risk-free interest rate 1.5% 1.9% 12% —% —% 0.2%
Dividend yield 25% 2.6% 27% —% —% 2.7%
Volatility 20.1% 20.8% 200% —% —% 16.3%
Expected life (months) 76 75 75 — — 12
Black-Scholes fair value $ 2398 $ 1963 $ 1346 $— $— $ 6.42

Expected volatility is a statistical measure of éimeount by which a stock price is expected to flatd during a period.
For the 2015 annual grant date, the Company esdrtat expected volatility based upon the aver&gigeamost recent
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one year volatility, the median of the term of eéhgected life rolling volatility, the median of theost recent term of the
expected life volatility of 3M stock, and the imgdi volatility on the grant date. The expected tassumption is based
on the weighted average of historical grants.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock eegdricted stock unit activity for the years endistember 31:

2015 2014 2013
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date  Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value Awards Fair Value Awards Fair Value
Nonvested balanc—

As of January 1 2,817,786 $104.41 3,105,361 $ 92.31 3,261,562 $ 85.17

Granted
Annual 671,204 165.86 798,615 126.79 946,774 101.57
Other 26,886 156.94 78,252 152.74 44,401 111.19
Vested (1,010,612) 89.99 (1,100,675) 90.37 (1,100,095)  79.93
Forfeited (64,176 118.99 (63,767 97.23 (47,281 90.82
As of December 31 2,441,088 $127.47 2,817,786 $104.41 3,105,361 $ 92.31

As of December 31, 2015, there was $84 millionahpensation expense that has yet to be recogretsed to non-
vested restricted stock and restricted stock ufiliss expense is expected to be recognized oveaethaining weighted-
average vesting period of 24 months. The totaiMalue of restricted stock and restricted stocksuthiat vested during
the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 204 3166 million, $145 million and $114 million, respively. The
Company’s actual tax benefits realized for thedaductions related to the vesting of restrictedistand restricted stock
units for the years ended December 31, 2015, 20d4£613 was $62 million, $54 million and $43 mifliaespectively.

Restricted stock units granted under the 3M 200&8jE6erm Incentive Plan generally vest three yealiswWing the
grant date assuming continued employment. Dividandvalents equal to the dividends payable on déneesnumber of
shares of 3M common stock accrue on these restrattek units during the vesting period, althougtdividend
equivalents are paid on any of these restricteckataits that are forfeited prior to the vestingeddividends are paid
out in cash at the vest date on restricted stoitk,usxcept for performance shares which do nat dasidends. Since
the rights to dividends are forfeitable, thereasmpact on basic earnings per share calculatMeighted average
restricted stock unit shares outstanding are iredlud the computation of diluted earnings per share

Performance Shares

Instead of restricted stock units, the Company makeual grants of performance shares to membéiseecutive
management. The 2015 performance criteria for thesirmance shares (organic volume growth, redarimvested
capital, free cash flow conversion, and earningsshare growth) were selected because the Compadieyés that they
are important drivers of long-term stockholder eallihe number of shares of 3M common stock thatcactually be
delivered at the end of the three-year performamec®md may be anywhere from 0% to 200% of eachopesdince share
granted, depending on the performance of the Comngaring such performance period. Non-substantesting
requires that expense for the performance sharesclgnized over one or three years depending @mwhch
individual became a 3M executive. Performance shdoenot accrue dividends during the performancioge
Therefore, the grant date fair value is determimgdeducing the closing stock price on the datgraht by the net
present value of dividends during the performarergog.
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The following table summarizes performance shatigigcfor the years ended December 31:

2015 2014 2013
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of  Grant Date Number of GrantDate  Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value Awards Fair Value Awards Fair Value
Undistributed balance —

As of January 1 1,099,752 $ 102.65 895,635 $ 88.12 1,089,084 $ 79.27
Granted 227,798 158.88 305,225 124.89 353,734 96.87
Distributed (323,938  83.08 (277,358) 84.74 (507,083) 75.16
Performance change (106,760 127.70 212,461 109.74 (6,949 77.01
Forfeited (25,660 125.33  (36,212) 109.44  (33,151) 91.34

As of December 31 871,192 $120.89 1,099,752 $ 102.65 895,635 $ 88.12

As of December 31, 2015, there was $17 millionahpensation expense that has yet to be recogretagd to
performance shares. This expense is expectedrecbgnized over the remaining weighted-averagemgsmperiod of
10 months. During the years ended December 31,,2@1% and 2013, the total fair value of perforneashares that
were distributed were $54 million, $35 million a$82 million, respectively. The Company’s actual leexefits realized
for the tax deductions related to the distributddiperformance shares for the years ended Dece3ih@015, 2014 and
2013 was $15 million, $11 million and $16 millimespectively.

General Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan (GESPP):

As of December 31, 2015, shareholders have appr@@adillion shares for issuance under the CompaBESPP.
Substantially all employees are eligible to paptte in the plan. Participants are granted optdi@5% of market value
at the date of grant. There are no GESPP shares aptlon at the beginning or end of each year lizaptions are
granted on the first business day and exercisdtieolast business day of the same month.

General Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan

2015 2014 2013
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Options granted 1,007,66¢ $ 13352 1,073,95¢ $ 118.73 1,259,247 $ 93.46
Options exercised (1,007,66¢ 133.52 (1,073,956) 118.73 (1,259,247 93.46
Shares available for grant -
December 31 28,104,33¢ 29,112,004 30,185,96(

The weighted-average fair value per option gradiaihg 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $23.56, $20.95 a6d19,
respectively. The fair value of GESPP options wasel on the 15% purchase price discount. The Compangnized
compensation expense for GESSP options of $24omilti 2015, $22 million in 2014 and $21 million2013.

NOTE 16. Business Segments

3M’s businesses are organized, managed and inegralped into segments based on differences ket products,
technologies and services. 3M manages its opegatiofive business segments: Industrial; Safety@raphics; Health
Care; Electronics and Energy; and Consumer. 3M&s liiusiness segments bring together common oeceiiYl
technologies, enhancing the development of inneggiroducts and services and providing for effiti@raring of
business resources. Transactions among reporedpeesnts are recorded at cost. 3M is an integratengrise
characterized by substantial intersegment cooperatost allocations and inventory transfers. Tloeeg management
does not represent that these segments, if oparategdendently, would report the operating inconferimation shown.
The difference between operating income and préntzome relates to interest income and interesees@, which are
not allocated to business segments.
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Effective in the third quarter of 2015, within thiealth Care business segment, the Company fornee@thl Care
Solutions Division, which combined the former 3AMABESand 3M Unitek divisions.

Business Segment Products

Business Segment Major Products

Industrial Tapes, coated, nonwoven and bonded abrasives,iaehesdvanced ceramics, sealants,
specialty materials, filtration products, closuystems for personal hygiene products,
acoustic systems products, automotive componentasion-resistant films, structural
adhesives and paint finishing and detailing prosluct

Safety and Graphics Personal protection products, traffic safety armiggy products, commercial graphics
systems, commercial cleaning and protection praddictor matting, roofing granules for
asphalt shingles, and fall protection products

Health Care Medical and surgical supplies, skin health anddtié@ prevention products, drug delivery
systems, dental and orthodontic products, healthrimation systems and food safety
products

Electronics and Energy Optical films solutions for electronic displays,ckaging and interconnection devices,
insulating and splicing solutions for the electamitelecommunications and electrical
industries, touch screens and touch monitors, rehenenergy component solutions, and
infrastructure protection products

Consumer Sponges, scouring pads, high-performance clothisuroer and office tapes, repositionable
notes, indexing systems, construction and homedwugment products, home care products,
protective material products, and consumer andefttpes and adhesives

Business Segment Information

Net Sales Operating Income

(Millions) 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Industrial $ 10,328 $ 10,990 $ 10,657 $ 2,263 $ 2,389 $ 2,307
Safety and Graphics 5,515 5,732 5,584 1,305 1,296 1,227
Health Care 5,420 5,572 5,334 1,724 1,724 1,672
Electronics and Energy 5,220 5,604 5,393 1,102 1,115 954
Consumer 4,422 4,523 4,435 1,046 995 945
Corporate and Unallocated 1 4 8 (355) (251) (321)
Elimination of Dual Credit (632 (604 (540 (139 (133 (118
Total Company $ 30,274 $ 31,821 $ 30,871 $ 6,946 $ 7135 $ 6,666

Assets Depreciation & Amortization Capital Expenditures
(Millions) 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Industrial $ 9203 $ 8508 $ 8833 $ 374 $ 383 $ 373 $ 317 $ 395 $ 511
Safety and Graphics 7,564 4,939 5,122 245 234 255 199 221 207
Health Care 4,403 4,344 4,329 179 181 171 168 169 120
Electronics and Energy 4,815 5,116 5,336 291 271 260 211 232 261
Consumer 2,393 2,434 2,516 108 108 106 124 111 128
Corporate and Unallocated 4,340 5,868 7,168 238 231 206 442 365 438
Total Company $32,718 $31,209 $33,304 $ 1,435 $ 1408 $ 1,371 $1,461 $1,493 $1,665

Corporate and unallocated operating income incladesriety of miscellaneous items, such as corpansestment
gains and losses, certain derivative gains an@#ps®rtain insurance-related gains and lossdsjrcétigation and
environmental expenses, corporate restructuringgelsaand certain under- or over-absorbed costsgergion, stock-
based compensation) that the Company may chooge aibcate directly to its business segmentsaBse this
category includes a variety of miscellaneous itdtris,subject to fluctuation on a quarterly anchaal basis.
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3M business segment reporting measures includecdedit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated
operating income. Management evaluates each fitétdusiness segments based on net sales andiogengome
performance, including dual credit U.S. reportiadurther incentivize U.S. sales growth. As a re2M provides
additional (“dual”) credit to those business segmeelling products in the U.S. to an external@ugr when that
segment is not the primary seller of the produot.dxample, certain respirators are primarily $oldhe Personal
Safety Division within the Safety and Graphics bess segment; however, the Industrial businessessigarso sells
this product to certain customers in its U.S. mexki® this example, the non-primary selling segnfberdustrial) would
also receive credit for the associated net salegidted and the related approximate operatimgine. The assigned
operating income related to dual credit activityyrdifer from operating income that would resutirit actual costs
associated with such sales. The offset to the chadlit business segment reporting is reflectedras@nciling item
entitled “Elimination of Dual Credit,” such thatlea and operating income for the U.S. in totalarehanged.

NOTE 17. Geographic Areas
Geographic area information is used by the Com@eg secondary performance measure to managesitebses.
Export sales and certain income and expense iteangemerally reported within the geographic arearlthe final

sales to 3M customers are made.

Property, Plant and

Net Sales Operating Income Equipment - net
(Millions) 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014
United States $12,049 $11,714 $11,151 $2,647 $2,540 $2,210 $4,838 $ 4,619
Asia Pacific 9,041 9,418 9,047 2,580 2,487 2,386 1,647 1,798
Europe, Middle East and Afric 6,228 7,198 7,085 1,017 1,234 1,168 1,531 1,502
Latin America and Canada 2,982 3,504 3,611 706 867 908 499 570
Other Unallocated (26 (13 (23) (4) 7 (6) — —
Total Company $30,274 $31,821 $30,871 $6,946 $7,135 $6,666 $8,515 $ 8,489

Asia Pacific included China/Hong Kong net salesustomers of $2.945 billion in 2015, which appraath0 percent
of consolidated worldwide sales. China/Hong Kongpreperty, plant and equipment (PP&E) was $584ionilat
December 31, 2015.

NOTE 18. Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

(Millions, except per-share amounts) First Second Third Fourth Year

2015 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 2015

Net sale $ 7578 $ 7,686 $ 7,712 % 7,298 $ 30,274
Cost of sales 3,821 3,858 3,877 3,827 15,383
Net income including noncontrolling inter 1,201 1,303 1,298 1,039 4,841
Net income attributable to 3M 1,199 1,300 1,296 1,038 4,833
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddels - basic 1.88 2.06 2.09 1.69 7.72
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddels - diluted 1.85 2.02 2.05 1.66 7.58
(Millions, except per-share amounts) First Second Third Fourth Year

2014 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 2014

Net sale $ 7831 $ 8,134 $ 8,137 $ 7,719 $ 31,821
Cost of sales 4,031 4,184 4,205 4,027 16,447
Net income including noncontrolling inter 1,225 1,283 1,311 1,179 4,998
Net income attributable to 3M 1,207 1,267 1,303 1,179 4,956
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddels - basic 1.83 1.94 2.02 1.85 7.63
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwédehs - diluted 1.79 1.91 1.98 1.81 7.49

Gross profit is calculated as net sales minus aiosales.

Refer to Note 4 for discussion of “Restructuringiéns”, which reduced diluted earnings per shar&®y 4 in the
fourth quarter of 2015.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

a. The Company carried out an evaluation, undestipervision and with the participation of its mgament, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0éf, of the effectiveness of the design and opsraif the
Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures’d@ed in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) avefend of the
period covered by this report. Based upon thatuetain, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fioah Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controtsancedures are effective.

b. The Company’s management is responsible fobksitiéing and maintaining an adequate system ofriatecontrol
over financial reporting, as defined in the ExctaAgt Rule 13a-15(f). Management conducted an asws of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportipgsed on the framework established by the Comenitt&Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commissiotniternal Control — Integrated Framework (2018gsed on the
assessment, management concluded that, as of Dec8m®015, the Company’s internal control oveaficial
reporting is effective. Management’s assessmetiteoéffectiveness of the Company’s internal cortrar financial
reporting as of December 31, 2015 excluded CaBuétty Group S.A.R.L. and Polypore Internationat,’s Separation
Media Business, which were both acquired by the @y in August 2015 in purchase business combimatibhese
acquired businesses’ total assets and total net,dalthe aggregate, represented less than 2rnpente less than 1
percent, respectively, of the Company’s consolidéiteancial statement amounts as of and for the gaded December
31, 2015. Companies are allowed to exclude acepnsifrom their assessment of internal control divemcial
reporting during the first year of acquisition wehihtegrating the acquired company under guidel@gstsblished by the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The Compantgsnal control over financial reporting as of Debder 31, 2015
has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLiadapendent registered public accounting firm,tated in their
report which is included herein, which expressesaraqualified opinion on the effectiveness of therpany’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 3115.

c. There was no change in the Company’s internatrobover financial reporting that occurred durihg Company’s
most recently completed fiscal quarter that haseradty affected, or is reasonably likely to maddly affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

The Company is implementing an enterprise resoplar@ning (“ERP”) system on a worldwide basis, whiglexpected
to improve the efficiency of certain financial aredated transaction processes. The gradual impletien is expected
to occur in phases over the next several yearsiniplementation of a worldwide ERP system will likaffect the
processes that constitute our internal control éimancial reporting and will require testing fdfectiveness.

The Company completed implementation with respeeféments of certain processes/sub-processesitedi
subsidiaries/locations and will continue to roltdlve ERP system over the next several years. Asamy new
information technology application we implementstapplication, along with the internal controlso¥inancial
reporting included in this process, was appropisiatensidered within the testing for effectivenagth respect to the
implementation in these instances. We concludegagsof our evaluation described in the above graizhs, that the
implementation of ERP in these circumstances hasnaterially affected our internal control overdircial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART 1lI

Documents Incorporated by Reference

In response to Part lll, Items 10, 11, 12, 13 addphrts of the Company’s definitive proxy stateiém be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days aftegiReant’s fiscal year-end of December 31, 2015)tbbannual
meeting to be held on May 10, 2016, are incorpdratereference in this Form 10-K.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

The information relating to directors and nominee38M is set forth under the caption “Proposal Wbin 3M’s proxy
statement for its annual meeting of stockholdetsatdield on May 10, 2016 (“3M Proxy Statement”) @ashcorporated
by reference herein. Information about executifeers is included in Item 1 of this Annual Report Form 10-K. The
information required by Items 405, 407(c)(3), (d)4d (d)(5) of Regulation S-K is contained undher ¢aptions
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coicpte,” “Corporate Governance At 3M — ldentificatj
Evaluation, and Selection of Nominees,,” “—Nomin@esposed By Stockholders For Consideration By the
Committee,” “—Stockholder Nominations” and “—Raé&the Nominating and Governance Committee” and
“Corporate Governance At 3M -- Board and Committdermation — Audit Committee” of the 3M Proxy Sgatent
and such information is incorporated by referereeim.

Code of Ethics. All of our employees, including @hief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officené Chief
Accounting Officer and Controller, are requirecatmide by 3M’s long-standing business conduct pedi¢o ensure that
our business is conducted in a consistently legdlethical manner. 3M has posted the text of sodle of ethics on its
website (http://www.3M.com/businessconduct). At saene website, any future amendments to the codthias will
also be posted. Any person may request a copyeafdte of ethics, at no cost, by writing to usatfbllowing address:

3M Company

3M Center, Building 220-11W-09

St. Paul, MN 55144-1000

Attention: Vice President, Compliance and Businésaduct

Iltem 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by Item 402 of RegulatfnK is contained under the captions “Executive Cengation”
(excluding the information under the caption “— Gmensation Committee Report”) and “Director Compénsaand
Stock Ownership Guidelines” of the 3M Proxy Statatm&uch information is incorporated by reference.

The information required by Items 407(e)(4) andSedf Regulation S-K is contained in the “Execet@ompensation”
section under the captions “Compensation Commiigeort” and “Compensation Committee Interlocks msitler
Participation” of the 3M Proxy Statement. Such infation (other than the Compensation Committee Reptich
shall not be deemed to be “filed”) is incorporabgtreference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ovners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information relating to security ownership eftain beneficial owners and management is sét fortler the
designation “Security Ownership of Management” &elcurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners"the 3M
Proxy Statement and such information is incorparatereference herein.
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Equity compensation plans information as of Decen3ie 2015 follows:

Equity Compensation Plans Information (1)

A B C
Number of Weighted- Number of securities
securities to be average exercise remaining available for
issued upon price of future issuance under
exercise of outstanding equity compensation
outstanding options, plans (excluding
options, warrants warrants and securities reflected in
Plan Category and rights rights column (A))
Equity compensation plans approved by securityédrsid
Stock options 38,522,445 $ 102.01 —
Restricted stock units 2,441,08¢ —
Performance shares 871,192 —
Non-employee director deferred stock units 241,156 —
Total 42,075,881 20,328,681
Employee stock purchase plan — 28,104,33¢
Subtotal 42,075,881 48,433,016
Total 42,075,881 48,433,01¢€

(1) In column B, the weighted-average exercise prianlg applicable to stock options. In column C, thember of
securities remaining available for future issuafocestock options, restricted stock units, and ls@wards for non-
employee directors is approved in total and noividdally with respect to these items.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaans, and Director Independence.

With respect to certain relationships and relataddactions as set forth in Item 404 of Regula8ek, no matters
require disclosure with respect to transactiont watated persons. The information required by W&#(b) and Item
407(a) of Regulation S-K is contained under théise¢Corporate Governance at 3M” under the cagitirector
Independence” and “Related Person Transactionyatid Procedures” of the 3M Proxy Statement antl suc
information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information relating to principal accounting$eand services is set forth in the section edtitudit Committee
Matters” under the designation “Audit CommitteeiBpbn Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Nond#uServices
of the Independent Accounting Firm” and “Fees @f thdependent Accounting Firm” in the 3M Proxy 8taént and
such information is incorporated by reference herei
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) (1) Financial Statements. The consolidateanfiial statements filed as part of this reportliated in the index to
financial statements on page 47 as follows:

Page Number

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEinm 49
Consolidated Statement of Income for the yearseéieember 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 50

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incomthéoyears ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 51

Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012Gid 52
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity fory#eas ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 53
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yeaded December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 54
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 55-117

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules. Finantéément schedules are omitted because of the @bséthe
conditions under which they are required or bec#useequired information is included in the Coidated Financial
Statements or the notes thereto. The financiadistants of unconsolidated subsidiaries are omitsedulse, considered
in the aggregate, they would not constitute a ficant subsidiary.

(a) (3) Exhibits. The exhibits are either filedhwihis report or incorporated by reference inis teport.
Exhibit numbers 10.1 through 10.29 are managenmntacts or compensatory plans or arrangements(d3&xhibits,
which follow.

(b) Exhibits.
(3) Articles of Incorporation and bylaws

(3.1) Certificate of incorporation, as amendedfdday 11, 2007, is incorporated by reference fraim Borm 8-
K dated May 14, 2007.

(3.2) Amended and Restated Bylaws, as adopted ldeva#mber 10, 2015, are incorporated by refererwa f
our Form 8-K dated November 10, 2015.

(4) Instruments defining the rights of securitydwets, including indentures:

(4.1) Indenture, dated as of November 17, 200Qydxx 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as successor trustee, with respeditits senior debt securities, is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated December 7, 2000.

(4.2)  First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 28] 2011, to Indenture dated as of November Q@02
between 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trusin@any, N.A., as successor trustee, with respe
3M’s senior debt securities, is incorporated byrefice from our Form 10-Q for the quarter endee 30n
2011.

(10) Material contracts and management compenspl#ons and arrangements:

(10.1) 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (includemmendments through February 2, 2016) is filed hithew
(10.2) Form of Agreement for Stock Option Grant&cutive Officers under 3M 2008 Long-Term Inceati
Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form 8ated May 13, 2008.
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(10.3) Form of Stock Option Agreement for optiomarged to Executive Officers under the 3M 2008 L-diegm
Incentive Plan, commencing February 9, 2010, isnparated by reference from our Form 10-K for the
year ended Decemt 31, 2009.

(10.4) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreementristricted stock units granted to Executive Oficender the
3M Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective Februar®010, is incorporated by reference from our Form 10
K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.5) Form of 3M 2010 Performance Share Award vtttz 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is incorpeda
by reference from our Form 8-K dated March 4, 2010.

(10.6) Form of Stock Option Agreement for U.S. Eoygles under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2008.

(10.7)  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreementfo&. Employees under 3M 2008 Long-Term IncentivanR$
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2008.

(10.8) 3M 2005 Management Stock Ownership Progiaohiuding amendments through February 2, 2016) is
filed herewith.

(10.9) Form of award agreement for non-qualifiextktoptions granted under the 2005 Management Stock
Ownership Program, is incorporated by referencenfoor Form 8-K dated May 16, 2005.

(10.10) 3M VIP Excess Plan is incorporated by r=fee from our Form 8-K dated November 14, 2008.

(10.11) Amendment of 3M VIP Excess Plan is incogped by reference from our Form 8-K dated Novender
20009.

(10.12) 3M VIP (Voluntary Investment Plan) Plusrisorporated by reference from Registration Statgme
No. 333-73192 on Form S-8, filed on November 13, 2001.

(10.13) Amendment of 3M VIP Plus is incorporatedréference from our Form 8-K dated November 14,8200

(10.14) 3M Deferred Compensation Plan, as amentdedgh Februarg008, is incorporated by reference from
Form 8-K dated February 14, 2008.

(10.15) Amendment of 3M Deferred Compensation ancorporated by reference from our Form 8-K date
Novembe 14, 2008.

(10.16) 3M Deferred Compensation Excess Plan srparated by reference from our Form 10-K for teary
ended December 31, 2009.

(10.17) 3M Performance Awards Deferred Compensdian is incorporated by reference from our Forniifor
the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.18) 3M Executive Annual Incentive Plan is immmrated by reference from our Form 8-K dated May2D07.

(10.19) Description of changes to 3M Compensatiam For Non-Employee Directors is incorporated bference
from our Form 8-K dated August 8, 2005.

(10.20) 3M Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Doex; as amended, through November 8, 2004, is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2004.

(10.21) Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nonployee Directors is incorporated by reference foam
Form 8-K dated November 14, 2008.

(10.22) Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nonplbyee Directors as of August 12, 2013, is incoaped
by reference from our Form 10-Q for the quarteregh8eptember 30, 2013.

(10.23) 3M Executive Life Insurance Plan, as amédnieincorporated by reference from our Form 1B#the
year ended Decemt 31, 2003.

(10.24) Summary of Personal Financial Planning i8esvfor 3M Executives is incorporated by referefnoen our
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

(10.25) 3M policy on reimbursement of incentive pents is incorporated by reference from our ForrKXor
the year ended December 31, 2006.

(10.26) Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified PenBian | is incorporated by reference from our F8rik
dated December 23, 2008.

(10.27) Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified PenBlan 1l is incorporated by reference from ourc@-K
dated December 23, 2008.

(10.28) 3M Nonqualified Pension Plan Il is incorpted by reference from our Form 8-K dated Novenider
2008.

(10.29) Policy on Reimbursement of Incentive Congagion (effective Mayt1, 2010) is incorporated by referer
from our Form 10-Q dated August 4, 2010.
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(10.30) Amended and restated five-year credit ageed as of August 5, 2014, is incorporated by exfee from
our Form 8-K dated August 8, 2014.

(10.31) Registration Rights Agreement as of Augus009, between 3M Company and State Street Baohk a
Trust Company as Independent Fiduciary of the 3\plegree Retirement Income Plan, is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated August 5, 2009.

Filed herewith, in addition to items, if any, sdaxlly identified above:

(12)  Calculation of ratio of earnings to fixed ohes.

(18)  Preferability letter regarding change in actg principles.

(21)  Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

(23) Consent of independent registered public authog firm.

(24)  Power of attorney.

(31.1) Certification of the Chief Executive Officeursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

(31.2) Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

(32.1) Certification of the Chief Executive Officeursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

(32.2) Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

(95) Mine Safety Disclosures.

(101) The following financial information from 3Mdipany’s Annual Report on Form X0for the period ende
December 31, 2015, filed with the SEC on Februdry2D16, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting
Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated Statemerihobme for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014
and 2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Coimgmsive Income for the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, (iii) the Consolidated Balableet at December 31, 2015 and 2014, (iv) the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity forytaas ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
(v) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ferytbars ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, and
(vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf bytidersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

3M COMPANY

By /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangeste
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
February 11, 2016

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in theatpsa indicated on February 11, 2016.

Signature Title

Inge G. Thulin Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeudfficer
(Principal Executive Officer and Director)

Eric D. Hammes Vice President, Controller and Chief AccountingiCGdf
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Linda G. Alvarado Director

Sondra L. Barbour Director

Thomas K. Brown Director

Vance D. Coffman Director

David B. Dillon Director

Michael L. Eskew Director

Herbert L. Henkel Director

Muhtar Kent Director

Edward M. Liddy Director

Gregory R. Page Director

Robert J. Ulrich Director

Nicholas C. Gangestad, by signing his name hedetes hereby sign this document pursuant to powiextarney duly
executed by the other persons named, filed wittsdaurities and Exchange Commission on behalf df sther
persons, all in the capacities and on the datedstatich persons constituting a majority of theators of the Company.

By /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangestadttorney-in-Fact
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1.

EXHIBIT 10.1

(Including amendments
through February 2, 2016)

3M 2008 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

Purposes.

The purposes of this plan are to help 3M attratgin and motivate outstanding employees to inerehareholder value
by contributing to the long-term growth and sucagfsss business; to more closely align the finahaiterests of these
employees with those of 3M’s other shareholderbriyng a significant portion of their compensatitnthe
performance of the Company and its stock pricenmourage employees to acquire an equity stakei€bmpany; to
help 3M attract and retain well-qualified individsido serve as nonemployee members of its BoaRirettors; and to
promote the alignment of interests of these noneyga directors with those of 3M’s other sharehadsr providing all
or a portion of their compensation for serving meaors in the form of 3M common stock.

This plan is intended to replace and succeed tB8 Banagement Stock Ownership Program, the 3M Radoce Unit
Plan, and the 1992 Directors Stock Ownership Pragra

2.

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

)
(@)

(h)

(i)

0

(k)

Definitions.

“Affiliate” means any entity that is directly directly controlled by the Company or in whitte Company
has a significant equity interest, as determinethbyCommittee.

“Award” means any Incentive Stock Option, Noaliiied Stock Option, Progressive Stock Option,cBto
Appreciation Right, Restricted Stock, RestrictedcRtUnit, Performance Unit, Performance Share beot
Stock Award granted to a Participant under thi:iPla

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended.

“Committee” means the Compensation Committeg\ds Board of Directors.

“Common Stock” means the common stock of 3M @any with a par value of $0.01 per share.
“Company” means 3M Company, a Delaware corponat

“Disqualifying Termination” means a terminatioha Participant’s employment with the Companyor
Affiliate due to (i) a material violation of any ey of the Company or such Affiliate, includingjthvout
limitation, any of the Company’s Business Condutdidies, or (i) embezzlement from or theft of pesfy
belonging to the Company or such Affiliate.

“Dividend Equivalents” means, on any divideredard date, that amount of cash or shares equalue to the
dividend payable on shares of Common Stock as aetlay 3M’'s Board of Directors with respect to such

dividend record date.

“Fair Market Value” means the closing price foshare of Common Stock as reported on the New Stock
Exchange Composite Transactions.

“Full Value Award” means any Award denominai@dpaid in shares of Common Stock other than aimo@ uir
Stock Appreciation Right.

“Grant Date” means the effective date of an Advgranted to a Participant under this Plan.
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o

(m)
(n)

(0)

(9);

(@)

(s)

(t)
(u)

v)

(w)

“Incentive Stock Option” means an Option grahtender this Plan which satisfies the requiremehtection
422 of the Code and is so designated in the writezlectronic documents evidencing such Option.

“Nonqualified Stock Option” means an Optionmfied under this Plan which is not an Incentive Ktption.

“Option” means a Participant’s right to purchasspecified number of shares of Common Stockspeaified
price for a specified period of time.

“Participant” means an employee of the Compaman Affiliate whose participation in the Plan Heeen
approved by the Committee, or a nonemployee mewit@’s Board of Directors.

“Performance Criteria” means such internal gemiance criteria for the Company or any businegmsat
thereof as determined by the Committee with resfpeeaich Performance Unit or Performance Sharevayd
include any one or more of several criteria, sugtbat not limited to, return on capital employeaturn on
assets or net assets, net sales, sales growth osadales growth from new products, market steagh flow or
cash flow conversion, earnings per share, returaquiity, stock price, gross margin or income, ofiega
margin or income, total shareholder return, stotdérs’ equity, retained earnings, economic valugeald
economic profit (after-tax operating income, exahgdnhon-recurring items, less the cost of capitd)nings
before interest and taxes, EBITDA, operating incoimgrovements in certain asset or financial messur
(including working capital, the ratio of sales &t mvorking capital and the ratio of debt to equityto
EBITDA), reductions in certain asset or cost af@suding reductions in inventories or accountseieable or
reductions in laboratory, engineering, sales oriagnative costs) or in debt, net income or vaoias of
income criteria in varying time periods, adjusted imcome, employee diversity, employee engagement
satisfaction, customer satisfaction, or generalmgamsons with other peer companies or industry gsar
classifications with regard to one or more of theseria. The criteria may measure performancéherbasis
of either the amount of a particular item during Brerformance Period or on increases or decreases i
amount of such item during the Performance Pertaach criteria shall include a target for paymdrthe
Performance Unit or Performance Share at full fzedae and upper and lower limits for the measurdroén
payment to Participants.

“Performance Period” means a period of thremgjeunless determined otherwise by the Commiiéts i
discretion, during which period or any portion #afrthe Performance Criteria shall be measuregdgooses
of calculating the payment with respect to eactidPerance Unit or Performance Share.

“Performance Share” means the right of a Pigdiat to receive a payment in the form of shareSahmon
Stock based upon the performance of the ComparngglarPerformance Period as measured by the
Performance Criteria approved by the Committee.

“Performance Unit” means the right of a Papticit to receive a payment in cash or shares of Gomtock
based upon the performance of the Company durPerrmance Period as measured by the Performance
Criteria approved by the Committee.

“Plan” means this 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentiviari®

“Predecessor Plan” means the 1997 Managemeok &wnership Program, the 2002 Management Stock
Ownership Program, and the 2005 Management Stoake@lvip Program.

“Progressive Stock Option” means a Nonqualifgtdck Option granted to a Participant under thas Rpon
the exercise of a nonqualified stock option granteder the 1997 or the 2002 Management Stock Owipers
Programs where such Participant makes paymentlfor part of the purchase price and withholdingesin
shares of Common Stock.

"Restricted Periodmeans that period of time determined by the Coresitturing which a Participant shall not
be permitted to sell or transfer shares of Resuli@tock granted under this Plan, and during which
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Participant’s interest in Restricted Stock UnitfR@stricted Stock granted under this Plan remaibhfest to
forfeiture. Unless otherwise determined by the @uttee, any time-based Restricted Period shallt bheast
three years.

x) "Restricted Stockfmeans shares of Common Stock granted to a Parttaipaer the Plan subject to certain
restrictions during the Restricted Period estabtishy the Committee.

) “Restricted Stock Unit” means the right of arfitépant to receive an amount of cash or CommamrtiSbased
on the Fair Market Value of a specified numbertares of Common Stock following a Restricted Stock
Period, subject to such terms and conditions a€tmmittee may establish.

(2) “Retires” or “Retirement” means:

0] with respect to Awards granted under the Plan gadanuary 1, 2016, the termination of a
Participant's employment with the Company or ariliafé after attaining age 55 with at least fiveaye of
employment service; and

(ii) with respect to Awards granted under the Riaror after January 1, 2016, the termination of
a Participant's employment with the Company or #ili#dte after attaining age 55 with at least texays of
employment service.

(aa) "Stock Appreciation Rightheans a Participant's right to receive an amouoéasii or shares of Common Stock
equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value giecied number of shares of Common Stock on the the
right is exercised over the Fair Market Value aflsaumber of shares of Common Stock on the Graté.Da

(bb) "Stock Award” means any award of Common Stactter the Plan and may include Restricted Stockdsnar
other awards of Common Stock as determined ap@tepby the Committee.

3. Eligibility.

The Committee will have the exclusive power andatity (except as it may delegate such power atidositly as
permitted herein) to select the executives andrahmployees of the Company and its Affiliates whayrparticipate in
this Plan by receiving Awards made hereunder.n8itemployee members of the 3M Board of Directoed! stiso be
eligible to participate in and receive Awards madesunder.

4, Shares Available for Awards.

Unless otherwise authorized by the Company’s stoickdns, the total number of shares of Common Stisakmay be
issued or delivered pursuant to Awards granted wuthile Plan will be 100,000,000. Of this total, more than
100,000,000 may be issued or delivered upon theciseeof Incentive Stock Options. The necessaayeshshall be
made available at the discretion of the Board @é&ibrs from authorized but unissued shares, trgahares, or shares
reacquired by the Company under corporate repueghiagrams.

The following rules shall apply for the purposedetermining the number of shares of Common Stocilaneing
available for issuance under the Plan:

€) If an Award is denominated in a fixed numbesladres of Common Stock on the Grant Date, the
number of shares covered by such Award (as indke of an Option or Restricted Stock grant) orhactvsuch Award
relates (as in the case of a Stock AppreciatiomfRigill be counted on the Grant Date against thialthumber of shares
available for issuance or delivery under the Pldman Award is not denominated in a fixed numbgstwares of
Common Stock on the Grant Date (but is potentiadlyable in such shares or the final number of shigraot
determined until the completion of a Performancedeg, only the number of shares of Common Stodkalty issued
or delivered as a result of such Award, if any/ldb@ counted against the total number of sharadable for issuance
or delivery under the Plan.
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(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 44bpve, each Full Value Award will be counted agains
the total number of shares available for issuamaetivery under the Plan according to the follogvtable:

Number of Shares Counted Against

Grant Date of the Total Shares AvailableEach
Full Value Award Share Covered by the Full Valugakd
May 13, 2008 — May 10, 2010 3.38
May 11, 2010 — May 7, 2012 2.87
On or after May 8, 2012 3.50
(c) When an Award granted under this Plan and damated in shares of Common Stock (or any portion

thereof) expires, is cancelled, is forfeited ootiserwise terminated without the issuance of siehes, or is settled in
cash or consideration other than shares of Comrtaek3hen the shares of Common Stock previousintsal against
the total number of shares available for issuamaiebvery under the Plan on account of such Awardortion
thereof) will again be made available for issuamerssunder. When an award granted under a Prededtas and
denominated in shares of Common Stock (or anyqottiereof) expires, is cancelled, is forfeitedsontherwise
terminated without the issuance of such shareis, settled in cash or consideration other thaneshaf Common Stock,
then the shares of Common Stock previously couagednhst the total number of shares available fraace or
delivery under such Predecessor Plan on accouwstalif Award (or portion thereof) will be added te thtal number of
shares available for issuance or delivery underRifan. Notwithstanding the rest of this Sectifs),4he following
shares of Common Stock will not be added to tha toimber of shares available or be made avaikadpén for
issuance under this Plan: (i) shares not issuekklorered as a result of the net settlement ofigstanding stock option
or stock appreciation right; (ii) shares delivetedr withheld by the Company to pay the exercisespof or the
withholding taxes with respect to an award; anjl §hares repurchased on the open market withritgepds from the
payment of the exercise price of an option.

(d) Any shares of Common Stock related to Awardstgd through the assumption of, or in substitution
for, outstanding awards previously granted by amamy acquired by the Company or an Affiliate orhwithich the
Company or any Affiliate combines, shall not be miea against the total number of shares availales$uance or
delivery under the Plan.

5. Terms of Awards.

The Committee shall determine the type or typeswedrds to be granted to each Participant, whicli leaevidenced
by such written or electronic documents as the Citteenshall authorize; provided, however, that moplyee
members of the 3M Board of Directors shall not ligilde to receive Incentive Stock Options, Progies Stock
Options, Performance Units or Performance Shafée. following types of Awards may be granted urties Plan:

(a) Incentive Stock Options — Incentive Stock Opsigranted hereunder shall have an exercise price
equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Faikkbtavalue of a share of Common Stock on the GrateD
Incentive Stock Options granted hereunder shalbimecexercisable at such time as shall be establish¢he
Committee and reflected in the documents evidensiryp Options, and unless sooner terminated skgillecon the
tenth anniversary of the Grant Date.

(b) Nonqualified Stock Options — Nonqualified Sta@ktions granted hereunder shall have an exercise
price equal to no less than one hundred percef@flof the Fair Market Value of a share of Commatwck on the
Grant Date. Nonqualified Stock Options grantecehader shall become exercisable and shall expseddt time or
times as shall be established by the Committeeeftetted in the documents evidencing such Optipravided,
however, that no Nonqualified Stock Option shajpiex later than ten years after the Grant Datedjpixthat the
Committee may extend the exercise period for Nolifipch Stock Options granted to Participants in @owntry or
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countries for an additional period of up to onenjgand to the extent necessary to prevent adwerseonsequences to
such Participants under the laws of such country).

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thicten, the vested and exercisable portion of aridDpir
Stock Appreciation Right that remains outstandmgniediately prior to the expiration of its full teron or after April 1,
2016 (or, if applicable, the expiration of the lied post-termination exercise window occurring omfter April 1,
2016) shall be deemed to have been exercised WBatieipant at such time if (i) the Participanslzcepted the
Option or Stock Appreciation Right, (ii) the Fairakket Value of one share of Common Stock exceezlapiplicable
exercise price per share, and (iii) either (A) s@gtion or Stock Appreciation Right remains outsiag on the last day
of its full term or (B) the Participant’s Option 8tock Appreciation Right otherwise would terminatir to the last
day of its full term as a result of the Participamteath. For the avoidance of doubt, an OptioBtock Appreciation
Right that terminates upon the expiration of itsited post-termination exercise window shall notleemed to have
remained outstanding on the last day of its fulintiéor purposes of clause (iii) in the precedingteace. In the event an
Option or Stock Appreciation Right is exercisedguant to this Section, the Company shall delivehéoParticipant the
number of shares of Common Stock for which the @ptir Stock Appreciation Right was deemed exerciesd the
number of shares of Common Stock withheld for tagnpent of the total purchase price and withholdages.

(c) Progressive Stock Optiond¥heneveia Participant exercises a nonqualified stock opgi@mted
under the 1997 or 2002 Management Stock Ownergioigr&m and makes payment of all or part of the lpase price
and withholding taxes, if any, in Common Stock, @@mmittee may in its discretion grant such Pgrtiot a
Progressive Stock Option. The number of shareesutn such Progressive Stock Option shall be leigu&ie number
of shares of Common Stock utilized by the Particifia effect payment of the exercise price and hattiing taxes, if
any, for such nonqualified stock option. Each Pesgive Stock Option granted hereunder shall havexarcise price
equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the FaikkBtaValue of a share of Common Stock on the dagxefcise of the
nonqualified stock option, which shall be the Graate of such Progressive Stock Option. Each Rssjre Stock
Option granted hereunder shall be exercisable sixths after the Grant Date, and shall expire as#me time the
nonqualified stock option exercised by the Paréinipivould have expired.

(d) Stock Appreciation Rights - The term of a &téppreciation Right shall be fixed by the Comntte
and set forth in the documents evidencing suclt,rigit no Stock Appreciation Right shall be exeable more than ten
years after the Grant Date. Each Stock Apprecid@ight shall become exercisable at the time oesiletermined by
the Committee and set forth in the documents ewvidignsuch right. Each Stock Appreciation Rightgeal hereunder
shall have a grant price equal to one hundred pe(@€0%) of the Fair Market Value of a share ohtdaon Stock on
the Grant Date.

(e) Restricted Stock - At the time a grant of Ret&d Stock is made, the Committee, in its soemition,
shall establish a Restricted Period and such additterms and conditions as may be deemed apptegar the
incremental lapse or complete lapse of restrictisitis respect to all or any portion of the share€ommon Stock
represented by the Restricted Stock. The Commiti@galso, in its sole discretion, shorten or teate the Restricted
Period or waive any terms or conditions for thestapf restrictions with respect to all or any portof the shares of
Common Stock represented by the Restricted StBeking the Restricted Period the Participant spefierally have
the rights and privileges of a stockholder as tthdrestricted Stock, including the right to votelsiestricted Stock
and receive dividend payments, except that thevatig restrictions shall apply: (i) none of the Riesed Stock may be
sold, transferred, assigned, pledged, or otherarisembered or disposed of during the Restrictetb&®and until the
satisfaction of any other terms and conditions @ibed by the Commiittee, if any; and (i) all obtRestricted Stock
shall be forfeited and all rights of the Participahall terminate without further obligation on thart of the Company
unless the Participant shall have remained a refullaime employee of the Company or an Affiliatetil the
expiration or termination of the Restricted Perdodl the satisfaction of the other terms and camtitprescribed by the
Committee, if any. Any Restricted Stock grantedenthe Plan may be evidenced in such manner &3dhenittee
may determine, in its discretion, including, withdimitation, book-entry registration or issuandeoae or more stock
certificates bearing an appropriate legend recagmithe terms, conditions and restrictions applieab such Restricted
Stock. Upon the forfeiture of any Restricted Staich shares of Common Stock represented by thigicted Stock
shall be transferred to the Company without furtetion by the Participant.
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4] Restricted Stock Units - At the time a grahRestricted Stock Units is made, the Committeetsin
sole discretion, shall establish a Restricted Besind such additional terms and conditions as reageemed
appropriate for the incremental lapse or complapsé of restrictions with respect to all or anytipoarof such Restricted
Stock Units. The Committee may also, in its sasemrbtion, shorten or terminate the Restrictedd@eor waive any
terms or conditions for the lapse of restrictiorifiwespect to all or any portion of the Restric&dck Units. During
the Restricted Period the Participant will not heéherights and privileges of a stockholder asuthsRestricted Stock
Units, including the right to vote and receive dimid payments with respect to the shares of ConStmrk
corresponding to such Restricted Stock Units; mledj however, that at the sole discretion of them@dgtee, Dividend
Equivalents may be either currently paid in caskhares or withheld by the Company for the Paidicijs account and
either maintained in cash to be paid upon the akpin of the Restricted Period or reinvested initamithl Restricted
Stock Units. Each grant of Restricted Stock Usilitall be subject to the following restrictions:tfig Participant shall
not be entitled to the payment of cash or the dejiwf the shares of Common Stock correspondirayioh Restricted
Stock Units until the expiration or terminationtb& Restricted Period and the satisfaction of ahgraerms and
conditions prescribed by the Committee, if any;rfone of the Restricted Stock Units may be so&hdferred,
assigned, pledged, or otherwise encumbered or skspaf at any time; and (iii) except as otherwis®/jgled in Section
7, all of the Restricted Stock Units and any defémividend Equivalents shall be forfeited andriglhts of the
Participant shall terminate without further obligaton the part of the Company upon the terminabibtine
Participant’s employment with the Company or aniliste prior to the end of the Restricted Periodyyided, however,
that if the Committee so decides and the docunerntiencing an Award of Restricted Stock Units sovjite, the
preceding exception allowing such Restricted Stduoks to vest following the Participant’'s Retirerhahall not apply
so that such Restricted Stock Units and any defédieidend Equivalents will be forfeited and aljints of the
Participant shall terminate without further obligaton the part of the Company upon the Retireroéstich Participant
prior to the end of the Restricted Period.

(9) Other Stock Awards - The Committee may, irsife discretion, grant Stock Awards other than
Restricted Stock grants or Restricted Stock Uaitsl such Stock Awards may be granted singly, inkéoation or in
tandem with, in replacement of, or as alternatteegrants or rights under this Plan or any otheplegee benefit or
compensation plan of the Company, including tha plsany acquired entity. If the Committee shédfldate terms and
conditions with respect to such Stock Awards, grens and conditions will be set forth in the docateesvidencing the
Award. If the terms and conditions with respecaty Stock Award shall require the surrender diefture of other
grants or rights under this Plan or any other egesdenefit or compensation plan of the Comparen the Participant
shall not have any rights under such Stock Awattd the grants or rights exchanged have been atig effectively
surrendered or forfeited.

(h) Performance Units and Performance SharestheAtime it approves each grant of PerformancedUnit
or Performance Shares, the Committee shall deterthimnumber of Performance Units or Performaneeedhgranted
to each Participant, the proration, if any, of sBehformance Units or Performance Shares if thedfzant retires prior
to the completion of the relevant Performance Rettite commencement and expiration of the releRanformance
Period, and the Performance Criteria by which tingngent value of the Performance Units or PerforraeBttares will
be determined. If the Committee provides, a godfterformance Units or Performance Shares mayigeay
Participant with the right to receive Dividend Eeplents, subject to the same restrictions on temabflity and
forfeitability and payable at the same time asReeformance Units or Performance Shares with réspeehich the
Dividend Equivalents are granted. Any such Dividi&guivalents shall be converted to cash or additishares of
Common Stock, or a combination of cash and shdr€@mmon Stock, by such formula and at such tinesarbject to
such limitations as may be set forth in the writdgmeement evidencing the award. Payment of eadbrimance Unit
and Performance Share shall occur no later thaW#reh 15 of the year immediately following the quation of the
respective Performance Period, unless a Particgiait have made an effective election to deferdieeipt of such
payment pursuant to the terms of an applicablerdsfecompensation plan and all applicable lawse dimount payable
with respect to each Performance Unit and Perfocea&hare shall be contingent upon the attainmetteof
Performance Criteria selected by the Committeenduttie respective Performance Period, and upoodhgnued
employment of the Participant throughout such Rerémce Period (or upon the Participant’s Retirerpeiotr to the end
of such Performance Period).
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6. Payment of Awards.

Payment of Awards may be in the form of cash, shafe€€Common Stock or combinations thereof as the@ittee
shall determine, and with such other restriction& anay impose. The Committee may permit or negjthie deferral of
any Award payment, subject to such terms, rulescanditions as the Committee may establish, whiely include
provisions for the payment or crediting of interesDividend Equivalents; provided, however, thret Committee shall
not have any authority to permit or require theedefl of any Award payment to the extent that tkereise of such
authority would cause any excise tax to becomeuthaer section 409A of the Code.

No shares of Common Stock shall be issued to articlpant upon the exercise of an Option grantedienrthis Plan
until full payment of the exercise price has beertento the Company and the Participant has remittédte Company
the required withholding taxes, if any. Paymenthef exercise price and withholding taxes, if angy be made in
whole or in part in shares of Common Stock, purst@such terms and conditions as may be estaldlisben time to
time by the Committee. If payment is made in shafeCommon Stock, such shares shall be valugteatFair Market
Value on the day the Participant exercises theddpir, as regards a withholding tax, on the datenathe tax
obligation becomes due. A Participant need naeswer shares of already owned Common Stock aseratyand the
Company may, upon the giving of satisfactory evieaf ownership of such shares by the Particigiaityer the
appropriate number of additional shares of CommockSreduced by the number of shares required ydhmexercise
price and any required withholding taxes. Sucimfof evidence shall be determined by the Commitiées discretion.

In no event will the Company be required to deliapy fractional share of Common Stock in connectiith any
Award. In the event that a Participant shall bitled to receive a fraction of a share of CommaacE in connection
with an Award granted under the Plan, the Comp&ajl pay in cash, in lieu thereof, the Fair Markedue of such
fractional share.

7. Termination of Awards.

If a Participant's employment with the Company orAdfiliate is terminated for any reason other tt{gra

Disqualifying Termination, (ii) Retirement, (iii) termination in connection with which the Partigipaxecutes a written
release of employment-related claims in favor ef @ompany that provides (with the approval of tlen@any) for the
nonforfeiture of Options and Stock Appreciation Rgy (iv) a physical or mental disability as reciagd under a benefit
plan maintained by the Participant’s employer,\Wrdgath, and prior to the date of terminationPlaticipant has not
fully exercised an Option or Stock Appreciation IRigranted under this Plan, such Participant mayatse the Option
or Stock Appreciation Right within ninety (90) dagdlowing the date of termination (but not beyahe expiration

date of such Option or Right) for the number ofrskavhich the Participant could have purchase@aived a payment
on the date of termination. Unless the documeritieacing such Awards or the terms of this SecHigmovide
otherwise, all of the Participant’s Options andcBtédppreciation Rights shall automatically be fidd at the
conclusion of the ninety (90)-day period followitige date of the Participant’s termination of empheyt and all of the
Participant’s other Awards shall automatically befdited at the time of his or her termination offgoyment.

If a Participant Retires, terminates employmenhlite Company or an Affiliate and in connectionhagtich
termination the Participant executes a writtenasdeof employment-related claims in favor of thenPany that
provides (with the approval of the Company) for tlemforfeiture of Options and Stock AppreciatiolgRs, or changes
employment status as a result of a physical or ahelidability as recognized under a benefit plaintained by the
Participant’'s employer, without having fully exesed an Option or Stock Appreciation Right, the iBig@nt shall be
entitled, within the remaining term of the OptianStock Appreciation Right (but not beyond the eafion date of such
Option or Right), to exercise such Option or Stéglpreciation Right (provided, however, that in theent of a
termination in connection with which the Participarecutes a written release of employment-relakgiths in favor of
the Company that provides (with the approval ofGeenpany) for the nonforfeiture of Options and Ktéppreciation
Rights, the additional time to exercise Options &tatk Appreciation Rights shall apply only to te@3ptions and
Stock Appreciation Rights which have vested priothe date of termination of employment). If atRgrant who has
thus Retired dies, without having fully exercised@ption or Stock Appreciation Right, the OptionSiock
Appreciation Right (including any portion thereaftralready exercisable at the time of the Partidigadeath) may be
exercised within two years after the date of hik@rdeath (but not beyond the expiration dateiohption or Right)

131



by the Participant's estate or by a person whoiedjthe right to exercise such Option or Stock sgation Right by
bequest or inheritance or by reason of the deatheoParticipant.

If a Participant, prior to Retirement, dies withtatving fully exercised an Option or Stock Appréoia Right, the
Option or Stock Appreciation Right (including angrfjon thereof not already exercisable at the tirhihe Participant’s
death) may be exercised within two years followligjor her death (but not beyond the expiratiore @étsuch Option
or Right) by the Participant's estate or by a permsbo acquired the right to exercise such OptioBtock Appreciation
Right by bequest or inheritance or by reason ofigegh of the Participant.

Notwithstanding the rest of this Section 7, if atRgant’s employment with the Company or an Aéfik is terminated
before he or she has fully exercised an OptiontockSAppreciation Right under circumstances whiol Committee
believes to warrant special consideration and the@ittee has determined that the Participant'ssighould not be
forfeited at the time or times specified above,@mion or Stock Appreciation Right (including apgrtion thereof not
already exercisable at the time of termination) fn@yexercised within two years following his or kenmination of
employment (but not beyond the expiration dateuchsOption or Right).

If a Participant's employment is terminated by @@mpany or an Affiliate by reason of a restructgridivestiture, job
elimination or any other similar event, as deteediby the Company in its sole discretion, and imeetion with such
termination the Participant executes and doesawtke a written release of employment-related ddimfavor of the
Company that provides (with the approval of the @any) for pro rata vesting of the Participant’s aairRestricted
Stock Unit Awards in accordance with the termshig Section 7, then the Participant shall vestpodion of his or her
then unvested annual Restricted Stock Unit Awatdiseatime the release becomes effective and ioavie. The
number of Restricted Stock Units (if any) subjectite portion of each unvested annual Restrictedk3tnit Award
that vests in accordance with the preceding seatshall equal the number of additional RestrictextiSUnits (if any)
in which the Participant otherwise would have beested at the time of his or her termination of Exryment if the
Restricted Stock Units subject to each vestingctnarof such Award vested in a series of successjual annual
installments over the duration of the service-bag=ding schedule otherwise applicable to suching$tanche. The
Shares underlying the Restricted Stock Units tleat pursuant to this paragraph shall be issuedasas
administratively practicable following the datewhich the Participant’s release becomes effectikiaevocable (but
in any event no later than March 15 of the calerygar following the calendar year in which the Rgant's
termination of employment occurs) or, to the extestessary to comply with the requirements of sact09A of the
Code, in accordance with the provisions of the dueuts evidencing the Participant's Award.

If a Participant dies, either prior to or followilRgtirement, or becomes “disabled” within the magrof section
409A(a)(2)(C) of the Code, and has not yet recethiedstock certificate for the shares of CommorciStepresented by
a grant of Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Umitether Stock Award, then all restrictions impibskiring the
Restricted Period and any other terms and condifiwascribed by the Committee, if any, shall autically lapse and a
stock certificate shall be delivered to the Pgpticit or the Participant's beneficiary, represergatr estate, as the case
may be upon the Participant’s demonstration tosttisfaction of the Committee that such Participaebnsidered
“disabled” for purposes of section 409A(a)(2)(C}lué Code.

If a Participant Retires or changes employmentistas a result of a physical or mental disabiktyecognized under a
benefit plan maintained by the Participant’s emplayrior to the payment date for an Award of Perfance Shares or
Performance Units, such Retirement or change tas&hall not affect any rights of the Participaith respect to such
Performance Shares or Performance Units; providedgever, that the Committee may provide for thegtion of the
Performance Shares or Performance Units grantadPtarticipant who Retires prior to the completidthe
Performance Period for such Performance Sharesréorfhance Units.

If a Participant dies without having received paptef any Performance Shares or Performance Uratsted under
this Plan, payment of such Shares or Units shathhde no later than March 15 of the year followtimg year in which
the Participant died to such Participant’s sungvireneficiary or beneficiaries or, if there shalro such surviving
beneficiaries, to such Participant’s estate inftlewing manner:
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(i) If the Participant dies after the expiratioheoPerformance Period for such Performance Stares
Performance Units, the payment shall be at the sateeas that paid to other Participants who seruintil the
payment date; and

(i) If the Participant dies before the expiratioina Performance Period for such Performance Share
Performance Units, the amount of payment shalltltkeealesser of:

° the face or target value of each outstanding Pedace Share or Performance Unit for which
payment has not been made; or

° any other amount approved, in its discretion,Hey@ommittee.

If a Participant's employment with the Company orAffiliate is terminated due to a Disqualifying ri@nation,
participation hereunder shall cease and all oPtheicipant's Awards granted under this Plan dha@lhutomatically
forfeited, notwithstanding any language to the camtin this Plan document.

If a Participant breaches the provisions of sudtii¢ipant’s agreement with the Company or an Adfili pertaining to
nondisclosure of confidential information, assigmtnef rights to inventions, competition with the i8pany or post-
employment solicitation of the Company’s employeesustomers, and such agreement provides foottfeitiire of
Awards granted under this Plan in the event of drelach, all of the Participant’s Awards grantedarnthis Plan since
the date that such Participant signed such agreteshalt be automatically forfeited, notwithstandamagy language to
the contrary in this Plan document.

Participation hereunder shall cease and all rightter the Plan with respect to Restricted Stoabtloer Stock Awards
granted to a Participant who has been participatirigis Plan as a nonemployee member of the 3Mdo&Directors
are automatically forfeited by the Participant uplo& date of termination of his or her membershigte 3M Board of
Directors for any reason other than: (i) retireméiijtphysical or mental disability as determiriadthe Committee, or
(iii) death.

8. Limits on Awards.

No Participant shall be granted Options and Stoggraciation Rights under this Plan with respeantoe than
1,000,000 shares of Common Stock in any calendar. yido Participant shall receive cash, vestedeshaf Common
Stock or other property as a result of Awards grdninder this Plan, other than Options and Stogkégation Rights,
having a value exceeding $30,000,000 in any cafeyelxr. No Participant who is a nonemployee memb8M’s
Board of Directors may be granted Awards underPés having a value (determined as of the Grat¢ Bieach
Award) exceeding $500,000 in any calendar year.

9. Plan Administration.

This Plan will be administered by the Committeejolibshall have full power and authority to seldxwt Participants,
interpret the Plan, continue, accelerate or susi@néxercisability or vesting of an Award, and ptosuch rules and
procedures for operating the Plan as it may deeressary or appropriate. Its power and authorigjl $fclude, but not
be limited to, making any amendments to or modiiice of the Plan which may be required or necgseamake such
Plan comply with the provisions of any laws or dagions of any country or unit thereof in which tBempany or any
Affiliate operates. To do so, the Committee magleissh different terms and conditions for Awardada to
Participants who live in or are subject to taxafione or more countries other than the UnitedeStan order to
accommodate the tax or other relevant laws of socimtries. The Committee may adopt one or morelsupents or
sub-plans under the Plan to implement these difféerms and conditions. Except for adjustmentdaria accordance
with Section 11, no Option or Stock AppreciatiomRigranted under this Plan may be repriced toaedue exercise or
grant price of any outstanding Option or Stock Agmpation Right, nor may an outstanding Option arcit
Appreciation Right granted under this Plan be cedén exchange for cash, another Award, or ariddpar Stock
Appreciation Right with an exercise or grant ptticat is less than the exercise or grant price @ttimcelled Option or
Stock Appreciation Right, without the prior apprbeéthe Company’s stockholders.
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10. Delegation of Authority.

To the extent permitted by Delaware law, the Cornteaitnay delegate to officers of the Company argllaf its duties,
power and authority under this Plan subject to sumiditions or limitations as the Committee maybkbsh; provided,
however, that no officer shall have or obtain ththarity to grant Awards to (i) himself or hers€if) nonemployee
members of the 3M Board of Directors, or (iii) gmgrson subject to section 16 of the Securities &mxgh Act of 1934.

11. Adjustments.

In the event of any change in the outstanding Com8tock of the Company by reason of a stock sbigk dividend,
combination or reclassification of shares, recdipation, merger or similar event, the Committealsadjust
proportionately: (a) the number of shares of Comi@totk (i) available for issuance or delivery unthés Plan in
accordance with Section 4, (ii) for which Awardsynee granted to a single Participant in accordavitie Section 8,
and (iii) subject to outstanding Awards grantedemtiis Plan; (b) the exercise prices of outstagpdiwards; and (c) the
appropriate Fair Market Value and other price dateations for such Awards. In the event of anyeotthange
affecting the Common Stock or any distribution éstthan normal cash dividends) to holders of Com®imtk, such
adjustments in the number or kind of shares an@xeecise prices, Fair Market Value and other pdieeerminations of
the affected Awards as the Committee shall, isale discretion, determine are equitable, shaihbde and shall be
effective and binding for all purposes of such tarnding Awards. In the event of a corporate mergensolidation,
acquisition of assets or stock, separation, redzgéan or liquidation, the Committee shall be authed to cause the
Company to assume outstanding employee awardswe ieplacement Awards to affected employees, whethnot in
a transaction to which section 424(a) of the Cquj@ies, and to make such adjustments in the tefragath awards as it
shall deem appropriate in order to maintain reasieneomparability or equitable treatment betweenabsumed awards
and the Awards granted under this Plan as so adjust

12. Withholding.

Prior to the payment or settlement of any Award, Barticipant must pay, or make arrangements aetisf to the
Company for the payment of, any and all tax witklived that in the opinion of the Company is requibgdaw. The
Company or any Affiliate shall have the right taddet applicable taxes from any Award payment, tihold from the
shares of Common Stock being issued or deliveredmmection with an Award an appropriate numbestaires for the
payment of taxes required by law, or to take subleroaction as may be necessary in the opinioheeQompany or
such Affiliate to satisfy all obligations for thetihholding of such taxes.

13. Transferability.

Except as permitted in this Section 13, no Awahggd under this Plan may be assigned, transféothdr than a
transfer by will or the laws of descent and disttibn as provided in Section 7), pledged, or hypo#tied (whether by
operation of law or otherwise). Awards grantedarttiis Plan shall not be subject to executiomchtinent, or similar
process. The Committee may, in its sole discrefi@nmit individual Participants to transfer therasship of all or any
of their Nonqualified Options granted under thiarPto (i) the spouse, former spouse, children andghildren of such
Participant (“Immediate Family Members”), (ii) aust or trusts for the exclusive benefit of such ledilate Family
Members, or (iii) a partnership in which such Imratel Family Members are the only partners, provitdhed (x) there
may be no consideration for any such transfer,(ghdubsequent transfers of transferred Nonqudli@gtions shall be
prohibited except those in accordance with Secti¢ioy will or the laws of descent and distributiofjhe Committee
may, in its sole discretion, create further cowdisi and requirements for the transfer of NonqualifDptions.
Following transfer, any such Nonqualified Optiohalscontinue to be subject to the same terms anditions as were
applicable immediately prior to transfer. The dgerausing termination of Awards in accordance Biglstion 7 hereof
shall continue to be applied with respect to thginal Participant, following which the NonqualifleDptions shall be
exercisable by the transferee only to the extemd,far the periods specified in Section 7.

134



14.  Validity.

In the event any provision of this Plan should be=tmined to be illegal or invalid for any reasivishall not affect the
remaining provisions of the Plan which shall remaieffect as if the illegal or invalid provisiorath never been
included herein.

15. Governing Law.

The provisions of this Plan shall be governed Iy, iaterpreted and construed in accordance withlavs of the State
of Delaware.

16. Effective Date, Term, Amendment and Termination otthe Plan.

This Plan will become effective on the date itpp@oved by the requisite vote of the stockholdér3hd Company, and
shall expire (unless it is terminated before tt@m}he tenth anniversary of such effective datechSxpiration shall not
adversely affect Awards granted under this Plaorfd such expiration date. The Committee mayngttame amend or
terminate this Plan, except that no amendmentrotibation shall adversely affect Awards grantederrtlis Plan prior
to the effective date of such amendment or terridnaprovided, however, that no amendment shathbde without
the prior approval of the Board of Directors and liolders of a majority of the issued and outstagdhares of
Common Stock represented and entitled to vote oh amendment which would (i) increase the aggregaieber of
shares of Common Stock available for issuance lorestg under this Plan in accordance with Sectiqexcept for
adjustments made in accordance with Section lil pdimit the granting of Awards with purchase psdower than
those specified in Section 5, or (iii) be a mateairaendment for which stockholder approval is rezpiby applicable
law, regulation or stock exchange rule.

17. Change in Control.

For purposes of this Section 17, the following veoathd phrases shall have the meanings indicatedvpehless the
context clearly indicates otherwise:

€)) "Person” shall have the meaning associatddthitt term as it is used in Sections 13(d) and)laf
the Act.

(b) "Affiliates and Associates" shall have the meags assigned to such terms in Rule 12b-2 pronedga
under Section 12 of the Act.

(c) "Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of4.93

(d) "Continuing Directors" shall have the mean@sgigned to such term in Article Thirteenth of the
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of 3M Company

(e) “Cause” means (i) a material violation of groficy of the Company or the Affiliate employingeth
Participant, including, without limitation, any tife Company’s Business Conduct Policies, or (iipemzlement from
or theft of property belonging to the Company @ &ffiliate employing the Participant.

4] “Good Reason” means (i) a material diminutiorthe Participant’s position, authority, duties or
responsibilities as in effect immediately priotth@ Change in Control, (ii) a material diminutianthe Participant’s
base salary or annual planned cash compensatidiii) armaterial change in the geographic locanvhich the
Participant is required to perform services for @mmpany or the Affiliate employing such Participan

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plarthie contrary, all outstanding Options and Stockrgiation Rights
with a Grant Date prior to February 9, 2010 shabécome immediately exercisable in full for tlemainder of their
respective terms upon the occurrence of a Chan@emtrol of the Company, and (ii) remain exercisabhlfull for a
minimum period of six months following the Changedontrol; provided, however, that in no event khay Option or
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Stock Appreciation Right be exercisable beyondattiginal expiration date. Similarly, all restriatis regarding the
Restricted Period or the satisfaction of other teamd conditions prescribed by the Committee, yf aith respect to
grants of Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Umitsther Stock Awards with a Grant Date prior tifeary 9, 2010,
shall automatically lapse, expire, and terminat thie Participant shall be immediately entitleddoeive a stock
certificate for the number of shares of Common Btepresented by the Restricted Stock, RestrictedkSJnits or
Stock Awards upon the occurrence of a Change irtrGon

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plarthe contrary, if a Participant’'s employment witle tCompany or an
Affiliate is terminated without Cause or if the Beipant resigns for a Good Reason within eightemths following a
Change in Control of the Company, then all of sBalticipant’s outstanding Options and Stock Apmen Rights
with a Grant Date of February 9, 2010 or later ldbeatome immediately exercisable in full for theneender of their
respective terms and shall remain exercisablelirfidua minimum of six months following the datésuch termination
or resignation; provided, however, that in no esd@ll any Option or Stock Appreciation Right bexsable beyond
the original expiration date. Similarly, all rastions regarding the Restricted Period or thesfattion of other terms
and conditions prescribed by the Committee, if avith respect to grants of Restricted Stock, Ret&td Stock Units or
other Stock Awards with a Grant Date of Februarg®,0 or later, shall automatically lapse, expird germinate and
the Participant shall be immediately entitled toeige a stock certificate for the number of shafeSommon Stock
represented by the Restricted Stock, RestricteckStimits or Stock Awards upon the termination with€ause of the
Participant’s employment with the Company or aniliste or the Participant’s resignation for GoodaRen within
eighteen months following a Change in Control & @ompany.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plarthe contrary, all outstanding Options and Stockrpiation Rights
shall become immediately exercisable in full antian exercisable in full for a minimum period af shonths
following a Change in Control in which the indivials or entities acquiring control of the Companyndb assume or
otherwise provide for the continuation of such Ops and Rights for at least such six-month pefpodyided, however,
that in no event shall any Option or Stock AppréeiaRight be exercisable beyond the original extpin date.
Similarly, all restrictions regarding the Restritteeriod or the satisfaction of other terms andld@ms prescribed by
the Committee, if any, with respect to grants o$teted Stock, Restricted Stock Units or othercktAwards shall
automatically lapse, expire, and terminate andPtueicipant shall be immediately entitled to reeedvstock certificate
for the number of shares of Common Stock repreddnahe Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock UnitStock Awards
upon the occurrence of a Change in Control in whhehindividuals or entities acquiring control bétCompany do not
assume or otherwise provide for the continuatiosunh Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units@hdr Stock
Awards.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plarthe contrary, upon the occurrence of a Changeoimtr@l of the
Company each Performance Period shall end anddh@@any shall immediately distribute in cash or ebhaf
Common Stock, as appropriate, to the respectiviickants the value of all outstanding Performa8bares and
Performance Units granted under this Plan with@n@bDate prior to February 9, 2010, as determinextcordance
with the following rules:

(w) With respect to those Performance Shares dofeance Units for which the Performance Period het
been completed prior to the Change in Control ef@ompany, the value of such Shares or Units fgqogsaes
of this Section 17 shall be equal to the produc &fiction, where the numerator of such fractothe number
of full calendar months completed during the retipederformance Period and prior to the Changéantrol
and the denominator of such fraction is the totethber of months in such Performance Period, midtipby
the largest of:

° the value of such Performance Shares or Perforendnits computed as if the Company’s
performance during the remainder of the Performateréod following the Change in Control
equaled its performance during those full calenperters completed during the respective
Performance Period and prior to the date of thenG&an Control;
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° the value of such Performance Shares or Perforendnits computed as if the Performance
Period for such Shares or Units was the three cotise calendar year period ending
immediately prior to the year in which the Chang&€bntrol occurs; or

° any other amount approved, in its discretion,Hey@ommittee.

(x) With respect to those Performance Shares doPeance Units for which the Performance Periosl iheen
completed at the time of a Change in Control ef@@mpany, the value of such Shares or Units for
purposes of this Section 17 shall be the actualevak adjusted to reflect the actual Company pedoce
during the Performance Period.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plarthe contrary, if a Participant’s employment witie tCompany or an
Affiliate is terminated without Cause or if the Beipant resigns for a Good Reason within eightemmths following a
Change in Control of the Company, then with respesuch Participant each Performance Period shdlland the
Company shall immediately distribute in cash orebaf Common Stock, as appropriate, to such Raatic the value
of all outstanding Performance Shares and Perfarenbimits granted under this Plan with a Grant Déteebruary 9,
2010 or later, as determined in accordance witHahewing rules:

(y) With respect to those Performance Shares doPeance Units for which the Performance Period hat
been completed prior to the Participant’s termoratir resignation, the value of such Shares orsUfaoit
purposes of this Section 17 shall be equal to thdyzet of a fraction, where the numerator of suelstfon is
the number of full calendar months completed duthegrespective Performance Period and prior to the
termination or resignation and the denominatoruchsfraction is the total number of months in such
Performance Period, multiplied by the largest of:

° the value of such Performance Shares or Perforenidnis computed as if the Company’s
performance during the remainder of the Performdtreréod following the termination or
resignation equaled its performance during thoBeélendar quarters completed during the
respective Performance Period and prior to the ofattee termination or resignation;

° the value of such Performance Shares or Perforendnis computed as if the Performance
Period for such Shares or Units was the three cotise calendar year period ending
immediately prior to the year in which the termioator resignation occurs; or

° any other amount approved, in its discretion,Hey@ommittee.

(z) With respect to those Performance Shares idoPgance Units for which the Performance Periosl aen
completed by the time of the Participant’s termimabr resignation, the value of such Shares otdfor
purposes of this Section 17 shall be the actualevak adjusted to reflect the actual Company peeoce
during the Performance Period.

For purposes of this Section 17, a Change in Cbafritne Company shall be deemed to have occumgdiba “change
in the ownership” or a “change in effective contrd/or a “change in the ownership of a substaptation of the
assets” of the Company has taken place (as thoss tee defined in Treasury Regulations §1.409)&)or such
other regulation or guidance issued under sectd®f\bf the Code.

The Company shall pay to each Participant the atafuadl reasonable legal and accounting fees apérmses incurred
by such Participant in seeking to obtain or enfdriseor her rights under this Section 17, or inremstion with any
income tax audit or proceeding to the extent atteble to the application of section 4999 of thel€t the payments
made pursuant to this Section 17, unless a lawsuiimenced by the Participant for such purposesisissed by the
court as being frivolous or otherwise improper uralgplicable court rules. The Company shall aBptp each
Participant the amount of all reasonable tax amanitial planning fees and expenses incurred by Badiicipant in
connection with such Participant's receipt of pagts@ursuant to this Section 17. Payment of thegga and
accounting fees and expenses, as well as thesadbfinancial planning fees and expenses, shatidee as soon as

137



administratively feasible, but no later than twal @me-half months following the end of the Partips taxable year in
which these fees and expenses have been incurred.

18. Miscellaneous.

(a) Nothing in this Plan or the fact that a perban received or become eligible to receive Awards
hereunder shall be deemed to give such personigimyto be retained in the employ of the Compangroy Affiliate or
to interfere with the right of the Company or anffilate to discipline or terminate the employmefitsuch person at
any time for any reason whatsoever. No person Bhaé any claim or right to receive Awards undus Plan, except
as provided in accordance with the provisions @ Bfan and as approved by the Committee. Unldeswise
specifically determined by the Committee, neither Awards themselves nor the payments receivedresghect to such
Awards granted under this Plan will be deemed aqfaany Participant’s compensation for purposedetérmining
such Participant’'s payments or benefits under amefit plan or severance program of the ComparangrAffiliate or
under the severance pay law of any country.

(b) This Plan will be unfunded. The Company doesintend to create any trust or separate fund in
connection with the Plan. The Company shall neeheny obligation to set aside funds or segregsgeta to ensure the
payment of any Award. The Plan shall not estaldisi fiduciary relationship between the Company amyl
Participant or other person. To the extent anggreholds any rights by virtue of an Award undés #lan, such right
(unless otherwise determined by the Committee) bleaho greater than the right of an unsecuredrgéneeditor of the
Company.

(c) Prior to the payment or settlement of any Award, Barticipant must pay or make arrangements
satisfactory to the Company and its Affiliates floe payment of any and all tax withholding thathia opinion of the
Company and its Affiliates is required by law. Thempany and its Affiliates shall have the rightieduct from any
Award or any payment due on account of any Awaethtggd under this Plan the federal, state, loc&rmign income or
other taxes required by law to be withheld withpesgt to such Award or payment, to withhold from shares of
Common Stock being issued or delivered in connaatitth an Award an appropriate number of shareshiempayment
of taxes required by law, and to take such othBom@s may be necessary in the opinion of the Gomp@nd its
Affiliates to satisfy all obligations for the witblding and payment of such taxes.

(d) The provisions of this Plan and the documents eninhgy Awards granted under this Plan shall be
construed and interpreted according to the lavtheState of Delaware.

(e) In case any provision of this Plan shall bedur declared invalid for any reason, said illégalr
invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisgrand the remainder of the Plan shall be constmuaddkenforced as if
such illegal or invalid provision had never beecluded herein.

)] To the extent permitted by the Committee, eBalticipant shall have the right at any time teigieate
any person, persons or entity as the beneficiabeogeficiaries to whom payment of the Participaatisstanding
Awards shall be made in the event of the Partidipateath. Any designation filed under the Plaryroa revoked or
changed by written instrument so signed and filkédr o the Participant’s death. If a Participdesignates more than
one beneficiary to receive such Participant’s autding Awards and any beneficiary shall predectas®articipant,
the Company shall pay the deceased beneficiargieso the surviving beneficiary or beneficiariesgortionately, as
the portion designated by the Participant for dzedrs to the total portion designated for all sting beneficiaries.

(9) This Plan is intended to comply and shall miistered in a manner that is intended to conaptl
the requirements of Section 409A of the Code (idicig the Treasury Department guidance and regulsigsued
thereunder), and shall be construed and interpietadcordance with such intent. If the Commitieéermines that an
Award, Award document, payment, transaction or @tiwgr action or arrangement contemplated by theigions of
this Plan would, if undertaken, cause a Participaitecome subject to any additional taxes or gikeealties under
Section 409A of the Code, then unless the Commifpeeifically provides otherwise, such Award, Awdatument,
payment, transaction or other action or arrangersiegit not be given effect to the extent it caumesh result and the
related provisions of the Plan and/or Award docusherill be deemed modified or, if necessary, sudpdrin order to
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comply with the requirements of Section 409A of @ade to the extent determined appropriate by tham@ittee, in
each case without the consent of or notice to trédpant.

(h) Although the Company and its Affiliates maydenvor to structure an Award or payment hereundler s
that it (i) qualifies for favorable U.S. or foreigax treatment, or (ii) avoids adverse tax treatinesither the Company
nor any Affiliate makes any representation to #féct and expressly disavows any commitment oigahibn to
maintain favorable or avoid unfavorable tax treathfer any Participant.
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EXHIBIT 10.8

(Including amendments
through February 2, 2016)

3M 2005 MANAGEMENT STOCK OWNERSHIP PROGRAM
SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this plan is to help the Compatnaéttand retain outstanding employees, and to pterhe
growth and success of the Company’s business lgyiag the financial interests of these employeeth whe other
stockholders of the Company. It has been the polithe Company to encourage employee participatiostockholders
and the Company believes that employee stock oWwipetgs been an important factor contributing ® @ompany's
growth and progress.

SECTION 2 DEFINITIONS

(a) “Award” shall mean an Incentive Stock Option, Nonqualifs#dck Option, Progressive Stock Option,
Stock Appreciation Right, Restricted Stock, ResdcStock Unit or other Stock Award granted to &iBipant pursuant
to this 2005 Program, subject to the terms, comattiand restrictions of this 2005 Program and ¢h sither terms,
conditions and restrictions as may be establislyetido Committee.

(b) "Board of Directors"shall mean the Board of Directors of 3M Company.

(c) “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, msijt be amended from time to time. For
purposes of this 2005 Program, references to sectibthe Code shall be deemed to include refesetacany applicable
regulations thereunder and any successor or sipritasisions.

(d) "Committee"shall mean the Compensation Committee establisietthdo Board of Directors acting
without the participation of any member who mayéasceived a grant or award under the 2005 Prograamy other
similar plan or program of the Company (except ¢hiamited to participation by directors) during theevious one year
period, or such other committee of disinterestadiatstrators established by the Board of Directorsomply with Rule
16b-3 promulgated by the Securities and Exchangerission, as amended from time to time.

(e) "Common StockS8hall mean the common stock, with a par value dd%@er share, of 3M Company.

)] "Company"shall mean 3M Company and such subsidiaries diaaffs as may be designated by the
Board of Directors from time to time.

(9) "Conditions"shall mean the condition that the Restricted Pestgulilated by the Committee at the time
of grants of Restricted Stock or Restricted StocktdJshall have expired or terminated and that @tfwer conditions
prescribed by the Committee regarding a Particlpaobntinued employment by the Company or the Cayipa
performance during the Restricted Period shall hmen satisfied, or any other conditions stipuldtgdhe Committee
with respect to Stock Awards.

(h) “Disqualifying Termination”shall mean a termination of a Participant’s emplent with the
Company (i) due to a material violation of any Camyp policy, including, without limitation, any poli contained in
the Company’s Business Conduct Manual, or (ii) tuembezzlement from or theft of property belongimghe
Company.

0] "Dividend Equivalents'$shall mean that sum of cash or Common Stock ofvadpnt value equal to the

amount of cash or stock dividends paid upon Com8tork subject to any Awards under the 2005 Progpaior, to
such time as the Participant otherwise becometiezhthereto as a holder of record.
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0] "Fair Market Value"shall mean the closing price for a share of Com®imtk as reported on the New
York Stock Exchange Composite Transactions.

(K) “Grant Date” shall mean the effective date of an Award gratdedParticipant under the 2005 Program.

0] ‘Incentive Stock Optiorshall mean an Option granted to a Participant utite2005 Program which
satisfies the requirements of section 422 of théeCand is so designated in the written or eleatrdacuments evidencing
such Option.

(m) “MSOP Administrator”shall mean the entity retained by the Companyltoiaister the 2005 Program.

(n) "Nonqualified Stock Optionshall mean an Option granted to a Participant utider2005 Program
which is not an Incentive Stock Option.

(0) "Option" shall mean a Participant's right to purchasentimaber of shares of Common Stock approved
by the Company, subject to the terms and conditidrise 2005 Program, and the term shall includé bacentive Stock
Options and Nonqualified Options.

(p) "Participant” shall mean any employee of the Company who is desigl as a Participant by the
Committee.

(@) "2002 Program'shall mean the Company's 2002 Management Stock BhipeProgram.

N “2005 Program” shall mean the Company’s 2005 Management Stocke@skiip Program.

(s) “Progressive Stock Optionshall mean an Option granted to a Participant uthede2005 Program upon

the exercise of a Nonqualified Stock Option graniader the 2002 Program or its predecessors wiuete Barticipant
makes payment for all or part of the purchase maiwt withholding taxes in shares of Common Stock.

® "Restricted Period"shall mean that period of time determined by then@®ittee during which a
Participant shall not be permitted to sell or tfanshares of Restricted Stock granted under t6& Bdogram, or prior to
the time when a Participant’s interest in Restdc®ock Units granted under this 2005 Program $tealé vested.

(u) "Restricted Stockhall mean that Common Stock granted to a Partitipabject to the Conditions
established by the Committee.

(v) “Restricted Stock Unit’shall mean a stock unit granted to a Participatit avvalue equal to the value
of a share of Common Stock, subject to the Condlitiestablished by the Committee.

(w) “Retires” or "Retirement"shall mean the termination of a Participant’s emplent with the Company
(i) after attaining age 55 with at least five yeaf®@mployment service or after attaining age 8%jipif the Participant is
covered by a retirement plan of the Company whitbées such Participant to retire before attaimigg 55 with at least
five years of employment service or age 65, afteeting the requirements for retirement under aeneent plan of the
Company.

(x) "Stock Appreciation Rightshall mean a Participant's right to receive an arhoficash or shares of
Common Stock equal to the excess of the Fair Mark&ie of a specified number of shares of CommaciSon the date
the right is exercised over the Fair Market Valfisuch number of shares of Common Stock on the t@ate.

) "Stock Award'shall mean any award of Common Stock under therBrognd may include Restricted
Stock awards or other awards of Common Stock asméted appropriate by the Committee.
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SECTION 3 SHARES AVAILABLE FOR AWARDS

The number of shares of Common Stock that magdesd or delivered as a result of Options, ResttiStock,
Restricted Stock Units or other Stock Awards grdrdaring the term of the 2005 Program, or madeestip Stock
Appreciation Rights granted during the term of 2005 Program, is 36,750,000. Of this total, noertban 36,750,000
shares may be granted as Incentive Stock Optidmy. shares issued or delivered as a result of Asvgrdnted during
the term of this 2005 Program other than OptionStock Appreciation Rights settled exclusively ion@mon Stock shall
be counted against the 36,750,000 share limit dtesstabove as 2.45 shares for every one sharaligsgennection with
such Award or by which the Award is valued by refare. Any shares of Common Stock made subjecttdokS
Appreciation Rights granted during the term of tB@5 Program and settled exclusively in CommorciSghall be
counted in full against the 36,750,000 share limgardless of the number of shares of Common Stottkally issued
upon the exercise of such Stock Appreciation Righitse necessary shares shall be made availathle discretion of the
Board of Directors from authorized but unissuedretatreasury shares, or shares reacquired by dh@gp&ny under
corporate repurchase programs. The payment ok steadends and dividend equivalents settled in @amn Stock in
conjunction with outstanding Awards shall not bemed against the shares available for issuance.

SECTION 4 ADMINISTRATION

The 2005 Program shall be administered by the Citteem which shall have full power and authoritystdect
the Participants, interpret the Program, contiageglerate or suspend the exercisability or vestiragn Award, and adopt
such rules and procedures for operating the Progiaih may deem necessary or appropriate. Its pang authority
shall include, but not be limited to, making anyesmtiments to or modifications of the 2005 Progranickvimay be
required or necessary to make such Program comigiytiae provisions of any laws or regulations of @ountry or unit
thereof in which the Company operates. To dotsCtommittee may establish different terms and itiomd for Awards
made to Participants who live in or are subjedat@tion in one or more countries other than thaddrStates in order to
accommodate the tax or other relevant laws of soeimtries. The Committee may adopt one or mor@lsuagents or
sub-plans under the Program to implement theserdift terms and conditions.

SECTION 5 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

To the extent permitted by Delaware law, the Cotreaimay delegate to officers of the Company angilof
its duties, power and authority under the 2005 Rnwgsubject to such conditions or limitations as @ommittee may
establish; provided, however, that no officer shalle or obtain the authority to grant Awards }d{inself or herself, or
(ii) any person subject to section 16 of the Sé@sriExchange Act of 1934.

SECTION 6 TERMS OF AWARDS

The Committee shall determine the type or type&wedrds to be granted to each Participant, whicti leeevidenced
by such written or electronic documents as the Citteenshall authorize. No Participant shall bentgd Awards under
the 2005 Program with respect to more than 3,0@0sbares of Common Stock. The following types ofafds may be
granted under this 2005 Program:

(@) Incentive Stock Options — Incentive Stock Opsi granted hereunder shall have a purchase pnicd e
to one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Markdt¥af a share of Common Stock on the Grant Dhateentive Stock
Options granted hereunder shall become exercisdltdach time as shall be established by the Comenithd reflected
in the documents evidencing such Options, and srdesner terminated shall expire on the tenth ansary of the Grant
Date.

(b) Nongqualified Stock Options — Nonqualified Stdaftions granted hereunder shall have a purchése pr
equal to no less than one hundred percent (100%hgdfair Market Value of a share of Common Statkhe Grant Date.
Nonqualified Stock Options granted hereunder diedbme exercisable and shall expire at such tintieness as shall be
established by the Committee and reflected in theuthents evidencing such Options; provided, howetret no
Nonqualified Stock Option shall expire later than tears after the Grant Date (except that the Ateermay extend
the exercise period for Nonqualified Stock Optignanted to Participants in any country or countfigsan additional

142



period of up to one year if and to the extent ne&gsto prevent adverse tax consequences to sutibifnts under the
laws of such country).

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thicten, the vested and exercisable portion of anddpir Stock
Appreciation Right that remains outstanding immealjaprior to the expiration of its full term on after April 1, 2016
(or, if applicable, the expiration of the limitedgi-termination exercise window occurring on oeafipril 1, 2016) shall
be deemed to have been exercised by the Particggpaunich time if (i) the Participant has accepted@ption or Stock
Appreciation Right, (ii) the Fair Market Value ofi® share of Common Stock exceeds the applicableisgegrice per
share, and (iii) either (A) such Option or Stockpfgciation Right remains outstanding on the lagtafats full term or
(B) the Participant’s Option or Stock AppreciatiRight otherwise would terminate prior to the lagy @f its full term as
a result of the Participant’s death. For the aamnad of doubt, an Option or Stock Appreciation Righat terminates upon
the expiration of its limited post-termination egise window shall not be deemed to have remaing¢standing on the
last day of its full term for purposes of claus® {in the preceding sentence. In the event anddpir Stock Appreciation
Right is exercised pursuant to this Section, thenany shall deliver to the Participant the numideshares of Common
Stock for which the Option or Stock AppreciatiorgRi was deemed exercised, less the number of shb@smmon
Stock withheld for the payment of the total pur@hpsce and withholding taxes.

(c) Progressive Stock OptionsWhenevera Participant exercises a Nonqualified Stock Optcented
under the 2002 Program or its predecessors andspaienent of all or part of the purchase price\aitidholding taxes,
if any, in Common Stock, the Committee may in iisccetion grant such Participant a Progressive KS@ation. The
number of shares subject to such Progressive Sdption shall be equal to the number of shares oh@on Stock
utilized by the Participant to effect payment of thurchase price and withholding taxes, if any,siach Nonqualified
Stock Option. Each Progressive Stock Option gehh&eunder shall have a purchase price equaletandred percent
(100%) of the Fair Market Value of a share of Comr&tock on the date of exercise of the Nonqualiéack Option,
which shall be the Grant Date of such ProgressieekOption. Each Progressive Stock Option graht@under shall
be exercisable six months after the Grant Date shatl expire at the same time the Nonqualifiedi@péxercised by the
Participant would have expired.

(d) Stock Appreciation Rights - The term of a &tédppreciation Right shall be fixed by the Comnstte
and set forth in the documents evidencing sucht,right no Stock Appreciation Right shall be exeabis more than ten
years after the Grant Date. Each Stock Apprecidimght shall become exercisable at the time oesimletermined by
the Committee and set forth in the documents ewidgnsuch right. Each Stock Appreciation Rightngeal hereunder
shall have a grant price equal to one hundred pe(t60%) of the Fair Market Value of a share ofdaon Stock on the
Grant Date.

(e) Restricted Stock - At the time a grant of Retgd Stock is made, the Committee, in its soéemition,
shall establish a Restricted Period and such aditiConditions as may be deemed appropriate éointremental lapse
or complete lapse of restrictions with respectltmaany portion of the shares of Common Stockrespnted by the
Restricted Stock. The Committee may also, inate giscretion, shorten or terminate the Restri€tedod or waive any
Conditions with respect to all or any portion oétshares of Common Stock represented by the Resti&tock. The
Participant shall generally have the rights anglileges of a stockholder as to such RestrictediStocluding the right
to vote such Restricted Stock, except that th@fadhg restrictions shall apply: (i) the Participatiall not be entitled to
delivery of the shares of such Restricted Stockl tiné expiration or termination of the RestrictBériod and the
satisfaction of any other Conditions prescribedh®sy Committee, if any; (ii) none of the Restric&bck may be sold,
transferred, assigned, pledged, or otherwise enetedbor disposed of during the Restricted Period antil the
satisfaction of other Conditions prescribed byGmenmittee, if any; and (iii) all of the Restrict&tbck shall be forfeited
and all rights of the Participant shall terminaithaut further obligation on the part of the Compamless the Participant
shall have remained a regular full-time employethefCompany or any of its subsidiaries or afdgtintil the expiration
or termination of the Restricted Period and théstadtion of the other Conditions prescribed by @emmittee, if any.
During the Restricted Period, at the sole discretibthe Committee, Dividend Equivalents may baegitcurrently paid
or withheld by the Company for the Participant'scaamt, and interest may be paid on the amount sl cévidends
withheld at a rate and under such terms as detedry the Committee. Cash or stock dividends sbheid by the
Committee shall not be subject to forfeiture. Uplom forfeiture of any Restricted Stock, such skafeCommon Stock
represented by the Restricted Stock shall be tearesf to the Company without further action by Baeticipant.
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4] Restricted Stock Units - At the time a grahRestricted Stock Units is made, the Committeésiisole
discretion, shall establish a Restricted Period sunch additional Conditions as may be deemed apiptepfor the
incremental lapse or complete lapse of restrictisitls respect to all or any portion of such Res#icStock Units. The
Committee may also, in its sole discretion, shodeterminate the Restricted Period or waive angdtions with respect
to all or any portion of the Restricted Stock UniBBuring the Restricted Period, the Participarit mat have the rights
and privileges of a stockholder as to such Restti@tock Units; provided, however, that at the slideretion of the
Committee, Dividend Equivalents may be either aufyepaid in cash or shares or withheld by the Campfor the
Participant’s account and reinvested in additidRastricted Stock Units. Each grant of Restrictéatls Units shall be
subject to the following restrictions: (i) the Reigiant shall not be entitled to delivery of theasds of Common Stock
corresponding to such Restricted Stock Units timéilexpiration or termination of the Restrictedi®&and the satisfaction
of any other Conditions prescribed by the Commjti€any; (ii) none of the Restricted Stock Unitsaynbe sold,
transferred, assigned, pledged, or otherwise enetedbor disposed of during the Restricted Period antil the
satisfaction of other Conditions prescribed by @wmmittee, if any; and (iii) all of the Restrict&tock Units shall be
forfeited and all rights of the Participant shalirhinate without further obligation on the partloed Company unless the
Participant shall have remained a regular full-tiemeployee of the Company or any of its subsidiasiesffiliates until
the expiration or termination of the Restrictedi®&rand the satisfaction of the other Conditionsspribed by the
Committee, if any.

(9) Other Stock Awards - The Committee may, instde discretion, grant Stock Awards other than
Restricted Stock grants or Restricted Stock Umitel such Stock Awards may be granted singly, inbioation or in
tandem with, in replacement of, or as alternatteegrants or rights under this Program or any oémployee benefit or
compensation plan of the Company, including the pleany acquired entity. If the Committee shafiidate Conditions
with respect to such Stock Awards, the Conditioilkhe set forth in documents evidencing the grdhtConditions with
respect to such Stock Awards shall require theesder or forfeiture of other grants or rights unttés Program or any
other employee benefit or compensation plan ofGbempany, then the Participant shall not have agiytsi under such
Stock Awards until the grants or rights exchangadehbeen fully and effectively surrendered or fioefi

SECTION 7 SETTLEMENT OF AWARDS

(a) Payment of Awards may be in the form of casbm@on Stock or combinations thereof as the
Committee shall determine, and with such otheric&tns as it may impose. The Committee may edspire or permit
Participants to elect to defer the issuance ofeshar the settlement of Awards in cash under sulels and procedures as
it may establish under the 2005 Program. It mag garovide that deferred settlements include thyeneat or crediting
of interest on the deferral amounts denominatezhsh or the payment or crediting of Dividend Eqléxgs on deferred
settlements denominated in shares.

(b) No shares of Common Stock shall be issued to articlpant upon the exercise of an Option until full
payment of the purchase price has been made @ammpany and the Participant has remitted to theaomythe required
federal and state withholding taxes, if any. Atiegrant shall obtain no rights as a stockholddil wertificates for such
stock are issued to the Participant or deliveretheoMSOP Administrator for credit to the accouhtte Participant.
Payment of the purchase price or applicable wittihgl taxes, if any, may be made in whole, or int,parshares of
Common Stock, pursuant to such terms and conditsnsay be established from time to time by the @dtee. If
payment is made in shares of Common Stock, sucatk staall be valued at one hundred percent (100%heaif Fair
Market Value on the day the Participant exercisgedhher Option or, as regards a withholding tch other date when
the tax withholding obligation becomes due. A Ra&réant need not surrender shares of Common Steglagment; and
the Company may, upon the giving of satisfactorgence of ownership of said Common Stock by Padict, deliver
the appropriate number of additional shares of Comi8tock reduced by the number of shares requoeuhy the
purchase price and any applicable withholding tax@&sch form of evidence shall be determined byGbmmittee.

SECTION 8 DELIVERY OF STOCK CERTIFICATES

€) Within sixty (60) days after completion of theercise of an Option or Stock Appreciation Rigitthe
complete satisfaction of Conditions applicable @®tack Award, the Company will have delivered te Barticipant or to
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the MSOP Administrator for credit to the accounttad Participant certificates representing all skaf Common Stock
purchased or received thereunder. The Compankredtahowever, be required to issue or deliver egificates for its
Common Stock prior to the admission of such stacksting on any stock exchange on which stock iathat time be
listed or required to be listed, or prior to regiibn under the Securities Act of 1933. The [egréint shall have no interest
in Common Stock until certificates for such stook @sued or transferred to the Participant onédMISOP Administrator
for credit to the account of the Participant are Barticipant becomes the holder of record.

(b) Upon the expiration or termination of the Riestéd Period and the satisfaction of other Condgio
prescribed by the Committee, if any, the restritdi@pplicable to a grant of Restricted Stock ortfged Stock Units
shall lapse and a stock certificate for the nundfeshares of Common Stock represented by the RestriStock or
Restricted Stock Units shall be delivered to thdi€ipant or the Participant's beneficiary, repraagve, or estate, as the
case may be, free of all restrictions, except &ay may be imposed by law. Unless otherwise ingtriby a Participant
by an irrevocable, written instruction received thg Company at least six months prior to the date &pplicable
restrictions lapse, the Company shall automaticalithhold as payment the number of shares of ComiBtmtk,
determined by the Fair Market Value at the dattheflapse, required to pay withholding taxes, if.an

(c) In no event will the Company be required tawdglany fractional share of Common Stock in cotiogc
with any Award. In the event that a Participarslsbe entitled to receive a fraction of a shareCoimmon Stock in
connection with an Award granted under this 20G&Rrm, the Company shall pay in cash, in lieu thigtae Fair Market
Value of such fractional share.

SECTION 9 TAX WITHHOLDING

Prior to the payment or settlement of any Award, Barticipant must pay, or make arrangements aetisfy to
the Company for the payment of, any and all taxieétding that in the opinion of the Company is riegg by law. The
Company shall have the right to deduct applicadtes from any Award payment, to withhold from thargs of
Common Stock being issued or delivered in connaatitth an Award an appropriate number of shareshiepayment
of taxes required by law, or to take such otheioacs may be necessary in the opinion of the Compa satisfy all
obligations for the withholding of such taxes.

SECTION 10 TRANSFERABILITY

Except as permitted in this Section 10, no Awaahted under this 2005 Program may be assignetsftnaied
(other than a transfer by will or the laws of degcnd distribution as provided in Section 11)dgled, or hypothecated
(whether by operation of law or otherwise). Awagianted under this 2005 Program shall not be stibjeexecution,
attachment, or similar process. The Committee nmaits sole discretion, permit individual Partiaiis to transfer the
ownership of all or any of their Nonqualified Opt®granted under this 2005 Program to (i) the spdiesmer spouse,
children or grandchildren of such Participant (“leuiiate Family Members”), (ii) a trust or trusts fbe exclusive benefit
of such Immediate Family Members, or (iii) a parsiép in which such Immediate Family Members aredhly partners,
provided that (x) there may be no consideration &y such transfer, and (y) subsequent transfersaotferred
Nonqualified Options shall be prohibited exceptsihin accordance with Section 11 (by will or thedaof descent and
distribution). The Committee may, in its sole dion, create further conditions and requiremdotshe transfer of
Nonqualified Options. Following transfer, any sidbnqualified Options shall continue to be subjedahe same terms
and conditions as were applicable immediately padransfer, provided that for purposes of Seation8 and 14 hereof
the term “Participant” shall be deemed to refethmtransferee. The events causing terminatidhwa@rds in accordance
with Section 11 hereof shall continue to be appheth respect to the original Participant, folloginvhich the
Nonqualified Options shall be exercisable by tlaasferee only to the extent, and for the periodsifipd in Section 11.

SECTION 11 TERMINATION OF AWARDS
€) If a Participant's employment with the Compaisyterminated for any reason other than (i) a
Disqualifying Termination, (ii) Retirement, (iii) termination in connection with which the Partiacipaxecutes a written

release of employment-related claims in favor ef @ompany that provides (with the approval of tlienany) for the
nonforfeiture of Options and Stock Appreciation iRgj (iv) a physical or mental disability as recagd under a benefit
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plan maintained by the Company, or (v) death, arat o the date of termination the Participant hasfully exercised
an Option or Stock Appreciation Right granted urtiexr 2005 Program, such Participant may exerbis@iption or Stock
Appreciation Right within ninety (90) days follovgrthe date of termination (but not beyond the etpmin date of such
Option or Right) for the number of shares which Baaticipant could have purchased or received apayon the date
of termination. At the conclusion of such ninegydperiod (with respect to the Participant’'s Opgicand Stock
Appreciation Rights, and at the time of terminatigith respect to any other Awards), participati@ndunder shall cease
and all of the Participant’s Awards granted untiés 2005 Program shall be automatically forfeiteteas the documents
evidencing such Options or Stock Appreciation Righrovide otherwise.

(b) If a Participant Retires, terminates employmesth the Company and in connection with such
termination the Participant executes a writtenasdeof employment-related claims in favor of thenpany that provides
(with the approval of the Company) for the nonfitfiee of Options and Stock Appreciation Rights, aranges
employment status as a result of a physical or ahatisability as recognized under a benefit planntained by the
Company, without having fully exercised an OptiorStock Appreciation Right, the Participant shaldmtitled, within
the remaining term of the Option or Stock AppraoiaRight (but not beyond the expiration date afts@ption or Right),
to exercise such Option or Stock Appreciation Rigibvided, however, that in the event of a terriigmain connection
with which the Participant executes a written re¢eaf employment-related claims in favor of the @any that provides
(with the approval of the Company) for the nonfitfee of Options and Stock Appreciation Rights, dklitional time to
exercise Options and Stock Appreciation Rightslsgbly only to those Options and Stock AppreciatRights which
have vested prior to the date of termination of leyypent). If a Participant who has thus Retiregsdiwithout having
fully exercised an Option or Stock Appreciation IRigthe Option or Stock Appreciation Right (inclagiany portion
thereof not already exercisable at the time ofRbdicipant’s death) may be exercised within twargeafter the date of
his or her death (but not beyond the expiratioe désuch Option or Right) by the Participant'atsbr by a person who
acquired the right to exercise such Option or S#yggreciation Right by bequest or inheritance ordgson of the death
of the Participant.

(©) If a Participant, prior to Retirement, dieghwaiut having fully exercised an Option or Stock Agapation
Right, the Option or Stock Appreciation Right (inding any portion thereof not already exercisalbltéha time of the
Participant’s death) may be exercised within twargdollowing his or her death (but not beyond élpiration date of
such Option or Right) by the Participant's estatbyoa person who acquired the right to exerciss SDption or Stock
Appreciation Right by bequest or inheritance ordgson of the death of the Participant.

(d) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) of this sectidna Participant’'s employment with the Company is
terminated before he or she has fully exercise®@ption or Stock Appreciation Right under circumsié which the
Committee believes to warrant special consideraimhthe Committee has determined that the Paatitgrights should
not be forfeited at the time or times specifiecharagraph (a), the Option or Stock AppreciationhRigncluding any
portion thereof not already exercisable at the tfirmination) may be exercised within two yefalfowing his or her
termination of employment (but not beyond the eaqin date of such Option or Right).

(e) If a Participant dies, either prior to or &lling Retirement, or becomes “disabled” within theaning
of section 409A(a)(2)(C) of the Code, and has reitreceived the stock certificate for the share€ofnmon Stock
represented by a grant of Restricted Stock, RéstriStock Units or other Stock Award, then all niesbns imposed
during the Restricted Period and any other Conalitiorescribed by the Committee, if any, shall aatically lapse and
a stock certificate shall be delivered to the godint or the Participant's beneficiary, represardaor estate, as the case
may be upon the Participant’s demonstration tostgsfaction of the Committee that such Particigantonsidered
“disabled” for purposes of section 409A(a)(2)(Cllué Code.

4] If a Participant’'s employment with the Compaisyterminated due to a Disqualifying Termination,
participation hereunder shall cease and all of Paeticipant’'s Awards granted under this 2005 Pnogihall be
automatically forfeited.

(9) If the Committee or the officers to whom itlelgates the necessary authority receive or hasonei®

believe that the Company has received crediblecgnid that a Participant may have engaged in actieiscribed in the
term “Disqualifying Termination” in Section 2(h) tiis 2005 Program, the Committee or such officeay suspend the
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exercise, delivery or settlement of all or any jwortof such Participant’s outstanding Awards grdnteder this 2005
Program pending an investigation of the matter.

SECTION 12 ADJUSTMENTS

In the event of any change in the outstanding Com®tock of the Company by reason of a stock sgilitck
dividend, combination or reclassification of shamesapitalization, merger or similar event, then@aittee shall adjust
proportionately: (a) the number of shares of Comi&totk (i) available for issuance or delivery untter 2005 Program
in accordance with Section 3, (ii) for which Awantisly be granted to a single Participant in accardarith Section 6,
and (iii) subject to outstanding Awards grantedamtthe 2005 Program; (b) the purchase prices atanding Awards;
and (c) the appropriate Fair Market Value and opiniere determinations for such Awards. In the ¢ eéany other change
affecting the Common Stock or any distribution @stthan normal cash dividends) to holders of Com&totk, such
adjustments in the number or kind of shares angtinehase prices, Fair Market Value and other pi@erminations of
the affected Awards as the Committee shall, irsile discretion, determine are equitable, shalinaele and shall be
effective and binding for all purposes of such tarnding Awards. In the event of a corporate mergensolidation,
acquisition of assets or stock, separation, redzgtion or liquidation, the Committee shall be authed to cause the
Company to issue or assume stock options, whetthaotan a transaction to which section 424(a)ef Code applies, by
means of substitution of new stock options for resly issued stock options or an assumption ofiptesly issued stock
options. In such event, the aggregate numberayéstof Common Stock available for issuance owesfiunder the 2005
Program in accordance with Section 3 will be inseghto reflect such substitution or assumption, sunch shares
substituted or assumed shall not be counted aghim$hdividual Participant maximum set forth incSen 6.

SECTION 13 TERM, AMENDMENT, AND
TERMINATION OF THE 2005 PROGRAM

The 2005 Program shall become effective on the ilas approved by the requisite vote of the shottters of
3M Company, and shall expire (unless it is terngdatefore then) on the third anniversary of suébcéfie date. Such
expiration shall not adversely affect Awards grdnieder the 2005 Program prior to such expiratete dThe Committee
may at any time amend or terminate the 2005 Progeawept that no amendment or termination shaleesbly affect
Awards granted under the 2005 Program prior teffextive date of such amendment or terminatioayioied, however,
that no amendment shall be made without the pppraval of the Board of Directors and the holddra majority of the
issued and outstanding shares of Common Stocksemed and entitled to vote on such amendment whaid (i)
increase the aggregate number of shares of Commagk 8vailable for issuance or delivery under t82Program in
accordance with Section 3 (except for adjustmemidenin accordance with Section 12), (ii) permitghenting of Awards
with purchase prices lower than those specifie@eation 6, or (iii) be a material amendment for abhstockholder
approval is required by applicable law, regulatiwrstock exchange rule.

SECTION 14 CHANGE IN CONTROL

€) For purposes of this Section 14, the followimgrds and phrases shall have the meanings indicate
below, unless the context clearly indicates othsewi

0] "Person" shall have the meaning associatel thiat term as it is used in Sections 13(d) and
14(d) of the Act.

(i) "Affiliates and Associates" shall have the anéngs assigned to such terms in Rule 12b-2
promulgated under Section 12 of the Act.

(iii) "Act" means the Securities Exchange Act 684,

(iv) "Continuing Directors" shall have the meanigsigned to such term in Article Thirteenth of
the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of 3M Qamy.
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(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of thisOB0Program to the contrary. all outstanding Optiand
Stock Appreciation Rights shall (i) become immeelaexercisable in full for the remainder of theispective terms upon
the occurrence of a Change in Control of the Compand (ii) remain exercisable in full for a minimuperiod of six
months following the Change @ontrol; provided, however, that in no event shalf Option or Stock Appreciation Right
be exercisable beyond the original expiration date.

(c) Similarly, all restrictions regarding the Réded Period or the satisfaction of other Conditio
prescribed by the Committee, if any, with respedajriants of Restricted Stock or other Stock Awastig)l automatically
lapse, expire, and terminate and the Participaadt bb immediately entitled to receive a stockifiegte for the number
of shares of Common Stock represented by the RestriStock or Stock Awards upon the occurrence Ghange in
Control.

(d) For purposes of this Section 14, a Changeomti©l of the Company shall be deemed to have oedur
only if a “change in the ownership” or a “changeeffective control” and/or a “change in the owndpstf a substantial
portion of the assets” of the Company has takecep(as those terms are defined in Treasury Regngag1.409A-3(i)(5)
or such other regulation or guidance issued uneleian 409A of the Code).

(e) In the event that the provisions of this Setti4 result in "payments” that are finally detaered to be
subject to the excise tax imposed by section 4998e0Code, the Company shall pay to each Partitipa additional
amount sufficient to fully satisfy such excise td any additional federal, state, and local inctemes payable on the
additional amount. Payment of this additional amalhall be made as soon as administratively fegdiloit no later than
two and one-half months following the end of thetiegant’s taxable year in which the amount of éxeise tax payable
has been determined.

4] The Company shall pay to each Participantaim®unt of all reasonable legal and accounting &@eks
expenses incurred by such Participant in seekingtain or enforce his or her rights under thisti®ecl4, or in connection
with any income tax audit or proceeding to the eixttributable to the application of section 4389he Code to the
payments made pursuant to this Section 14, unlesssait commenced by the Participant for such pseg is dismissed
by the court as being frivolous or otherwise immopnder applicable court rules. The Company sisdl pay to each
Participant the amount of all reasonable tax andritial planning fees and expenses incurred by Bacticipant in
connection with such Participant's receipt of paytsg@ursuant to this Section 14. Payment of theggd and accounting
fees and expenses, as well as these tax and fahg@fenning fees and expenses, shall be made asasadministratively
feasible, but no later than two and one-half mofdiewing the end of the Participant’s taxable ygawhich such fees
and expenses have been incurred.

SECTION 15 MISCELLANEOUS

€)) Unless otherwise specifically determined bg Bommittee, settlements of Awards received by
Participants under the 2005 Program shall not mmée a part of any Participant's compensation topgses of
determining such Participant’s payments or benefitder any Company benefit plan, severance progoarseverance
pay law of any country. Nothing in this 2005 Pagrshall prevent the Company from adopting otheadititional
compensation programs, plans, or arrangementsiagiihs appropriate or necessary.

(b) The 2005 Program shall be unfunded. The Campaes not intend to create any trust or sepéuate
in connection with the 2005 Program. The Compdrall 10t have any obligation to set aside fundsegregate assets
to ensure the payment of any Award. The 2005 Rrogshall not establish any fiduciary relationshgiween the
Company and any Participant or other person. €aittent any person holds any rights by virtueroAward under the
2005 Program, such right (unless otherwise detaxdiry the Committee) shall be no greater thanigin of an unsecured
general creditor of the Company.

(c) No person shall have any claim or right todmanted an Award under the 2005 Program, and the
Participants shall have no rights against the Campgxcept as may otherwise be specifically providerkin. Nothing
in this 2005 Program shall be deemed to give amiidifzant the right to be retained in the employtled Company, or to
interfere with the right of the Company to disaigior discharge such Participant at any time fgrraason whatsoever.
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(d) The provisions of this 2005 Program and theudeents evidencing Awards granted under this 2005
Program shall be construed and interpreted acaptdithe laws of the State of Minnesota.

(e) In case any provision of this 2005 Programldieafuled or declared invalid for any reason, dégdality

or invalidity shall not affect the remaining prowiss, and the remainder of the 2005 Program steltdnstrued and
enforced as if such illegal or invalid provisiordhaever been included herein.

149



EXHIBIT 12

3M COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(Millions)
Year Year Year Year Year
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
EARNINGS
Income before income taxes $ 6,823 $ 7,026 $ 6,562 $ 6,351 $ 6,031
Add:
Interest expense (including amortization of
capitalized interest) 171 164 166 191 206
Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest component 101 104 103 92 85
Less:
Equity in undistributed income of 20-50%
owned companies 5 (1) (1) 3 4
TOTAL EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR
FIXED CHARGES $ 7,00 $ 7,295 $ 6,832 $ 6,631 $ 6,318
FIXED CHARGES
Interest on debt (including capitalized interest) 162 159 166 194 206
Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest component 101 104 103 92 85
TOTAL FIXED CHARGES $ 263 $ 263 $ 269 $ 286 $ 291
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 27.0 27.7 25.4 23.2 21.7
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EXHIBIT 18

February 11, 2016

Board of Directors
3M Company

3M Center

St. Paul, MN 55144

Dear Directors:

We are providing this letter to you for inclusiom@n exhibit to your Form 10-K filing pursuant terh 601 of
Regulation S-K.

We have audited the consolidated financial statésrianluded in the Company’s Annual Report on F&G¥K for the
year ended December 31, 2015 and issued our riygoeton dated February 11, 2016. Note the financial statements
describes a change in accounting principle fromeghiod which classifies marketable securities orctiresolidated
balance sheet based on management’s intended gg@diiod to a method which classifies marketabteisees based
on the nature of the securities and their avaitgtfibr use in current operations. It should belenstood that the
preferability of one acceptable method of accountimer another for the classification of marketadgeurities has not
been addressed in any authoritative accountingtites, and in expressing our concurrence belowave relied on
management’s determination that this change inwatotg principle is preferable. Based on our regdif
management’s stated reasons and justificatiorhferchange in accounting principle in the Form 1,6aKd our
discussions with management as to their judgmemttahe relevant business planning factors reldtirtfpe change, we
concur with management that such change represenb&e Company’s circumstances, the adoptionmrieferable
accounting principle in conformity with Accountir@iandards Codification 258ccounting Changes and Error
Corrections

Very truly yours,

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
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EXHIBIT 21

3M COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (PARENT AN D SUBSIDIARIES)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

Name of Company Organized Under Law of

Registrant — 3M Company Delaware
Consolidated subsidiaries of the Registrant:
3M Cogent, Inc. Delaware
3M Electronic Monitoring, Inc. Delaware
3M Financial Management Company Delaware
3M Global Channel Services, Inc. Delaware
3M Innovative Properties Company Delaware
3M Investment Management Corporation Delaware
3M Occupational Safety LLC Delaware
3M Purification Inc. Delaware
Aearo Holding LLC Delaware
Aearo Technologies LLC Delaware
Capital Safety North America Holdings, Inc. Delaware
Ceradyne, Inc. Delaware
3M Unitek Corporation California
Ivera Medical LLC California
Meguiar’s, Inc. California
3M Health Information Systems, Inc. Maryland
3M Touch Systems, Inc. Massachusetts
GTA-NHT, Inc. Massachusetts
DB Industries LLC Minnesota
Two Harbors Insurance Company South Carolina
3M Argentina S.A.C.I.LF.I.LA Argentina
3M Australia Pty. Ltd. Australia
3M Purification Pty Limited Australia
3M Osterreich GmbH Austria
Rappold Winterthur Technologie GmbH Austria
3M Belgium BVBA/SPRL Belgium
3M do Brasil Limitada Brazil
3M Manaus Ind. Prods. Quims. LTDA Brazil
3M Canada Company Canada
Capital Safety Group Canada ULC Canada
3M Chile S.A. Chile
3M China Limited China
3M International Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China
3M International Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. China
3M Investments (China) Co., Ltd. China
3M Material Technology (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. China
3M Material Technology (Hefei) Co., Ltd. China
3M Material Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. China
3M Optical Systems Manufacturing Co., (Shanghadl, Lt China
3M Speciality Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China
3M Colombia, S.A. Colombia
3M A/S Denmark
Suomen 3M Oy Finland
3M Purification France
3M France S.A.S. France
EMFI SAS France
3M Bricolage & Batiment France
3M Deutschland GmbH Germany
3M Real Estate GmbH & Co. KG Germany
Dyneon GmbH Germany

152



Name of Company

Organized Under Law of

Wendt GmbH

3M Hong Kong Limited

3M India Limited

3M Electronic Monitoring Ltd

3M ITALIA srl

3M Japan Limited

3M Japan Holdings Company

3M Japan Products Limited

3M Korea Health and Safety Limited
3M Korea High Technology Limited
3M Korea Limited

3M Asset Management S.a.r.l.

3M Attenti Holdings S.a.r.l.

3M Global Capital S.a.r.l.

Capital Safety Group Sarl

3M Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

3M Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

3M Nederland B.V.

3M New Zealand Limited

Germany
Hong Kong
India
Israel
Italy
Japan
Japan
Japan
Korea
Korea
Korea
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Luxembourg
Malaysia
Mexico
Netherlands
New Zealand

3M Norge A/S Norway

3M Panama Pacifico S. de R.L. Panama
3M Peru Industrial S.A. Peru

3M Poland Sp. z.0.0. Poland

3M Wroclaw Sp. z.0.0. Poland

3M Puerto Rico, Inc. Puerto Rico
3M Romania S.R.L. Romania
3M Russia, LLC Russia

3M Innovation Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore
3M Singapore Private Limited Singapore
3M Technologies (S) Pte Ltd Singapore
CUNO Filtration Asia Pte. Ltd. Singapore
3M South Africa (Propriety) Limited South Africa
3M Espana S.L. Spain

3M Svenska AB Sweden

3M EMEA, GmbH Switzerland
3M (East) A.G. Switzerland
3M (Schweiz) GmbH Switzerland
3M Taiwan Limited Taiwan

3M Taiwan Optronics Corp. Taiwan
Alpha Beta Global Tapes & Adhesives Co., Ltd. Taiwan

3M Thailand Limited Thailand

3M Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S. Turkey

3M Gulf Ltd. United Arab Emirates
3M Health Care Limited United Kingdom
3M UK Holdings Limited United Kingdom
3M United Kingdom PLC. United Kingdom
Capital Safety Acquisition Limited United Kingdom
Capital Safety ROW Ltd United Kingdom
3M Manufacturera Venezuela, S.A. Venezuela

NOTE: Subsidiary companies excluded from the ablistiag, if considered in the aggregate, would cmstitute a
significant subsidiary.
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EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtke Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Regish Nos. 333-
30689, 333-30691, 333-44760, 333-73192, 333-101323,109282, 333-128251, 333-130150, 333-15103%; 33
156626, 333-156627, 333-166908, 333-174562, 332481and 333-181270) and Form S-3 (Registration R83-
196003, 33-48089, 333-42660, and 333-109211) of22ivhpany of our report dated February 11, 2016ingjab the
financial statements and the effectiveness of matlerontrol over financial reporting, which appeiarthis Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 11, 2016
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EXHIBIT 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned Directors and the Prindiakutive, Principal Financial and Principal Acnting
Officers of 3M COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (tf@mpany”), hereby constitute and appoint Inger'Gulin,
Nicholas C. Gangestad, Gregg M. Larson, Eric D. ke lvan K. Fong, and Matthew J. Ginter, and edi¢hem, his
or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agewtth full and several power of substitution aregubstitution, for him
or her and in his or her name, place and steadyiraad all capacities, to sign one or more Annugpdrts for the
Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2015,00mHAO0-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1234,
amended, any amendments thereto, and all addittanahdments thereto, each in such form as thegyoo@e of them
may approve, and to file the same with all exhitiiereto and other documents in connection thehewiith the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting wuaitbattorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of tighpower and
authority to do and perform each and every actthimdj requisite and necessary to be done so tlcat Aanual Report
or Annual Reports shall comply with the Securiie&hange Act of 1934, as amended, and the appdi¢ables and
Regulations adopted or issued pursuant theretfollgsgind to all intents and purposes as he onsight or could do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all thatlsattorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of thertheir substitute or
resubstitute, may lawfully do or cause to be dopgitiue hereof.

The undersigned have signed this Power of Attothisy2nd day of February 2016.

/sl Inge G. Thulin /sl Nicholas C. Gangestad
Inge G. Thulin, Chairman of the Board, Presidem Nicholas C. GangestaSenior Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Office Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige

and Director)

/sl Linda G. Alvarado /sl Eric D. Hammes

Linda G. Alvarado, Director Eric D. Hammes, ViceeBident, Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting
Officer)

/s/ Sondra L. Barbour
Sondra L. Barbour, Director

/s/ Thomas K. Brown /s/ Muhtar Kent

Thomas K. Brown, Director Muhtar Kent, Director
/sl Vance D. Coffman /sl Edward M. Liddy
Vance D. Coffman, Director Edward M. Liddy, Direct
/s/ David B. Dillon s/ Gregory R. Page
David B. Dillon, Director Gregory R. Page, Directo
/s/ Michael L. Eskew /s/ Robert J. Ulrich
Michael L. Eskew, Director Robert J. Ulrich, Ditec

/s/ Herbert L. Henkel
Herbert L. Henkel, Director
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EXHIBIT 31.1
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Inge G. Thulin, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-BMfCompany;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,nraliight of the circumstances under which suetesnents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pec@vered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementodimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial dom results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actdaul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensuterihgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madeviimto us by others within those entities, particiyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyteide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purpoges i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldésire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of the en
of the period covered by this report based on swaltuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent figcarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettia
case of an annual report) that has materially efter is reasonably likely to materially affeitte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refiogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiarterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registrauditors and the audit committee of the Regmttseboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record
process, summarize and report financial informataon

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal cattover financial reporting.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

February 11, 2016
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EXHIBIT 31.2
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Nicholas C. Gangestad, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-BMfCompany;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,nraliight of the circumstances under which suetesnents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pec@vered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementodimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial dom results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actdaul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensuterihgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madeviimto us by others within those entities, particiyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyteide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purpoges i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldésire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of the en
of the period covered by this report based on swaltuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent figcarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettia
case of an annual report) that has materially efter is reasonably likely to materially affeitte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refiogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiarterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registrauditors and the audit committee of the Regmttseboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record
process, summarize and report financial informataon

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal cattover financial reporting.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

February 11, 2016
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EXHIBIT 32.1
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2015 as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8partnge G.
Thulin, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, tifgt pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adbptesuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tisatny knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Inge G. Thulin
Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

February 11, 2016
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EXHIBIT 32.2
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2015 as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pariNicholas
C. Gangestad, Chief Financial Officer of the Comyparertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adspted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200at,tto my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

February 11, 2016
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MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

EXHIBIT 95

For the year 2015, the Company has the followingensiafety information to report in accordance \@igittion 1503(a) of the Act, in connection with Biisboro, North
Carolina mine, the Little Rock, Arkansas mine, @eona, California mine, and the Wausau, Wisconsgime (including Greystone Plant):

Received
Received Notice of
Total DollarValue Notice of Potential to Aggregate
Mine or Operating Section of MSHA TotaNumber Pattern of Have Pattern Legal Actions Aggregate Legal Actions
Name/MSHA Section 104 Section 104(d) Section eclion Assessments of Mining Violations Undere8tion Pending as of Legal Actions Resolved
Identification S&S Citations 104(b) Citations and  110(b)(2) 107(a) Proposed Related Under Sectio 104(e) Last Day of Initiated During During Period
Number #) Orders (#)  Orders (#)  Violations (#) Orders (#) $) Fatalities (#) 104(e) (yes/no) (yes/no) Period (#) Period (#) #)
3M Pittsboro ID: 3102153 1 — — = — 8 551 — No No —
3M Little Rock ID: 0300426 11 — — — — % 13,373 — No No —
3M Corona Plant ID: 0400191 1 — — = — 8 11,135 — No No —
Greystone Plant ID: 4700119 — — — — % 1,595 — No No —
Wausau Plant ID: 4702918 8 — — — — 8 10,535 — No No —
Total 25 — — — — 3 37,189 — — 1 1
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